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about the cover
We seize every moment and every 
opportunity each day to be better in all 
respects: financial, customer service, 
operational efficiency and products. 

We have a clear Vision of what 
TOMORROW will be and should be  
for PNB.

In every action we take TODAY, 
we always have in mind the core of 
our existence—our Customers and 
Stakeholders. 

We strive to make sure that the 
possibilities we create for them 
TODAY will lead to a better and more 
successful TOMORROW. 



consolidated
financial highlights

	 December 31	
	 2011	 2010
			 
Results of Operations		
Gross Income	  22,174,665 	  21,722,241 
Total Expenses	  18,302,113 	  19,030,513 
Net Income	  3,872,552 	  2,691,728 	
		
Financial Condition
Total Assets	  316,284,286 	  302,133,360 
Loans and Receivables 	  126,249,035 	  110,315,478 
Total Liabilities	  277,062,560 	  268,661,824 
Deposit Liabilities	  237,533,938 	  226,435,884 
Total Equity	  39,221,726 	  33,471,536 
			 
Per Share1

Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share	 5.83	 4.03
Book Value Per Share	 59.15	 50.31
	
1/ attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company			 
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accounting standards. However, when based on Philippine 
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), net income should be 
P4.7 billion vs. the P3.5 billion reported in 2010.

Return on average equity crossed the double digit mark at 
11%, up 8% year-on-year and the highest in 5 years. Return 
on average assets improved from 0.9% to 1.3%. Earnings 
per share grew 45% to P 5.83. Book value per share stood at 
P59.15 per share.

A Balancing Act, Sustaining Values
The growth in the bottomline is a testament of your Bank’s 
improved capability to ensure a steady stream of income from 
its core businesses amidst stiff competition; and to have a 
keen eye for opportunities to make gains in a relatively volatile 
environment. Lending was challenged by the generally low–
interest rate scenario which squeezed margins, more so for prime 
corporates and high-ticket loans.  PNB balanced its firm hold over 
the large corporate segment with an aggressive push to grow the 
middle market and consumer loans portfolio.   Net loans and 
receivables excluding loans to BSP and other banks grew by 14% 
to P126.2 billion. Net interest margin was stable at 3%. 

Trading gains significantly increased as PNB took advantage of 
opportunities in the financial market. As a result, net gains from 
trading, investment securities and foreign exchange was up 23%. 
Net fees and commission income increased slightly with the 
reduction in service expenses and an improvement in remittance 
and trust fees. PNB’s trust assets nearly doubled in 2011. Its 
remittance business likewise registered a 21% growth in business 
volume which outperformed the industry’s growth of 7%.

Through the years, PNB has stayed committed to be cost-
efficient in its operations. In 2011, in spite of critical 
investments made to support business initiatives, its cost 
efficiency ratio improved to 61% coming from 76% four 
years ago. Operating expenses were lower by 10% or P1.2 
billion.  Provisions for impairment and credit losses booked 
during the year amounted to P860.4 million compared to P2.4 
billion in 2010. As a result of the conservative provisioning 
made in previous years, the Bank saw no need to increase 
its provisions beyond reflected levels. This was made possible 
with improved customer and credit risk-modeling capabilities 
adopted across the organization which included among others 

our report
to our shareholders 

Amidst a global economic slowdown, the Philippines 
held its own. External forces posed challenges as 
well as opportunities for the domestic economy.  The 

Eurozone continued to grapple with issues on debt, fiscal 
imbalance and lack of confidence in their financial systems.  
The awaited recovery of the United States economy was 
slow and fragile. Other external negative developments such 
as natural and man-made calamities caused supply chain 
disruptions slowing down growth prospects.  However, this 
external environment allowed emerging markets like the 
Philippines to benefit from strong capital inflows as investors 
looked for better yields and some measure of stability. 

The Philippine economy registered a 3.7% growth in real 
Gross Domestic Product for the full year 2011. Growth was 
generally propelled by strong domestic consumption and the 
increase in investments.  The major production sectors such as 
agriculture, industry and service also provided a boost to the 
economy. Average inflation in 2011 inched slightly year-on-
year to a manageable 4.7%. The peso appreciated against the 
US Dollar by 4.0% with an average P/$ exchange rate during 
the year of P43.31/US$1.

The Philippine banking industry provided a strong support 
platform for the economy. In 2011, it sustained its growth 
trajectory. Continuous financial reforms, adherence to the 
highest standards of corporate governance, and compliance 
with international standards and best practices made the 
banking system stronger, more stable and resilient to negative 
shocks from external forces.  Improvements were seen across 
all key performance indicators. Total resources of the banking 
system rose by 5.7% to P7.6 trillion.

With these as backdrop, the five-year (2011-2015) strategic 
roadmap of your Bank which sought to fast-track its 
transformation into a first-rate institution got off the ground 
to a good start and proved to be on the right path. In 2011, 
Philippine National Bank (PNB) posted unprecedented 
record income of P3.9 billion, up 44% vs. the comparable 
adjusted 2010 net income and the highest ever in five years. 
This reported income follows Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas’ 
requirement to deduct the amortizations on deferred SPV 
losses against current operations instead of charging the same 
against surplus as done in previous years in line with financial 
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the rapid portfolio review of accounts by lending centers and 
the development of risk asset acceptance criteria for identified 
industry segments. 

Asset quality further improved with non-performing loans ratio 
dropping from 4.5% to 3.1% by the close of 2011. NPL cover 
stood at 78.4% in 2011 compared to 67.2%  of the previous 
year. PNB was successful in disposing a substantial number of 
foreclosed assets which generated P3.8 billion from the sale 
of 1,595 properties. Capital Adequacy Ratio was 21.7%, up 
from 19.4% a year ago, and more than twice the 10% statutory 
requirement of the BSP.

In 2011, PNB’s balance sheet remained strong with total 
consolidated resources of P316.3 billion, up by 5% or P14.2 
billion.  Total deposits grew another P11.1 billion to end the 
year with P237.5 billion.  With the continuous focus on new 
customer acquisition, cross-selling and relationship-building, 
the Bank’s distribution network once again proved its capability 
to generate funds. A number of branches were relocated to 
maximize market potential and cover areas where competitors 
were not present, thus making financial services accessible to 
the “unbanked.”   The Bank opened 10 new branches bringing 
the total network to 331 by year-end.

A Notch Higher
In recent years, the Bank made significant headway in its 
sales and service capabilities. Customers have noticed the 
change; and have embraced the “new PNB”: more efficient, 
less queues, more customer-friendly processes, aggressive in 
sales acquisition, more innovative offerings; and a revitalized 
image. In 2011, it further stepped-up efforts to improve on 
its successes and fast-track the changes which will ultimately 
make the Bank a first-rate organization.

The Bank continued to evolve its sales infrastructure to be 
attuned with market demands while firmly grounded on 
principles of harnessing synergies and a disciplined sales 
process. Branches grew their small and mid-market account 
base while improving their wallet share of “big ticket” 
accounts. Cash management tools were utilized as key value 
proposition to further the acquisition and growth strategy for 
corporate customers. Through active cross-selling efforts, the 
branches generated a total of P5.4 billion from various special 
offerings: Tier 2, Peso RTB, LTNCD, and Tanduay Holdings 

Common Shares. Likewise, the branch network contributed 
significantly in the sale and distribution of other product lines 
such as consumer loans, bancassurance, trust, fixed-income 
securities, and credit cards.   

Trust assets under management (AUM) grew 82%. The Bank’s 
roster of trust products includes retail unit investment trust 
funds (UITF), two of which have delivered top performance 
in 2011 — the Mabuhay Prestige Fund & the Mabuhay Prime 
Peso money market fund.  Likewise, for the 2nd year in a 
row, PNB received recognition from Mastercard’s Hall of 
Fame Awards, besting top banks in the Asia-Pacific region and 
winning more awards than any other local bank. Its Mabuhay 
Miles Mastercard Elite Program was awarded best activation 
campaign and best in class finalist. With year-round acquisition 
and utilization promotions, there were 60,000 PNB Mastercard 
cards-in-force by year-end. 

PNB also ranked amongst the top 5 in the Philippine Dealing 
Exchange Broker Sales Industry. Through the Treasury 
Group, the distribution of fixed-income securities and foreign 
exchange was focused on corporate, institutional and high net 
worth investors. With these as primary markets, volume went 
up by 180% year-on-year.

PNB’s institutional banking arm figured prominently in the 
major financing requirements of prime corporate names such 
as SMART, MNTC, Beacon, Rockwell and PSALM totaling P21 
billion. It fortified its middle market lending capabilities with 
the refinement of its SME strategies and sales organization.  
It launched a comprehensive “Kabuhayan” Loan Program as 
its bid to capture a significant share of the SME market. The 
Bank formally kicked-off the program in the market by being 
a major sponsor in the annual International Convention of the 
Philippine Franchise Association. The Bank’s corporate loan 
portfolio grew 24% year-on-year.  

Consumer loans, on one hand, registered an astounding 
portfolio growth of 45%. Combined housing and motor 
vehicle loan bookings were three times over the previous 
year. Relationship with dealers and developers was further 
strengthened through competitive incentives and onsite sales 
support activities.  Two rate-driven promotions for Home 
Loans were launched to push acquisition and grabbing of 
market share. 

our report
to our shareholders 
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In 2011, PNB continued to have 
customer service as the centerpiece 
of all of its initiatives. This covered 
all aspects of servicing including 
customer touchpoint capabilities. 

PNB’s remittance was challenged by very stiff competition and 
a changing business landscape. To build volume, the overseas 
offices focused on service quality, product innovation and meeting 
the entire spectrum of the Global Filipino’s needs – remittance, 
consumer loans, bills payments to include SSS, Philhealth, Pag-
ibig, Property Developers, and Pension firms.  The Bank signed 
up 16 new overseas partners to expand its agent network. 
 
In 2011, PNB continued to have customer service as the 
centerpiece of all of its initiatives. This covered all aspects 
of servicing including customer touchpoint capabilities. 
Service improvements were made possible with investments 
in technology, process re-engineering, and human resource 
development and training.  At the branch level, customer service 
programs such as “5S Housekeeping” and “Mystery Shopper” 
were institutionalized and regularly monitored.  Banking hours 
were extended on critical servicing days; and the number of 
branches offering weekend-banking was expanded.  Fifty-
seven new ATMs were installed in various strategic locations 
bringing PNB’s ATM network to 461. In October 2011, the 
Bank launched a revitalized Internet Banking Facility which 
offered speed and added security. It also upgraded its 24x7 
Remittance Help Desk with the acquisition of a new phone 
exchange system that provides efficient queuing and tracking 
of customer call traffic. Service level agreements between 
sales and support groups were re-set to align with business 
demands. This enabled PNB to improve on turnaround times, 
be competitive and grab market share.

Through the Human Resource Group, the Bank launched new 
programs which tapped internal and external training resources 
to reinforce the service culture and promote diversity in 
learning and development. A total of 144 in-house programs 
were conducted covering 4,696 attendees and representing 
almost 90% of the entire employee base. The new programs that 
were launched were: PNB Care for Internal Customers; Branch 
Selling Certification Programs; various technology-related 
training programs; and Leadership Development Programs.

The Bank’s operations were managed through well-established 
organizational structures and adequate policies and procedures 
embodied in manuals approved and periodically reviewed by 
the management committees and the Board. PNB maintains a 
high level of integrity, accountability and transparency in the 
conduct of its business. In May 2011, the Bank was bestowed 

Florencia G. Tarriela
Chairman

Carlos A. Pedrosa
President & Vice Chairman

the Silver Award for Good Corporate Governance from the 
Institute of Corporate Directors in recognition of its existing 
organization composed of dedicated corporate directors and 
senior management committed to the professional practice 
of corporate directorship in line with the global principles of 
good corporate governance. 

Before the year ended, PNB launched an internal deposit 
campaign “B2G: Big Leap to Glory” to reinforce collective 
ownership of goals as well as to see to it that the deposit-taking 
momentum is carried through 2012.

Commitment to the Legacy
The performance of PNB in recent years is proof that the 
Bank is on track to regain its position as the premier financial 
institution in the country. The strategies laid out have proven 
to be resilient to challenges posed by a changing business 
landscape. At the core of the Bank’s initiatives is a commitment 
from every Philnabanker to see to it that PNB succeeds. This 
commitment comes from a sense of pride in an institution that 
is very much part of history and the life of every Filipino.  As 
stewards of the trust of our customers and stakeholders, we 
shall always raise the bar of achievement to ensure that the 
Bank meets its goals and fulfills its vision. 

We thank our customers and shareholders for their unwavering 
trust and loyalty. We also thank all Philnabankers for staying 
true and committed to the legacy of PNB. Lastly, we extend 
our sincere appreciation to our Board of Directors for their 
valuable support and guidance.
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Retail 
In 2011, the Retail Banking Sector focused 
more on growth strategies consistent with 
its 5-year “Big Leap” program: pursue small 
& medium accounts that can be acquired 
immediately; and build relationships 
with big ticket accounts which take a 
while to acquire but guarantees bigger 
deposits using Cash Management tools. 
Alongside this, improving overall customer 
experience remained at the centerpiece of 
all initiatives. The deposit base grew by 
P11.1 billion to close the year at P237.5 
billion.

The sales discipline process was further 
enhanced to give more focus to account 
profitability, comprehensive wallet sizing, 

and needs-based cross-selling.  Apart from 
successfully growing traditional deposits, 
the branches proved to be an effective 
channel in generating funds for Peso Retail 
Treasury Bonds, LTNCDs, Tier 2 and even 
Tanduay Holdings Common Shares.   

Branch relocation and expansion were 
prioritized based on market potential and 
growth, emphasizing the need to cover 
areas where competitors are not present. 
Ten new branches were opened in 2011: 
Calamba Crossing, Paseo de Sta. Rosa, 
McKinley and Infinity in Fort Bonifacio, 
Starmall Alabang, Tagbilaran, Bauan, 
Tanauan, Cainta and Panabo.  14 were 
relocated, and nine were right-sized and 
renovated using the new branch design. 

operational
highlights
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Today, we keep         
    families around 
the world closer
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Following its re-branding efforts which began the previous 
year, 168 branches already carried the modern signage. 58 
new ATMs were also installed in various locations, most 
of which were placed in malls and high pedestrian traffic 
areas. Also, the Bank continued to expand its extended 
banking hours and weekend banking initiatives.

Customer Service programs such as “5S Housekeeping”, 
“Mystery Shopper”, and “GETS – Greet, Eye Contact, 
Thank You and Smile” were constantly instilled to 
ensure that all customer touch points deliver a consistent 
brand of service that is truly PNB. These programs were 
likewise captured in video formats for quick and easy 
reference by the branches during their regular training 
sessions.  

Institutional Banking
The Bank’s Institutional Banking Group remained to be 
a strong force and presence in the market in meeting the 
entire spectrum of needs of both big and small businesses.  
The proactive approach taken to building customer 
relationships has always followed the principle of supply 
chain management.  The Group consistently found ways 
to match all the client’s needs with a product or service 
of the Bank covering even the suppliers and customers, 
and extending as far as doing customizations and special 
arrangements to expand business take-up. Overall, the 
segment’s loan portfolio grew significantly by 24% year-
on-year.

today, we build 
on our strong 
momentum

Large corporates continued to trust PNB with their major 
financing requirements.  A total of P21 billion alone was 
generated from prime corporate names such as SMART, 
Beacon, PSALM, Rockwell, and MNTC.  Lending to 
government accounts and small and medium enterprises 
expanded as a result of increased coverage in both Metro 
Manila and regional centers.  Major inroads were made 
into the different regions of the country, specifically 
support to commercial enterprises that remain to be pump 
primers of their respective communities.  This manifested 
the adaptability and perseverance of account officers to 
fully understand the working capital requirements of these 
regional pump primers and provide the necessary funding 
safely and efficiently.  The Bank has so far allocated P10.2 
billion for regional lending. 

RETAIL BANKING GROUP

From Left to Right : VP Reynaldo A. Intal, SVP Mary Ann A. Santos  
EVP Jovencio B. Hernandez,  SVP Ma.  Luisa S. Toribio  
VP Roger P. Colobong, VP Carina L. Salonga, FVP Jane K. Gocuan  
(not  in the photo), VP Teresita U. Sebastian (not in the photo)

operational
highlights
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In June 2011, with the bid to increase PNB’s share of 
the SME market, a comprehensive “Kabuhayan” Loans 
program was launched. The program aims to provide for 
the total funding requirements of SMEs, be they for term 
lending, working capital, or even for franchise businesses. 
To jumpstart the program, a special tie-up was inked with 
PLDT SME Nation where SMEs availing of a minimum of  
P5 Million PNB Kabuhayan Loan will receive a free laptop, 
and a free one-year subscription to PLDT’s Checkout POS 
software and WeRoam internet service.

Consumer 
Consumer loans registered remarkable growth during the 
year. The Bank was able to triple its loan bookings from 
2010 levels with 68% coming from home loans and the 
balance from auto loans.

PNB’s branch distribution network played a significant 
role in driving numbers up. The branches accounted for 
60% of total loan bookings. On top of this, significant 
contribution also came from partnerships made with 
top-notch developers, real estate companies, brokers and 
agents. The Bank started to develop its capabilities to pursue 
dealer-generated auto sales. To ensure a steady stream of 
applications, an internal incentives campaign dubbed as 
“Book-A-Loan, Bag-A-Gift” was launched to motivate the 
entire employee population to refer customers to avail 
of auto and home loans.  And to further reinforce on the 
market the Bank’s bid as a strong player in the consumer 

financing industry, PNB was aggressive in offering very 
competitive rates through two-rate driven consumer 
promotions for Home Loans during the year.

The backroom capabilities were further strengthened 
to maintain or even improve on its present competitive 

TRUST BANKING GROUP CONGENERICS

From Left to Right:  SAVP Dennis Anthony L. Elayda, AVP Anna Liza S. Calayan 
SM Arleli B. Malonzo, SAVP Roy O. Sapanghila, FSVP Rafael G. Ayuste, Jr.  
VP Joy Jasmin R. Santos, FVP Arsenia L. Matriano, VP Josephine E. Jolejole  
AVP Juliet S. Dytoc (not included in the photo) 

From Left to Right: 
Reynaldo P. Mañalac, President - PNB General Insurers Co., Inc.
Ramon L. Lim, President - PNB Securities, Inc.
Alfonso C. Tanseco, Acting President - Japan-PNB Leasing 
	 and Finance Corp.
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turnaround standards; reinforce credit 
scoring models and analytics; and vastly 
improve collection monitoring.  Past 
due levels were within or even lower 
than industry standards owing to efforts 
at exercising due credit diligence and 
monitoring.

In just two years, PNB achieved 
remarkable growth in its credit card 
business.  Total cards-in-force grew 
three times over the previous year to 
close 60,000 by year-end.  The year 
was packed with innovative customer 
acquisition and usage campaigns. The 
Mabuhay Miles Elite Membership 
program gave select cardholders access 
to the Mabuhay Lounge, additional 10kg 

luggage allowance, and priority check-in 
and boarding, among others. The Zero % 
Installment Payment Plan was expanded 
beyond traditional pay-on-installment 
items: high-priced masterpieces, heirloom 
watches, luxury cars, and even PAL 
tickets, Swingaround and Palakbayan 
packages.  The “Swipe and Win” promo 
raffled-off LCD television sets and a 
Hyundai Accent to encourage card 
activation. Cardholders were also given 
the option to pay three months after at 
0% installment under the “Fly PAL, Pay 
Later” program.

In the last quarter of 2011, PNB launched 
the new PNB Visa Credit Cards – the 
classic and gold variants catering to the 

operational
highlights
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Today, we create 
   opportunities to 
grow your business
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payment requirements of a broader market.  The card pays 
back a 1% rebate on revolved transactions thus providing 
automatic savings while enjoying payment flexibility.

Treasury
Towards the middle of the year, the financial markets saw 
the drama in Europe unfold, significantly putting market 
views in reverse mode.  Global economic growth was put 
in question. Financial markets placed a bet against higher 

interest rates as monetary policy makers shifted direction 
from a tightening bias to an accommodative stance. The 
shift in policy stance reflected certain priorities—sustain 
growth in their particular countries or lighten the impact 
of the economic slowdown brought by developments in 
Europe.

Increase in risk in some parts of the globe benefitted 
Asia as real money managers moved their funds into 

the region, the Philippines included.  
The acceleration of the flow of money 
to Asia was coupled with extended 
monetary policy that the Unites States 
had introduced since the financial crisis 
began in 2008. These developments 
created a lot of volatility in the financial 
markets.  For most of the year, investors 
traded on headline news.

With the increase in volatility in the 
markets, the PNB’s Treasury Group took 
the position of reducing trading volumes 
enough to have recognizable presence in 
the trading market.  In the foreign exchange 
interbank markets, the Bank continuously 
increased market share alongside industry 
growth. Towards the second half of the 
year, opportunities in asset participation 
brought about primarily by the confidence 

TREASURY BANKING GROUP

From Left to Right: SVP Esther F. Capule, FVP Ma. Victoria P. Manimbo  
EVP Horacio E. Cebrero III, SVP Ponciano C. Bautista, Jr., SVP Lourdes S. Liwag 

today, we lead 
with teamwork 
and dedication
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highlights

12 TODAY, WE START ON YOUR TOMORROW



shown by global investors in Philippine assets were 
consistently pursued. Strategic moves to unload securities 
produced not only positive results but consequently 
resulted in maximized use of capital.

One area that the Bank’s Treasury Group focused on is the 
distribution of fixed income securities and foreign exchange 
to corporate, institutional, and high net worth investors.  
The business model produced remarkable results in 
generating fee-based income as well as fortifying market 
presence. Volumes went up more than 180% from previous 
year’s level. PNB ended 2011 as Top 5 in the distribution of 
fixed-income securities in the Philippine Dealing Exchange 
Broker Sales Industry.

Global
PNB’s remittance business registered a 21% growth in 
business volume in 2011, outperforming the industry’s 
7.2%.  This growth was the result of a combination of the 
expansion in the Bank’s agent network, sustained focus 
on service quality, continued product innovation and sales 
initiatives.

Emphasis was given to meeting the entire spectrum of 
Overseas Filipino’s needs: remittances, consumer loans; 
settlement of bills to SSS, Philhealth, Pag-ibig and property 
developers; and pension payments. With these, the base of 
depositors from Overseas Filipinos and their families grew 
and their loyalty to PNB strengthened. 

INSTITUTIONAL BANKING GROUP

From Left to Right: FVP Humildad M. Santelices, Manager Elsie E. Garcia, FVP Jazmin F. Lao, EVP Ma. Elena B. Piccio, SVP Victorio C. Sison  
FVP Maria Rita S. Pueyo, AVP Luzviminda V. Magsino, FSVP Cenon C. Audencial, Jr., VP Martin G. Tirol, FVP Marie Fe Liza S. Jayme, SVP Elisa M. Cua 

The Bank expanded its agent network by signing up 16 
new overseas partners during the year.  It was also the first 
full year of PNB’s global tie-up with Western Union. WU 
money transfer services were fully rolled out in the Bank’s 
domestic branches.  

PNB continued to undertake initiatives to shorten 
turnaround times for remittances, opening of accounts, 
delivery of ATM cards and passbooks, and responding to 
customer queries. A new phone exchange system allowing 
for the efficient queuing of customers and tracking of call 
traffic was newly acquired for the Helpdesk.
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The Bank launched its new web-based 
remittance system “IRS World” which 
will be rolled out globally to all overseas 
branches. Initially, IRS World was put on 
stream in Canada and the United States. 
The full rollout to other overseas locations 
will be completed in 2012.  

Trust 
Trust banking has positioned itself 
to approach clients with a long term 
relationship proposition, one that looks 
after their best interest in meeting their 
needs at every stage and aspect of their 
lives. Trust assets nearly doubled in 
2011 on the strength of unique product 
offerings and a clear understanding of 
client needs.  The Bank launched PNB 

Employee Enrichment Solutions (EES), a 
branded employee benefit trust product 
designed to address employee benefits 
by tackling issues of talent attraction, 
retention and loyalty. EES was successful 
in signing up 14 retirement funds during 
the year. 

Likewise, the Bank’s portfolio of personal 
trust accounts has improved.  PNB’s roster 
of products include retail unit investment 
trust funds (UITF), two of which delivered 
outstanding performance in 2011: the 
Mabuhay Prestige Fund topped 14 other 
funds for 45 consecutive weeks in terms 
of absolute returns; and Mabuhay Prime 
ranked in the top 5 with an average year-
on-year return of 3% in 2011.

operational
highlights
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Today, we secure
    your family for 
generations to come
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Credit & Remedial
Through the years, PNB was steadfast in reducing its past 
due and non-performing loans. In 2011, the Bank’s NPL 
ratio further dropped from 4.5% to 3.1% by year-end. 
The Remedial and Credit Management Group continued 
to adopt a well-rounded approach in credit evaluation, 
recovery and risk asset management. 

The implementation of process and report-quality 
improvements through streamlining of procedures was 
carried out of intra-department and inter-department 
workload sharing schemes. The rapid portfolio review of 

accounts per lending center was institutionalized 
and closely monitored. Among others, this 
enabled the Bank to develop appropriate 
risk acceptance criteria for certain identified 
industry segments, thus allowing for better 
evaluation and appreciation of risks. 

In terms of processing support to lending units, 
several initiatives which included process 
changes, training, and work reconfiguration 
resulted in improving overall turnaround times. 
In process is the review of the Bank’s Credit 
Risk Rating Models.

The Bank’s Remedial Team was able to 
successfully reduce handled accounts during 

the year through negotiated settlements focused on real 
cash recovery. 

Asset Management
PNB’s Special Assets Management Group (SAMG) was 
consistent in disposing a substantial number of the Bank’s 
foreclosed assets – P3.8 billion from the sale of 1,595 
properties. An array of diverse sales programs to fast track 
ROPA disposal was conducted: property auctions, private 
and public sealed biddings, the Pabahay Bonanza and 
the Broker/Referror Program. Fourteen property auctions 
in various provinces and 10 public sealed biddings and 
several private sealed biddings were held during the year.  

CONSUMER FINANCE GROUP

From Left to Right: AVP Edward Eli B. Tan, AVP Michael Antonio S. Garcia AVP Rhodora E. Del Mundo 
SAVP Modette Ines V. Cariño, SVP Elfren Antonio S. Sarte, SM Gilbert R. Guevara 
VP Mary Rose U. Mendez, SAVP Ralph Benedict B. Centeno, AVP Maria Cecilia V. Fabella 

today, we  
level-up our 
performance
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highlights

16 TODAY, WE START ON YOUR TOMORROW



OPERATION AND SUPPORT GROUPs

From Left to Right: SVP Roland V. Oscuro, FVP Lino S. Carandang, FVP Udela C. Salvo, SVP Aida M. Padilla, SVP Marlyn M. Pabrua
SVP Schubert Caesar C. Austero, FVP Daniel M. Yu FVP Augusto B. Dimayuga, SVP Christian Jerome O. Dobles 
SVP Ligaya R. Gagolinan,  SVP Nanette O. Vergara, SVP Betty L. Haw, FVP Manuel C. Bahena Jr 

The Pabahay Bonanza Program continued to appeal to both 
buyers and brokers with the offering of huge discounts vs. 
current market prices.

In November 2011, a new initiative was pursued – one that 
provided a neighborhood the opportunity to own the place 
they can call their home. Under the Community Mortgage 
Program of the Social Housing Finance Corporation, 
a subsidiary of the National Home Mortgage Finance 
Corporation, member-residents of Purok Yanson Phase 
2 and Phase 3 Homeowners Association in Barangay 
Mandalagan, Bacolod City had the opportunity to purchase 
the PNB foreclosed land they are currently occupying.

Human Resource
PNB continued to address the growing developmental needs 
of the employees. The Bank launched new programs, both 
organic and outsourced, to promote diversity in learning 
and development. A total of 144 in-house programs were 
conducted, with total attendance of 4,696 representing 
almost 90% of the Bank’s population. New programs 
were launched:  the Branch Selling Certification program, 
various technology-related training, PNB Care for Internal 
Customers, and modules on leadership development.  
Likewise, in collaboration with other departments, in-house 
programs designed to enhance the technical competencies 
of employees continued to be strengthened.  A considerable 
number of employees were sent to out-of-house programs 
provided by other institutions. 
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Pagtutulungan ng Bayan
The Bank continued to help less fortunate communities 

struck by calamities, the most recent of which was 

Typhoon Sendong which caused massive destruction in 

life and property in Visayas and Mindanao.  Through 

the Pagtutulungan ng Bayan Project, management 

and employees were able to send immediate financial 

assistance to affected employees and other victims. 

Donations in kind were sent to the affected areas 

through the support of the Philippine Navy, Tan Yan Kee 

Foundation, Inc., Tanduay Distillers, Inc. and Philippine 

Airlines. 

The Bank continued with its fund-raising projects: 

distribution of donation cans; mounting of bazaars; and 

selling Christmas cards.  PNB donated wheelchairs and 

crutches to disabled persons at the Gift Giving Party of 

the Create-A-Job for the Disabled Association, Inc.

Greener @ 95 
In celebration of the Bank’s 95th anniversary, the Grow 

Greener @ 95 Tree Planting Project was launched 

enjoining Philnabankers to give back to Mother Earth the 

fresh and green look of the environment. To date, over 

5,000 seedlings have already been planted nationwide. 

Scholarship Programs
PNB continued to do its share in empowering the youth 

with the gift of education by awarding scholarship grants 

to 14 dependents of Overseas Filipino Workers – the 

“Global Filipino Scholars.”  Cash assistance was given to 

each scholar who chose to study in any of the leading 

and prestigious universities accredited by the Bank for 

the program.

Twelve other children of Philnabankers were selected 

as the first batch of scholars under the PNB-PEMA-Tan 

Yan Kee Scholarship Program. The scholarship provided 

payment for actual tuition fees, allowance for books, 

schools supplies and monthly stipend.

Typhoon Sendong victims in Mindanao receive relief 
goods brought by the PNB-Tan Yan Kee Foundation team 
to evacuation camps.

Philnabankers from more than 300 branches have 
fun “greening” their communities through the 95th 
anniversary treeplanting project.

The PNB Scholars and their parents (standing at the back) 
join special guests of the Tan Yan Kee Foundation’s Silver 
Reflections, 25th Anniversary celebration: (from left) PNB 
Pres. & CEO Carlos A. Pedrosa, Manila Mayor Alfredo 
Lim, Director Lucio Tan, PNB Chairman Flor Tarriela and 
Allied Pres. & CEO Domingo Chua. Also present were (left 
most standing) EVP and CFO Carmen Huang, (right most 
standing) HR officers FSVP Edgardo T. Nallas and SVP 
Schubert Caesar Austero. 

corporate
social responsibility 
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The Bank adheres to the highest principles of 

good corporate governance as embodied in its 

Amended By-Laws, the company’s Code of 

Conduct and its Corporate Governance Manual.  It 

subscribes to the philosophy of integrity, accountability 

and transparency in its manner of doing business; 

dealing fairly with its clients, investors, stockholders, 

the communities affected by the Bank’s activities and 

its various publics; professionalism among its Board 

of Directors, executives and other employees of the 

Bank in managing the company, its subsidiaries and 

affiliates; and respect for the laws and regulations of the 

countries affecting its businesses.  Internally, it follows 

a philosophy of rational checks and balances as well as 

a structured approach to its operating processes.

The Bank’s operations is managed through a properly 

established organizational structure and adequate 

policies and procedures embodied in manuals approved 

by the management committees and the Board.  These 

manuals are subjected to periodic review and update 

to be consistent with new laws and regulations and 

generally conform to international best practices.  

The Bank’s Corporate Governance Manual describes 

the role and responsibilities as well as the scope 

of activities of the principal parties that directly or 

indirectly influence the corporate governance practices 

of the Bank, primarily the Board of Directors, each 

member of the Board, the Compliance Officer, the Chief 

Risk Officer and the Corporate Secretary, Internal and 

External Auditors and the Board Committees directly 

engaged in monitoring and control of business risks 

namely : Board Audit & Compliance Committee, 

Risk  Management Committee, Corporate Governance 

Committee and ICAAP Steering Committee.  

•	 The Board Audit and Compliance Committee has 

oversight responsibility relating to the integrity 

of the Bank’s financial statements,  internal 

controls and compliance with legal and regulatory 

requirements. 

•	 The Risk Management Committee has the primary 

task to assist the Board in the management of the 

risks the bank is exposed to and development of 

risk management strategies to prevent losses and 

minimize financial impact of losses.

 

•	 The Corporate Governance Committee ensures the 

board’s effectiveness and adherence to corporate 

governance principles and guidelines.

  

•	 The ICAAP Steering Committee was created to 

perform periodic evaluation and approval of the 

Bank’s capital planning, risk assessment policies 

and procedures and provide active oversight on the 

consistent adoption of the Bank’s ICAAP Program.

In May 2011, the Bank was a proud recipient of the 

Silver Award for good corporate governance from the 

Institute of Corporate Directors (ICD), in recognition 

of the institution’s  existing organization composed of 

dedicated corporate directors and senior management 

committed to the professional practice of corporate 

directorship in line with global principles of modern 

corporate governance.   

 

To further strengthen good corporate governance, the 

Board of Directors appointed the Chief Compliance 

Officer as the Corporate Governance Executive  in 

July 2011 tasked to assist the Board and Corporate 

Governance Committee in the discharge of their 

corporate governance oversight functions.  

Board of Directors 
Compliance with the highest standards in corporate 

governance principally starts with the Board of Directors 

which has the responsibility to foster the long-term success 

of the Bank and secure its sustained competitiveness in 

accordance with its fiduciary responsibility. In the same 

manner, every employee of the entire organization is 

expected to embrace the same degree of commitment to 

the desired level of corporate standards.      

corporate
governance 
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The Board of Directors is comprised of 11 members, 

including three Independent Directors (Chairman 

Florencia G. Tarriela, Director Deogracias N. Vistan 

and Director Felix Enrico R. Alfiler) who are highly 

qualified business professionals, with excellent 

educational credentials and undergo continuing 

training and collectively hold a broad range of expertise 

and related banking experiences that provide value to 

the strengthening and upholding of good corporate 

governance practices in the bank.  In the Board, two 

directors were inducted “fellow” and one director 

certified as an “associate” by the Institute of Corporate 

Directors, in recognition of their distinguished 

reputation and commitment to the highest standards 

of corporate governance principles, ethics and social 

responsibility.  

Recognizing the importance of the role of independent 

directors, the Board has elected an independent director 

as the Chairman of the Board who likewise acts as the 

Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee and 

the Board ICAAP Steering Committee. The Chairman 

of the Board, as an Independent Director, also sits as 

member of the Risk Management Committee and the 

Board Audit and Compliance Committee.   The Board 

Audit & Compliance Committee has two independent 

directors including the Chairman.  In these four Board 

Committees, the three independent directors play an 

active role in the formulation of the business strategies 

and priorities of the Bank as stipulated in the Board 

approved Five Year Strategic Business Plan of the Bank, 

subsidiaries and its affiliates.  Moreover, the Chairman 

of the Risk Management Committee is a non-executive 

director and the former president of a government 

bank with universal banking license.    

The Board and the Committees continue to review the 

corporate governance policies and implement changes 

in the compliance framework of the Bank, subsidiaries, 

and affiliates.

Operations Management
The responsibility of managing the day-to-day 

operations of the Bank and implementing the major 

business plans rest on the President and Chief Executive 

Officer. Critical issues, policies and guidelines are 

deliberated in the pertinent management committees: 

Senior Management Committee, Asset and Liability 

Committee, Senior Management Credit Committee, 

Information Technology Governance Committee, 

Non-Performing Assets Committee, Acquired Assets 

Disposal Committee, Promotions Committee, 

Operations Committee, Product Committee, Bids & 

Awards Committee, Information Technology Evaluation 

Committee, Senior Management ICAAP Steering 

Committee and AML Review Committee.  Committee 

meetings are conducted in a manner that ensures open 

communication, meaningful participation and timely 

resolution of issues. The business plans, significant 

issues and its resolutions are escalated  to the level of the 

Board as part of a strong culture of accountability and 

transparency embedded in the entire organization.

Most of the management committees have the President 

as the Chairman with the members comprised of 

senior management of the Bank and key officers of 

the various business segments, the Risk Management 

Group, Office of the Chief Legal Counsel, Internal 

Audit Group and Global Compliance Group.  The 

composition and appointment of senior officers in 

the different management committees are assessed 

periodically and reorganized as necessary in line with 

the business priorities.

Compliance System
The Global Compliance Group, which reports directly 

to the Board Audit and Compliance Committee, is 

primarily responsible for promoting compliance with 

the laws and regulations of the different jurisdictions, 

corporate policies and procedures and international 

best practices. The Chief Compliance Officer has 

corporate
governance 
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direct responsibility for the effective implementation 

and management of the enterprise compliance system 

covering the Bank domestic and foreign branches, 

offices, subsidiaries and affiliates. The Chief Compliance 

Officer, as concurrent Corporate Governance Executive, 

with the Global Compliance Group, assists the Board 

in providing compliance and corporate governance 

oversight.

Global Compliance Group is composed of three major 

divisions namely: Global AML Compliance Division, 

Regulatory Compliance Division and Business Vehicle 

Management Compliance Division. In addition to 

dedicated senior compliance officers in the Global 

Compliance Group, there are full-time compliance 

officers in foreign branches and subsidiaries as well 

as line officers concurrently as Compliance Officer-

Designates in critical business units.

In 2011, Global Compliance Group focused on the 

standardization of Corporate Governance Manual and 

Compliance Program enterprise-wide. The well-defined 

compliance infrastructure in the organization has 

resulted to the compliance function being part of the 

corporate culture of the Bank and is integrated in risk 

management, corporate governance and the compliance 

framework.

With a robust compliance system effectively implemented 

enterprise-wide, there has been no material deviation 

noted by the Chief Compliance Officer.

PNB Kalinangan	
PNB opened the “Kalinangan” 
room which showcased various 
memorabilia from the Bank’s 
past: old photographs, equipment, 
currency notes, documents, and 
books. Kalinangan is envisioned to 
pave the way for the establishment 
of a PNB museum which should 
capture the Bank’s rich history in 
the future.  
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G lobalization and financial progress has led to 

rapid growth in the diversity and complexity 

of banking operations, exposing financial 

institutions to various risks. These risks are recognized 

by PNB that led to conducting operations appropriate 

to these risks and managing such risks as a key issue 

relating to overall management. In order to implement 

our business strategy while maintaining our financial 

stability, we maintain comprehensive risk management 

and control measures. The overall focus of risk 

management in 2011 was on maintaining our risk profile 

in line with our risk strategy, strengthening our capital 

base and supporting the Group’s strategic initiatives 

in accordance to policies/guidelines set by the Bangko 

Sentral ng Pilipinas and duly approved by PNB’s Board 

of Directors. This is reflected across the different 

groups of the Bank, i.e., 335 domestic branches (331 

branches/4 extension offices), 5 domestic subsidiaries 

and 126 divisions in the Head Office. The overseas 

branches/offices/affiliates are likewise included. 

The Bank’s risk management objectives broadly cover 

the comprehensive risk framework to ensure the 

Bank’s financial stability, namely: proper identification, 

measurement, monitoring/control and mitigation of the 

risks that all business lines focus on.  It is defined and 

performed in three levels and in compliance to Basel II:

1. 	Strategic Level – the Risk Management Committee 

(RMC) and Executive Committee (EXCOM) headed 

by Risk Management Director and composed of 

the Chairman, President, CFO, Chief Risk Officer, 

Corplan Head and other members of the senior 

management team, are the governing bodies that 

define the risk culture, approve the risk management 

process, and review/approve the framework. The 

RMC and EXCOM for Credit Risk and Market Risk 

meet every month and are updated on every risk 

that occurs. 

2. 	Transactional Level – composed of Risk-Taking 

Personnel (RTP) such as front office, middle office 

and back-office which determine and take risks.  

This activity must be in line with the goals, strategies 

and risk philosophy set by the policy making body.

3. Portfolio Level – portfolio/position are evaluated by 

independent third party such as Risk Management 

Group (RMG), Internal Audit Group and Global 

Compliance Office.

Enterprise Risk Management Function
The risk management function is embedded in 

all levels across  the organization. Headed by the 

Chief Risk Officer (CRO) and reporting to the Risk 

Management Committee, RMG is primarily responsible 

for the risk management functions to ensure that 

a robust organization is maintained. The group, 

independent from the business lines, is organized 

in four divisions: Credit Risk & Basel II/ICAAP 

Implementation Division, Market & ALM Division, 

Operational & Information Technology Security Risk 

Management and Business Intelligence Division. Each 

division maintains basic policies for risk management 

applicable to the organization. These policies clearly 

define the kinds of risks to be managed, set forth the 

organizational structure and provide appropriate and 

necessary training. The policies also provide for audits 

to measure the effectiveness and suitability of the 

risk management structure. In line with these basic 

policies, RMG continues to implement the following 

risk management tools and reporting requirements to 

strengthen and enhance the sophistication of Bank’s  

risk management system and address the volatile risk 

environment.

• 	 Risk Management Assessment Review Sheet 

(RMARS)

•	 Risk-based compliance testing commensurate 

with risk levels identified and regular monitoring 

of the resolutions of  regulatory findings of US 

Fed, MAS, FSA, etc.

•	 Risk & Control Self Assessment (RCSA)

•	 Loss Event Report (LER)

risk
management 
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•	 Business Continuity Management (BCM)

• 	 Daily Value-at-Risk Report (VAR)

• 	 Monthly Liquidity Gap (MCO)

• 	 Monthly Repricing Gap and Earnings at Risk 

(EAR)

• 	 Annual review of Product Manuals

•	 Health Check Review, a periodic review of 

internal controls and compliance with the Bank 

policies and procedures

•	 Daily   monitoring of account balances of 

overseas branches and subsidiaries with Head 

Office (NOSTRO/VOSTRO)

•	 Monthly review of temporary accounts

•	 Credit Risk Dashboard

•	 Internal Credit Risk Rating

• 	 Stress Testing

•	 Monitoring of credit limits

•	 Annual Loss Rate

Regulatory Capital Requirements Under  
Basel Ii – Pillar 1
The Bank’s regulatory requirements are addressed as 

follows:

•	 For credit risk, the Bank adopted the 

Standardized Approach (“TSA”) where individual 

credit exposures are calculated under a fixed 

risk weight for all categories of claim (including 

off-balance sheet items), ranging from 0% for 

items with a very low credit risk (i.e. cash and 

near cash instruments, marketable and other 

government securities) to 150% for high-risk 

items (i.e. defaulted exposures and acquired 

assets).

•	 For market risk, the Bank adopted the 

Standardized Approach (“TSA”) under which a 

general market risk charge for trading portfolio 

is calculated based on the instrument’s coupon 

and remaining maturity with risk weights ranging 

from 0% for items with very low market risk 

(i.e., tenor of less than 30days) to a high of 12.5% 

for high risk-items (i.e., tenor greater than 20 

years).  Further, capital requirements for specific 

risk are also calculated for exposures with risk 

weights ranging from 0% to 8% depending on 

the issuer’s credit rating.

•	 For operational risk, the Bank adopted the Basic 

Indicator Approach (“BIA”) under which gross 

income is regarded as a proxy for the Operational 

Risk exposure within each business line. The 

capital charge for Operational Risk is calculated 

based upon gross income for the preceding three 

years. The Bank is now working towards the 

Standardized Approach.

Credit Risk Management
2011 Key Milestones

Introduction of “red flags” on the credit risk οο

dashboards (e.g. status of past due large 

exposures, risk profile of the clean exposures, 

abrupt migration in the risk ratings, concentration 

risk, defaulted exposures) to attain a more robust 

risk control measures.

Execution of the active monitoring of the Bank’s οο

internal risk rating versus the BSP risk asset 

classification to ensure accuracy of credit risk 

profile versus adequacy of loan loss reserves.

Implementation of enterprise-wide monitoring οο

of credit risk across domestic subsidiaries and 

overseas branches.

Introduction of stress testing models for οο

conglomerate exposures to determine possible 

contagion effect.

Participation in improving the impairment οο

analysis process to ensure that all loans 

identified as specifically impaired are 

subjected to timely and appropriate impairment 

process.

More active involvement in the credit policy οο

formulation by reviewing proposed credit 

policies.

23PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK  2011 ANNUAL REPORT



Transformation of credit controls into οο

information-driven approach by implementing 

the EDW reporting/analytics software solution.

 

Market & ALM Risk Management
2011 Key Milestones

Full implementation and Go-Live of the οο

OPICS Risk Plus (ORP), which is a risk 

management software designed to improve the  

Value-At-Risk (VAR) calculations of the Bank 

from its manual in-house worksheet process. 

Implementation of the Eagle Eye (EE) Project οο

which is an additional limit monitoring tool 

in the oversight of Treasury activities. This 

will supplement the built-in limit monitoring 

capability of the OPICS Treasury system. The 

system went live on April 18, 2012.  

Closer Monitoring of subsidiaries by requiring οο

all subsidiaries to set up risk limits such as Value 

at Risk, Liquidity gap limits and Earnings at risk 

limit.

Full Participation in the conduct of various οο

simulations related to the Transfer Pool Rate 

Methodology of the Bank and the eventual 

engagement of the Division in the weekly 

computation of the TPR figure for presentation 

to the weekly meeting of the Asset and Liability 

Committee (ALCO).

Participation of the Division in the activities οο

related to the preparation for the Bank 

application for Derivative License for Interest 

Rate Swap (IRS).  

Involvement in the HTM Sell down exercise by οο

computing the risk impact to the Bank using various 

scenarios which serves as input to the Treasury’s 

presentation to the EXCOM and Board. 

Adoption of both hypothetical and actual approach οο

in its back testing activities and more frequent 

reporting of results of summary of back testing.

More frequent scenario analysis and stress testing οο

exercises related to the market driven scenarios 

which would impact earnings and liquidity.

Set up of credit risk factors (CRF) for interest οο

rate swaps and cross currency swaps.

Enhancement of reports related to Large οο

Funders

Enhancement of the Earnings At Risk (EAR) οο

methodology

Operational Risk Management
2011 Key Milestones

Completion of Business Continuity Awareness οο

Training for Head Office/Domestic Subsidiaries

Completion of Business Impact Analysis for οο

the Head Office, Overseas and Domestic 

Subsidiaries

Completion of Business Continuity Team to οο

conduct Alternate Site Tests

Completion of customized Risk and Control Self οο

Assessment (RCSA) and rationale for Control 

Adequacy for a more realistic risk rating and 

robust self assessment

Conducted re-orientation sessions of Operational οο

Risk Tools to Metro Manila Sales and Service 

Heads, Risk Overseers of Head Office

Information Security & Technology Risk 
Management
2011 Key Milestones

Ongoing implementation of the enterprise οο

information security and technology risk 

program

Roll out of the updated project health check οο

program for major technology projects

Completion of the specialized information οο

security program for electronic banking 

services

Implementation of standard and specialized risk οο

assessments for information technology and 

security (including the data center and recovery 

site infrastructure)

Roll out of the information security program for οο

overseas offices

risk
management 
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Business Intelligence
This division manages the design and implementation of 

Enterprise Data Warehouse (EDW) as the single source 

of truth for reporting, analytics and implementation 

of various decision support systems.  It ensures the 

enterprise wide data quality management process; 

formulates Statistical and Data Management policies 

and procedures; assists other Divisions/Units of the 

RMG in managing the group’s database(s), statistical 

model development & calibration, and data analysis.  

 

2011 Key Milestones 

Analysis, Design, Development and οο

Implementation of the EDW Project – Phase 1 

covering the MIS Operational Data Store (ODS) 

for Deposits, Loans and General Ledger (GL)

Data Mapping and Development of the Extraction, οο

Transformation & Loading Programs for the 

Oracle Reveleus Global Banking Model covering 

Loans, Deposits, LCs and Bills (Phase 1)

Development and Rollout of the Data Quality οο

Management Monitoring System for Customer 

Information File (CIF) - with Reporting 

Dashboard

Automation of the various reporting and analysis οο

dashboards for Credit (including Actionable 

Items Reports),  Deposit and GL

Creation of over 120 reports for operational οο

analysis and management reporting

Conduct of Users’ Training on Oracle Business οο

Intelligence Enterprise Edition (OBIEE), a 

datawarehouse reporting and analytics tool.

Evaluation, selection and implementation of οο

the statistical and analytical solution for the 

enhancement of the Credit Risk Rating Model

Basel Ii Initiatives 
Market Risk Management: The Market and ALM 

Division continues to be involved in the roll-out of 

Basel II compliance activities such as: 

Preparation of  the Risk and Control  Self οο

Assessment (RCSA) of the ICAAP program

Preparation of Risk  Management  Assessment  οο

and Review Sheet  (RMARS)

Monthly preparation of the Part IV Market Risk οο

Weighted Exposures under the Capital Adequacy 

Ratio Reporting.

Conduct of regular stress testing of market risk οο

exposures to determine impact to the market 

risk weighted assets.

	

Credit Risk Management:  The Bank has taken the 

following basic steps  towards the roll-out of Basel II:

Implementation of EDW to support the data οο

mapping with Basel requirements . 

Acquisition of statistical software solution to οο

validate/tweak the existing 14-grade CRRS model 

and  credit scoring model for small business 

loans

Data gathering of rated accounts and default rate οο

per rating grade 

Plans to acquire loan origination system to οο

capture in a single database all pertinent data on 

approved and disapproved credit proposals.  

Icaap Implementation and Compliance
As mandated by BSP Circular 639, the Bank had a 

dialogue with Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) on 

Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)  

in the early part of 2011. The Bank’s Board-approved 

risk
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ICAAP Policy is the “backbone” of ICAAP Document 

serving as the “guide map” of the Bank’s various 

stakeholders. 

The Bank’s capital principle is to maintain its capital 

position at a level that will maintain its CAR at least 

250 bps above the BSP requirement to prepare ahead 

for the eventual adoption of a 2.5% conservation buffer 

under Basel III in 2014. 

 In 2011, the Bank’s capital level is more than sufficient 

to meet the BSP minimum CAR requirement and cover 

all material risks.  Further, the Bank has moved forward 

with its ICAAP implementation and has enhanced its 

monitoring process in compliance with BSP suggestions 

during the 2011 regulatory examination:

Rollout the risk ownership of the various οο

business units 

Quarterly monitoring of actual losses versus οο

estimated losses

Inclusion of capital contingency plan on the οο

updated ICAAP Document 

Inclusion of the subsidiaries in the coverage of οο

the risk assessment

Inclusion of a robust stress testingοο
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FLORENCIA G. TARRIELA CARLOS A. PEDROSA
CHAIRMAN VICE-CHAIRMAN

LUCIO C. TAN
DIRECTOR
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WASHINGTON  Z. SYCIP
DIRECTOR

ESTELITO P. MENDOZA
DIRECTOR

OMAR BYRON T. MIER
DIRECTOR
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FLORIDO P. CASUELA
DIRECTOR

JOHN G. TAN
DIRECTOR

LUCIO K. TAN, JR.
DIRECTOR
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FELIX ENRICO R. ALFILER DEOGRACIAS N. VISTAN ATTY. DORIS S. TE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR CORPORATE SECRETARY
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our senior
management team

Rafael G. Ayuste, Jr. - FSVP, Trust Banking Group and Trust Officer 
Edgardo T. Nallas - FSVP, Human Resource Group 
Horacio E. Cebrero III - EVP, Treasury Group 
Ma. Elena B. Piccio - EVP, Institutional Banking Group 
Carmen G. Huang - EVP and CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

FROM LEFT:
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Carlos A. Pedrosa - President and CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
Jovencio B. HernaNdez - EVP, Retail Banking Group 
Alvin C. Go - FSVP, Legal Group and Chief Legal Counsel 
Ramon E. Abasolo - FSVP, Information Technology Group

FROM LEFT:
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our senior
management team

Emmanuel A. Tuazon - SVP, Marketing Group and Chief Marketing Officer 
Alice Z. Cordero - SVP, Global Compliance Group 
Cesar C. Santos, Jr. - SVP, Global Filipino Banking Group 
Maria Paz D. Lim - SVP and Treasurer 
Emmanuel V. Plan II - SVP, Special Assets Management Group

FROM LEFT:
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Elfren Antonio S. Sarte - SVP, Consumer Finance Group 
Miguel Angel G. Gonzalez - SVP, Remedial and Credit Management Group  
	and  Chief Credit Officer 
John Howard D. Medina - SVP, Global Operations Group 
Carmela A. Pama - SVP, Risk Management Group and Chief Risk Officer 
Emeline C. Centeno - SVP, Corporate Planning and Research

FROM LEFT:
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Deposits and Related Services

Peso Accounts
	 Regular Passbook Savings Account
	 Superteller ATM Savings Account
	 PNB Prime Savings Account
	 OFW Savings Account
	 SSS Savings Account
	 GSIS Savings Account
	 PNB Direct Deposit Account
	 Regular Checking Account
	 Budget Checking Account
	 PNBig Checking Account
	 Priority One Checking Account
	 COMBO Account
	 Regular Time Deposit Account
	 PNBig Savings Account
	 Wealth Multiplier Account
	 Wealth Multiplier 2, 3, 4

Foreign Currency Accounts
	 Dollar Accounts
		  PNB Direct Deposit Dollar 
			   Savings Account
		  U.S. Dollar Savings Account
		  Greencheck (Interest-bearing 
			   U.S. Dollar Checking Account)
		  Greenmarket (U.S. Dollar Time 
			   Deposit Account)
		  PNB U.S. Dollar M.I.N.T. Account
		  Top Dollar Time Deposit Account
		  U.S. Dollar Wealth Multiplier 
			   Account
	 Euro Accounts
		  Euro Savings Account
		  Euro Time Deposit Account
	 Renminbi Accounts
		  Renminbi Savings Account
		  Renminbi Time Deposit Account

Cash Management Solutions
	 Account Management
	 Liquidity Management 
	 Electronic Banking Solution
		  Electronic Filing & Payment System
		  Bancnet SSS Net
	 Collections Management
		  e-Collect
		  Auto-Debit Arrangement 
		  PDC Online
		  Cash Mover
		  Retail Cash Mover
	 Disbursements Management
		  Executive Checking Account 
		  Manager’s Check / Executive 
			   Check Online
		  Corporate e-Pay 

		  Cash OTC
		  Auto-Pay
		  Paywise
		  Paywise Plus
	 Electronic Banking Services 
		  Internet Banking System (IBS)
		  Phone Banking
		  Mobile Banking (Proprietary)
		  BancNet POS
		  Automated Teller Machine

Other Services
	 Conduit Clearing Arrangement 
	 Safety Deposit Boxes

Bancassurance

Non-Life Insurance 
	 Auto Protector Plan
	 House Protector Plan
	 6-in-1 Family Accident Protector Plan
	 PNBGen ATM Safe

Life Insurance
	 Velocity Whole Life Plan
	 Opulence Endowment Plan
	 Achievers Education and Protection Plan
	 Bida Protection Plan
	 Hero Protection Plan
	 Group Protect Group Personal 
		  Accident Insurance Plan

Remittance Products and Services

Global Filipino Card (Peso, U.S. Dollar)
Overseas Bills Payment System
Credit to Other Banks (Peso, U.S. Dollar)
Door-to-Door Delivery
	 Cash Delivery
	 Check Delivery
	 U.S. Dollar Delivery (selected Metro 
		  Manila Areas)
Cash Pick-Up
	 Peso Pick-up (Domestic Branches and 	

	 Authorized Payout Outlets)
	 U.S. Dollar Pick-up (Metro Manila and 
		  selected Provincial Branches only)	
Web Portal

Remittance Channels
	 Web Remittance
	 Phone Remittance
	 Mail-In Remittance
	 Agent Remittance System

Other Services
	 Remittance Tracker
	 Remittance Text Alert

Fund Transfer and Related Services

S.W.I.F.T. Transfer – Incoming/Outgoing
FX Outward Telegraphic Transfer (FXOTT)
Gross Settlement Real Time (GSRT) 
	 – Incoming/Outgoing - USD
Real Time Gross Settlement (RTGS) 
	 – Incoming/Outgoing - Peso
Electronic Peso Clearing System (EPCS)
Philippine Domestic Dollar  

Transfer System (PDDTS)
Demand Drafts
Cashier’s/Manager’s Checks
Travel Funds
	 FX Currency Notes
Purchase/Sale of FX Currency Notes
Regular Collection Service (Foreign and 

Domestic)
	 Wells Fargo Bank NA – Final Credit 
		  Service (FCS)
	 Deutsche Bank NY – Preferred 
		  Collection Service (PCS) 
Standard Collection Service 
	 Deutsche Bank NY – USD
	 Canadian Imperial Bank 
		  of Commerce – CAD
	 Commonwealth Bank of Australia –AUD
	 PNB Singapore – SGD
	 PNB Hong Kong – HKD
	 Union Bank of Switzerland – CHF
	 Deutsche Bank Frankfurt – EUR
Cash Letter 
	 USD
		  Wells Fargo Bank NA
		  Deutsche Bank NY
	 Others (3rd Currencies)
		  Canadian Imperial Bank of 
			   Commerce – CAD
		  Commonwealth Bank 
			   of Australia – AUD
		  Allied Bank – UK – GBP
		  PNB Singapore – SGD
		  PNB Hong Kong – HKD
		  Union Bank of Switzerland – CHF
		  Deutsche Bank Frankfurt – EUR 

Treasury Products and Services

Foreign Exchange in the Spot Market   
	 USD/PHP 
	 USD/JPY 
	 EUR/USD 
	 USD/Third Currencies

Financial Hedging Instruments 
	 Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts
		  USD/PHP 
		  USD/JPY 
		  EUR/USD 

products &
services 
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	 Foreign Exchange Swap Contracts   
		  USD/PHP 
		  USD/JPY 
		  EUR/USD 

	 Cross Currency Swaps
		  USD/PHP

	 Philippine Peso Interest Rate Swaps  
		  USD/PHP 

Local (PHP) and Foreign Currency Denominated
	 Fixed Income Securities
		  Securities issued by the Republic 
		  of the Philippines
			   Treasury Bills
			   Treasury Bonds
			   Retail Treasury Bonds
			   USDollar denominated ROPs
			   EUR denominated ROPs

		  Securities issued by Corporations and 
		  Financial Institutions in the Philippines
			   Corporate Bonds
			   Long Term Negotiable Certificates 
				    of Deposits
			   Unsecured Subordinated Debt

		  Securities issued by the United States 
		  of America
			   Treasury Bills
			   Treasury Bonds

Local and Foreign Currency Denominated  
Short-term Money Market Transactions

		  Certificates of Time Deposits

Export / Import Services

Export Services
	 Advising of Letters of Credit
	 Confirmation of Letters of Credit
	 Export Financing
		  Pre-Shipment Export Financing
		  Post Shipment Financing

Import Services
	 Issuance and Negotiation of Letters 
		  of Credit (Foreign/Domestic)
	 Issuance of Shipside Bonds/Shipping 
		  Guarantees
	 Trust Receipt Financing
	 Servicing of Importations and Sale 
		  of Foreign Exchange (FX) for Trade 
		  in USD and major third currencies 	

	 including RMB/Chinese Yuan
			   Letters of Credit (LC)
			   Collection Documents – D/P, DA/OA
			   Direct Remittance (D/R)
			   Advance Payment  

	 Forward Contracts for Future 
		  Import Payment 
	 Servicing of Collection and Payment of 
		  Advance and Final Customs Duties for 
		  all ports in the Philippines covered 
		  under the E2M project of the Bureau 
		  of Customs Project Abstract Secure 
		  (PAS5)

Special Financing Services	
	 BSP e-Rediscounting Facility for Export 	

	 and Import Transactions
	 Issuance of Standby Letters of Credit 
		  to serve the following bank guarantee 
		  requirements:
			   Loan Repayment Guarantee
			   Advance Payment Bonds
			   Bid Bonds
			   Performance Bonds
			   Other Bonds
	 Issuance of Standby Letters of Credit 
		  under PNB’s ”Own a Philippine 
		  Home Loan Program”
	 Issuance and Servicing of Deferred 
		  Letters of Credit as mode of 
		  payment for :
			   Importation or Local Purchase 
				    of Capital Goods
			   Services Rendered  (e.g., 
				    Construction/Installation of
				    Infrastructure Projects, etc.) 

Lending Services
	
Corporate/ Institutional Loans
	 Credit Lines
		  Revolving Credit Line (RCL)
		  Non-revolving Credit Line
		  Omnibus Line		
	 Export Financing Facilities
		  Export Advance Loan
		  Export Advance Line		
	 Bills Purchased Lines
		  Domestic Bills Purchased Line
		  Export Bills/Drafts Purchased Line
		  Discounting Line
	 Import-Related Loans
		  Letters of Credit Facility
		  Trust Receipt Facility
	 Standby Letters of Credit 
		  – Foreign/Domestic
	 Deferred Letters of Credit 
		  – Foreign/Domestic
	 Term Loans
		  Medium-and Long-Term Loan
		  Short-Term Loan
		  Project Financing

	 Loans Against Deposit Hold Out 
	 Time Loans
		  Agricultural
		  Commercial
	 Structured Trade Finance
		  Export Credit Agency Lines
		  US-EXIM Guarantee Program
	 Specialized Lending Programs
		  DBP Wholesale Lending Facilities
		  LBP Wholesale Lending Facilities
		  SSS Wholesale Lending Facilities
		  BSP Rediscounting Facility
	 Sugar Financing Program
		  Sugar Crop Production Line (SCPL)
		  Sugar Quedan Financing Line (SQFL)
		  Time Loan Agricultural (TLA)
		  Operational Loan (OpL)
	 Small Business Loans for SMEs
		  Domestic Bills Purchased Line
		  Term Loan

Local Guarantee Facilities 
	 PhilEXIM Guarantee
	 SB Corp. Guarantee Program

Loans to Local Government Units (LGUs)
	 Term Loans
	 Import LC Facility Against Loan or Cash
	 Domestic Letters of Credit Against Loan or Cash
	 Standby Letters of Credit
	 Loans Against Deposit Hold Out

Credit Facilities to Government-Owned and 
Controlled Corporations/National Government 
Agencies (GOCCs/NGAs)

	 Project Financing
	 Term Loans	
	 Credit Lines
	 Export Financing Facilities
	 Bills Purchased Lines
	 Import Letters of Credit/
		  Trust Receipts Line
	 Standby Letters of Credit
	 Structured Trade Finance 
		  Export Credit Agency Lines
		  Guarantee Program
	 LGU Bond Flotation (thru PNB Capital 
		  and Investment Corp.)
	 Loans Against Deposit Hold Out

Consumer Loans   
	 Sure Home Loan (Housing Loan)
	 Sure Home Flexi Loan
	 Sure Wheels Loan (Motor Vehicle Loan)
	 Contract to Sell Financing
	 Own a Philippine Home Loan
		  (Overseas Housing Loan)
	 Global Filipino Auto Loan
		  (Overseas Auto Loan)
	 Sure Fund (Multi-Purpose Loan)
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Credit Card Services
	 PNB MasterCard – Essentials
	 PNB MasterCard – Platinum
	 PNB Mabuhay Miles MasterCard 
		  – Essentials 
	 PNB Mabuhay Miles MasterCard 
		  – Platinum
	 PNB Mabuhay Miles MasterCard 
		  – World

Trust Products and Services

Unit Investment Trust Funds (UITF)
	 Money Market Funds
		  PNB Mabuhay Prime UITF
		  PNB Dollar Prime UITF  
		  PNB Global Filipino Peso Fund   
		  PNB Global Filipino Dollar Fund
	
	 Intermediate-Term Bond Funds
		  PNB Mabuhay Plus UITF
		  PNB DREAM Builder UITF
		  PNB Dollar Profit UITF

	 Balanced Fund
		  PNB Mabuhay Prestige UITF

	 Equity Fund
		  PNB Enhanced Phil-Index 
			   Reference Fund

Corporate Trust Products
	 Corporate Trust	
	 PNB Employee Enrichment Solutions 
		  (Benefit Trust / Retirement Fund)
	 Corporate Investment Management 
		  Account (IMA)
	 Corporate Escrow
		  POEA Escrow
		  Japanese Escrow
	 Syndicated Loan Agency
	 Collateral Trust / Mortgage 
		  Trust Indenture
	 LGU Bonds Trusteeship
	 Securitization
	 Stock Transfer / Paying Agency

Personal Trust Products
	 Living Trust / Personal Trust Accounts
	 Personal Investment Management 	
		  Account (IMA)
			   Peso IMA
			   Dollar IMA
	 IMA - Special Deposit Account (SDA)
	 Retail SDA
	 PNB Zenith Account
		  PNB IMA Zenith
		  PNB Trust Zenith
	 MIP – Monthly Income Portfolio
	 Life Insurance Trust
	 Personal Escrow
		  BIR Escrow
		  Real Estate Escrow
	 Safekeeping
	 Guardianship
	 Estate Planning

Congenerics

Banking
	 PNB (Europe) PLC

General Insurance
	 PNB General Insurers Co., Inc.

Holding Company
	 PNB Holdings Corporation
	 PNB International Investments 
		  Corporation

Investment Banking 	
	 PNB Capital and Investment 
		  Corporation

Leasing and Financing
	 Japan-PNB Leasing and 
		  Finance Corporation

Lending 
	 PNB Global Remittance and Financial 
		  Company (HK) Limited

Remittance
	 PNB Remittance Centers, Inc. 
	 PNB Remittance Company (Canada)
	 PNB Global Remittance and Financial 
		  Company (HK) Limited
	 PNB Italy SpA
	 PNB Corporation, Guam
		
Stock Brokerage
	 PNB Securities, Inc.

products &
services 
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Japan-Pnb Leasing and Finance Corporation
Japan-PNB Leasing and Finance Corporation (JPNB Leasing) 
offers a full range of financial services but specializes in 
financial leasing of various equipment, term loans and 
receivables discounting.  The company also arranges 
lease syndications for big-ticket transactions and provides 
operating lease services of universal-type equipment 
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, JPNB RentAll.

PNB increased its equity interest in JPNB Leasing from 
60% to 90% on January 31, 2011 through the acquisition 
of the 25% and 5% equity interest of minority partners, 
IBJ Leasing Co., Ltd. (IBJL) and Mizuho Corporate Bank. 
IBJL remains as an active joint venture partner with a 
10% equity interest.

Pnb (Europe) Plc
PNB (Europe) PLC is a wholly-owned subsidiary 
incorporated in the United Kingdom.  It is engaged in 
full banking services which include, among others, 
deposit services, loans, fund transfers, FX trading and 
documentary credits.  It is also authorized to provide 
cross border services such as acceptance of deposits 
and other repayable funds from the public; and money 
transmission services within the 30 member states of the 
European Economic Area (EEA).

In order to streamline its operations, PNB (Europe) PLC 
applied for an Authorized Payment Institution (API) 
license in the United Kingdom in November 2011.  This 
application is still being evaluated and processed by the 
UK regulator, the Financial Services Authority. 

PNB (Europe) PLC operates an extension office at Earl’s 
Court in London. It has a branch in Paris and two 
extension offices in Cannes and Beausoleil, France which 
are engaged only in remittance services.

PNB Capital and Investment Corporation
PNB Capital and Investment Corporation is the wholly-
owned investment banking subsidiary of PNB. It 
provides a full range of corporate finance services 
such as financial advisory, project finance and private 
placements for corporate clients, debt and equity 
syndication and underwriting including assisting clients 
in pre-IPO reorganizations.  PNB Capital and Investment 
Corporation also assists in structuring and packaging 
mergers and acquisitions, securitization transactions and 
mezzanine financing.

Pnb Corporation, Guam
PNB Corporation, Guam is a wholly-owned subsidiary 
incorporated in the Territory of Guam. Its main business 
activity is to provide foreign exchange remittance 
service.

Pnb Global Remittance and Financial Company 
(HK) Limited
PNB Global Remittance and Financial Company (HK) 
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PNB which 
provides remittance services and grants retail loans to 
Filipino overseas workers and professionals in Hong Kong. 
Its main office is located in Wan Chai District, Hong Kong 
while its seven branches are situated in Shatin, Yuen 
Long, Tsuen Wan, North Point, Tai Po and Central.

PNB Holdings Corporation
PNB Holdings Corporation is a wholly-owned holding 
subsidiary of PNB which owns 100% of PNB General 
Insurers Co., Inc., a non-life insurance company that 
offers fire, marine, motor car, surety, casualty, engineering 
and accident insurance.

PNB International Investments Corporation 
PNB International Investments Corporation (PNB IIC) is 
a non-bank holding subsidiary and is the parent company 
of PNB Remittance Centers, Incorporated (PNB RCI).  
PNB RCl has a network of 44 money transfer offices in 
11 states of the United States of America.

PNB RCI also owns PNBRCI Holding Company, Limited 
which was established to be the holding company of PNB 
Remittance Company (Canada) [PNBRCC]. PNBRCC has 
eight offices servicing the remittance requirements of 
Filipinos in Canada.

PNB Italy SpA
PNB Italy SpA is a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated 
in Italy. Presently, its principal business is to service the 
remittance requirements of overseas Filipino workers in 
Italy. It has offices in Rome, Milan and Florence.

PNB Securities, Inc.
PNB Securities, Inc. (PNBSI) is PNB’s wholly-owned stock 
brokerage subsidiary which deals in the trading of shares 
of stocks listed at the Philippine Stock Exchange.

the bank’s
congenerics
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Statement of Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements

The management of Philippine National Bank and Subsidiaries (the Group) and of Philippine National Bank (the Parent Company) is responsible 

for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the financial statements of the Parent 

Company which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2011 and 2010 and the statements of income, statements 

of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 

December 31, 2011, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. These financial statements have 

been prepared in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework, except for the deferral of losses from the sale of the  

non-performing assets (NPA) to the special purpose vehicle (SPV) companies in 2007, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the charging of amortization 

of these losses against current operations as required by the BSP and the non-consolidation of the accounts of the SPV that acquired the 

NPA sold in 2007 and 2006 as allowed under the regulatory accounting policies prescribed by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) for banks 

and financial institutions availing of the provisions of Republic Act No. 9182, The Special Purpose Vehicle Act of 2002. This responsibility 

includes designing and implementing internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting 

estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors (BOD) reviews and approves the financial statements and submit the same to the stockholders or members.

SyCip Gorres Velayo and Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has examined the financial statements of the Group 

and the Parent Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders or member, has examined 

its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such examination.

	

Florencia G. Tarriela Carlos A. Pedrosa
Chairman of the Board President & Chief Executive Officer

Carmen G. Huang
Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 29th day of March 2012 affiants exhibiting to me their Community Tax Certificates, as follows:

 

Names Passport  No. Date of Issue Place of Issue
Florencia G. Tarriela  XX0432152 January 25, 2008 DFA Manila
Carlos A. Pedrosa  XX2115382 September 25, 2008 DFA Manila
Carmen G. Huang EB0092481 April 13, 2010 DFA Manila
                                     			 

							                        

Doc. No. 430

Page No. 87

Book No. IV

Series of 2012.
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The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Philippine National Bank

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Philippine 
National Bank and Subsidiaries (the Group) and the parent company financial 
statements of Philippine National Bank (the  Parent Company), which comprise 
the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and 
the statements of income, statements of comprehensive income, statements of 
changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in 
the period ended December 31, 2011, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the Philippines for banks (Philippine GAAP for banks) as described in Note 2 to 
the financial statements, and for such internal control as management determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on 
our audits.  We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on 
Auditing.  Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls.  An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As discussed in Notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements, to take advantage 
of incentives under Republic Act (RA) No. 9182, The Special Purpose Vehicle 
Act of 2002, and at the same time improve its chances of recovering from its 
non-performing assets (NPAs), the Parent Company sold certain NPAs to special 
purpose vehicle (SPV) companies.  In accordance with regulatory accounting 
policies (RAP) prescribed by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) for banks and 
financial institutions availing of the provisions of RA No. 9182, losses amounting 
to P1.3 billion in 2007, P1.9 billion in 2006, P4.3 billion in 2005 and P1.1 billion 
in 2004 from the sale of the NPAs to the SPV companies were recognized as 
deferred charges and are being amortized over a ten-year period.  Had the losses 
been charged against operations in the year the NPAs were sold as required 
by Philippine GAAP for banks, deferred charges and equity would have been 
decreased by P4.7 billion and P5.6 billion as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively.

As discussed in Note 14 to the financial statements, in 2011, the Group and 
Parent Company changed their accounting policy on the amortization of the 
abovementioned deferred charges and restated its 2010 and 2009 financial 
statements to comply with RAP.  Under RAP, the amortization of deferred charges 
is charged against current operations.  Had the amortization of deferred charges 
been charged against Surplus, beginning, as required by Philippine GAAP for 
banks, net income of the Group and of the Parent Company would have been 
increased by P860.4 million, P844.1 million and P698.1 million in 2011, 2010 and 
2009, respectively.

Independent Auditors’ Report
The sale of the NPAs to the SPV in 2007 and 2006 is considered as a true sale under 
RA No. 9182, which qualified for derecognition under RAP.  However, Philippine 
GAAP for banks require that the accounts of the SPV companies that acquired 
the NPAs of the Parent Company in 2007 and 2006 should be consolidated into 
the Group’s accounts.  Had the accounts of the SPV companies been consolidated 
into the Group’s accounts, total assets, liabilities and non-controlling interest in 
equity of consolidated subsidiaries would have been increased by P0.5 billion, 
P0.03 billion and P0.5 billion, respectively, as of December 31, 2011.  Net 
income and non-controlling interest in net income would have been increased 
by P0.08 billion in 2011.  As of December 31, 2010, total assets, liabilities and 
non-controlling interest in equity of consolidated subsidiaries would have been 
increased by P1.1 billion, P0.1 billion and P1.0 billion, respectively.  Net income 
and non-controlling interest in net income would have been increased by  
P0.4 billion in 2010 and P0.8 billion in 2009.  

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Group and of the Parent Company as at December 31, 
2011 and 2010 and their financial performance and their cash flows for each of the 
three years in the period ended December 31,2011 in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the Philippines for banks as described in Note 2 to 
the financial statements, except for the effects of the matters discussed in the Basis 
for Qualified Opinion paragraphs.

Other Matters

In our auditors’ report dated March 18, 2011, our opinion on the 2010 and 2009 
parent company statements of financial position and parent company statements 
of changes in equity was qualified as to the effects of the deferral of losses on 
sale of NPAs to SPVs, which under Philippine GAAP for banks, should have been 
charged in full against operations in the year the NPAs were sold.  In 2011, as 
discussed in Note 14, the Parent Company changed its accounting policy on 
the amortization of deferred charges and restated its 2010 and 2009 financial 
statements to reflect the annual amortization charge in the statements of income.  
Accordingly, our opinion on the 2010 and 2009 parent company statements of 
income and parent company statements of cash flows, as presented herein, is now 
qualified as to the effects of the amortization of deferred charges. 

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue 
Regulations 19-2011 and 15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole.  The supplementary information required 
under Revenue Regulations 19-2011 and 15-2010 in Note 37 to the financial 
statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue 
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  Such information is 
the responsibility of the management of Philippine National Bank.  The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic 
financial statements.  In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.	

Janeth T. Nuñez
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 111092
SEC Accreditation No. 0853-A (Group A)
	 July 23, 2009 until July 22, 2012
Tax Identification No. 900-322-673
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-69-2009
	 June 1, 2009, Valid until May 31, 2012
PTR No. 3174815, January 2, 2012, Makati City

March 6, 2012
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Consolidated Parent Company
As of December 31

2011 2010 2011 2010

ASSETS

Cash and Other Cash Items (Note 16) P5,404,110 P5,457,186 P5,303,112 P5,309,611
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (Notes 16 and 33) 38,152,795 24,285,986 37,492,594 24,273,986
Due from Other Banks 6,423,981 5,141,549 4,906,698 3,945,632
Interbank Loans Receivable 17,097,648 12,691,967 17,097,648 12,245,259
Securities Held Under Agreements to Resell (Note 16) 18,300,000 6,800,000 18,300,000 6,800,000
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (Note 7) 6,875,665 15,882,959 6,873,208 15,869,210
Available-for-Sale Investments (Notes 10 and 16) 52,323,808 34,531,256 50,428,977 32,939,341
Loans and Receivables (Note 8) 126,249,035 110,315,478 122,652,951 106,541,735
Receivable from Special Purpose Vehicle (Note 9) 	 – 624,450 	 – 624,450
Held-to-Maturity Investments (Notes 10 and 16) 	 – 38,240,258 	 – 38,152,155
Property and Equipment (Note 11)
	 At cost 866,013 815,497 676,405 658,865
	 At appraised value 15,698,514 15,816,443 15,698,514 15,816,443
Investments in Subsidiaries and an Associate (Note 12) 2,901,780 2,832,073 7,305,644 7,325,446
Investment Properties (Notes 13 and 32) 16,100,113 17,913,198 16,030,203 17,841,232
Deferred Tax Assets (Note 28) 1,775,789 1,829,430 1,696,698 1,738,583
Other Assets (Note 14) 8,115,035 8,955,630 7,709,274 8,507,123
TOTAL ASSETS P316,284,286 P302,133,360 P312,171,926 P298,589,071

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Deposit Liabilities (Notes 16 and 31)
Demand P29,896,120 P27,964,372 P30,042,425 P28,163,081
Savings 184,676,120 171,282,454 184,692,779 171,173,893
Time 22,961,698 27,189,058 23,726,483 27,550,759

237,533,938 226,435,884 238,461,687 226,887,733
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (Note 17) 6,650,183 6,574,596 6,650,183 6,574,596
Bills and Acceptances Payable (Note 18) 8,458,425 12,004,138 7,318,358 12,856,661
Accrued Taxes, Interest and Other Expenses (Note 19) 4,856,168 5,035,135 4,657,884 4,818,402
Subordinated Debt (Note 20) 6,452,473 5,486,735 6,452,473 5,486,735
Other Liabilities (Note 21) 13,111,373 13,125,336 10,596,669 9,816,631
TOTAL LIABILITIES 277,062,560 268,661,824 274,137,254 266,440,758

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY

Capital Stock (Note 24) 26,489,837 26,489,837 26,489,837 26,489,837
Capital Paid in Excess of Par Value (Notes 12 and 24) 2,037,272 2,037,272 2,037,272 2,037,272
Surplus Reserves (Note 30) 560,216 551,947 560,216 551,947
Surplus (Note 24) 6,947,384 3,091,554 5,107,645 1,206,080
Revaluation Increment on Land and Buildings (Note 11) 2,816,962 2,816,962 2,816,962 2,816,962
Accumulated Translation Adjustment (Note 12) (451,708) (471,975) 334,005 300,676
Net Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Available-for-Sale Investments (Note 10) 772,822 (1,199,252) 688,735 (1,254,461)
Equity in Net Unrealized Gain on Available-for-Sale Investment  
	 of an Associate 6,795 6,043 	 – 	 –
Parent Company Shares Held by a Subsidiary (Note 24) (4,740) (4,740) 	 – 	 –

39,174,840 33,317,648 38,034,672 32,148,313

NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY 46,886 153,888 	 – 	 –

TOTAL EQUITY 39,221,726 33,471,536 38,034,672 32,148,313

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P316,284,286 P302,133,360 P312,171,926 P298,589,071

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK AND SUBSIDIARIES
Statements of Financial Position
(In Thousands)
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Consolidated Parent Company
Years Ended December 31

2011

2010
	 (As Restated - 
	 Note 14)

2009
	 (As Restated - 
	 Note 14) 2011

2010
	 (As Restated - 
 	 Note 14)

2009
	 (As Restated - 
	 Note 14)

INTEREST INCOME ON
Loans and receivables (Notes 8 and 31) P7,537,006 P7,216,296 P7,826,085 P7,402,800  P6,927,565 P7,530,787
Trading and investment securities (Notes 7 and 10) 4,260,636 4,438,957 4,296,962 4,174,892 4,347,709 4,216,805
Deposits with banks and others (Note 31) 659,210 887,340 800,412 637,112 870,439 763,577
Interbank loans receivable 30,685 31,013 46,289 30,685 31,013 46,289

12,487,537 12,573,606 12,969,748 12,245,489 12,176,726 12,557,458
INTEREST EXPENSE ON
Deposit liabilities (Notes 16 and 31) 4,011,455 3,441,833 3,519,120 4,010,841 3,453,880 3,533,471
Bills payable and other borrowings (Notes 18 and 20) 1,257,249 1,329,743 1,571,809 1,215,128 1,280,781 1,508,855

5,268,704 4,771,576 5,090,929 5,225,969 4,734,661 5,042,326
NET INTEREST INCOME 7,218,833 7,802,030 7,878,819 7,019,520 7,442,065 7,515,132
Service fees and commission income (Note 25) 2,343,990 2,447,970 2,478,643 1,682,802 1,754,461 1,673,542
Service fees and commission expense (Note 31) 207,387 323,468 219,050 127,188 205,135 104,465
NET SERVICE FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME 2,136,603 2,124,502 2,259,593 1,555,614 1,549,326 1,569,077
OTHER INCOME
Trading and investment securities gains - net (Notes 7 and 10) 3,628,302 3,031,092 1,433,987 3,598,678 2,933,711 1,417,536
Net gain on sale or exchange of assets (Note 25) 1,350,403 2,109,542 1,475,775 1,350,403 2,109,644 1,463,719
Foreign exchange gains - net 1,216,328 906,846 1,587,640 910,719 587,461 1,218,899
Miscellaneous (Notes 25 and 27) 1,148,105 653,185 576,160 791,960 610,377 356,299
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 16,698,574 16,627,197 15,211,974 15,226,894 15,232,584 13,540,662
OPERATING EXPENSES
Compensation and fringe benefits (Notes 26 and 31) 3,815,170 3,384,003 3,932,192 3,211,899 2,749,795 3,251,685
Taxes and licenses (Note 28) 1,319,114 1,176,401 1,120,204 1,280,586 1,128,921 1,084,029
Occupancy and equipment-related costs (Note 27) 1,015,429 915,794 866,085 769,420 726,971 662,000
Provision for impairment and credit losses (Note 15) 860,397 2,399,772 1,506,296 815,674 2,408,818 1,489,280
Depreciation and amortization (Note 11) 656,404 837,604 1,262,041 593,940 781,491 1,217,962
Miscellaneous (Note 25) 3,452,784 3,611,181 3,545,009 2,976,755 3,135,264 3,031,567
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 11,119,298 12,324,755 12,231,827 9,648,274 10,931,260 10,736,523
INCOME BEFORE AMORTIZATION OF DEFERRED CHARGES 

AND INCOME TAX 5,579,276 4,302,442 2,980,147 5,578,620 4,301,324 2,804,139
AMORTIZATION OF DEFERRED CHARGES (Note 14) 860,398 844,112 698,141 860,398 844,112 698,141
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 4,718,878 3,458,330 2,282,006 4,718,222 3,457,212 2,105,998
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 28) 846,326 766,602 779,994 808,388 692,270 701,157
NET INCOME P3,872,552 P2,691,728 P1,502,012 P3,909,834 P2,764,942 P1,404,841
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity Holders of the Parent Company (Note 29) P3,864,099 P2,671,339 P1,487,575
Non-controlling Interest in a Subsidiary 8,453 20,389 14,437

P3,872,552 P2,691,728 P1,502,012
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share Attributable to Equity Holders of 

the Parent Company (Note 29) 	 P5.83 	 P4.03 	 P2.25

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK AND SUBSIDIARIES

Statements of Income
(In Thousands, Except Earnings Per Share)
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Consolidated Parent Company
Years Ended December 31

2011

	 2010
	 (As restated -
	 Note 14)

	 2009 
	 (As restated - 
	 Note 14) 	 2011

	 2010 
	 (As restated - 
	 Note 14)

	 2009 
	 (As restated - 
	 Note 14)

NET INCOME P3,872,552 P2,691,728 P1,502,012 P3,909,834 P2,764,942 P1,404,841
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Net unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale investments  

(Note 10) 1,972,074 (315,099) 291,085 1,943,196 (326,044) 244,178
Accumulated translation adjustment (Note 12) 20,267 12,844 (111,059) 33,329 210,191 (53,601)
Share in equity adjustments of an associate (Note 12) 752 6,043 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 –
Revaluation increment on land and buildings (Note 11) 	 – 87,815 	 – 	 – 87,815 	 –
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, 

NET OF TAX 1,993,093 (208,397) 180,026 1,976,525 (28,038) 190,577

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR P5,865,645 P2,483,331 P1,682,038 P5,886,359 P2,736,904 P1,595,418

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the Parent Company P5,857,192 P2,462,942 P1,667,601
Non-controlling Interest in a Subsidiary 8,453 20,389 14,437

P5,865,645 P2,483,331 P1,682,038

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK AND SUBSIDIARIES

Statements of Comprehensive Income
(In Thousands)
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Consolidated Parent Company
Years Ended December 31

2011

	 2010 
	 (As restated - 
	 Note 14)

	 2009 
	 (As restated - 
	 Note 14) 2011

	 2010 
	 (As restated - 
	 Note 14)

	 2009 
	 (As restated - 
	 Note 14)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax P4,718,878 P3,458,330 P2,282,006 P4,718,222 P3,457,212 P2,105,998
Adjustments for:
	 Realized trading gain on available-for-sale (AFS) investments 

(Note 10) (3,596,089) (1,185,384) (379,695) (3,566,589) (1,088,004) (363,244)
	 Net gain on sale or exchange of assets (Note 25) (1,350,403) (2,109,542) (1,475,775) (1,350,403) (2,109,644) (1,463,719)
	 Amortization of deferred losses (Note 14) 860,398 844,112 698,141 860,398 844,112 698,141
	 Provision for impairment and credit losses (Note 15) 860,397 2,399,772 1,506,296 815,674 2,408,818 1,489,280
	 Depreciation and amortization (Note 11) 656,404 837,604 1,262,041 593,940 781,491 1,217,962
	 Amortization of software costs (Note 14) 162,167 156,708 109,824 158,528 153,774 108,332
	 Realized trading gain on sale of  held-to-maturity (HTM) 

investments (Note 10) (141,274)	 – 	 – (141,274)	 – 	 –
	 Loss (gain) on mark-to-market of financial liability designated 

at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) (Note 10) (37,575) 206,921 122,521 (37,575) 206,921 122,521
	 Share in net loss (income) of an associate (Note 12) (68,955) (45,065) (12,001) 	 – 	 – 	 –
	 Amortization of premium 59,486 165,027 43,765 59,423 165,027 43,765
	 Loss (gain) on mark-to-market of derivatives (Note 10) (20,906) (1,108,109) (59,120) (20,906) (1,108,109) (59,120)
	 Amortization of transaction costs (Notes 16 and 20) 32,561 24,555 21,160 32,561 24,555 21,160
	 Dividend income (1,680) (1,215) (2,366) (231,576) (216,824) (20,318)
	 Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
		  Decrease (increase) in amounts of:
	  		  Financial assets at FVPL 9,141,362 (4,672,482) (593,493) 9,130,070 (4,255,745) (595,352)
			   Loans and receivables (17,053,743) (10,163,263) (1,212,233) (17,115,760) (11,634,727) (481,826)
			   Other assets 414 (485,342) 1,436,490 (7,242) (302,559) 1,039,225
		  Increase in amounts of:
			   Deposit liabilities 11,083,477 12,113,895 13,044,909 11,559,377 11,987,991 12,773,889
			   Accrued taxes, interest and other expenses (16,715) (33,711) 581,332 (26,830) (40,114) 559,425
			   Other liabilities (204,595) 96,151 789,607 587,405 (919,101) 755,036
Net cash generated from (used in) operations 5,083,609 498,962 18,163,409 6,017,443 (1,644,926) 17,951,155
Income taxes paid (822,785) (715,717) (753,156) (743,275) (627,352) (679,389)
Dividends received 1,680 2,515 2,366 231,576 216,824 20,318
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 4,262,504 (214,240) 17,412,619 5,505,744 (2,055,454) 17,292,084
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of:
	 AFS investments 185,507,498 91,758,000 20,940,434 185,348,678 88,102,092 19,447,883
	 Investment properties 3,505,960 2,118,101 2,485,595 3,505,960 2,127,958 2,473,286
	 Property and equipment 121,959 60,874 65,100 95,542 3,793 66,567
Proceeds from maturity of held-to-maturity (HTM) investments 2,611,603 3,527,895 2,173,345 2,611,603 3,522,783 2,170,698
Proceeds from sale of HTM investments 2,586,113 	 – 	 – 2,586,113 	 – 	 –
Proceeds from placements with the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 

(BSP) (Note 33) P9,800,000 	 P– P8,900,000 P9,800,000 	 P– P8,900,000
Placements with the BSP (Note 33) (20,200,000) (9,800,000) 	 – (20,200,000) (9,800,000) 	 –
Acquisition of:
	 AFS investments (164,299,207) (108,772,041) (21,410,020) (164,006,652) (105,111,187) (20,849,494)
	 Property and  equipment (Note 11) (512,048) (461,962) (324,704) (413,451) (312,036) (265,983)
	 Software cost (Note 14) (69,122) (129,563) (84,236) (66,416) (124,941) (77,164)
Additional investments in subsidiaries/associate (Note 12) 	 – 	 – (2,763,903) (115,455) (125,749) (2,766,823)
Closure of subsidiaries 	 – 	 – 	 – 64,447 	 – 	 –
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 19,052,756 (21,698,696) 9,981,611 19,210,369 (21,717,287) 9,098,970

(Forward)

PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Consolidated Parent Company
Years Ended December 31

2011

	 2010 
	 (As restated - 
	 Note 14)

	 2009 
	 (As restated - 
	 Note 14) 2011

	 2010 
	 (As restated - 
	 Note 14)

	 2009 
	 (As restated - 
	 Note 14)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bills and acceptances payable 40,190,569 35,938,506 42,337,457 36,695,559 34,276,511 34,648,226
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated debt 6,447,754 	 – 	 – 6,447,754 	 – 	 –
Settlement of bills and acceptances payable (43,736,282) (31,737,511) (47,164,448) (42,233,862) (28,281,013) (39,255,886)
Redemption of subordinated debt (Note 20) (5,500,000)	 – (3,000,000) (5,500,000)	 – (3,000,000)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest (115,455)	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 –
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (2,713,414) 4,200,995 (7,826,991) (4,590,549) 5,995,498 (7,607,660)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND  

CASH  EQUIVALENTS 20,601,846 (17,711,941) 19,567,239 20,125,564 (17,777,243) 18,783,394
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
Cash and other cash items 5,457,186 6,054,474 6,436,406 5,309,611 5,950,914 6,326,528
Due from BSP 14,485,986 20,927,133 11,156,705 14,473,986 20,927,133 10,940,705
Due from other banks 5,141,549 5,403,845 6,669,184 3,945,632 4,256,603 6,082,326
Interbank loans receivable 12,691,967 24,303,177 12,859,095 12,245,259 23,817,081 12,818,778
Securities held under agreements to resell 6,800,000 5,600,000 5,600,000 6,800,000 5,600,000 5,600,000

44,576,688 62,288,629 42,721,390 42,774,488 60,551,731 41,768,337
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
Cash and other cash items 5,404,110 5,457,186 6,054,474 5,303,112 5,309,611 5,950,914
Due from BSP (Note 33) 17,952,795 14,485,986 20,927,133 17,292,594 14,473,986 20,927,133
Due from other banks 6,423,981 5,141,549 5,403,845 4,906,698 3,945,632 4,256,603
Interbank loans receivable 17,097,648 12,691,967 24,303,177 17,097,648 12,245,259 23,817,081
Securities held under agreements to resell 18,300,000 6,800,000 5,600,000 18,300,000 6,800,000 5,600,000

P65,178,534 P44,576,688 P62,288,629 P62,900,052 P42,774,488 P60,551,731
OPERATIONAL CASH FLOWS FROM INTEREST AND 

DIVIDENDS
Interest paid P5,416,185 P4,631,613 P5,284,728 P5,373,255 P4,592,781 P5,237,935
Interest received 12,938,408 12,754,383 12,552,806 12,712,686 12,249,169 12,229,266
Dividends received 1,680 2,515 2,366 231,576 216,824 20,318

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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Corporate Information1.	

Philippine National Bank (the Parent Company) was established in the Philippines in 1916 and started commercial operations that same year. On  
May 27, 1996, the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the Parent Company’s application to extend its corporate term  
for another 50 years.  Its principal place of business is at PNB Financial Center, President Diosdado Macapagal Boulevard, Pasay City. As of  
December 31, 2011 and 2010, the companies and persons affiliated/associated with the Lucio Tan Group (LTG) remain the majority shareholder of the 
Parent Company at 67.20% and the remaining 32.80% is held by the public.

The Parent Company provides a full range of banking and other financial services to corporate, middle-market and retail customers, the National 
Government (NG), local government units (LGUs) and government-owned and controlled corporations (GOCCs) and various government agencies.  The 
Parent Company’s principal commercial banking activities include deposit-taking, lending, bills discounting, foreign exchange dealing, investment banking, 
fund transfers/remittance servicing and a full range of retail banking and trust services through its 331 domestic and 13 overseas branches and offices as 
of December 31, 2011 and 325 domestic and 34 overseas branches and offices as of December 31, 2010.  The Parent Company’s international subsidiaries 
have a network of 70 offices as of December 31, 2011 and 74 offices as of December 31, 2010 in key cities of the United States of America (USA), Canada, 
Western Europe, Middle East and Asia.

The subsidiaries are engaged in a number of diversified financial and related businesses such as remittance, non-life insurance, merchant banking, leasing, 
stock brokerage, foreign exchange trading and/or related services, while an associate is engaged in the banking business.

The Parent Company previously operated under a rehabilitation program pursuant to the memorandum of agreement signed by the Republic of the 
Philippines, the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation and the LTG on May 3, 2002.  In May 2007, the Parent Company concluded its 5-year Rehabilitation 
Plan as approved by the BSP.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies2.	

Basis of Preparation
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVPL) and available-for-sale (AFS) investments that are measured at fair value, and land and building that are measured at appraised value.

The financial statements of the Parent Company reflect the accounts maintained in the Regular Banking Unit (RBU) and Foreign Currency Deposit Unit 
(FCDU).

The functional currency of RBU and FCDU is Philippine pesos (Php) and United States Dollar (USD), respectively.  For financial reporting purposes, FCDU 
accounts and foreign currency-denominated accounts in the RBU are translated into their equivalents in Philippine pesos (see accounting policy on 
Foreign Currency Translation).  The financial statements individually prepared for these units are combined and inter-unit accounts and transactions are 
eliminated.

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that 
functional currency.  The respective functional currencies of the subsidiaries are presented under ‘Basis of Consolidation’.

Amounts are presented to the nearest thousand pesos (P000) unless otherwise stated.

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Group and of the Parent Company have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
the Philippines for banks (Philippine GAAP for banks), particularly relating to the reclassification in 2008 as permitted by the BSP for prudential regulations 
and the SEC for financial reporting purposes, of certain investments of the Parent Company in Republic of the Philippines (ROP) credit-linked notes (CLN) 
from AFS investments to held-to-maturity (HTM) investments without bifurcating the embedded derivatives as discussed in Note 10.  In 2011, the ROP CLNs 
were reclassified from HTM investments to AFS investments and the related embedded derivative had been bifurcated.  

Other than the aforementioned reclassification in 2008, and the deferral of the losses on sale of the non-performing assets (NPAs) to special purpose vehicle 
(SPV) as discussed in Note 8, non-consolidation of the SPV as discussed in Note 9 and charging of the amortization of deferred charges to operations as 
discussed in Note 14 which were allowed separately by the BSP, the financial statements of the Group and of the Parent Company have been prepared in 
compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Parent Company and the following wholly owned and majority-owned 
subsidiaries:

PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Financial Statements
(Amounts in Thousand Pesos Except When Otherwise Indicated)
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Nature of 
Business

Country of 
Incorporation

Effective Percentage of 
Ownership Functional 

CurrencySubsidiaries Direct Indirect

PNB Capital and Investment Corporation (PNB Capital) Investment Philippines 100.00 – Php
PNB Forex, Inc. FX trading - do - 100.00 – Php
PNB Holdings Corporation (PNB Holdings) Investment - do - 100.00 – Php
PNB General Insurers, Inc. (PNB Gen) (a) Insurance - do - – 100.00 Php

PNB Securities, Inc. (PNB Securities)
Securities 
Brokerage - do - 100.00 – Php

PNB Corporation - Guam Remittance USA 100.00 – USD
PNB International Investments Corporation (PNB IIC) Investment - do – 100.00 – USD
PNB Remittance Centers, Inc. (b) Remittance - do - – 100.00 USD

PNB RCI Holding Co. Ltd. (b)

Holding Company 
of PNB RCC - do - – 100.00 USD

PNB Remittance Co. (Canada) (c) Remittance Canada – 100.00 CAD

PNB Europe PLC Banking United Kingdom 100.00 –
Great Britain 
Pounds (GBP)

PNB Global Remittance & Financial Co. (HK) Ltd. (PNB GRF) Remittance Hong Kong 100.00 –
Hong Kong 
Dollar (HKD)

PNB Italy SpA Remittance Italy 100.00 – Euro
Tanzanite Investments (SPV-AMC), Inc. Others Philippines 100.00 – Php
Tau Portfolio Investments (SPV-AMC), Inc. - do - - do - 100.00 – Php
Omicron Asset Portfolio (SPV-AMC), Inc. - do - - do - 100.00 – Php
Japan - PNB Leasing and Finance Corporation (Japan-PNB 

Leasing)* Leasing/Financing - do - 90.00 – Php
Japan -PNB Equipment Rentals Corporation(d) Rental - do - 90.00 Php

Owned through PNB Holdings (a)	

Owned through PNB IIC(b)	

Owned through PNB RCI Holding Co. Ltd.(c)	

Owned through Japan - PNB Leasing(d)	

In 2011, the Group acquired additional 30% interest in Japan-PNB Leasing (see Note 12).  The Group’s ownership interest in Japan-PNB Leasing in 2010 and 2009 is *	
60%.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent Company using consistent accounting policies.  All 
significant intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in 
the consolidation.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.  Control is achieved where the Group has the power to 
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.  Consolidation of subsidiaries ceases when control is 
transferred out of the Group or Parent Company.  The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are included in the consolidated 
statement of income from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal, as appropriate.

In 2006, the Parent Company sold Opal Portfolio Investments (SPV-AMC), Inc. (OPII) and certain NPAs to Golden Dragon Star Equities, Inc., under a 
transaction that qualified and was approved by the BSP, as a legal true sale (see Note 9).  OPII holds the NPAs sold by the Parent Company.  Under Standing 
Interpretations Committee (SIC) No. 12, Consolidation of Special Purpose Entity (SPE), control over a SPE may exist even in cases where an entity owns little 
or none of the SPE’s equity, such as when an entity retains majority of the residual risks related to the SPE on its assets in order to obtain  benefits from its 
activities. In accordance with SIC 12, the consolidated financial statements should include the accounts of OPII.  However, the accounts of OPII were not 
consolidated into the accompanying financial statements.

Non-controlling Interests
Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and the net assets not held by the Group and are presented separately in the consolidated 
statement of income, consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately 
from equity attributable to the Parent Company.  Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby the difference 
between the consideration paid and the share in the net assets acquired is recognized in equity.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial years except that the Group has adopted the following PFRS, amendments 
to Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations which became effective beginning January 1, 2011 and did not have significant 
impact in the financial position or performance of the Group.
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New Standards and Interpretations

PAS 24, •	 Related Party Disclosures  (Amended)
The amended standard clarified the definition of a related party to simplify the identification of such relationships and to eliminate inconsistencies in 
its application.  The revised standard introduces a partial exemption of disclosure requirements for government-related entities.

PAS 32, •	 Financial Instruments: Presentation (Amendment) - Classification of Rights Issues
The amendment to PAS 32 amended the definition of a financial liability in order to classify rights issues (and certain options or warrants) as equity 
instruments in cases where such rights are given pro rata to all of the existing owners of the same class of an entity’s non-derivative equity instruments, 
or to acquire a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments for a fixed amount in any currency.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 14 (Amendment) - Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement•	
The amendment to Philippine Interpretation International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 14 provides guidance on assessing 
the recoverable amount of a net pension asset.  The amendment permits an entity to treat the prepayment of a minimum funding requirement as 
an asset.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 19, Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity•	  Instruments
The interpretation clarifies that equity instruments issued to a creditor to extinguish a financial liability qualify as consideration paid.  The equity 
instruments issued are measured at their fair value.  In case that this cannot be reliably measured, the instruments are measured at the fair value of 
the liability extinguished.  Any gain or loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Improvements to PFRSs (issued in May 2010)
The IASB issued improvements to PFRSs, an omnibus of amendments to its PFRS standards.  The amendments listed below, are considered to have no 
significant impact on the financial statements of the Group:

PFRS 3, •	 Business Combinations
PFRS 7, •	 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
PAS 1, •	 Presentation of Financial Statements
PAS 27, •	 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
PAS 34, •	 Interim Financial Statements
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 13, •	 Customer Loyalty Programmes

Significant Accounting Policies

Foreign Currency Translation
Transactions and balances
The books of accounts of the RBU are maintained in Philippine pesos, while those of the FCDU are maintained in USD.

As at reporting date, foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities in the RBU are translated in Philippine peso based on the Philippine 
Dealing System (PDS) closing rate prevailing at end of the year and for foreign currency-denominated income and expenses, at the exchange rates 
prevailing at transaction dates.  Foreign exchange differences arising from restatements of foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities of the RBU 
are credited to or charged against operations in the year in which the rates change.  Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a 
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.

FCDU and Overseas subsidiaries
As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of the FCDU and overseas subsidiaries are translated into the Parent Company’s presentation currency 
(the Philippine peso) at the closing rate prevailing at the reporting date, and their income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate for the 
year.  Exchange differences arising on translation are taken directly to other comprehensive income (OCI) under ‘Accumulated translation adjustment’.  On 
disposal of a foreign entity or upon actual remittance of FCDU profits to RBU, the deferred cumulative amount recognized in OCI relating to the particular 
foreign operation is recognized in the statement of income.

Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement
Date of recognition
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace 
are recognized on settlement date.  Derivatives are recognized on trade date basis (i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell).  Deposits, 
amounts due to banks and customers and loans are recognized when cash is received by the Group or advanced to the borrowers.  

Initial recognition of financial instruments
All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value.  Except for financial instruments at FVPL, the initial measurement of financial instruments 
includes transaction costs.  The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at FVPL, HTM investments, AFS investments, 
and loans and receivables.  The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired and whether they are quoted in an 
active market.  Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such 
designation at every reporting date.  Financial liabilities are classified into financial liabilities at FVPL and other financial liabilities at amortized cost.
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Reclassification of financial assets
The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial asset out of the held-for-trading (HFT) category if the financial asset is no longer 
held for purposes of selling it in the near term and only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that is unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the 
near term.  In addition, the Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet the definition of loans and receivables out of the HFT or AFS 
investments categories if the Group has the intention and ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of 
reclassification.

The Group may also reclassify certain AFS investments to HTM investments when there is a change of intention and the Group has the ability to hold the 
financial instruments to maturity.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date.  Fair value becomes the new cost or amortized cost as applicable, and no reversals of 
fair value gains or losses recorded before reclassification date are subsequently made.  Effective interest rates (EIR) for financial assets reclassified to loans 
and receivables and HTM categories are determined at the reclassification date.  Further increases in estimates of cash flows adjust the EIR prospectively.

Determination of fair value
The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the reporting date is based on their quoted market price or dealer price quotations 
(bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.  When current bid and ask prices are not 
available, the price of the most recent transaction provides evidence of the current fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic 
circumstances since the time of the transaction.

For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined by using appropriate valuation methodologies.  Valuation 
methodologies include net present value techniques, comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, option pricing models, 
and other relevant valuation models.

‘Day 1’ difference
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value from other observable current market transactions in the same instrument 
or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference between the transaction 
price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ difference) in the statement of income in ‘Trading and investment securities gains - net’ unless it qualifies for recognition 
as some other type of asset.  In cases where data is not observable, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in 
the statement of income when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized.  For each transaction, the Group determines the 
appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day 1’ difference amount.

Derivatives recorded at FVPL
The Parent Company and some of its subsidiaries are counterparties to derivative contracts, such as currency forwards, currency swaps, interest rate swaps 
and warrants.  These derivatives are entered into as a service to customers and as a means of reducing or managing their respective foreign exchange and 
interest rate exposures, as well as for trading purposes.  Such derivative financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value on the date at which the 
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.  Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair values of derivatives are 
taken directly to the statement of income and are included in ‘Trading and investment securities gains - net’.  Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair 
value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Embedded derivatives
The Group has certain derivatives that are embedded in host financial (such as structured notes, debt investments, and loans receivables) and non-financial 
(such as purchase orders and service agreements) contracts.  These embedded derivatives include credit default swaps (which are linked either to a single 
reference entity or a basket of reference entities); conversion options in loans receivables; call options in certain long-term debt, and foreign-currency 
derivatives in debt instruments, purchase orders and service agreements.  Except as discussed in Note 10, embedded derivatives are bifurcated from their 
host contracts and carried at fair value with fair value changes being reported through profit or loss, when the entire hybrid contracts (composed of both 
the host contract and the embedded derivative) are not accounted for as financial assets at FVPL, when their economic risks and characteristics are not 
closely related to those of their respective host contracts, and when a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet 
the definition of a derivative.  The Group assesses whether embedded derivatives are required to be separated from the host contracts when the Group first 
becomes a party to the contract.  Reassessment of embedded derivatives is only done when there are changes in the contract that significantly modifies 
the contractual cash flows.

Other financial assets or financial liabilities held-for-trading
Other financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading (classified as ‘Financial assets at FVPL’ or ‘Financial liabilities at FVPL’) are recorded in the 
statement of financial position at fair value.  Changes in fair value relating to the held-for-trading positions are recognized in ‘Trading and investment 
securities gains - net’.  Interest earned or incurred is recorded in ‘Interest income’ or ‘Interest expense’, respectively, while dividend income is recorded in 
‘Miscellaneous income’ when the right to receive payment has been established.

Included in this classification are debt and equity securities which have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near 
term.
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Designated financial assets or financial liabilities at FVPL
Financial assets or financial liabilities classified in this category are designated by management on initial recognition when any of the following criteria are 
met: 

The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or •	
recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis; or
The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both which are managed and their performance evaluated on a •	
fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy; or
The financial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, •	
with little or no analysis, that it would not be separately recorded.

Designated financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL are recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value.  Changes in fair value are recorded 
in ‘Trading and investment securities gains - net’.  Interest earned or incurred is recorded in ‘Interest income’ or ‘Interest expense’, respectively, while 
dividend income is recorded in ‘Miscellaneous income’ according to the terms of the contract, or when the right of payment has been established.

HTM investments
HTM investments are quoted non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities for which the Group’s management 
has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.  Where the Group sells other than an insignificant amount of HTM investments, the entire category 
would be tainted and would have to be reclassified as AFS investments.  After initial measurement, these HTM investments are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less impairment in value.  Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium 
on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the EIR.  The amortization is included in ‘Interest income’ in the statement of income.  The losses arising 
from impairment of such investments are recognized in the statement of income under ‘Provision for impairment and credit losses’.  

Loans and receivables
Significant accounts falling under this category are loans and receivables, amounts due from BSP and other banks, interbank loans receivable, securities 
held under agreements to resell and receivable from SPV.

These are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities and are not quoted in an active market.  They are not entered into with 
the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not classified as financial assets at FVPL or designated as AFS investments.

Loans and receivables also include receivables arising from transactions on credit cards issued directly by the Parent Company.  Furthermore, ‘Loans and 
receivables’ include the aggregate rental on finance lease transactions and notes receivables financed by Japan - PNB Leasing.  Unearned income on finance 
lease transactions is shown as a deduction from ‘Loans and receivables’ (included in ‘Unearned and other deferred income’).

After initial measurement, the ‘Loans and receivables’, ‘Due from BSP’, ‘Due from other banks’, ‘Interbank loans receivable’, ‘Securities held under 
agreements to resell’ and ‘Receivable from SPV’ are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for credit 
losses.  Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the EIR.  The 
amortization is included in ‘Interest income’ in the statement of income.  The losses arising from impairment are recognized in ‘Provision for impairment 
and credit losses’ in the statement of income.

AFS investments
AFS investments are those which are designated as such or do not qualify to be classified as ‘Financial assets at FVPL’, ‘HTM investments’ or ‘Loans and 
receivables’.  They are purchased and held indefinitely, and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions.  They include 
debt and equity instruments.

After initial measurement, AFS investments are subsequently measured at fair value.  The effective yield component of AFS debt securities, as well as the 
impact of restatement on foreign currency-denominated AFS debt securities, is reported in the statement of income.  The unrealized gains and losses 
arising from the fair valuation of AFS investments are excluded, net of tax, from reported income and are reported as ‘Net unrealized gain (loss) on AFS 
investments’ in the statement of other comprehensive income.

When the security is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is recognized as ‘Trading and investment securities gains - net’ in 
the statement of income.  Interest earned on holding AFS debt investments are reported as ‘Interest income’ using the EIR.  Dividends earned on holding 
AFS equity investments are recognized in the statement of income as ‘Miscellaneous income’ when the right of the payment has been established.  The 
losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognized as ‘Provision for impairment and credit losses’ in the statement of income.

Other financial liabilties
Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated at FVPL, are classified as deposit liabilities, bills and acceptances payable, 
subordinated debt and other appropriate financial liability accounts, where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Group having an 
obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash 
or another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.  The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity 
elements are accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after deducting from the instrument as a whole the 
amount separately determined as the fair value of the liability component on the date of issue.
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After initial measurement, other financial liabilities not qualified as and not designated at FVPL are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method.  Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of 
the EIR.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial asset
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial assets) is derecognized when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;•	
the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third •	
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or
the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the •	
asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained the risk and rewards of the asset but has transferred control over the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred 
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control over the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s 
continuing involvement in the asset.  Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of 
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liability
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or has expired.  Where an existing financial liability is 
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange 
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognized in the statement of income.

Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase Agreements
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase at a specified future date (‘repos’) are not derecognized from the statement of financial position.  The 
corresponding cash received, including accrued interest, is recognized in the statement of financial position as a loan to the Group, reflecting the economic 
substance of such transaction.

Conversely, securities purchased under agreements to resell at a specified future date (‘reverse repos’) are not recognized in the statement of financial 
position.  The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the securities in the absence of default by the owner of the collateral.  The corresponding cash 
paid, including accrued interest, is recognized on the statement of financial position as ‘Securities held under agreements to resell’, and is considered a loan 
to the counterparty.  The difference between the purchase price and resale price is treated as interest income and is accrued over the life of the agreement 
using the effective interest method.

Reinsurance
The Group cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business.  Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies.  Recoverable 
amounts are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and are in accordance with the reinsurance contract.

An impairment review is performed at each end of the reporting period or more frequently when an indication of impairment arises during the reporting 
year.  Impairment occurs when objective evidence exists that the Group may not recover outstanding amounts under the terms of the contract and when 
the impact on the amounts that the Group will receive from the reinsurer can be measured reliably.  The impairment loss is charged against the statement 
of income.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Group from its obligations to policyholders.

The Group also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for insurance contracts.  Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are 
recognized as income and expenses in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account the 
product classification of the reinsured business.  Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to ceding companies.  Amounts payable are estimated in a 
manner consistent with the associated reinsurance contract.

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished or expired or when the contract is transferred to another 
party.

Deferred Acquisition Cost (DAC)
Commission and other acquisition costs incurred during the financial period that vary with and are related to securing new insurance contracts and/or 
renewing existing insurance contracts, but which relates to subsequent financial periods, are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable out of future 
revenue margins.  All other acquisition costs are recognized as an expense when incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these costs are amortized using the 24th method except for marine cargo where the DAC pertains to the commissions 
for the last two months of the year.  Amortization is charged to the statement of income.  The unamortized acquisition costs are shown as “Deferred 
acquisition costs” in the assets section of the statement of financial position.
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An impairment review is performed at each end of the reporting period or more frequently when an indication of impairment arises.  The carrying value 
is written down to the recoverable amount and the impairment loss is charged to the statement of income.  The DAC is also considered in the liability 
adequacy test for each reporting period.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.  A financial 
asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events 
that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future 
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.  Evidence of impairment may include indications that the 
borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that 
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization, and where observable data indicate that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future 
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets at amortized cost
For financial assets carried at amortized costs such as loans and receivables, HTM investments, due from BSP and other banks, interbank loans receivable, 
securities held under agreements to resell and receivable from SPV, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for 
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying 
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred).  The present value of the 
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR.  If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any 
impairment loss is the current EIR, adjusted for the original credit risk premium.  The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows 
of a collateralized financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not 
foreclosure is probable.

If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the 
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses for impairment.  Those characteristics are relevant to the 
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms 
of the assets being evaluated.  Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are 
not included in a collective assessment for impairment.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of such credit risk characteristics as industry, collateral 
type, past-due status and term.  Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of 
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the Group.  Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current 
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the 
effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently.  Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect, and are directionally consistent 
with changes in related observable data from period to period (such changes in property prices, payment status, or other factors that are indicative of 
incurred losses in the Group and their magnitude).  The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the 
Group to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account and the amount of loss is charged to the statement of income.  Interest 
income continues to be recognized based on the original EIR of the asset.  Loans and receivables, together with the associated allowance accounts, 
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized.  If subsequently, the amount of the estimated 
impairment loss decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reduced by 
adjusting the allowance account.  If a future write-off is later recovered, any amounts formerly charged are credited to the ‘Provision for impairment and 
credit losses’ account.

Restructured loans
Where possible, the Group seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral.  This may involve extending the payment arrangements 
and the agreement of new loan conditions.  Once the terms have been renegotiated, the loan is no longer considered past due.  Management continuously 
reviews restructured loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments are likely to occur.  The loans continue to be subject to an individual 
or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the loan’s original EIR.  The difference between the recorded value of the original loan and the 
present value of the restructured cash flows, discounted at the original EIR, is recognized in ‘Provision for impairment and credit losses’ in the statement 
of income.

AFS investments
For AFS investments, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets 
is impaired.  In case of equity investments classified as AFS investments, this would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the 
investments below its cost.  Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the 
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in the statement of income - is removed from equity and recognized 
in the statement of income.  Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the statement of income.  Increases in fair value after 
impairment are recognized directly in OCI.
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In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS investments, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized 
cost.  Future interest income is based on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued based on the rate of interest used to discount future cash flows for 
the purpose of measuring impairment loss.  Such accrual is recorded as part of ‘Interest income’ in the statement of income.  If subsequently, the fair value 
of a debt instrument increased and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the statement 
of income, the impairment loss is reversed through the statement of income.

Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right 
to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.  This is not 
generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the statement of financial position.

Residual Value of Leased Assets and Deposits on Finance Leases
The residual value of leased assets, which approximates the amount of guaranty deposit paid by the lessee at the inception of the lease, is the estimated 
proceeds from the sale of the leased asset at the end of the lease term.  At the end of the lease term, the residual value of the leased asset is generally 
applied against the guaranty deposit of the lessee when the lessee decides to buy the leased asset.

Financial Guarantees
In the ordinary course of business, the Group gives financial guarantees consisting of letters of credit, letters of guarantees, and acceptances.  Financial 
guarantees are initially recognized in the financial statements at fair value under ‘Other liabilities’.  Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities 
under such guarantees are each measured at the higher of the initial fair value less, when appropriate, cumulative amortization calculated to recognize the 
fee in the statement of income in ‘Service fees and commission income’, over the term of the guarantee, and the best estimate of the expenditure required 
to settle any financial obligation arising as a result of the guarantee.

Any increase in the liability relating to financial guarantees is taken to the statement of income in ‘Provision for impairment and credit losses’.  Any financial 
guarantee liability remaining is recognized in the statement of income in ‘Service fees and commission income’, when the guarantee is discharged, 
cancelled or has expired.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured.  The Group 
assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent.  The Group has concluded that it is 
acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements except for their brokerage transactions.  The following specific recognition criteria must also be met 
before revenue is recognized:

Interest income
For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest-bearing financial instruments classified as HFT and AFS investments, interest income 
is recorded at the EIR, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial 
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.  The calculation takes into account 
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options), includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to 
the instrument and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future credit losses.  The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original EIR.  The 
change in carrying amount is recorded as interest income.  Once the recorded value of a financial asset or group of similar financial assets has been reduced 
due to an impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognized using the original EIR applied to the new carrying amount.

Service fees and commission income
The Group earns fee and commission income from diverse range of services it provides to its customers.  Fee income can be divided into the following two 
categories:

a)	 Fee income earned from services that are provided over a certain period of time
Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period.  These fees include investment fund fees, custodian 
fees, fiduciary fees, commission income, credit-related fees, trust fees, portfolio and other management fees, and advisory fees.  However, loan 
commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together with any incremental costs) and recognized as an adjustment to 
the EIR of the loan.

b)	 Fee income from providing transaction services
Fees arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party - such as the arrangement of the acquisition of 
shares or other securities or the purchase or sale of businesses - are recognized on completion of the underlying transaction.  Fees or components of 
fees that are linked to a certain performance are recognized after fulfilling the corresponding criteria.  These fees include underwriting fees, corporate 
finance fees, remittance fees, brokerage fees, deposit-related and other credit-related fees.  Loan syndication fees are recognized in the statement 
of income when the syndication has been completed and the Group retains no part of the loans for itself or retains part at the same EIR as for the 
other participants.

Commissions earned on credit cards
Commissions earned are taken up as income upon receipt from member establishments of charges arising from credit availments by credit cardholders.  
These commissions are computed based on certain agreed rates and are deducted from amounts remittable to member establishments.
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Purchases by the credit cardholders, collectible on installment basis, are recorded at the cost of the items purchased plus certain percentage of cost.  The 
excess over cost is credited to ‘Unearned and other deferred income’ account and is shown as a deduction from ‘Loans and receivables’ in the statement of 
financial position.  The unearned and other deferred income is taken up to income over the installment terms and is computed using the effective interest 
method.

Commission earned on reinsurance
Reinsurance commissions are recognized as revenue over the period of the contracts.  The portion of the commissions that relates to the unexpired periods 
of the policies at the end of the reporting period is accounted for as ‘Other liabilities’ in the statement of financial position. 

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

Trading and investment securities gains - net
Trading and investment securities gains - net includes results arising from trading activities and all gains and losses from changes in fair value of financial 
assets and financial liabilities at FVPL and gains and losses from disposal of AFS investments.

Rental income
Rental income arising on leased properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms on ongoing leases and is recorded in the statement 
of income under ‘Miscellaneous income’.

Income on direct financing leases and receivables financed
Income of the Group on loans and receivables financed is recognized using the effective interest method.

Unearned discounts included under “Unearned and other deferred income” which are amortized over the term of the note or lease using the effective 
interest method consist of:

Transaction and finance fees on finance leases and loans and receivables financed with long-term maturities; and •	
Excess of the aggregate lease rentals plus the estimated residual value of the leased equipment over its cost.•	

Premiums Revenue
Gross insurance written premiums comprise the total premiums receivable for the whole period cover provided by contracts entered into during the 
accounting period.  Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period for premiums receivable in respect of business written in prior 
periods.  Premiums from short-duration insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the period of the contracts using the 24th method except for 
the marine cargo where the provision for unearned premiums pertains to the premiums for the last two months of the year.  The portion of the premiums 
written that relate to the unexpired periods of the policies at end of reporting period are accounted for as provision for unearned premiums and presented 
as part of ‘Other liabilities’ in the statement of financial position.  The related reinsurance premiums ceded that pertain to the unexpired periods at the end 
of the reporting periods are accounted for as deferred reinsurance premiums shown as part of ‘Other assets’ in the statement of financial position.  The net 
changes in these accounts between end of the reporting periods are credited to or charged against the statement of income for the year.

Other income
Income from sale of services is recognized upon rendition of the service.  Income from sale of properties is recognized upon completion of the earning 
process and the collectibility of the sales price is reasonably assured.

Expenses
Expenses encompass losses as well as those expenses that arise in the course of the ordinary activities of the Group. Expenses are recognized when 
incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and other cash items (COCI), amounts due from BSP and other banks, 
interbank loans receivable and securities held under agreements to resell that are convertible to known amounts of cash, with original maturities of three 
months or less from dates of placements and that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in fair value.

Investments in Subsidiaries and an Associate
Investments in subsidiaries
Subsidiaries pertain to entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding 
of more than one half of the voting rights.  The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered 
when assessing whether the Group controls another entity (see Basis of Consolidation).

Investment in an associate
Associate pertains to an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20.00% 
and 50.00% of the voting rights.  In the consolidated financial statements, investment in an associate is accounted for under the equity method of 
accounting.
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Under the equity method, investment in an associate is carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in 
the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate, less impairment in value, if any.  The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is 
recognized in the consolidated statement of income, and its share of post-acquisition movements in the associates’ equity reserves or other adjustments is 
recognized directly in equity.  When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured 
receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

In the Parent Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries and an associate are carried at cost, less any impairment in value.  

Property and Equipment
Depreciable properties such as leasehold improvements, and furniture, fixture and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
amortization and any impairment in value.

Land is stated at appraised values less any impairment in value while buildings are stated at appraised value less accumulated depreciation and any 
impairment in value. The appraised values were determined by professionally qualified, independent appraisers. The revaluation increment resulting 
from revaluation is credited to the ‘Revaluation increment on land and buildings’ in the statement of comprehensive income, net of applicable deferred 
income tax.

The initial cost of property and equipment consists of its purchase price, including import duties, taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the 
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.  Expenditures incurred after items of property and equipment have been put into operation, 
such as repairs and maintenance are normally charged against operations in the period in which the costs are incurred.  In situations where it can be 
clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item 
of property and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional cost of property and 
equipment.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets.  Leasehold improvements are amortized 
over the shorter of the terms of the covering leases and the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

The estimated useful lives follow:

Years
Buildings 25 - 50
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5
Leasehold improvements 3 - 10

The useful life and the depreciation and amortization method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the period and the method of depreciation and 
amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.  Any gain 
or loss arising from derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is 
included in the statement of income in the year the asset is derecognized.

Investment Properties
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.  An investment property acquired through an exchange transaction is 
measured at fair value of the asset acquired unless the fair value of such an asset cannot be measured in which case the investment property acquired is 
measured at the carrying amount of asset given up.  Any gain or loss on exchange is recognized in the statement of income.  Foreclosed properties are 
classified under ‘Investment properties’ upon: 

entry of judgment in case of judicial foreclosure;a.	
execution of the Sheriff’s Certificate of Sale in case of extra-judicial foreclosure; orb.	
notarization of the Deed of Dacion in case of payment in kind (dacion en pago).c.	

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation (for depreciable investment properties) and 
impairment in value.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis using the remaining useful lives from the time of acquisition of the depreciable investment properties 
ranging from 25 to 50 years.

Investment properties are derecognized when they have either been disposed of or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and 
no future benefit is expected from its disposal.  Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized in the statement 
of income under ‘Net gain on sale or exchange of assets’ in the period of retirement or disposal.

Expenditures incurred after the investment properties have been put into operations, such as repairs and maintenance costs, are normally charged against 
income in the period in which the costs are incurred.
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Transfers are made to investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use evidenced by ending of owner occupation, commencement of 
an operating lease to another party or ending of construction or development.  Transfers are made from investment properties when, and only when, there 
is a change in use evidenced by commencement of owner occupation or commencement of development with a view to sale.

Other Properties Acquired
Other properties acquired include chattel mortgage properties acquired in settlement of loan receivables.  These are carried at cost, which is the fair value 
at recognition date, less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.

The Group applies the cost model in accounting for other properties acquired.  Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 
life of five years.  The estimated useful life and the depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the period and the method of depreciation 
are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of other properties acquired.

The carrying values of other properties acquired are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may 
not be recoverable.  If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to 
their recoverable amounts (see accounting policy on Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets).

Real Estate Under Joint Venture (JV) Agreement
The Group is a party to jointly controlled operations whereby it contributed parcels of land for development into residential and commercial units.  In 
respect of the Groups’s interest in the jointly controlled operations, the Group recognizes the following:  (a) the assets that it controls and the liabilities that 
it incurs; and (b) the expenses that it incurs and its share of the income that it earns from the sale of goods and services by the JV.  The assets contributed 
to the JV are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value.  Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Intangible Assets
Exchange trading right
The exchange trading right, included in ‘Other assets’, was acquired, together with Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) shares, in exchange for the exchange 
membership seat under the conversion program of the PSE.  The exchange trading right is carried at the amount allocated from the original cost of the 
exchange membership seat (after a corresponding allocation for the value of the PSE shares) less allowance for impairment losses, if any.  The Group does 
not intend to sell the exchange trading right in the near future.

The exchange trading right is deemed to have an indefinite useful life as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to 
generate net cash inflows for the Group.  It is tested annually for any impairment in realizable value.  Any impairment loss is charged directly against the 
statement of income (see accounting policy on Nonfinancial Assets).

Software costs
Software costs, included in ‘Other assets’, are capitalized on the basis of the cost incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.  These costs are 
amortized over five years on a straight-line basis.  The estimated useful life and the depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the period 
and the method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of other properties acquired.

Costs associated with maintaining the computer software programs are recognized as expense when incurred.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
Property and equipment, investment properties, other properties acquired, exchange trading right and software costs
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that its property and equipment, investment properties, other properties 
acquired and software costs with finite useful lives may be impaired.  When an indicator of impairment exists or when an annual impairment testing for an 
asset is required, the Group makes a formal estimate of recoverable amount.  Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and 
its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is assessed as part of the cash generating unit to which it belongs.

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.  
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

An impairment loss is charged against operations in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the 
impairment loss is charged to the revaluation increment of the said asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist 
or may have decreased.  If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.  A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there 
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.  If that is the case, 
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount.  That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.  Such reversal is recognized 
in the statement of income unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.  After such a 
reversal, the depreciation and amortization expense is adjusted in future period to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on 
a systematic basis over its remaining life.
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Exchange trading right which has an indefinite useful life is tested for impairment annually at year end either individually or at the cash generating unit 
level, as appropriate.

Investment in subsidiaries and associates
The Parent Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that its investments in subsidiaries and associates may be impaired.  
If any indication exists, the Parent Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.  An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash 
generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.  Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the 
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of 
whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.  A 
reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

There is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;(a)	
A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or extension was initially included in the lease term;(b)	
There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset; or(c)	
There is a substantial change to the asset.(d)	

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment 
for scenarios (a), (c) or (d) above, and at the date of renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

Group as lessee
Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the 
inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments and included in ‘Property 
and equipment’ account with the corresponding liability to the lessor included in ‘Other liabilities’ account.  Lease payments are apportioned between the 
finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.  Finance charges 
are charged directly to ‘Interest expense’.

Capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets or the respective lease terms, if there is no reasonable 
certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases.  Operating lease payments 
are recognized as an expense in the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as lessor
Finance leases, where the Group transfers substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item to the lessee, are included in 
the statement of financial position under ‘Loans and receivables’ account.  A lease receivable is recognized at an amount equivalent to the net investment 
(asset cost) in the lease.  All income resulting from the receivable is included in ‘Interest income’ in the statement of income.

Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the assets are classified as operating leases.  Lease 
payments received are recognized as an income in the statement of income on a straight line basis over the lease term.  Initial direct costs incurred in 
negotiating operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as the rental 
income.  Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Insurance Contract Liabilities
Provision for Unearned Premiums
The proportion of written premiums, gross of commissions payable to intermediaries, attributable to subsequent periods or to risks that have not yet 
expired is deferred as provision for unearned premiums.  Premiums from short-duration insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the period of 
the contracts using the 24th method except for the marine cargo where the provision for unearned premiums pertains to the premiums for the last two 
months of the year.  The portion of the premiums written that relate to the unexpired periods of the policies at the end of reporting period are accounted 
for as provision for unearned premiums and presented as part of ‘Insurance contract liabilities’ in the liabilities section of the statement of financial position.  
The change in the provision for unearned premiums is taken to the statement of income in the order that revenue is recognized over the period of risk.  
Further provisions are made to cover claims under unexpired insurance contracts which may exceed the unearned premiums and the premiums due in 
respect of these contracts.

Claims Provision and Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) Losses
Outstanding claims provisions are based on the estimated ultimate cost to all claims incurred but not settled at the end of the reporting period, whether 
reported or not, together with related claims handling costs and reduction for the  expected value of salvage and other recoveries.  Delays can be 
experienced in the notification  and settlement of certain types of claims, therefore the ultimate cost of which cannot be known with certainty at the 
end of the reporting period.  The liability is not discounted for the time value of money and includes provision for IBNR.  No provision for equalization or 
catastrophic reserves is recognized.  The liabilityis derecognized when the contract has expired, is discharged or cancelled.
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Liability Adequacy Test
At each end of the reporting period, liability adequacy tests are performed, to ensure the adequacy of insurance contract liabilities, net of related (DAC) 
assets.  In performing the test, current best estimates of future cash flows, claims handling and policy administration expenses, as well as investment 
income from assets backing such liabilities, are used.  Changes in expected claims that have occurred, but which have not been settled, are reflected by 
adjusting the liability for claims and future benefits.  Any inadequacy is immediately charged to the statement of income by establishing an unexpired risk 
provision for losses arising from the liability adequacy tests.  The provision for unearned premiums is increased to the extent that the future claims and 
expenses in respect of current insurance contracts exceed future premiums plus the current provision for unearned premiums.

Retirement Benefits
The Group has a noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan.

The retirement cost of the Parent Company and certain subsidiaries is determined using the projected unit credit method.  Under this method, the current 
service cost is the present value of retirement benefits payable in the future with respect to services rendered in the current period.  The liability recognized 
in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit retirement plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting 
date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs.  The defined benefit 
obligation is calculated annually by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.  The present value of the defined benefit obligation 
is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rate on government bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the 
terms of the related retirement liability.  Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are credited 
to or charged against income when the net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses at the end of the previous period exceeded 10% of the 
higher of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at that date.  These excess gains or losses are recognized over the expected average 
remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plan.

Past-service costs, if any, are recognized immediately in the statement of income, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional on the employees 
remaining in service for a specified period of time (the vesting period).  In this case, the past-service costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the 
vesting period.

The defined benefit asset or liability comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligation less past service costs not yet recognized and less the fair 
value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly.  The measurement of a defined benefit asset is limited to the present value of 
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan plus unrecognized gains and losses.  The 
economic benefit available as a refund is measured as the amount of the surplus at the reporting date that the Parent Company and certain subsidiaries 
have a right to receive as a refund, less any associated costs.  If there is no minimum funding requirement, the economic benefit available as a reduction 
in future contributions is measured as the lower of:

the surplus in the plan; anda)	
the present value of the future service cost, i.e., excluding any part of the future cost that will be borne by employees, for each year over the shorter b)	
of the expected life of the plan and the expected life of the entity. 

Under the terms of the Parent Company’s and certain subsidiaries’ retirement plans, there are no minimum funding requirements.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of 
assets embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  When 
the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate 
asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.  The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of income, net of any 
reimbursement.  If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.  When discounting is 
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.

Related Party Relationships and Transactions
Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the other party or 
exercises significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.  Such relationship also exists between and/or among entities 
which are under common control with the reporting enterprise, or between, and/or among the reporting enterprise and its key management personnel, 
directors, or its shareholders.  In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not 
merely the legal form.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of assets embodying economic 
benefits is remote.  Contingent assets are not recognized but are disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Income Taxes
Income tax on profit and loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax.  Income tax is determined in accordance with tax laws.  Income tax is 
recognized in the statement of income, except to the extent that it relates to items directly recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.
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Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.  The 
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, including asset revaluations.  Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible 
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits from the excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income 
tax (RCIT), and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable income will be available against which 
the deductible temporary differences and carryforward of unused tax credits from MCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized.  Deferred tax, however, is not 
recognized on temporary differences that arise from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at 
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting income nor taxable income.

Deferred tax liabilities are not provided on non-taxable temporary differences associated with investments in domestic subsidiaries and an associate.  With 
respect to investments in foreign subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax liabilities are recognized except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary 
difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.  Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each 
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable income will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are applicable to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based 
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognized directly in OCI are also recognized in OCI and not in the statement of income.

In the consolidated financial statements, deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and deferred taxes related to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Parent Company Shares Held by a Subsidiary
Own equity instruments which are acquired by subsidiaries (treasury shares) are deducted from equity and accounted for at weighted average cost.  No gain 
or loss is recognized in the statement of income on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Parent Company’s own equity instruments.

Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing net income for the period attributable to common shareholders by the weighted average number 
of common shares outstanding during the period after giving retroactive effect to stock dividends declared and stock rights exercised during the period, 
if any.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the aggregate of net income attributable to common shareholders and convertible preferred shareholders by the 
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period adjusted for the effects of any dilutive convertible preferred shares.

Dividends on Common Shares
Dividends on common shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when approved by the respective BOD of the Parent Company and 
subsidiaries.  Dividends for the period that are approved after the reporting date are dealt with as an event after the reporting date.

Debt Issue Costs
Issuance, underwriting and other related expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of debt instruments (other than debt instruments designated 
at FVPL) are deferred and amortized over the terms of the instruments using the effective interest method.  Unamortized debt issuance costs are included 
in the measurement of the related carrying value of the debt instruments in the statement of financial position.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the year in which these costs are incurred.  Borrowing costs consists of interest expense calculated using the 
effective interest method calculated in accordance with PAS 39 that the Group incurs in connection with borrowing of funds.

Events after the Reporting date
Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Group’s position at the reporting date (adjusting event) is reflected in the financial 
statements.  Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when material to the financial statements.

Segment Reporting
The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of the products and services provided, with each segment 
representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets.  Refer to Note 6 for detailed disclosure on segment 
information.
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Fiduciary Activities
Assets and income arising from fiduciary activities together with related undertakings to return such assets to customers are excluded from the financial 
statements where the Parent Company acts in a fiduciary capacity such as nominee, trustee or agent.

Equity
Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued and outstanding.  When the shares are sold at a premium, the difference between the proceeds 
and the par value is credited to ‘Capital paid-in excess of par value’ account.  Direct costs incurred related to equity issuance, such as underwriting, 
accounting and legal fees, printing costs and taxes are chargeable to ‘Capital paid-in excess of par value’ account.  If the ‘Capital paid-in excess of par 
value’ is not sufficient, the excess is charged against the ‘Surplus’.

‘Surplus (Deficit)’ represents accumulated earnings (losses) of the Group less dividends declared.

Equity Reserves
The reserves recorded in equity in the statement of financial position include:

‘Net unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale investments’ reserve which comprises changes in fair value of AFS investments.

‘Accumulated translation adjustment’ which is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the FCDU accounts and foreign 
operations.

‘Revaluation increment on land and building’ which comprises changes in fair value of property and equipment.

Future Changes in Accounting Policies

The Group will adopt the following standards and interpretations enumerated below when these become effective.  Except as otherwise indicated, 
the Group does not expect the adoption of these new and amended PFRS, PAS and Philippine Interpretations to have significant impact on its financial 
statements.

New Standards and Interpretations

PAS 1, Financial Statement Presentation - Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
The amendments to PAS 1 change the grouping of items presented in OCI.  Items that could be reclassified (or ”recycled”) to profit or loss at a future point 
in time (for example, upon derecognition or settlement) would be presented separately from items that will never be reclassified.  The amendment affects 
presentation only and therefore has no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.  The amendment becomes effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after July 1, 2012.

PAS 12, Income Taxes - Recovery of Underlying Assets
The amendment clarified the determination of deferred tax on investment property measured at fair value.  The amendment introduces a rebuttable 
presumption that deferred tax on investment property measured using the fair value model in PAS 40 should be determined on the basis that its carrying 
amount will be recovered through sale.  Furthermore, it introduces the requirement that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets that are measured using 
the revaluation model in PAS 16 always be measured on a sale basis of the asset.  The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2012.

PAS 19, Employee Benefits (Amendment)
Amendments to PAS 19 range from fundamental changes such as removing the corridor mechanism and the concept of expected returns on plan assets 
to simple clarifications and re-wording.  The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendment to PAS 19.  The amendment becomes effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011)
As a consequence of the new PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statement and PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, what remains of PAS 27 is 
limited to accounting for subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities, and associates in separate financial statements.  The amendment becomes effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011)
As a consequence of the new PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements and PFRS 12, PAS 28 has been renamed PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, 
and describes the application of the equity method to investments in joint ventures in addition to associates.  The amendment becomes effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
These amendments to PAS 32 clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off” and also clarify the application of the PAS 32 
offsetting criteria to settlement systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous.  
While the amendment is expected not to have any impact on the net assets of the Group, any changes in offsetting is expected to impact leverage ratios 
and regulatory capital requirements.  The amendments to PAS 32 are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.  
The Group is currently assessing impact of the amendments to PAS 32.  
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PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Enhanced Derecognition Disclosure Requirements
The amendment requires additional disclosure about financial assets that have been transferred but not derecognized to enable the user of the Group’s 
financial statements to understand the relationship with those assets that have not been derecognized and their associated liabilities.  In addition, the 
amendment requires disclosures about continuing involvement in derecognized assets to enable the user to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated 
with, the entity’s continuing involvement in those derecognized assets.  The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after  
July 1, 2011.  The amendment affects disclosures only and has no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

PFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
These amendments require an entity to disclose information about rights of set-off and related arrangements (such as collateral agreements).  The new 
disclosures are required for all recognized financial instruments that are set off in accordance with PAS 32.  These disclosures also apply to recognized 
financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or ‘similar agreement’, irrespective of whether they are set-off in 
accordance with PAS 32.  The amendments require entities to disclose, in a tabular format unless another format is more appropriate, the following 
minimum quantitative information. This is presented separately for financial assets and financial liabilities recognized at the end of the reporting period:

The gross amounts of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial liabilities;a.	
The amounts that are set off in accordance with the criteria in PAS 32 when determining the net amounts presented in the statement of financial b.	
position;
The net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;c.	
The amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that are not otherwise included in (b) above, including:d.	
i. 	 Amounts related to recognized financial instruments that do not meet some or all of the offsetting criteria in PAS 32; and
ii. 	 Amounts related to financial collateral (including cash collateral); and
The net amount after deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounts in (c) above.e.	

The amendments to PFRS 7 are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.  The amendment affects disclosures 
only and has no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement
PFRS 9 as issued reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39 and applies to classification and measurement of financial assets and financial 
liabilities as defined in PAS 39.  The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015.  In subsequent phases, hedge accounting 
and impairment of financial assets will be addressed with the completion of this project expected on the first half of 2012.  The adoption of the first phase 
of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets, but will potentially have no impact on classification and 
measurements of financial liabilities.

PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements
PFRS 10 replaces the portion of PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements. 
It also includes the issues raised in SIC-12, Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities.  PFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities 
including special purpose entities.  The changes introduced by PFRS 10 will require management to exercise significant judgment in determining which 
entities are controlled, and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent, compared with the requirements that were in PAS 27.  This standard 
becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements
PFRS 11 replaces PAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-13, Jointly-controlled Entities -  Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers.  PFRS 11 removes 
the option to account for jointly controlled entities (JCEs) using proportionate consolidation.  Instead, JCEs that meet the definition of a joint venture must 
be accounted for using the equity method.  This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests with Other Entities
PFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures that were previously in PAS 27 related to consolidated financial statements, as well as all of the disclosures that were 
previously included in PAS 31 and PAS 28.  These disclosures relate to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured 
entities.  A number of new disclosures are also required.  This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement
PFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under PFRS for all fair value measurements. PFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair 
value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under PFRS when fair value is required or permitted.  The Group is currently assessing the 
impact that this standard will have on the financial position and performance.  This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after  
January 1, 2013.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that undertake the construction of real estate directly or through 
subcontractors. The interpretation requires that revenue on construction of real estate be recognized only upon completion, except when such contract 
qualifies as construction contract to be accounted for under PAS 11, Construction Contracts, or involves rendering of services in which case revenue is 
recognized based on stage of completion. Contracts involving provision of services with the construction materials and where the risks and reward of 
ownership are transferred to the buyer on a continuous basis will also be accounted for based on stage of completion.  The SEC and the Financial Reporting 
Standards Council have deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued by International Accounting Standards Board 
and an evaluation of the requirements of the final Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is completed.
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Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 20, Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
This interpretation applies to waste removal costs that are incurred in surface mining activity during the production phase of the mine (“production 
stripping costs”) and provides guidance on the recognition of production stripping costs as an asset and measurement of the stripping activity asset.  This 
interpretation becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates3.	

The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires the Group to make judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities.  Future events may occur which will cause the 
assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change.  The effects of any change in estimates are reflected in the financial statements as they become 
reasonably determinable.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that 
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Judgments
Leases(a)	

Operating lease
Group as lessor
The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment properties and certain motor vehicles and items of machinery.  The Group 
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the lease agreements (i.e., the lease does not transfer ownership of the asset 
to the lessee by the end of the lease term, the lessee has no option to purchase the asset at a price that is expected to be sufficiently lower than the 
fair value at the date the option is exercisable and the lease term is not for the major part of the asset’s economic life), that it retains all the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and so accounts for these leases as operating leases.

Group as lessee
The Group has entered into lease on premises it uses for its operations.  The Group has determined, based on the evaluation of the terms and 
conditions of the lease agreement (i.e., the lease does not transfer ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term and lease term is 
not for the major part of the asset’s economic life), that the lessor retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties. 

Finance leases
The Group has entered into lease arrangements on real estate, various machineries and other types of equipment.  The Group has determined that it 
transfers all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and so accounts for these leases as finance lease.

Fair value of financial instruments(b)	
Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position cannot be derived from active markets, 
they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models (see Note 5).  The input to these models 
is taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.  The 
judgments include considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as correlation and volatility for longer dated derivatives.

HTM investments(c)	
The classification to HTM investment requires significant judgment.  In making this judgment, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such 
investments to maturity.  If the Group fails to hold these investments to maturity other than in certain specific circumstances - for example, selling an 
insignificant amount close to maturity - it will be required to reclassify the entire portfolio as ‘AFS investments’.  The investments would therefore be 
measured at fair value and not at amortized cost (see Note 10).

Financial assets not quoted in an active market(d)	
The Group classifies financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset is quoted or not in an active market.  Included in the evaluation on 
whether a financial asset is quoted in an active market is the determination on whether quoted prices are readily and regularly available, and whether 
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Embedded derivatives(e)	
Except as discussed in Note 10, where a hybrid instrument is not classified as financial assets at FVPL, the Group evaluates whether the embedded 
derivative should be bifurcated and accounted for separately.  This includes assessing whether the embedded derivative has a close economic 
relationship to the host contract.

(f)	 Contingencies
The Group is currently involved in legal proceedings.  The estimate of the probable cost for the resolution of claims has been developed in consultation 
with the aid of the outside legal counsels handling the Group’s defense in these matters and is based upon an analysis of potential results.  Management 
does not believe that the outcome of these matters will affect the results of operations.  It is probable, however, that future results of operations could 
be materially affected by changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness of the strategies relating to the proceedings (see Note 32).

66 TODAY, WE START ON YOUR TOMORROW



(g)	 Functional currency
PAS 21 requires management to use its judgment to determine the entity’s functional currency such that it most faithfully represents the economic 
effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions that are relevant to the entity.  In making this judgment, the Group considers the 
following:

the currency that mainly influences prices for financial instruments and services (this will often be the currency in which prices for its financial a)	
instruments and services are denominated and settled);
the currency in which funds from financing activities are generated; andb)	
the currency in which receipts from operating activities are usually retained.c)	

	 Estimates
(a)	 Credit losses on loans and receivables and receivables from SPV

The Group reviews its impaired loans and receivables at each reporting date to assess whether additional provision for credit losses should be recorded 
in the statement of income.  In particular, judgment by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows 
when determining the level of required allowance.  Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, 
resulting in future changes to the allowance.

In addition to specific allowance against individually significant loans and receivables, the Group also makes a collective impairment allowance against 
exposures which, although not specifically identified as requiring a specific allowance, have a greater risk of default than when originally granted.  This 
collective allowance takes into consideration any deterioration in the loan or investment rating from the time the account was granted or amended, 
and such other factors as any deterioration in country risk, industry, and technological obsolescence, as well as identified structural weaknesses or 
deterioration in cash flows and underlying property prices, among others.

Refer to Notes 8 and 9 for the carrying values of loans and receivables and receivable from SPVs, respectively. 

(b)	 Fair values of structured debt instruments and derivatives
The fair values of structured debt instruments and derivatives that are not quoted in active markets are determined using valuation techniques.  
Where valuation techniques are used to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel independent of 
the area that created them.  All models are reviewed before they are used, and models are calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual data and 
comparative market prices.

To the extent practicable, models use only observable data, however, areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations 
require management to make estimates.  Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect reported fair value of financial instruments.  Refer 
to Notes 5 and 22 for information on the fair values of these instruments.

(c)	 Valuation of unquoted AFS equity investments
The Group’s investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably 
measured are carried at cost.  As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, unquoted AFS equity securities amounted to P161.9 million and P337.9 million 
for the Group, and P161.9 million and P357.1 million for the Parent Company (see Note 10).

(d)	 Impairment of AFS debt investments
The Group reviews its debt investments classified as AFS investments at each reporting date to assess whether they are impaired.  This requires similar 
judgment as applied to the individual assessment of loans and receivables.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, no allowance for impairment losses was provided on AFS debt investments.  Refer to Note 10 for the carrying 
value of AFS debt securities. 

(e)	 Impairment of AFS equity investments
The Group treats AFS equity investments as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or 
where other objective evidence of impairment exists.  The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’  requires judgment.  The Group treats 
‘significant’ generally as 20.00% or more and ‘prolonged’ greater than 12 months.  In addition, the Group evaluates other factors, including normal 
volatility in share price for quoted equities and the future cash flows and the discount factors for unquoted equities.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, allowance for impairment losses of AFS equity investments amounted to P927.5 million and P697.1 million, 
respectively, for the Group and P927.5 million and P677.6 million, respectively, for the Parent Company.  Refer to Note 10 for the information on the 
carrying amounts of these investments.

(f)	 Recognition of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses and temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be 
available against which the losses can be utilized.  Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that 
can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable income together with future tax planning strategies.
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The Group’s estimates of future taxable income indicate that certain temporary differences will be realized in the future.  As discussed in Note 28, 
recognized net deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 amounted to P1.8 billion for the Group and  P1.7 billion for the Parent 
Company.  Refer to Note 28 for deferred tax assets not recognized since the Group believes that it is not probable that the related tax benefits will 
be realized in the future.

(g)	 Present value of retirement obligation
The cost of defined benefit pension plan and other post employment benefits is determined using actuarial valuations.  The actuarial valuation 
involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension 
increases.  Due to the long term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the present value of the defined benefit obligation of the Parent Company amounted to P2.8 billion and 
P1.8 billion, respectively (see Note 26).

(h)	 Revaluation of property and equipment
The Group measures the land and buildings under property and equipment at revalued amounts with changes in fair value being recognized in the 
statement of comprehensive income.  The Group engaged independent valuation specialists to determine the fair value of land and buildings as of 
December 31, 2010.  The Group believes that the fair values as of December 31, 2011 approximates the fair value as of December 31, 2010.  Refer 
to Note 11 for the carrying values of property and equipment.

(i)	 Impairment of nonfinancial assets
Property and equipment, investment in subsidiaries and associates, investment properties, other properties acquired, exchange trading right and 
software costs 
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell 
and its value in use. The fair value less costs to sell calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction 
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.  The value in use calculation is based on a discounted 
cash flow model.  The Group assesses impairment on assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an 
asset may not be recoverable.  The factors that the Group considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:

significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;•	
significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall business; and•	
significant negative industry or economic trends.•	

The Group uses fair value less cost to sell in determining recoverable amount.

Refer to Notes 11, 12, 13 and 14 for the carrying values and allowance for impairment loss of property and equipment, investment in subsidiaries and 
associates, investment properties, other properties acquired and software costs, respectively. 

(j)	 Estimated useful lives of property and equipment. investment properties and software cost
The Group estimates the useful lives of its property and equipment, investment properties and software cost. This estimate is reviewed periodically 
to ensure that the period of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from the items of property 
and equipment, investment properties and software cost.

Refer to Note 2 for the estimated useful lives of property and equipment, investment properties and software costs.

Refer to Notes 11, 13 and 14 for the carrying values of property and equipment, investment properties and software cost, respectively.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies4.	

Introduction
The Group’s activities are principally related to the development, delivery, servicing and use of financial instruments.  Risk is inherent in these activities but 
it is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls.  This process of risk 
management is critical to the Group’s continuing profitability. 

The Parent Company monitors its processes associated with the following overall risk categories:

Credit Risk•	
Market Risk•	
Liquidity Risk•	
Operational Risk•	
Information Security and Technology Risk•	
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Further, the Parent Company is also cognizant of the need to address various other risks through the primary divisions presented above.  The following are 
also taken into consideration as part of the overall Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework:

Counterparty Risk•	
Business Risk•	
Strategic Risk•	
Compliance Risk•	
Legal Risk•	
Reputational Risk•	
Concentration Risk•	
Country Risk•	
Risks arising from the Parent Company’s shareholdings and equity interests•	

Managing the level of these risks as provided for by the Parent Company’s ERM framework is critical to its continuing profitability.  The Risk Management 
Committee (RMC) of the Parent Company’s BOD determines the risk policy and approves the principles of risk management, establishment of limits for all 
relevant risks, and the risk control procedures.  The RMC of the Parent Company is also responsible for the risk management of the Group.

The RMG provides the legwork for the RMC in its role of formulating the risk management strategy, the management of regulatory capital, the development 
and maintenance of the internal risk management framework, and the definition of the governing risk management principles.  The mandate of the RMG 
involves:

Implement the risk management framework of identifying, measuring, controlling and monitoring the various risk taking activities of the Group, •	
inherent in all financial institutions;
Provide services to the risk-taking units and personnel in the implementation of risk mitigation strategies; and•	
Establish recommended limits based on the results of its analysis of exposures.•	

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the non-recovery of credit exposures (on-and-off balance sheet exposures).  Managing credit risk also involves monitoring of migration risk, 
concentration risk, country risk and settlement risk.  The Group manages its credit risk at various levels (i.e., strategic level, portfolio level down to individual 
transaction).

The credit risk management of the entire loan portfolio is under the direct oversight of the RMC and Executive Committee.  Credit risk assessment of 
individual borrower is performed by the business sector and remedial sector.  Risk management is embedded in the entire credit process, i.e., from credit 
origination to remedial management (if needed).

Among the tools used by the Parent Company in identifying, assessing and managing credit risk include:

Documented credit policies and procedures: sound credit granting process, risk asset acceptance criteria, target market and approving authorities;•	
System for administration and monitoring of exposure;•	
Pre-approval review of loan proposals;•	
Post approval review of implemented loans;•	
Work out system for managing problem credits;•	
Regular review of the sufficiency of valuation reserves;•	
Monitoring of the adequacy of capital for credit risk via the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) report;•	
Monitoring of breaches in regulatory and internal limits;•	
Credit Risk Management Dashboard;•	
Diversification; •	
Internal Risk Rating System for corporate accounts;•	
Credit Scoring for retail accounts; and•	
Active loan portfolio management undertaken to determine the quality of the loan portfolio and identify the following:•	

portfolio growtha.	
movement of loan portfolio (cash releases and cash collection for the month)b.	
loss ratec.	
recovery rated.	
trend of nonperforming loans (NPLs)e.	
concentration risk (per classified account, per industry, clean exposure, large exposure, contingent exposure, currency, security, facility, f.	
demographic, etc)

Continuous changes have been made in the policies, procedures, system and quality of people.  The Parent Company has moved one step further by 
collecting data on risk rating of loan borrowers with an asset size of P15.0 million and above as initial requirement in the Parent Company’s model for 
internal Probability of Default (PD) and Loss Given Default (LGD).
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Credit-related commitments
The exposures represent guarantees, standby letters of credit (LCs) issued by the Parent Company and documentary/commercial LCs which are written 
undertakings by the Parent Company.  To mitigate this risk the Parent Company requires hard collaterals, as discussed under Collateral and other credit 
enhancement, for standby LCs lines while commercial LCs are collateralized by the underlying shipments of goods to which they relate.

Derivative financial instruments
Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with positive fair values, as recorded in the statement of financial 
position.

Collateral and other credit enhancement
As a general rule, character is the single most important consideration in granting loans.  However, collaterals are requested to mitigate risk.  The loan 
value and type of collateral required depend on the assessment of the credit risk of the borrower or counterparty.  The Group follows guidelines on the 
acceptability of types of collateral and valuation parameters.

The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

For corporate accounts - cash, guarantees, securities, physical collaterals (e.g., real estate, chattels, inventory, etc.); as a general rule, commercial, •	
industrial and residential lots are preferred
For retail lending - mortgages on residential properties and vehicles financed•	

The disposal of the foreclosed properties is handled by the Asset Management Sector which adheres to the general policy of disposing assets at the highest 
possible market value.

Management regularly monitors the market value of the collateral and requests additional collateral in accordance with the underlying agreement.  The 
existing market value of the collateral is considered during the review of the adequacy of the allowance for credit losses. Generally, collateral is not held 
over loans and advances to banks except for reverse repurchase agreements.  The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral in the absence 
of default by the owner of the collateral.

Credit risk exposures
The table below shows the maximum exposure for loans and receivable as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 (amounts in millions) to credit risk:

Consolidated
2011 2010

Maximum Exposure Maximum Exposure

Before 
Collateral

After Financial 
Effect of 

Collateral or 
Credit 

Enhancement
Before 

Collateral

After Financial 
Effect of 

Collateral or 
Credit 

Enhancement
Securities Held Under Agreements to Resell P18,300 P– P6,800 P–
Loans and receivables:
	 Receivable from customers*:
		  Business loans 67,327 42,824 57,614 43,130
		  GOCCs and National Government Agencies (NGAs) 27,774 27,753 17,080 14,117
		  LGUs 5,900 4,794 6,352 5,113
		  Consumers 7,522 2,356 7,546 1,447
		  Fringe benefits 697 178 729 137
	 Unquoted debt securities 4,589 1,662 7,626 4,317
	 Other receivable 12,440 9,288 13,368 10,000

P144,549 P88,855 P117,115 P78,261
*The Group follows the BOD approved policy on the generic classification of loans based on the type of borrowers and the purpose of the loan.
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Parent Company
2011 2010

Maximum Exposure Maximum Exposure

Before 
Collateral

After Financial 
Effect of 

Collateral or 
Credit 

Enhancement
Before 

Collateral

After Financial 
Effect of 

Collateral or 
Credit 

Enhancement
Securities Held Under Agreements to Resell P18,300 P– P6,800 P–
Loans and receivables:
	 Receivable from customers*:
		  Business loans 65,641 41,146 56,801 42,317
		  GOCCs and National Government Agencies (NGAs) 27,774 27,753 17,080 14,117
		  LGUs 5,900 4,794 6,352 5,113
		  Consumers 7,418 2,337 6,675 576
		  Fringe benefits 687 168 716 124
	 Unquoted debt securities 4,589 1,662 7,626 4,317
	 Other receivable 10,644 7,492 11,292 7,924

P140,953 P85,352 P113,342 P74,488
*The Group follows the BOD approved policy on the generic classification of loans based on the type of borrowers and the purpose of the loan.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, fair value of collateral held for loans and receivables amounted to P191.0 billion and P114.2 billion, respectively, for 
the Group and P190.7 billion and P114.2 billion, respectively, for the Parent Company.

The maximum exposure to credit risks for the other financial assets is limited to the carrying value as of December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Excessive risk concentration
Credit risk concentrations can arise whenever a significant number of borrowers have similar characteristics.  The Parent Company analyzes the credit 
risk concentration to an individual borrower, related group of accounts, industry, geographic, internal rating buckets, currency, term and security.  For risk 
concentration monitoring purposes, the financial assets are broadly categorized into (1) loans and receivables and (2) trading and financial investment 
securities.  To mitigate risk concentration, the Parent Company constantly checks for breaches in regulatory and internal limits.  Clear escalation process 
and override procedures are in place, whereby any excess in limits are covered by appropriate approving authority to regularize and monitor breaches in 
limits.

a.	 Limit per Client or Counterparty
	 For loans and receivables, the Parent Company sets an internal limit for each individual borrower up to 5.00% of the qualifying capital (see Note 24).  

The limit to group exposure is 100.00% of the single borrower’s limit (SBL) for loan accounts with credit risk rating (CRR) 1 to CRR 5 or 50.00% of 
SBL if rated below CRR 5.

For trading and investment securities, the Group limits investments to government issues and securities issued by entities with high-quality investment 
ratings.

b.	 Geographic Concentration
	 The table below shows the credit risk exposures, before taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements, categorized by 

geographic location (in millions):

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Philippines P246,095 P213,795 P241,797 P210,619
USA and Canada 13,430 15,209 11,026 12,789
Asia (excluding the Philippines) 4,124 3,803 3,551 3,386
United Kingdom 2,972 8,918 2,678 7,924
Other European Union Countries 829 8,636 727 8,522
Middle East 6 1,360 6 1,360

P267,456 P251,721 P259,785 P244,600
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Concentration by Industryc.	
The tables below show the industry sector analysis of the Group’s and Parent Company’s financial assets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 at 
amounts before taking into account the fair value of the loan collateral held or other credit enhancements (amounts in millions).

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Loans and Receivables
Receivable from customers:
	 Primary target industry: 
		  Public administration and defense P21,526 P7,951 P21,526 P7,668
		  Wholesale and retail 20,490 23,368 20,260 23,165
		  Transport, storage and communication 16,574 11,397 16,026 12,991
		  Electricity, gas and water 14,504 12,991 14,504 11,397
		  Manufacturing 11,153 10,613 10,572 9,960
		  Financial intermediaries 5,550 3,986 5,519 3,857
		  Agriculture, hunting and forestry 2,564 3,194 2,496 3,153
	 Secondary target industry:
		  Real estate, renting and business activities 7,088 7,160 7,073 6,347
		  Construction 1,158 786 988 786
		  Others* 8,613 7,875 8,456 8,300
Unquoted debt securities:
	 Government 3,799 6,623 3,799 6,623
	 Financial intermediaries 400 329 400 329
	 Manufacturing 390 674 390 674

4,589 7,626 4,589 7,626
Other receivables 12,440 13,368 10,644 11,292

126,249 110,315 122,653 106,542
Trading and Financial Investment Securities
Government 44,896 69,907 43,494 68,708
Financial intermediaries 9,456 16,920 9,422 16,858
Others 2,021 1,742 1,559 1,312
Electricity, gas and water 1,632 26 1,632 26
Real estate, renting and business activities 1,154 – 1,154 –
Manufacturing 41 59 41 56

59,200 88,654 57,302 86,960
Other Financial Assets**
Financial intermediaries 79,974 32,421 77,797 35,322
Government – 20,331 – 15,776
Others 2,033 – 2,033 –

82,007 52,752 79,830 51,098
P267,456 P251,721 P259,785 P244,600

*	 Others include the following sectors - Other community, social and personal services, private household, hotel and restaurant, education, mining and quarrying, 

and health and social work.

**	 Other financial assets include the following financial assets: ‘Due from BSP’, ‘Due from other bank’, ‘Interbank loans receivable’, ‘Securities held under agreements 

to resell’, ‘Receivable from SPV’, ‘Miscellaneous COCI’ and ‘Commitments’.

The internal limit of the Parent Company based on the Philippine Standard Industry Classification (PSIC) sub-industry is 12.00% for priority industry, 8.00% 
for regular industry and 30.00% for power industry, versus total loan portfolio.

Credit quality per class of financial assets
The credit quality of financial assets is assessed and managed using external and internal ratings.  For receivable from customers classified as business 
loans, the credit quality is generally monitored using the 14-grade Credit Risk Rating (CRR) System which is integrated in the credit process particularly 
in loan pricing and allocation of valuation reserves.  The model on risk ratings is assessed and updated regularly.Validation of the individual internal risk 
rating is conducted by the Pre-Approval Review Unit of Credit Policies Division to maintain accurate and consistent risk ratings across the credit portfolio.  
The rating system has two parts, namely, the borrower’s rating and the facility rating.  It is supported by a variety of financial analytics, combined with an 
assessment of management and market information such as industry outlook and market competition to provide the main inputs for the measurement of 
credit or counterparty risk.

The CRRs of the Parent Company’s Receivables from customers classified as business loans are defined below:

CRR 1 - Excellent
Loans receivables rated as excellent include borrowers which are significant in size, with long and successful history of operations, an industry leader, with 
ready access to all equity and debt markets and have proven its strong debt service capacity.
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CRR 2 - Super Prime
Loans receivables rated as super prime include borrowers whose ability to service all debt and meet financial obligations remains unquestioned.

CRR 3 - Prime
Under normal economic conditions, borrowers in this rating have good access to public market to raise funds and face no major uncertainties which could 
impair repayment.

CRR 4 - Very Good
Loans receivables rated as very good include borrowers whose ability to service all debts and meet financial obligations remain unquestioned, but current 
adverse economic conditions or changing circumstances have minimal impact on payment of obligations.

CRR 5 - Good
Loans receivables rated as good include borrowers with good operating history and solid management, but payment capacity could be vulnerable to 
adverse business, financial or economic conditions.

CRR 6 - Satisfactory
These are loans receivables to borrowers whose ability to service all debt and meet financial obligations remains unquestioned, but with somewhat lesser 
capacity than in CRR 5 accounts.

CRR 7 - Average 
These are loans receivables to borrowers having ability to repay the loan in the normal course of business activity, although may not be strong enough to 
sustain a major setback.

CRR 8 - Fair 
These are loans receivables to borrowers possessing the characteristics of borrowers rated as CRR7 with slightly lesser quality in financial strength, earnings, 
performance and/or outlook.

CRR 9 - Marginal
These are performing loans receivables to borrowers not qualified as CRRs 1-8.  The borrower is able to withstand normal business cycles, although any 
prolonged unfavorable economic and/or market period would create an immediate deterioration beyond acceptable levels. 

CRR 10 - Watchlist 
This rating includes borrower where the credit exposure is not at risk of loss at the moment but the performance of the borrower has weakened and, unless 
present trends are reversed, could eventually lead to losses.

CRR 11 - Special Mention
These are loans that have potential weaknesses that deserve management’s close attention.  These potential weaknesses, if left uncorrected, may affect 
the repayment of the loan and thus increase credit risk to the Parent Company.

CRR 12 - Substandard
These are loans or portions thereof which appear to involve a substantial and unreasonable degree of risk to the Parent Company because of unfavorable 
record or unsatisfactory characteristics.

CRR 13 - Doubtful
These are loans or portions thereof which have the weaknesses inherent in those classified as  CRR 12 with the added characteristics that existing facts, 
conditions and values make collection or liquidation in full highly improbable and in which substantial loss is probable.

CRR 14 - Loss
These are loans or portions thereof which are considered uncollectible or worthless.

The Parent Company is using the Credit Scoring for evaluating borrowers with assets size below P15.0 million.  Credit scoring details the financial 
capability of the borrower to pay for any future obligation.

GOCCs and LGUs are rated using the “means and purpose” test whereby borrowers have to pass the two major parameters, namely:

“Means” test - the borrower must have resources or revenues of its own sufficient to service its debt obligations.•	
“Purpose” test - the loan must be obtained for a purpose consistent with the borrower’s general business.•	

LGU loans are backed-up by assignment of Internal Revenue Allotment.  Consumer loans are covered by mortgages in residential properties and vehicles 
financed.  Fringe benefit loans are repaid through automatic salary deductions and exposure is secured by mortgage on house or vehicles financed.
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The table below shows the Parent Company’s receivable from customers, gross of allowance for credit losses and unearned and other deferred income, for 
each CRR as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 (in millions).

2011 2010
Neither

Past Due nor
Individually

Impaired

Past Due or
Individually

Impaired Total

Neither
Past Due nor

Individually
Impaired

Past Due or
Individually

Impaired Total
Rated Receivable from Customers
	 1 - Excellent P6,302 P– P6,302 P6,217 P– P6,217
	 2 - Super Prime 23,192 – 23,192 5,939 – 5,939
	 3 - Prime 4,924 – 4,924 6,112 – 6,112
	 4 - Very Good 7,105 – 7,105 6,877 – 6,877
	 5 - Good 14,587 73 14,660 10,571 – 10,571
	 6 - Satisfactory 9,702 4 9,706 3,706 5 3,711
	 7 - Average 1,552 15 1,567 1,422 5 1,427
	 8 - Fair 4,346 10 4,356 6,201 11 6,212
	 9 - Marginal 1,316 20 1,336 1,452 9 1,461
	 10 - Watchlist 1,198 7 1,205 1,788 14 1,802
	 11 - Special Mention 151 41 192 1,787 21 1,808
	 12 - Substandard 803 66 869 395 790 1,185
	 13 - Doubtful – 2,495 2,495 – 2,574 2,574
	 14 - Loss – 2,780 2,780 – 2,588 2,588

75,178 5,511 80,689 52,467 6,017 58,484
Unrated Receivable from Customers
	 Business Loans 3,650 342 3,992 939 1,128 2,067
	 GOCCs and NGAs 13,888 45 13,933 17,191 2 17,193
	 LGUs 5,780 195 5,975 7,316 229 7,545
	 Consumers 7,178 736 7,914 6,311 626 6,937
	 Fringe Benefits 657 45 702 689 51 740

31,153 1,363 32,516 32,446 2,036 34,482
P106,331 P6,874 P113,205 P84,913 P8,053 P92,966 

	 Under PFRS 7, a financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.  The table below shows the aging 
analysis of past due but not impaired loans receivables per class of the Parent Company as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 (in millions).

2011 2010
Less than

30 days
31 to

90 days
91 to

180 days Total
Less than

30 days
31 to

90 days
91 to

180 days Total
Consumers P4 P14 P358 P376 P35 P35 P427 P497
Business loans 74 52 737 863 188 95 650 933
LGUs 85 – 10 95 – – 60 60
GOCCs and NGAs – – 2 2 – – – –
Fringe benefits – – 15 15 1 2 13 16
Total P163 P66 P1,122 P1,351 P224 P132 P1,150 P1,506
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Below are the financial assets of the Parent Company, excluding loans receivables, which are monitored using external ratings (in millions).

2011
Rated

Aaa to Aa3 A1 to A3
Baa1

and below Subtotal Unrated7/ Total
Due from BSP 1/ P– P– P– P– P37,493 P37,493
Due from other banks 1,387 2,830 314 4,531 376 4,907
Interbank loans receivables 1,631 1,498 1,913 5,042 12,056 17,098
Securities held under agreements to resell2/ – – – – 18,300 18,300
Financial assets at FVPL:
	 Held-for-trading:
		  Government securities – – 2,174 2,174 5 2,179
		  Derivative assets3/ 84 196 123 403 51 454
		  Equity securities – – – – 173 173
		  Private debt securities 1 – – 1 16 17
	 Designated at FVPL:
		  Private debt securities – 4,050 – 4,050 – 4,050
Loans and receivables:
	 Unquoted debt securities4/ – – – – 4,589 4,589
	 Others5/ – – – – 10,644 10,644
AFS investments:
	 Government securities 1,081 350 39,787 41,218 – 41,218
	 Other debt securities 1,107 – 4,110 5,217 3,795 9,012
	 Quoted equity securities – – – – 162 162
	 Unquoted equity securities – – – – 37 37
Miscellaneous COCI – – – – 5 5

2010
Rated

Aaa to Aa3 A1 to A3
Baa1

and below Subtotal Unrated7/ Total
Due from BSP 1/ P– P– P– P– P24,274 P24,274
Due from other banks 469 1,994 204 2,667 1,279 3,946
Interbank loans receivables 9,394 2,192 29 11,615 630 12,245
Securities held under agreements to resell2/ – – – – 6,800 6,800
Financial assets at FVPL:
	 Held-for-trading:
		  Government securities 1 – 9,549 9,550 49 9,599
		  Derivative assets3/ 2 27 783 812 1 813
		  Equity securities 75 – 17 92 95 187
	 Designated at FVPL:
		  Private debt securities 2,143 682 2,446 5,271 – 5,271
Loans and receivables:
	 Unquoted debt securities4/ – – 177 177 7,449 7,626
	 Others5/ – – – – 11,292 11,292
Receivable from SPV6/ – – – – 624 624
AFS investments:
	 Government securities 446 – 26,011 26,457 – 26,457
	 Other debt securities 1,085 – 2,464 3,549 2,522 6,071
	 Unquoted equity securities – – – – 357 357
	 Quoted equity securities – – – – 54 54
HTM investments:
	 Government securities 514 – 32,138 32,652 – 32,652
	 Other debt securities 2,180 435 2,886 5,501 – 5,501
Miscellaneous COCI – – – – 2 2
1/	 COCI are unsettled demand items delivered to the Philippine Clearing House Corporation and ‘Due from BSP’ is composed of interest-earning short-term placements 

with the BSP and a demand deposit account to support the regular operations of the Parent Company.
2/	 Securities held under agreements to resell represent overnight lending to the BSP collateralized by securities. The interest rate applicable is fixed by the BSP through a 

memorandum.
3/	 Derivative assets represent the value of credit derivatives embedded in host contracts issued by financial intermediaries and the mark-to-market valuation of freestanding 

derivatives (see Note 22).
4/	 Unquoted debt securities represent investments in bonds and notes not quoted in the market issued by financial intermediaries, government and private entities.
 5/	 Loans and receivables - Others is composed of Accrued interest receivable, Accounts receivable, Sales contracts receivable and other miscellaneous receivables  

(see Note 8).
6/	 Receivable from SPV represent notes received from the sale of NPAs to SPV (see Note 9).
7/	 As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, financial assets that are unrated are neither past due nor impaired.
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Impairment assessment
The Group recognizes impairment/credit losses based on the results of specific (individual) and collective assessment of its credit exposures.  Impairment has 
taken place when there are presence of known difficulties in the payment of obligation by counterparties, a significant credit rating downgrade takes place, 
infringement of the original terms of the contract has happened, or when there is an inability to pay principal or interest overdue beyond a certain threshold  
(e.g., 90 days).  These and other factors, either singly or in tandem with other factors, constitute observable events and/or data that meet the definition 
of an objective evidence of impairment.

The two methodologies applied by the Group in assessing and measuring impairment/credit losses include:

Specific (individual) assessmenta.	
The Group assesses each individually significant credit exposure or advances for any objective evidence of impairment. 

Among the items and factors considered by the Group when assessing and measuring specific impairment/credit allowances are:

the going concern of the borrower’s business;•	
the ability of the borrower to repay its obligations during  financial crises;•	
the projected receipts or expected cash flows;•	
the availability of other sources of financial support;•	
the existing  realizable value of collateral; and•	
the timing of the expected cash flows.•	

The impairment/credit allowances, if any, are evaluated every quarter or as the need arises in view of favorable or unfavorable developments.

Collective assessmentb.	
Loans and advances that are not individually significant (e.g., credit cards, housing loans, car loans, development incentives loans, fringe benefit loans) 
and individually significant loans and advances where there is no apparent evidence of individual impairment are collectively assessed for impairment.  
A particular portfolio is reviewed every quarter to determine its corresponding appropriate allowances.

	 Impairment losses are estimated by taking into consideration the following information:

historical losses of the portfolio;•	
current adverse economic conditions that have direct impact on the portfolio;•	
losses which are likely to occur but has not yet occurred; and•	
expected receipts and recoveries once impaired.•	

See Note 15 for more detailed information on the allowance for credit losses on loans and receivables and other financial assets.

Liquidity Risk and Funding Management
Liquidity risk is generally defined as the current and prospective risk to earnings or capital arising from the Parent Company’s inability to meet its obligations 
when they come due without incurring unacceptable losses or costs.

The Parent Company’s liquidity management involves maintaining funding capacity to accommodate fluctuations in asset and liability levels due to changes 
in the Parent Company’s business operations or unanticipated events created by customer behavior or capital market conditions.  The Parent Company seeks 
to ensure liquidity through a combination of active management of liabilities, a liquid asset portfolio composed substantially of deposits in primary and 
secondary reserves, and the securing of money market lines and the maintenance of repurchase facilities to address any unexpected liquidity situations.

Liquidity risk is monitored and controlled primarily by a gap analysis of maturities of relevant assets and liabilities reflected in the maximum cumulative 
outflow (MCO) report, as well as an analysis of available liquid assets.  The MCO focuses on a 12-month period wherein the 12-month cumulative outflow 
is compared to the acceptable MCO limit set by the BOD.  Furthermore, an internal liquidity ratio has been set to determine sufficiency of liquid assets 
over deposit liabilities.

Liquidity is monitored by the Parent Company on a daily basis through the Treasury Group. Likewise, the RMG monitors the static liquidity via the MCO 
under normal and stressed scenarios.
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The table below shows the financial assets and financial liabilities’ liquidity information which includes coupon cash flows categorized based on the 
expected date on which the asset will be realized and the liability will be settled. For other assets, the analysis into maturity grouping is based on the 
remaining period from the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date or if earlier than the expected date the assets will be realized 
(in millions).

Consolidated
2011

Up to 1
Month

1 to 3
Months

3 to 6
Months

6 to 12
Months

Beyond
1 year Total

Financial Assets
COCI P5,338 P66 P– P– P– P5,404
Due from BSP and other banks 31,825 13,108 – 1,114 2 46,049
Interbank loans receivable 17,098 – – – – 17,098
Securities held under agreements to resell 18,305 – – – – 18,305
Financial assets at FVPL:
	 Held-for-trading:
		  Government securities 11 127 37 62 2,769 3,006
		  Equity securities 175 – – – – 175
		  Private debt securities – – – 1 25 26
		  Derivative assets
			   Pay 11,186 778 1,082 304 – 13,350
			   Receive 11,266 790 1,096 307 – 13,459

80 12 14 3 – 109
	 Designated at FVPL:
		  Private debt securities 11 22 34 70 4,118 4,255
Loans receivables - gross 22,957 7,881 8,733 1,675 110,750 151,996
Unquoted debt securities - gross 3,965 14 418 29 4,321 8,747
Other receivables - gross 13,299 2 75 47 3,366 16,789
Receivable from SPV - net – – – – – –
AFS investments 234 467 700 3,037 72,489 76,927
Miscellaneous COCI 5 – – – – 5
Total financial assets P113,303 P21,699 P10,011 P6,038 P197,840 P348,891
Financial Liabilities
Deposit liabilities:
	 Demand P1,536 P1,744 P2,616 P5,232 P18,920 P30,048
	 Savings 5,337 10,061 15,045 30,099 126,161 186,703
	 Time 1,134 1,177 1,709 3,416 18,435 25,871
Financial liability at FVPL 210 85 128 255 9,149 9,827
Derivative liabilities:
	 Pay 13,076 2,152 – 1,415 3,770 20,413
 	 Receive 13,024 2,139 – 1,401 3,727 20,291

52 13 – 14 43 122
Bills and acceptances payable 2,761 4,371 7 6 1,330 8,475
Subordinated debt 37 73 110 219 10,225 10,664
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 7,064 2,190 – 258 2,132 11,644
Total financial liabilities P18,131 P19,714 P19,615 P39,499 P186,395 P283,354

Consolidated
2010

Up to 1
Month

1 to 3
Months

3 to 6
Months

6 to 12
Months

Beyond
1 year Total

Financial Assets
COCI P5,457 P– P– P– P– P5,457
Due from BSP and other banks 17,519 14,264 – – – 31,783
Interbank loans receivable 12,721 – – – – 12,721
Securities held under agreements to resell 6,823 – – – – 6,823
Financial assets at FVPL:
	 Held-for-trading:
		  Government securities 9,653 107 161 322 2,672 12,915
		  Equity securities 201 – – – – 201
		  Derivative assets
			   Pay 8,656 108 6,058 57 170 15,049
			   Receive 8,732 176 6,213 259 777 16,157

76 68 155 202 607 1,108

(Forward)
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Consolidated
2010

Up to 1
Month

1 to 3
Months

3 to 6
Months

6 to 12
Months

Beyond
1 year Total

	 Designated at FVPL:
		  Private debt securities P13 P27 P40 P80 P5,498 P5,658
Loans receivables - gross 11,339 18,427 7,183 3,773 101,916 142,638
Unquoted debt securities - gross 3 8 11 2,389 9,224 11,635
Receivable from SPV - net – – – – 624 624
AFS investments 131 328 355 719 47,080 48,613
HTM investments 1,557 1,850 779 1,898 55,182 61,266
Miscellaneous COCI 2 – – – – 2
Total financial assets P65,495 P35,079 P8,684 P9,383 P222,803 P341,444
Financial Liabilities
Deposit liabilities:
	 Demand P1,771 P1,600 P2,399 P4,799 P17,818 P28,387
	 Savings 5,880 10,694 15,947 31,875 108,544 172,940
	 Time 5,637 7,921 3,228 6,314 700 23,800
Financial liability at FVPL 58 – – – 6,765 6,823
Derivative liabilities:
	 Pay 3,465 624 2,102 5 –  6,196
	 Receive 3,448 613 2,035 3 – 6,099

17 11 67 2 – 97
Bills and acceptances payable 10,721 202 27 33 3,303 14,286
Subordinated debt – – – 5,487 6,517 12,004
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 7,628 521 110 2,035 – 10,294
Total financial liabilities P31,712 P20,949 P21,778 P50,545 P143,647 P268,631

Parent Company
2011

Up to 1
Month

1 to 3
Months

3 to 6
Months

6 to 12
Months

Beyond
1 year Total

Financial Assets
COCI P5,303 P– P– P– P– P5,303
Due from BSP and other banks 30,499 11,900 – – – 42,399
Interbank loans receivable 17,098 – – – – 17,098
Securities held under agreements to resell 18,305 – – – – 18,305
Financial assets at FVPL:
	 Held-for-trading:
	 Government securities 11 127 37 62 2,769 3,006
	 Equity securities 173 – – – – 173
	 Private debt securities – – – 1 25 26
	 Derivative assets
		  Pay 11,186 778 1,082 304 – 13,350
		  Receive 11,266 790 1,096 307 – 13,459

80 12 14 3 – 109
	 Designated at FVPL:
		  Private debt securities 11 22 34 68 4,118 4,253
Loans receivables - gross 22,824 7,651 8,366 1,069 109,741 149,651 
Unquoted debt securities - gross 3,965 14 418 29 4,320 8,746
Other receivables - gross 11,464 2 75 47 3,279 14,867
Receivable from SPV - net – – – – – –
AFS investments 233 467 700 3,037 70,595 75,032
HTM investments – – – – – –
Miscellaneous COCI 5 – – – – 5
Total financial assets P109,971 P20,195 P9,644 P4,316 P194,847 P338,973
Financial Liabilities
Deposit liabilities:
	 Demand P1,531 P1,744 P2,616 P5,232 P18,920 P30,043
	 Savings 5,324 10,061 15,045 30,099 126,161 186,690
	 Time 1,134 1,177 1,709 3,416 18,435 25,871
Financial liability at FVPL 210 85 128 255 9,149 9,827
Derivative liabilities:
	 Pay 13,076 2,152 – 1,415 3,770 20,413
	 Receive 13,024 2,139 – 1,401 3,727 20,291

52 13 – 14 43 122
Bills and acceptances payable 1,250 4,361 4 – 1,720 7,335
Subordinated debt 37 73 110 219 10,225 10,664
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 7,280 595 – 258 1,775 9,908
Total financial liabilities P16,818 P18,109 P19,612 P39,493 P186,428 P280,460
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Parent Company
2010

Up to 1
Month

1 to 3
Months

3 to 6
Months

6 to 12
Months

Beyond
1 year Total

Financial Assets
COCI P5,310 P– P– P– P– P5,310
Due from BSP and other banks 16,088 11,700 – – – 27,788
Interbank loans receivable 12,275 – – – – 12,275
Securities held under agreements to resell 6,823 – – – – 6,823
Financial assets at FVPL:
	 Held-for-trading:
		  Government securities 9,653 107 161 322 2,672 12,915
		  Equity securities 187 – – – – 187
	 Derivative assets
			   Pay 8,656 108 6,058 57 170 15,049
			   Receive 8,732 176 6,213 259 777 16,157

76 68 155 202 607 1,108
	 Designated at FVPL:
		  Private debt securities 13 27 40 80 5,498 5,658
Loans receivables - gross 10,414 18,249 6,922 1,754 100,368 137,707
Unquoted debt securities - gross 3 8 11 2,389 9,224 11,635
Receivable from SPV - net – – – – 624 624
AFS investments 118 328 355 716 45,549 47,066
HTM investments 1,557 1,850 779 1,898 55,094 61,178
Miscellaneous COCI 2 – – – – 2
Total financial assets P62,519 P32,337 P8,423 P7,361 P219,636 P330,276
Financial Liabilities
Deposit liabilities:
	 Demand P1,547 P1,600 P2,399 P4,799 P17,818 P28,163
	 Savings 5,711 10,694 15,947 31,875 108,544 172,771
	 Time 5,587 7,875 3,208 6,312 700 23,682
Financial liability at FVPL 58 – – – 6,517 6,575
Derivative liabilities:
	 Pay 3,465 624 2,102 5 –  6,196
	 Receive 3,448 613 2,035 3 – 6,099

17 11 67 2 – 97
Bills and acceptances payable 9,542 171 – – 3,144 12,857
Subordinated debt – – – 5,487 – 5,487
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 7,067 404 – 425 – 7,896
Total financial liabilities P29,529 P20,755 P21,621 P48,900 P136,723 P257,528

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk to earnings or capital arising from adverse movements in factors that affect the market value of instruments, products, and 
transactions in an institutions’ overall portfolio. Market risk arises from market making, dealing, and position taking in interest rate, foreign exchange and 
equity markets.  The succeeding sections provide discussion on the impact of market risk on the Parent Company’s trading and structural portfolios.

Trading market risk
Trading market risk exists in the Parent Company as the values of its trading positions are sensitive to changes in market rates such as interest rates, 
foreign exchange rates and equity prices.  The Parent Company is exposed to trading market risk in the course of market making as well as from taking 
advantage of market opportunities.  The Parent Company adopts the Parametric Value-at-Risk (VaR) methodology (with 99% confidence level, and one 
day holding period for FX and equity price risks VaR and ten day holding period for interest rate risk VaR) to measure the Parent Company’s trading market 
risk. Volatilities are updated monthly and are based on historical data for a rolling 260-day period.  The RMG reports the VaR utilization and breaches to 
limits to the risk taking personnel on a daily basis and to the ALCO and Executive Committee on a monthly basis.  All risk reports discussed in the EXCOM 
meeting are noted by the BOD.  The VaR figures are backtested to validate the robustness of the VaR model.

Objectives and limitations of the VaR methodology
The VaR models are designed to measure market risk in a normal market environment.  The models assume that any changes occurring in the risk factors 
affecting the normal market environment will follow a normal distribution.  The use of VaR has limitations because it is based on historical volatilities in 
market prices and assumes that future price movements will follow a statistical distribution.  Due to the fact that VaR relies heavily on historical data to 
provide information and may not clearly predict the future changes and modifications of the risk factors, the probability of large market moves may be 
underestimated if changes in risk factors fail to align with the normal distribution assumption.  VaR may also be under- or over- estimated due to the 
assumptions placed on risk factors and the relationship between such factors for specific instruments.  Even though positions may change throughout the 
day, the VaR only represents the risk of the portfolios at the close of each business day, and it does not account for any losses that may occur beyond the 
99.00% confidence level.
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VaR assumptions/parameters
VaR estimates the potential loss on the current portfolio assuming a specified time horizon and level of confidence at 99.00%.  The use of a 99.00% 
confidence level means that, within a one day horizon, losses exceeding the VaR figure should occur, on average, not more than once every one hundred 
days.

VaR limits
Since VaR is an integral part of the Parent Company’s market risk management, VaR limits have been established annually for all financial trading activities 
and exposures.  Calculated VaR is compared against the VaR limits are monitored.  Limits are based on the tolerable risk appetite of the Parent Company.  
VaR is computed on an undiversified basis; hence, the Parent Company does not consider the correlation effects of the three trading portfolios.

There is no instance for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 that the aggregate daily losses were greater than the total VaR (in millions).

Trading Portfolio Foreign Exchange* Interest Rate Equities Price Total VaR**
December 31, 2011 P3.33 P113.24 P9.54 P126.11
Average Daily 8.90 177.18 9.80 195.88
Highest 24.15 312.35 13.14 339.81
Lowest 0.92 73.30 6.11 95.63

Trading Portfolio Foreign Exchange* Interest Rate Equities Price Total VaR**
December 31, 2010 P10.72 P218.51 P10.51 P239.74
Average Daily 12.60 191.06 6.23 209.89
Highest 26.93 333.20 10.53 346.14
Lowest 1.52 41.78 2.62 50.64

* FX VaR is the bankwide foreign exchange risk

** The high and low for the total portfolio may not equal the sum of the individual components as the highs and lows of the individual trading portfolios may have occurred 

on different trading days

The table below shows the interest rate VaR for AFS investments (in millions):

2011 2010
End of year P1,922.71 P928.70
Average Daily 1,597.70 597.32
Highest 2,047.64 932.56
Lowest 927.67 311.38

Structural Market Risk

Non-trading Market Risk
Interest rate risk
The Parent Company seeks to ensure that exposure to fluctuations in interest rates are kept within acceptable limits.  Interest margins may increase as a 
result of such changes but may be reduced or may create losses in the event that unexpected movements arise.

Repricing mismatches will expose the Parent Company to interest rate risk.  The Parent Company measures the sensitivity of its assets and liabilities to 
interest rate fluctuations by way of a “repricing gap” analysis using the repricing characteristics of its statement of financial position positions tempered 
with approved assumptions.  To evaluate earnings exposure, interest rate sensitive liabilities in each time band are subtracted from the corresponding 
interest rate assets to produce a “repricing gap” for that time band.  The difference in the amount of assets and liabilities maturing or being repriced over 
a one year period would then give the Parent Company an indication of the extent to which it is exposed to the risk of potential changes in net interest 
income.  A negative gap occurs when the amount of interest rate sensitive liabilities exceeds the amount of interest rate sensitive assets.  Vice versa, positive 
gap occurs when the amount of interest rate sensitive assets exceeds the amount of interest rate sensitive liabilities.

During a period of rising interest rates, a company with a positive gap is better positioned because the company’s assets are refinanced at increasingly 
higher interest rates increasing the net interest margin of the company over time.  During a period of falling interest rates, a company with a positive gap 
would show assets repricing at a faster rate than one with a negative gap, which may restrain the growth of its net income or result in a decline in net 
interest income.

For risk management purposes, the repricing gap covering the one year period is multiplied by an assumed change in interest rates to yield an approximation 
of the change in net interest income that would result from such an interest rate movement.  The Parent Company’s BOD sets a limit on the level of 
earnings at risk (EaR) exposure tolerable to the Parent Company.  Compliance to the EaR limit is monitored monthly by the RMG.  This EaR computation is 
accomplished monthly, with a quarterly stress test.
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The following table sets forth the repricing gap position of the Parent Company as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 (in millions):

2011
	 Up to 1 

	 Month

	 1 to 3 

	 Months

	 3 to 6 

	 Months

	 6 to 12 

	 months

	 Beyond 

	 1 year 	 Total
Financial Assets
COCI 	 P– 	 P– 	 P– 	 P– P5,303 P5,303
Due from BSP and other banks 30,499 11,900 	 – 	 – 	 – 42,399
Interbank loans receivable 17,010 88 	 – 	 – 	 – 17,098
Securities held under agreements to resell 18,300 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 18,300
Financial assets at FVPL:
	 Held-for-trading:
		  Government securities 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 2,179 2,179
		  Derivative assets 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 454 454
		  Equity securities 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 173 173
		  Private debt securities 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 17 17
	 Designated at FVPL:
		  Private debt securities 646 2,095 1,309 	 – 	 – 4,050
Receivable from customers - gross 44,101 14,478 5,555 3,644 60,294 128,072
Unquoted debt securities - gross 247 550 401 1 7,162 8,361
AFS investments 234 1,520 2,955 1,546 44,174 50,429
Miscellaneous COCI 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 5 5
Total financial assets P111,037 P30,631 P10,220 P5,191 P119,761 P276,840
Financial Liabilities
Deposit liabilities:
	 Demand 	 P– 	 P– 	 P– 	 P– P30,042 P30,042
	 Savings 60,309 17,315 3,718 1,801 101,549 184,692
	 Time 10,040 4,744 839 858 7,246 23,727
Financial liabilities at FVPL 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 6,650 6,650
Bills and acceptances payable 2,663 2,927 4 	 – 1,725 7,319
Subordinated debt 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 6,452 6,452
Accrued interest and other financial liabilities 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 9,908 9,908
Total financial liabilities P73,012 P24,986 P4,561 P2,659 P163,572 P268,790
Repricing gap P38,025 P5,645 P5,659 P2,532 (P43,811) P8,050
Cumulative gap 38,025 43,670 49,329 51,861 8,050 	 –
Note: Non-interest bearing financial assets and liabilities are lumped in greater than 1 year bucket.

2010
	 Up to 1
	 Month

	 1 to 3
	 Months

	 3 to 6
	 Months

	 6 to 12
	 months

	 Beyond
	 1 year 	 Total

Financial Assets
COCI 	 P– 	 P– 	 P– 	 P– P5,310 P5,310
Due from BSP and other banks 14,796 12,157 	 – 	 – 1,267 28,220
Interbank loans receivable 12,245 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 12,245
Securities held under agreements to resell 6,800 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 6,800
Financial assets at FVPL:
	 Held-for-trading:
		  Government securities 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 9,599 9,599
		  Derivative assets 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 813 813
		  Equity securities 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 187 187
	 Designated at FVPL:
		  Private debt securities 	 – 3,492 1,779 	 – 	 – 5,271
Receivable from customers - gross 28,690 39,320 7,174 2,144 30,989 108,317
Unquoted debt securities - gross 260 494 1 2,369 8,101 11,225
Receivable from SPV - net 	 – 624 	 – 	 – 	 – 624
AFS investments 	 – 548 429 1 31,961 32,939
HTM investments 949 2,699 2,761 647 31,096 38,152
Miscellaneous COCI 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 2 2
Total financial assets P63,740 P59,334 P12,144 P5,161 P119,325 P259,704

(Forward)
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2010
	 Up to 1
	 Month

	 1 to 3
	 Months

	 3 to 6
	 Months

	 6 to 12
	 months

	 Beyond
	 1 year 	 Total

Financial Liabilities
Deposit liabilities:
	 Demand 	 P– 	 P– 	 P– 	 P– P28,163 P28,163
	 Savings 54,669 18,217 4,236 1,968 92,084 171,174
	 Time 16,439 5,881 1,642 603 2,986 27,551
Financial liabilities at FVPL 58 	 – 	 – 	 – 6,517 6,575
Bills and acceptances payable 9,542 171 	 – 	 – 3,144 12,857
Subordinated debt 	 – 	 – 	 – 5,487 	 – 5,487
Accrued interest and other financial liabilities 6,739 404 	 – 425 2,595 10,163
Total financial liabilities P87,447 P24,673 P5,878 P8,483 P135,489 P261,970
Repricing gap (P23,707) P34,661 P6,266 (P3,322) (P16,164) (P2,266)
Cumulative gap (23,707) 10,954 17,220 13,898 (2,266)	 –
Note: Non-interest bearing financial assets and liabilities are lumped in greater than 1 year bucket.

The following table sets forth, for the year indicated, the impact of changes in interest rates on the Parent Company’s  repricing gap for the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010 (in millions):

2011 2010
	 Statement
	 of Income 	 Equity

	 Statement
	 of Income 	 Equity

+50bps P244 P244 P52 P52
-50bps (244) (244) (52) (52)
+100bps 487 487 104 104
-100bps (487) (487) (104) (104)

As one of the long-term goals in the risk management process, the Parent Company has set the adoption of the economic value approach in measuring 
the interest rate risk in the banking book to complement the earnings approach currently used.

Foreign currency risk
Foreign exchange is the risk to earnings or capital arising from changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations 
in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financials and cash flows.

Foreign currency liabilities generally consist of foreign currency deposits in the Parent Company’s FCDU books, accounts made in the Philippines or which 
are generated from remittances to the Philippines by Filipino expatriates and overseas Filipino workers who retain for their own benefit or for the benefit 
of a third party, foreign currency deposit accounts with the Parent Company and foreign currency-denominated borrowings appearing in the regular books 
of the Parent Company.

Foreign currency deposits are generally used to fund the Parent Company’s foreign currency-denominated loan and investment portfolio in the FCDU.  
Banks are required by the BSP to match the foreign currency liabilities with the foreign currency assets held through FCDUs.  In addition, the BSP requires 
a 30.00% liquidity reserve on all foreign currency liabilities held through FCDUs.  Outside the FCDU, the Parent Company has additional foreign currency 
assets and liabilities in its foreign branch network.

The Group’s policy is to maintain foreign currency exposure within acceptable limits and within existing regulatory guidelines.  The Group believes that 
its profile of foreign currency exposure on its assets and liabilities is within conservative limits for a financial institution engaged in the type of business in 
which the Group is involved.
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The table below summarizes the exposure to foreign exchange rate risk as of December 31, 2011 and 2010.  Included in the table are the assets and 
liabilities at carrying amounts, categorized by currency (in millions).

Consolidated
2011 2010

	 USD 	 Others 	 Total 	 USD 	 Others 	 Total
Assets
COCI and due from BSP P878 P134 P1,012 P754 P160 P914
Due from other banks 4,408 320 4,728 3,969 217 4,186
Interbank loans receivable and securities held under
	 agreements to resell 405 	 – 405 526 29 555
Loans and receivables 5,810 	 – 5,810 3,772 1 3,773
Financial assets at FVPL 4,086 	 – 4,086 5,290 	 – 5,290
AFS investments 8,006 	 – 8,006 923 	 – 923
HTM investments 	 – 	 – 	 – 6,843 	 – 6,843
Other assets 5,142 269 5,411 12,082 362 12,444
Total assets 28,735 723 29,458 34,159 769 34,928
Liabilities
Deposit liabilities 510 	 – 510 2 	 – 2
Bills and acceptances payable 7,122 78 7,200 6,353 1 6,354
Accrued taxes, interest and other expenses 1,640 	 – 1,640 1,559 	 – 1,559
Other liabilities 834 3,489 4,323 322 3,177 3,499
Total liabilities 10,106 3,567 13,673 8,236 3,178 11,414
Net Exposure P18,629 (P2,844) P15,785 P25,923 (P2,409) P23,514

Parent Company
2011 2010

	 USD 	 Others 	 Total 	 USD 	 Others 	 Total
Assets
COCI and due from BSP P810 P134 P944 P754 P160 P914
Due from other banks 907 320 1,227 468 217 685
Interbank loans receivable and Securities held under 
	 agreements to resell 405 	 – 405 526 29 555
Loans and receivables 5,068 	 – 5,068 3,772 1 3,773
Financial assets at FVPL 4,086 	 – 4,086 5,290 	 – 5,290
AFS investments 7,946 	 – 7,946 923 	 – 923
HTM investments 	 – 	 – 	 – 6,843 	 – 6,843
Other assets 4,984 269 5,253 12,082 362 12,444
Total assets 24,206 723 24,929 30,658 769 31,427
Liabilities
Deposit liabilities 	 – 	 – 	 – 2 	 – 2
Bills and acceptances payable 7,093 78 7,171 6,353 1 6,354
Accrued taxes, interest and other expenses 1,573 	 – 1,573 1,559 	 – 1,559
Other liabilities 215 3,489 3,704 322 3,177 3,499
Total liabilities 8,881 3,567 12,448 8,236 3,178 11,414
Net Exposure P15,325 (P2,844) P12,481 P22,422 (P2,409) P20,013

Information relating to the Parent Company’s currency derivatives is contained in Note 22.  The Parent Company has outstanding foreign currency spot 
transactions (in equivalent peso amounts) of P4.7 billion (sold) and P2.5 billion (bought) as of December 31, 2011 and P8.5 billion (sold) and P2.0 billion 
(bought) as of December 31, 2010.

Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurement5.	

The methods and assumptions used by the Group in estimating the fair value of the financial instruments are:

Cash equivalents - Carrying amounts approximate fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these investments.

Debt securities - Fair values are generally based upon quoted market prices.  If the market prices are not readily available, fair values are obtained from 
independent parties offering pricing services, estimated using adjusted quoted market prices of comparable investments or using the discounted cash flow 
methodology.
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Equity securities - fair values of quoted equity securities are based on quoted market prices.  While fair values of unquoted equity securities are the same 
as the carrying value since the fair value could not be reliably determined due to the unpredictable nature of future cash flows and the lack of suitable 
methods of arriving at a reliable fair value.

Loans and receivables - For loans with fixed interest rates, fair values are estimated by discounted cash flow methodology, using the Group’s current market 
lending rates for similar types of loans. For loans with floating interest rates, with repricing frequencies on a quarterly basis, the Group assumes that the 
carrying amount approximates fair value.  Where the repricing frequency is beyond three months, the fair value of floating rate loans is determined using 
the discounted cash flow methodologies.

Liabilities - Except for subordinated notes, the carrying values approximate fair values due to either the presence of a demand feature or the relatively 
short-term maturities of these liabilities.

Derivative instruments - Fair values are estimated based on quoted market prices or acceptable valuation models.

Subordinated debt including designated at FVPL - Fair value is determined using the discounted cash flow methodology.  

The following table presents a comparison of the carrying amounts and fair values of the financial assets and liabilities not presented on the statement of 
financial position at fair value at December 31:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Carrying 
Value

Fair Market 
Value

Carrying 
Value

Fair Market 
Value

Carrying 
Value

Fair Market 
Value

Carrying 
Value

Fair Market 
Value

Financial Assets
Loans and Receivables
	 COCI and due from BSP P43,556,905 P43,556,905 P29,743,172 P29,743,172 P42,795,706 P42,795,706 P29,583,597 P29,583,597
	 Due from other banks 6,423,981 6,423,981 5,141,549 5,141,549 4,906,698 4,906,698 3,945,632 3,945,632
	 Interbank loans receivable 17,097,648 17,097,648 12,691,967 12,691,967 17,097,648 17,097,648 12,245,259 12,245,259
	 Securities held under  
		  agreements to resell 18,300,000 18,300,000 6,800,000 6,800,000 18,300,000 18,300,000 6,800,000 6,800,000
	 Receivables from customers:
		  Business loans 67,327,489 67,435,795 57,614,436 58,549,272 65,641,416 65,749,721 56,800,960 56,990,766
		  GOCCs and NGAs 27,774,012 27,774,012 17,080,112 17,080,115 27,774,012 27,774,012 17,080,112 17,080,115
		  Consumers 7,521,449 7,588,400 7,545,568 7,965,925 7,418,170 7,485,471 6,674,781 7,355,138
		  LGUs 5,900,276 5,901,463 6,352,406 6,623,560 5,900,276 5,901,463 6,352,406 6,623,560
		  Fringe benefits 697,075 697,075 729,274 730,200 687,103 687,103 715,608 716,513
	 Unquoted debt securities 4,588,497 5,231,048 7,625,791 8,676,069 4,588,497 5,231,048 7,625,791 8,676,069
	 Other receivables 12,440,237 12,440,237 13,367,891 13,367,891 10,643,477 10,643,477 11,292,077 11,292,077
	 Other assets 5,220 5,220 1,970 1,970 5,220 5,220 1,970 1,970
	 Receivable from SPV – – 624,450 377,447 – – 624,450 377,447
HTM investments:
	 Government securities  – – 32,739,615 35,503,136 – – 32,651,512 35,415,033
	 Other debt securities – – 5,500,643 5,738,780 – – 5,500,643 5,738,780

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at  
	 amortized cost
	 Deposit liabilities:
		  Demand 29,896,120 29,896,120 27,964,372 27,964,372 30,042,425 30,042,425 28,163,081 28,163,081
		  Savings 184,676,120 184,676,120 171,282,454 171,282,454 184,692,779 184,692,779 171,173,893 171,173,893
		  Time 22,961,698 23,180,938 27,189,058 27,310,825 23,726,483 23,945,723 27,550,759 27,672,526
	 Bills and acceptances payable:
		  BSP and local bank 4,413,379 4,413,379 2,542,970 2,542,970 2,902,338 2,902,338 1,861,937 1,861,937
		  Foreign banks 1,110,136 1,110,136 9,440,466 9,440,466 881,110 881,110 9,569,923 9,569,923
		  Acceptances outstanding 134,460 134,460 17,161 17,161 134,460 134,460 17,161 17,161
		  Others 2,800,450 2,800,450 3,541 3,541 3,400,450 3,400,450 1,407,640 1,407,640
	 Subordinated debt 6,452,473 7,118,314 5,486,735 5,685,638 6,452,473 7,118,314 5,486,735 5,685,638
	 Accrued interest payable 2,005,487 2,005,487 2,170,952 2,170,952 2,003,056 2,003,056 2,170,326 2,170,326
	 Other liabilities 9,638,197 9,638,197 10,563,600 10,563,600 7,904,902 7,904,902 7,993,132 7,993,132

The discount rate used in estimating the fair value of loans and receivables ranges from 5.00% to 9.25% and 9.25% to 11.00% as of December 31, 2011 
and 2010 for peso-denominated receivables, respectively, and 3.25% as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 for foreign currency-denominated receivables.

The discount rate used in estimating the fair values of the subordinated debt ranges from 1.38% to 3.63%  and from 1.20% to 4.99% as of  
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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Fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Group and the Parent Company held the following financial instruments measured at fair value:

Consolidated
2011 2010

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Financial assets at FVPL:
Held-for-trading:
	 Government securities P2,178,701 P– P– P2,178,701 P9,598,734 P– P– P9,598,734
	 Derivative assets 91,719 362,332 – 454,051 40,337 772,507 – 812,844
	 Private debt securities 16,910 – – 16,910 200,354 – – 200,354
	 Equity securities 175,332 – – 175,332 – – – –
Designated at FVPL:
	 Private debt securities – 4,050,671 – 4,050,671 – 5,271,027 – 5,271,027

P2,462,662 P4,413,003 P– P6,875,665 P9,839,425 P6,043,534 P– P15,882,959
AFS investments:
	 Government securities P42,614,457 P– P– P42,614,457 P27,568,048 P– P– P27,568,048
	 Other debt securities 5,713,829 3,677,689 – 9,391,518 2,361,193 4,073,496 – 6,434,689
	 Equity securities 155,967 – – 155,967 190,664 – – 190,664

P48,484,253 P3,677,689 P– P52,161,942 P30,119,905 P4,073,496 P– P34,193,401
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at FVPL:
	 Designated at FVPL P– P– P6,479,170 P6,479,170 P– P– P6,516,744 P6,516,744
	 Derivative liabilities – 171,013 – 171,013 – 57,852 – 57,852

P– P171,013 P6,479,170 P6,650,183 P– P57,852 P6,516,744 P6,574,596

Parent Company
2011 2010

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Financial assets at FVPL:
Held-for-trading:
	 Government securities P2,178,701 P– P– P2,178,701 P9,598,734 P– P– P9,598,734
	 Derivative assets 91,719 362,332 – 454,051 40,337 772,507 – 812,844
	 Equity securities 172,875 – – 172,875 186,842 – – 186,842
	 Private debt securities 16,910 – – 16,910 – – – –
Designated at FVPL:
	 Private debt securities – 4,050,671 – 4,050,671 – 5,270,790 – 5,270,790

P2,460,205 P4,413,003 P– P6,873,208 P9,825,913 P6,043,297 P– P15,869,210
AFS investments:
	 Government securities P41,218,164 P– P– P41,218,164 P26,456,593 P– P– P26,456,593
	 Other debt securities 5,334,621 3,677,689 – 9,012,310 2,306,487 3,764,990 – 6,071,477
	 Equity securities 36,637 – – 36,637 54,164 – – 54,164

P46,589,422 P3,677,689 P– P50,267,111 P28,817,244 P3,764,990 P– P32,582,234
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at FVPL:
	 Designated at FVPL P– P– P6,479,170 P6,479,170 P– P– P6,516,744 P6,516,744
	 Derivative liabilities – 171,013 – 171,013 – 57,852 – 57,852

P– P171,013 P6,479,170 P6,650,183 P– P57,852 P6,516,744 P6,574,596

When fair values of listed equity and debt securities, as well as publicly traded derivatives at the reporting date are based on quoted market prices or 
binding dealer price quotations, without any deduction for transaction costs, the instruments are included within Level 1 of the hierarchy.

For all other financial instruments, fair value is determined using valuation techniques.  Valuation techniques include net present value techniques, 
comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist and other revaluation models.

Instruments included in Level 3 include those for which there is currently no active market.
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As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of level 
3 fair value measurements.

The following table shows a reconciliation of the beginning and closing amount of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities which are recorded at fair value 
of the Group and the Parent Company:

2011 2010
Balance at beginning of year P6,516,744 P6,309,823
Add total losses (gain) recorded in profit and loss (37,574) 206,921
Balance at end of year P6,479,170 P6,516,744

The table below sets forth, the potential effect of reasonably possible change in interest rates (alternative valuation assumption) on the Group’s valuation 
of Level 3 financial instruments (amounts in million pesos):

2011 2010
Statement
of Income Equity

Statement
of Income Equity

Financial Liability
Subordinated debt designated at FVPL
	 +50bps 45 45 15 15
	 - 50bps (45) (45) (15) (15)
	 +100bps 90 90 117 117
	 -100bps (90) (90) (117) (117)

Segment Information6.	

Business Segments
The Group’s operating businesses are determined and managed separately according to the nature of services provided and the different markets served 
with each segment representing a strategic business unit.  The Group’s business segments follow:

Retail Banking - principally handling individual customer’s deposits, and providing consumer type loans, credit card facilities and fund transfer facilities;

Corporate Banking - principally handling loans and other credit facilities and deposit accounts for corporate and institutional customers; and

Treasury - principally providing money market, trading and treasury services, as well as the management of the Group’s funding operations by use of T-bills, 
government securities and placements and acceptances with other banks, through treasury and wholesale banking.

These segments are the bases on which the Group reports its primary segment information.  Other operations of the Group comprise of the operations 
and financial control groups.  Transactions between segments are conducted at estimated market rates on an arm’s length basis.  Interest is credited to or 
charged against business segments based on a pool rate which approximates the marginal cost of funds.

For management purposes, business segment report is done on a quarterly basis.  Business segment information provided to the chief operating decision 
maker (CODM) is based on the Regulatory Accounting Principles (RAP) submitted to the BSP in compliance with the reportorial requirements under the 
Financial Reporting Package (FRP) for banks, which differ from PFRS.  Significant differences arose from the manner of provisioning for impairment and 
credit losses, measurement of investment properties and the fair value measurement of financial instruments.  The report submitted to CODM represents 
only the results of operation for each of the reportable segment.  The Group has no significant customer which contributes 10.00% or more of the 
consolidated revenue.
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Business segment information of the Group follows:
 

2011

	Retail Banking
	 Corporate	
	 Banking 	 Treasury 	 Others

	 Adjustments
	 and
	Eliminations* 	 Total

Interest income P1,113,053 P6,507,214 P4,103,289 P66,393 P697,588 P12,487,537
Interest expense (1,179,459) (1,984,296) (2,155,485) (4,251) 54,787 (5,268,704)
Net interest margin (66,406) 4,522,918 1,947,804 62,142 752,375 7,218,833
Other income 1,017,801 1,550,080 4,501,903 2,378,784 169,605 9,618,173
Other expenses (2,558,105) (1,043,515) (1,018,412) (1,625,041) 311,748 (5,933,325)
Segment result (1,606,710) 5,029,483 5,431,295 815,885 1,233,728 10,903,681
Inter-segment
	 Imputed income 3,737,997 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 3,737,997
	 Imputed cost 	 – (2,110,281) (1,627,716) 	 – 	 – (3,737,997)
Segment result to third party P2,131,287 P2,919,202 P3,803,579 P815,885 P1,233,728 10,903,681

Unallocated expenses (5,393,360)
Net income before share in net income of an 
	 associate, amortization of deferred charges
	 and income tax 5,510,321
Share in net income of an associate	 68,955
Amortization of deferred charges (860,398)
Net income before income tax 4,718,878
Income tax (846,326)
Net income 3,872,552
Non-controlling interest (8,453)
Net income for the year attributable to equity 
	 holders of the Parent Company P3,864,099
Other Information
Segment assets P48,015,755 P124,180,936 P102,414,597 P36,296,942 P1,860,687 P312,768,917
Unallocated assets 3,515,369
Total assets P316,284,286
Segment liabilities P187,646,586 P32,584,614 P44,265,932 P9,826,586 (P1,159,182) P273,164,536
Unallocated liabilities 3,898,024
Total liabilities P277,062,560
Other Segment Information
Capital expenditures P166,118 P556 P4,676 P182,583 	 P– P353,933

Depreciation and amortization P154,421 P88,936 P5,468 P12,639 P170,569 P432,033
Unallocated depreciation and amortization 224,371
Total depreciation and amortization P656,404
Provision for (reversal of) impairment and credit
	 losses P18,072 (P248,993) P809,008 P57,498 P224,812 P860,397
* The eliminations and adjustments column mainly represent the RAP to PFRS adjustments
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2010

	 Retail Banking
	 Corporate 	
	 Banking 	 Treasury 	 Others

Adjustments and
	 Eliminations* 	 Total

Interest income P1,480,269 P6,030,114 P4,382,864 P240,935 P439,424 P12,573,606
Interest expense (1,095,226) (1,835,228) (1,918,968) (7,004) 84,850 (4,771,576)
Net interest margin 385,043 4,194,886 2,463,896 233,931 524,274 7,802,030
Other income 1,075,764 2,074,849 2,931,631  2,813,268 208,058 9,103,570
Other expenses (3,560,959) (873,386) (609,598) (823,742) (524,947) (6,392,632)
Segment result (2,100,152) 5,396,349 4,785,929 2,223,457 207,385 10,512,968
Inter-segment
	 Imputed income 4,763,404 	 – 	 – 	 – (4,763,404) 	 –
	 Imputed cost 	 – (2,769,933) (1,993,471) 	 – 4,763,404 	 –
Segment result to third party P2,663,252 P2,626,416 P2,792,458 P2,223,457 P207,385 10,512,968

Unallocated expenses (6,255,591)
Net income before share in net 	income of an
	 associate, amortization of deferred charges
	 and income tax 4,257,377
Share in net income of an associate 45,065
Amortization of deferred charges (844,112)
Net income before income tax 3,458,330
Income tax (766,602)
Net income 2,691,728
Non-controlling interest (20,389)
Net income for the year attributable to equity
	 holders of the Parent Company P2,671,339
Other Information
Segment assets P42,722,421 P121,940,477 P113,967,830 P28,799,188  (P9,305,842) P298,124,074
Unallocated assets 4,009,286
Total assets P302,133,360
Segment liabilities P189,232,060 P24,282,218 P42,900,590 P14,836,876 (P5,970,787) P265,280,957
Unallocated liabilities 3,380,867
Total liabilities P268,661,824
Other Segment Information
Capital expenditures P291,432 P4,530 P9,233 P11,288 	 P– P316,483

Depreciation and amortization P161,207 P262,862 P1,780 P57,258 P64,378 P547,485
Unallocated depreciation and amortization 290,119
Total depreciation and amortization P837,604
Provision for (reversal of) impairment and 
	 credit losses P618,438 (P232,077) P380,474 (P46,561) P1,679,498 P2,399,772
* The eliminations and adjustments column mainly represent the RAP to PFRS adjustments
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2009

	 Retail Banking
	 Corporate 	
	 Banking 	 Treasury 	 Others

Adjustments and 	
	 Eliminations* 	 Total

Interest income P900,229 P5,872,607 P4,767,431 P442,182 P987,299 P12,969,748
Interest expense (1,294,754) (417,469) (3,336,622) (4,818) (37,266) (5,090,929)
Net interest margin (394,525) 5,455,138 1,430,809 437,364 950,033 7,878,819
Other income 1,221,467 1,933,251 2,118,865 1,458,074 808,548 7,540,205
Other expenses (2,967,583) (1,058,598) (895,653) (2,337,752) (533,991) (7,793,577)
Segment result (2,140,641) 6,329,791 2,654,021 (442,314) 1,224,590 7,625,447
Inter-segment
	 Imputed income 4,623,313 	 – 	 – 	 – (4,623,313) 	 –
	 Imputed cost 	 – (3,985,893) (637,420) 	 – 4,623,313 	 –
Segment result to third party P2,482,672 P2,343,898 P2,016,601 (P442,314) P1,224,590 7,625,447

Unallocated expenses (4,657,301)
Net income before share in net income of an 	
	 associate, amortization of deferred charges 	
	 and income tax 2,968,146
Share in net income of an associate 12,001
Amortization of deferred charges (698,141)
Net income before income tax 2,282,006
Income tax (779,994)
Net income 1,502,012
Non-controlling interest (14,437)
Net income for the year attributable to equity
	 holders of the Parent Company P1,487,575
Other Information
Segment assets P17,371,177 P86,245,863 P135,768,955 P39,028,792 P1,653,042 P280,067,829
Unallocated assets 3,232,077
Total assets P283,299,906
Segment liabilities P129,108,609 P5,423,415 P107,311,157 P7,512,486 (P1,036,397) P248,319,270
Unallocated liabilities 3,992,431
Total liabilities P252,311,701
Other Segment Information
Capital expenditures P215,840 P3,520 P369 P46,479 	 P– P266,208
Depreciation and amortization P167,335 P584,665 P1,010 P420,625 (P340,560) P833,075
Unallocated depreciation and amortization 428,966
Total depreciation and amortization P1,262,041
Provision for (reversal of) impairment and 
	 credit losses P114,399 (P276,052) P714,067 P748 P953,134 P1,506,296
* The eliminations and adjustments column mainly represent the RAP to PFRS adjustments

Geographical Segments
Although the Group’s businesses are managed on a worldwide basis, the Group operates in five (5) principal geographical areas of the world.  The 
distribution of assets, liabilities, credit commitments items and revenues by geographic region of the Group follows:

Assets Liabilities Capital Expenditure Credit Commitments Revenues
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Philippines P305,026,774 P289,267,198 P269,150,381 P259,492,385 P341,572 P278,242 P2,026,118 P3,203,881 P20,460,064 P19,837,591
Asia (excluding 

Philippines) 5,136,569 6,194,228 4,320,174 5,201,196 5,433 28,612 70,893 82,422 761,750 874,112
USA and Canada 5,279,980 5,069,930 3,069,855 2,772,714 4,855 159 36,558 11,280 632,123 809,595
United Kingdom 541,984 1,264,388 275,895 938,516 2,073 6,459 – – 144,683 118,901
Other European 

Union Countries 298,979 337,616 246,255 257,013 – 3,011 – – 176,045 102,219
P316,284,286 P302,133,360 P277,062,560 P268,661,824 P353,933 P316,483 P2,133,569 P3,297,583 P22,174,665 P21,742,418

The Philippines is the home country of the Parent Company, which is also the main operating company.  The Group offers a wide range of financial services 
as discussed in Note 1.  Additionally, most of the remittance services are managed and conducted in Asia, Canada, USA and United Kingdom.

The areas of operations include all the primary business segments.
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Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss7.	

This account consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Held-for-trading:
	 Government securities P2,178,701 P9,598,734 P2,178,701 P9,598,734
	 Derivative assets (Note 22) 454,051 812,844 454,051 812,844
	 Equity securities 175,332 200,354 172,875 186,842
	 Private debt securities 16,910 	 – 16,910 	 –

2,824,994 10,611,932 2,822,537 10,598,420
Designated at FVPL:
	 Private debt securities 4,050,671 5,271,027 4,050,671 5,270,790

P6,875,665 P15,882,959 P6,873,208 P15,869,210

Government and private debt securities include unrealized gain of P31.7 million and unrealized loss of P84.8 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively, for the Group and the Parent Company.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the effective interest rates of government and private debt securities range from 1.94% to 6.88% and from 4.63% 
to 9.13%, respectively.

Equity securities include unrealized loss of P4.8 million and P4.9 million for the Group and the Parent Company as of December 31, 2011, respectively, and 
unrealized gain of P8.7 million and P1.8 million for the Group and the Parent Company as of December 31, 2010, respectively.

Designated financial assets at FVPL represent USD-denominated investments in CLN.  The CLNs are part of a group of financial instruments that together 
are managed on a fair value basis, in accordance with the documented risk management and investment strategy of the Parent Company.  As of 
December 31, 2011 and 2010, unrealized loss from financial assets designated at FVPL amounted to P125.1 million and P99.2 million, respectively. 

Loans and Receivables8.	

This account consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Receivable from customers:
Loans and discounts (Note 31) P102,665,659 P85,647,736 P102,090,119 P85,239,740
	 Customers’ liabilities on acceptances, letters of credit 
		  and trust receipts 7,068,555 5,072,884 7,068,555 5,072,884
	 Bills purchased (Note 21) 3,604,241 2,082,774 3,604,241 2,082,774
	 Lease contracts receivable (Note 27) 1,875,682 1,779,149 106,350 86,200
	 Credit card receivables 335,671 484,103 335,671 484,103

115,549,808 95,066,646 113,204,936 92,965,701
Less unearned and other deferred income 909,680 595,399 705,225 415,871

114,640,128 94,471,247 112,499,711 92,549,830
Unquoted debt securities 8,361,129 11,225,478 8,361,129 11,225,478
Other receivables:
	 Accrued interest receivable (Note 31) 6,344,908 6,857,057 6,312,182 6,838,802
	 Accounts receivable 6,072,310 5,864,079 4,183,025 3,697,134
	 Sales contract receivable 3,902,891 4,221,452 3,902,891 4,221,452
	 Miscellaneous 469,009 722,474 468,604 720,006

16,789,118 17,665,062 14,866,702  15,477,394 
139,790,375 123,361,787 135,727,542 119,252,702

Less allowance for credit losses (Note 15) 13,541,340 13,046,309 13,074,591 12,710,967
P126,249,035 P110,315,478 P122,652,951 P106,541,735

90 TODAY, WE START ON YOUR TOMORROW



Below is the reconciliation of loans and receivables as to classes:

Consolidated
2011

Business
Loans

GOCCs
and NGAs LGUs Consumers

Fringe
Benefits

Unquoted
Debt

Securities Others Total
Receivable from customers:
	 Loans and discounts (Note 31) P67,431,847 P20,774,498 P5,975,274 P7,772,107 P711,933 P– P– P102,665,659
	 Customers’ liabilities on acceptances,
		  letters of credit and trust receipts 1,361,663 5,706,892 – – – – – 7,068,555
	 Bills purchased (Note 21)   2,221,971 1,382,270 – – – – – 3,604,241
	 Lease contracts receivable  (Note 27) 1,875,682 – – – – – – 1,875,682
	 Credit card accounts –  – – 335,671 – – – 335,671

72,891,163 27,863,660 5,975,274 8,107,778 711,933 – – 115,549,808
Less unearned and other deferred income 909,680 – – – – – – 909,680

71,981,483 27,863,660 5,975,274 8,107,778 711,933 – – 114,640,128
Unquoted debt securities –  – – – –  8,361,129 –   8,361,129
Other receivables:
	 Accrued interest receivable (Note 31) – – – – – – 6,344,908 6,344,908
	 Accounts receivable – – – – – – 6,072,310 6,072,310
	 Sales contract receivables – – – – – – 3,902,891 3,902,891
	 Miscellaneous – – – – – – 469,009 469,009

71,981,483 27,863,660 5,975,274 8,107,778 711,933 8,361,129 16,789,118 139,790,375
Less allowance for credit losses (Note 15) 4,653,994 89,648 74,998 586,329 14,858 3,772,632 4,348,881 13,541,340

P67,327,489 P27,774,012 P5,900,276 P7,521,449 P697,075 P4,588,497 P12,440,237 P126,249,035

Consolidated
2010

Business
Loans

GOCCs
and NGAs LGUs Consumers

Fringe
Benefits

Unquoted
Debt

Securities Others Total
Receivable from customers:
	 Loans and discounts (Note 31) P57,439,442 P13,663,442 P6,424,165 P7,367,453 P753,234 P– P– P85,647,736
	 Customers’ liabilities on acceptances,
		  letters of credit and trust receipts 1,597,223 3,475,661 – – – – – 5,072,884
	 Bills purchased (Note 21) 2,029,728 53,046 – – – – – 2,082,774
	 Lease contracts receivable (Note 27) 1,768,276 – – 10,873 – – – 1,779,149
	 Credit card accounts – – – 484,103 – – – 484,103

62,834,669 17,192,149 6,424,165 7,862,429 753,234 – –  95,066,646 
Less unearned and other deferred income 595,399 – – – – – – 595,399

62,239,270 17,192,149 6,424,165 7,862,429 753,234 – – 94,471,247
Unquoted debt securities – – – – – 11,225,478 – 11,225,478
Other receivables:
	 Accrued interest receivable (Note 31) – – – – – – 6,857,057 6,857,057
	 Accounts receivable – – – – – – 5,864,079 5,864,079
	 Sales contract receivables – – – – – – 4,221,452 4,221,452
	 Miscellaneous – – – – – – 722,474 722,474

62,239,270 17,192,149 6,424,165 7,862,429 753,234 11,225,478 17,665,062 123,361,787
Less allowance for credit losses (Note 15) 4,624,834 112,037 71,759 316,861 23,960 3,599,687 4,297,171 13,046,309

P57,614,436 P17,080,112 P6,352,406 P7,545,568 P729,274 P7,625,791 P13,367,891 P110,315,478

91PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK  2011 ANNUAL REPORT



Parent Company
2011

Business
Loans

GOCCs
and NGAs LGUs Consumers

Fringe
Benefits

Unquoted
Debt

Securities Others Total
Receivable from customers:
	 Loans and discounts (Note 31) P67,028,397 P20,774,498 P5,975,274 P7,610,102 P701,848 P– P– P102,090,119
	 Customers’ liabilities on acceptances,
		  letters of credit and trust receipts 1,361,663 5,706,892 – – – – – 7,068,555
	 Bills purchased (Note 21) 2,221,971 1,382,270 – – – – – 3,604,241

Lease contract receivable (Note 27) 106,350 – – – – – – 106,350
	 Credit card accounts – – – 335,671 – – – 335,671

70,718,381 27,863,660 5,975,274 7,945,773 701,848 – – 113,204,936
Less unearned and other deferred income 705,225 – – – – – – 705,225

70,013,156 27,863,660 5,975,274 7,945,773 701,848 – – 112,499,711
Unquoted debt securities – – – – – 8,361,129 – 8,361,129
Other receivables:
	 Accrued interest receivable (Note 31) – – – – – – 6,312,182 6,312,182
	 Accounts receivable – – – – – – 4,183,025 4,183,025
	 Sales contract receivables – – – – – – 3,902,891 3,902,891
	 Miscellaneous – – – – – – 468,604 468,604

70,013,156 27,863,660 5,975,274 7,945,773 701,848 8,361,129 14,866,702 135,727,542
Less allowance for credit losses (Note 15) 4,371,740 89,648 74,998 527,603 14,745 3,772,632 4,223,225 13,074,591

P65,641,416 P27,774,012 P5,900,276 P7,418,170 P687,103 P4,588,497 P10,643,477 P122,652,951

Parent Company
2010

Business
Loans

GOCCs
and NGAs LGUs Consumers

Fringe
Benefits

Unquoted
Debt

Securities Others Total
Receivable from customers:
	 Loans and discounts (Note 31) P57,905,026 P13,663,442 P6,424,165 P6,507,539 P739,568 P– P– P85,239,740
	 Customers’ liabilities on acceptances,
		  letters of credit and trust receipts 1,597,223 3,475,661 – – – – – 5,072,884
	 Bills purchased (Note 21) 2,029,728 53,046 – – – – – 2,082,774

Lease contract receivables (Note 27) 86,200 – – – – – – 86,200
	 Credit card accounts – – – 484,103 – – – 484,103

61,618,177 17,192,149 6,424,165 6,991,642 739,568 – – 92,965,701
Less unearned and other deferred income 415,871 – – – – – – 415,871

61,202,306 17,192,149 6,424,165 6,991,642 739,568 – – 92,549,830
Unquoted debt securities – – – – – 11,225,478 – 11,225,478
Other receivables:
	 Accrued interest receivable (Note 31) – – – – – – 6,838,802 6,838,802
	 Accounts receivable – – – – – – 3,697,134 3,697,134
	 Sales contract receivables – – – – – – 4,221,452 4,221,452
	 Miscellaneous – – – – – – 720,006 720,006

61,202,306 17,192,149 6,424,165 6,991,642 739,568 11,225,478 15,477,394 119,252,702
Less allowance for credit losses (Note 15) 4,401,346 112,037 71,759 316,861 23,960 3,599,687 4,185,317 12,710,967

P56,800,960 P17,080,112 P6,352,406 P6,674,781 P715,608 P7,625,791 P11,292,077 P106,541,735

Refer to Note 31 for the loans and advances to related parties.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, 94.05% and 91.19%, respectively, of the total receivable from customers of the Parent Company were subject to 
quarterly interest repricing.  Remaining receivables carry annual fixed interest rates ranging from 2.55% to 9.00% as of December 31, 2011 and from 
2.25% to 8.75% as of December 31, 2010 for foreign currency-denominated receivables, and from 5.55% to 15.00% as of December 31, 2011 and from 
5.32% to 17.50% as of December 31, 2010 for peso-denominated receivables.

Sales contract receivables bear fixed interest rate per annum ranging from 1.76% to 16.50% and 1.67% to 16.50% as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively.

The EIR of ‘Loans receivables’, ‘Unquoted debt instruments’ and ‘Sales contract receivables’ range from 2.63% to 9.00% as of December 31, 2011 and 
from 5.66% to 9.30% as of December 31, 2010 for foreign currency-denominated receivables, and from 5.55% to 15.00% as of December 31, 2011 and 
6.86% to 12.52% as of December 31, 2010 for peso-denominated receivables.

In 2004, the Parent Company sold the outstanding loans receivable of P5.3 billion from National Steel Corporation (NSC) to SPV companies under the 
provisions of RA No. 9182.  In consideration for such sale, the Parent Company received zero-coupon notes and cash totaling P4.2 billion.  In accordance 
with the BSP Memorandum dated February 16, 2004, Accounting Guidelines on the Sale of Nonperforming Assets to Special Purpose Vehicles, the 
P1.6 billion allowance for impairment losses previously provided for the NSC loans receivable was released by the Parent Company to cover additional 
allowance for credit and impairment losses required for other existing NPAs and other risk assets of the Parent Company.  With the release of such 
allowance, the loss on the sale of the NSC loans receivable to the SPV amounting to P1.1 billion representing the difference between the carrying 
value of the receivables and consideration received was deferred by the Parent Company, recognized as deferred charges under ‘Other Assets’, and 
amortized over 10 years as allowed under the regulations issued by the BSP for banks and financial institutions availing of the provisions of RA No. 9182  
(see Note 14).
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Unquoted debt instruments include the zero-coupon notes received by the Parent Company on October 15, 2004, as discussed above, at the principal 
amount of P803.5 million (Tranche A Note) payable in five (5) years and at the principal amount of P3.4 billion (Tranche B Note) payable in eight (8) years 
in exchange for the outstanding loans receivable from NSC of P5.3 billion.  The notes are secured by a first ranking mortgage and security interest over 
the NSC Plant Assets.  As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, these notes had a carrying value of P186.0 million and P356.0 million, respectively.

On October 10, 2008, simultaneous to the denial of their application in the Philippine courts for injunctive relief, the SPV companies filed a Notice of 
Arbitration with the Singapore International Arbitration Centre (“SIAC”).  Mainly, the SPV companies claimed damages and a suspension of payments 
on the ground that the consortium of banks (the banks) and the Liquidator breached a duty to settle pre-closing real estate taxes (taxes due as of 
October 14, 2004) due on the NSC Plant Assets and to deliver to them titles to NSC’s Plant Assets free from all liens and encumbrances.  However, the 
banks and the Liquidator dispute the assertions that pre-closing taxes were in arrears, invoking under an installment agreement executed between 
the Liquidator and the City of Iligan.  As part of the agreement to sell the plant assets to the SPV companies, the Liquidator assumed responsibility of 
settling and paying the Plant Assets’ pre-closing real estate taxes, while the SPV companies assumed the responsibility of updating the post-closing 
taxes (taxes due after October 14, 2004).  Consequently, all pre-closing real estate taxes due on the plant assets have been paid in accelerated basis 
on December 18, 2008.  

On October 13, 2008, after the commencement of the arbitration but before the arbitral panel was constituted, the SPV companies filed, as a preservatory 
measure, a petition for injunctive relief against the NSC Liquidator, NSC Secured Creditors, and NSC Stockholders so that the arbitration proceedings 
under SIAC will not be rendered moot.  On October 14, 2008, the Singapore High Court granted the petition and restrained the NSC Liquidator, the 
NSC Secured Creditors and the NSC Shareholders, jointly and severally, substantially from declaring the SPV companies  in default and declaring all 
installments due until the arbitration proceeding at the SIAC is settled.

Thereafter, upon application by the Parent Company for a variation of the injunction and an order of the Singapore High court, the SPV companies 
remitted P750.0 million cash in place of the  Standby Letter of Credit which they undertook to provide under the Asset Purchase Agreement, subject to 
the condition that the amount shall not be subject to any set-off pending an award from the arbitration proceedings.

On January 26, 2009, the Parent Company applied for an Order to compel the SPV companies to issue another Standby Letter of Credit of P1.0 billion 
which they likewise undertook to provide under the Asset Purchase Agreement, but this application was denied on March 5, 2009 by the Singapore High 
Court.  The denial of the second variation (the P1.0 billion Standby Letter of Credit) was elevated to the Court of Appeals of Singapore but the same was 
also denied on September 11, 2009, without prejudice, however, to resort to the same reliefs before the Arbitration Panel.

In April 2010, the Arbitral Panel was constituted. The Parent Company filed therein an application to discharge or vary the injunction. On July 7, 2010, 
the Arbitration Panel issued a ruling denying the Parent Company’s application for a discharge of the injunction issued by the Singapore High Court. On 
the application to vary the injunction order, no ruling was made by the Arbitration Panel. 

Consequently,  the main issues for alleged breach of the Asset Purchase Agreement,  damages and suspension of payments were heard before the 
Arbitration Panel. The last hearings  were held from October 17 to 21, 2011.   The case is now submitted for decision of the Arbitration Panel. 

In 2005, the Parent Company sold another pool of NPAs with outstanding balance of P4.7 billion. Upon adoption of PAS 39 on January 1, 2005, the 
Parent Company did not set up allowance for credit losses on the NPAs sold to SPV since it availed of the provisions of RA No. 9182 in the recognition of 
the loss from sale of P4.3 billion.  This loss was deferred and amortized over 10 years (see Note 14).

In 2006, the Parent Company entered into another sale and purchase agreement for the sale of certain NPAs.  The loss on sale amounting to P1.9 billion 
was deferred and amortized over 10 years as allowed under RA No. 9182.  As part of this sale and purchase agreement, another pool of NPAs was sold 
in 2007.  As allowed by the regulatory accounting policies (RAP) prescribed by the BSP for banks and financial institutions availing of the provisions of RA 
No. 9182, the additional required allowance for credit losses on these NPAs amounting to P1.3 billion was not recognized in the financial statements as 
of December 31, 2006 since upon sale in March 2007, the loss was deferred and amortized over 10 years (see Notes 9 and 14).

Unquoted debt instruments also include bonds issued by Philippine Sugar Corporation (PSC) amounting to P2.7 billion with accrued interest included 
under ‘Accrued interest receivable’ amounting to P2.3 billion.  The bonds carry an annual interest rate of 4.00% and will mature in 2014.  The full 
repayment of principal and accumulated interest to maturity is guaranteed by a sinking fund managed by the Parent Company’s Trust Banking Group 
(TBG).  As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the sinking fund amounted to P5.1 billion and P4.9 billion, respectively, earning an average rate of return of 
8.82% per annum.  Management expects that the value of the sinking fund in the year 2014 will be more than adequate to cover the full redemption 
value of PSC bonds.

On November 27, 1997, Maybank Philippines, Inc. (Maybank) and the Parent Company signed a deed of assignment transferring to the Parent 
Company certain Maybank assets (included under ‘Accounts receivable’) and liabilities in connection with the sale of the Parent Company’s 60.00% 
equity in Maybank.  As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the balance of these receivables amounted to P3.3 billion and P3.7 billion, respectively, and 
the transferred liabilities (included under ‘Bills payable to BSP and local banks’ - see Note 18 and ‘Accrued interest payable’) amounted to P3.1 billion 
and P3.4 billion, respectively.  The excess of the transferred receivables over the transferred liabilities is fully covered by an allowance for credit losses 
amounting to P241.8 million and P262.5 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  The remaining equity ownership of the Parent 
Company in Maybank was sold in June 2000 (see Note 32).
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BSP Reporting
The table below shows the industry sector analysis of the Group’s and Parent Company’s receivable from customers before taking into account the 
allowance for credit losses (amounts in millions).

Consolidated
2011 2010

Carrying Amount % Carrying Amount %
Loans and Receivables
Receivable from customers:
	 Primary target industry: 
		  Public administration and defense P21,617 18.71 P7,951 8.36
		  Wholesale and retail 21,370 18.49 23,819 25.05
		  Transport, storage and communication 16,696 14.45 11,397 11.99
		  Electricity, gas and water 14,604 12.64 12,991 13.67
		  Manufacturing 13,215 11.44 10,146 10.67
		  Financial intermediaries 5,550 4.80 3,986 4.19
		  Agriculture, hunting and forestry 2,688 2.33 3,194 3.36
	 Secondary target industry:
		  Real estate, renting and business activities 8,014 6.94 7,155 7.53
		  Construction 1,159 1.00 786 0.83
		  Others* 10,637 9.20 13,642 14.35

P115,550 100.00 P95,067 100.00

Parent Company
2011 2010

Carrying Amount % Carrying Amount %
Loans and Receivables
Receivable from customers:
	 Primary target industry: 
		  Public administration and defense P21,617 19.10 P7,668 8.25
		  Wholesale and retail 21,140 18.67 23,165 24.92
		  Transport, storage and communication 16,147 14.26 11,397 12.26
		  Electricity, gas and water 14,604 12.90 12,991 13.97
		  Manufacturing 12,634 11.16 9,960 10.71
		  Financial intermediaries 5,520 4.88 3,857 4.15
		  Agriculture, hunting and forestry 2,619 2.31 3,153 3.39
	 Secondary target industry:
		  Real estate, renting and business activities 7,998 7.07 6,347 6.83
		  Construction 990 0.87 786 0.85
		  Others* 9,936 8.78 13,642 14.67

P113,205 100.00 P92,966 100.00

The information (gross of unearned and other deferred income) relating to receivable from customers as to secured and unsecured and as to collateral 
follows:

Consolidated
2011 2010

Amount % Amount %
Secured:
	 Real estate mortgage P20,363,457 17.62 P13,584,215 14.29
	 Chattel mortgage 3,146,685 2.72 2,222,510 2.34
	 Bank deposit hold-out 2,640,111 2.28 2,381,335 2.50
	 Shares of stocks 358,596 0.31 493,888 0.52
	 Others 11,111,247 9.62 9,145,475 9.62

37,620,096 32.55 27,827,423 29.27
Unsecured 77,929,712 67.45 67,239,223 70.73

P115,549,808 100.00 P95,066,646 100.00

94 TODAY, WE START ON YOUR TOMORROW



Parent Company
2011 2010

Amount % Amount %
Secured:
	 Real estate mortgage P20,332,088 17.96 P13,541,857 14.57
	 Chattel mortgage 2,824,504 2.50 2,230,005 2.40
	 Bank deposit hold-out 2,634,352 2.32 2,288,931 2.46
	 Shares of stocks 358,596 0.32 493,888 0.53
	 Others 9,223,956 8.15 7,452,451 8.01

35,373,496 31.25 26,007,132 27.97
Unsecured 77,831,440 68.75 66,958,569 72.03

P113,204,936 100.00 P92,965,701 100.00

Non-performing Loans (NPL) as to secured and unsecured follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Secured P5,215,732 P4,321,843 P5,209,048 P4,313,895
Unsecured 1,696,344 3,344,338 1,636,094 3,283,943

P6,912,076 P7,666,181 P6,845,142 P7,597,838

Generally, NPLs refer to loans whose principal and/or interest is unpaid for thirty (30) days or more after due date or after they have become past due in 
accordance with existing BSP rules and regulations.  This shall apply to loans payable in lump sum and loans payable in quarterly, semi-annual, or annual 
installments, in which case, the total outstanding balance thereof shall be considered nonperforming.

In the case of loans that are payable in monthly installments, the total outstanding balance thereof shall be considered nonperforming when three (3) or 
more installments are in arrears.

In the case of loans that are payable in daily, weekly, or semi-monthly installments, the total outstanding balance thereof shall be considered nonperforming 
at the same time that they become past due in accordance with existing BSP regulations, i.e., the entire outstanding balance of the receivable shall be 
considered as past due when the total amount of arrearages reaches ten percent (10.00%) of the total loan balance.

Loans are classified as nonperforming in accordance with BSP regulations, or when, in the opinion of management, collection of interest or principal is 
doubtful.  Loans are not reclassified as performing until interest and principal payments are brought current or the loans are restructured in accordance 
with existing BSP regulations, and future payments appear assured.

Loans which do not meet the requirements to be treated as performing loans shall also be considered as NPLs.  Current banking regulations allow banks 
that have no unbooked valuation reserves and capital adjustments to exclude from nonperforming classification those loans classified as Loss in the latest 
examination of the BSP which are fully covered by allowance for credit losses, provided that interest on said receivables shall not be accrued.

The details of the NPL of the Group and the Parent Company follow:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Total NPLs P6,912,076 P7,666,181 P6,845,142 P7,597,838
Less NPL fully covered by allowance for credit losses 2,341,141 2,757,358 2,341,141 2,643,936

P4,570,935 P4,908,823 P4,504,001 P4,953,902

Most of these loans are secured by real estate or chattel mortgages.

Restructured loans of the Group and the Parent Company as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 amounted to P3.3 billion and P2.9 billion, respectively.

Interest income on loans and receivables consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Receivable from customers and 
	 sales contract receivables P7,261,307 P6,861,279 P7,338,921 P7,127,101 P6,572,548 P7,043,623
Unquoted debt securities 275,699 355,017 487,164 275,699 355,017 487,164

P7,537,006 P7,216,296 P7,826,085 P7,402,800 P6,927,565 P7,530,787

Interest income accrued on impaired loans and receivable amounted to P373.3 million in 2011, P354.6 million in 2010 and P499.7 million in 2009 
(Note 15).
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Receivable from Special Purpose Vehicle9.	

Receivable from SPV represents the present value of the notes received by the Parent Company from the sale of the first pool and second pool of NPAs to 
an SPV in December 2006 and March 2007, respectively.  The asset sale and purchase agreements (ASPA) were executed on December 19, 2006.  As of 
December 31, 2011 and 2010, Receivable from SPV is net of allowance for credit losses amounting to P833.8 million andP736.6 million (Note 14). 

The more significant terms of the sale are as follows:
 

Certain NPAs of the Parent Company will be sold to the SPV and divided into two pools.  The sale of the first pool of NPAs with an outstanding balance a.	
of P11.7 billion was made on December 29, 2006 for a total consideration of P11.7 billion.  

The agreed purchase price of the first pool of NPAs shall be paid as follows:b.	

An initial amount of i.	 P1.1 billion, which was received in full and acknowledged by the Parent Company on February 14, 2007; and
The balance of ii.	 P10.6 billion, through issuance of SPV Notes, shall be paid over five (5) years based on a cash flow waterfall arrangement and at 
an interest equivalent to the 3-month MART prevailing as of the end of the quarter prior to the payment date.

The Parent Company availed of the incentives provided under RA No. 9182 in the recognition of loss from the sale amounting to P1.9 billion (see Note 8).  
Under RA No. 9182, the loss on sale of NPAs to SPV companies can be amortized over 10 years (see Note 14).

Under the ASPA, the sale of the second pool of NPAs amounting to P7.6 billion with allowance for credit losses of P5.5 billion became effective in March 
2007.  The BSP confirmed in its letter dated February 28, 2007 that these NPAs qualify as a true sale under RA No. 9182 as of December 31, 2006.  The 
agreed purchase price of this pool of NPAs shall be paid as follows:

An initial amount of a.	 P751.1 million, which was received in full and acknowledged by the Parent Company on April 26, 2007; and

The balance of b.	 P6.8 billion through issuance of SPV Notes, shall be paid over five (5) years based on a cash flow waterfall arrangement and at an 
interest equivalent to the 3-month MART prevailing as of the end of the quarter prior to the payment date.  In case of insufficiency of funds for 
payment of the SPV Notes, the buyer of the NPAs, with the consent of the Parent Company, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, may 
write-off the SPV Notes, including all interest, fees and charges outstanding and payable.

As discussed in Note 8, since the Parent Company again availed of the incentives mentioned above, the loss amounting to P1.3 billion was amortized over 
10 years.  The sale of the NPAs to the SPV qualified for derecognition under BSP regulatory reporting rules.  However, PFRS and Philippine GAAP for banks 
require that the accounts of the SPV that acquired the NPAs of the Parent Company should be consolidated into the Group’s accounts.  

Had the accounts of the SPV been consolidated into the Group’s accounts, total assets, liabilities and non-controlling interest in equity of consolidated 
entities would have increased by P0.5 billion, P0.03 billion and P0.5 billion, respectively, as of December 31, 2011.  Net income and non-controlling interest 
in net income would have increased by P0.08 billion in 2011.  As of December 31, 2010, total assets, liabilities and noncontrolling interest in equity of 
consolidated entities would have been increased by P1.1 billion, P0.1 billion and P1.0 billion, respectively.  Net income and non-controlling interest in net 
income would have increased by P0.4 billion in 2010 and P0.8 billion in 2009.

Investment Securities10.	

This account consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

AFS investments:
	 Government securities (Notes 16, 18 and 30) P42,614,457 P27,568,048 P41,218,164 P26,456,593 
	 Other debt securities 9,391,518 6,434,689 9,012,310 6,071,476 
	 Equity securities - net of allowance for impairment losses (Note 15) 317,833 528,519 198,503 411,272

P52,323,808 P34,531,256 P50,428,977 P32,939,341
HTM investments:
	 Government securities (Notes 16, 18 and 30) P– P32,739,615 P– P32,651,512
	 Other debt securities – 5,500,643 – 5,500,643

P– P38,240,258 P– P38,152,155
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As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, unquoted AFS equity securities amounted to P161.9 million and P337.9 million for the Group, respectively, and 
P161.9 million and P357.1 million for the Parent Company, respectively.  No impairment loss has been recognized on these securities in 2011 and 2010.

Other debt securities consist of notes issued by private entities and the host contracts on the CLN and deposits issued by foreign banks. 

Effective interest rates range from 2.49% to 8.15% and from 1.96% to 6.78% for peso-denominated and foreign currency-denominated AFS investments, 
respectively, as of December 31, 2011.  Effective interest rates range from 3.50% to 12.38% and from 1.25% to 10.63% for peso-denominated and 
foreign currency-denominated AFS investments, respectively, as of December 31, 2010.

Effective interest rates range from 2.46% to 12.38% and from 2.50% to 10.63% for peso-denominated and foreign currency-denominated HTM 
investments, respectively, as of December 31, 2010.  

As of December 31, 2011, the fair value of the AFS investments in the form of Fixed Rate Treasury Notes pledged to fulfill its collateral requirements for the 
peso rediscounting facility of BSP and for the outstanding cross currency swaps amounted to P4.5 billion.

As of December 31, 2010, the fair value of the AFS investments in the form of Fixed Rate Treasury Notes and HTM investment in the form of US Treasury 
Notes pledged in order to fulfill its collateral requirements for the peso rediscounting facility of BSP amounted to P7.1 billion and USD112.5 million or 
P4.9 billion, respectively.  The counterparties have an obligation to return the securities to the Parent Company once the obligations have been settled 
down.  There are no other significant terms and conditions associated with the pledged investments.

Interest income on trading and investment securities consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

AFS investments P1,776,577 P1,036,740 P845,282 P1,691,357 P946,388 P766,440
HTM investments 1,756,045 2,410,595 2,691,011 1,755,521 2,409,699 2,689,697
Financial assets at FVPL 728,014 991,622 760,669 728,014 991,622 760,668

P4,260,636 P4,438,957 P4,296,962 P4,174,892 P4,347,709 P4,216,805

Trading and investment securities gains (losses) - net consist of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Financial assets at FVPL:
	 Designated at FVPL (P135,378) P104,387 P863,125 (P135,378) P104,387 P863,125
	 Derivatives 134,068 751,677 405,791 134,068 751,677 405,791
	 Held-for-trading (32,164) 840,133 254,568 (32,288) 840,132 254,568
AFS investments 3,596,089 1,185,384 379,695 3,566,589 1,088,004 363,244
HTM investments 141,274 	 – 	 – 141,274 	 – 	 –
Financial liabilities at 	FVPL:
	 Derivative liabilities (113,162) 356,432 (346,671) (113,162) 356,432 (346,671)
	 Designated at FVPL 37,575 (206,921) (122,521) 37,575 (206,921) (122,521)

P3,628,302 P3,031,092 P1,433,987 P3,598,678 P2,933,711 P1,417,536

The movements in Net unrealized gains (losses) on AFS investments, gross of deferred tax, for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as 
follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Balance at the beginning of the year (P1,186,832) (P871,733) (P1,248,647) (P922,603)
Realized gains (3,596,089) (1,185,384) (3,556,589) (1,088,004)
Unrealized gains recognized in equity 5,590,380 870,285 5,514,833 761,960
Balance at end of year P807,459 (P1,186,832) P709,597 (P1,248,647)

In 2010, the Bank participated in the bond exchange transaction and exchanged its HFT and AFS investment securities for New ROP 2021 and Reopened 
2034 bonds amounting to USD110.6 million and USD11.2 million.  The Bank’s trading gain on this transaction amounted to USD2.8 million which is 
equivalent to P121.3 million.

In 2011, the Parent Company has pledged part of its AFS investments as security for the Surety Bond issued by PNB General Insurers, Co. Inc. As of 
December 31, 2011, the fair value of the AFS investments in the form of Fixed Rate Treasury Notes pledged amounted to P863.1 million.
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Reclassification of Financial Assets
2008 was characterized by a substantial deterioration in global market conditions, including severe shortage of liquidity and credit availability.  These 
conditions have led to a reduction in the level of market activity for many assets and the inability to sell other than at substantially lower prices.

Following the amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7, and as a result of the contraction in the market for many classes of assets, the Parent Company 
has undertaken a review of assets that are classified as held-for-trading, in order to determine whether this classification remains appropriate. Where 
it was determined that the market for an asset is no longer active or that the Parent Company no longer intends to trade, management has reviewed 
the instrument to determine whether it is appropriate to reclassify it to HTM investments or Loans and receivables.  This reclassification has only been 
performed where the Parent Company, at the reclassification date, has the clear intention and ability to hold the financial asset for the foreseeable future 
or until maturity.

On September 11, 2008, the Parent Company reclassified financial assets held-for-trading and AFS investments to HTM investments.  It also reclassified the 
related embedded credit derivatives on ROP CLN previously bifurcated and classified as FVPL to HTM investments.

The HTM securities reclassified from held-for-trading have the following balances:

December 31, 2008
Loss

Recognized

Face Value

Cost as at
Reclassification

Date Carrying Value Fair Value

Amortization
of Discount/

Premium

Prior to
Reclassification

During the Year
Effective

Interest Rates
Government bonds P1,383,305 P1,454,226 P1,450,396 P1,409,819 P3,829 (P40,420) 3.6% - 8.3%

Net positive fair value of embedded credit derivatives amounting to P10.5 million was reclassified to HTM investments and included in the EIR amortization 
until the maturity of the host instrument.

HTM investments reclassified from AFS investments have the following balances as of December 31, 2008:

December 31, 2008

Face Value

Cost as at
Reclassification

Date Carrying Value Fair Value
Net Unrealized

Gain (Loss)

Amortization
of Discount/

Premium
Effective

Interest Rates
Private bonds P6,755,925 P6,333,272 P6,612,427 P5,703,701 (P629,571) P279,155 5.4% - 8.9%
Government bonds 31,939,273 35,913,851 35,834,590 33,924,691 (1,989,160) (79,261) 3.0% - 6.8%

P38,695,198 P42,247,123 P42,447,017 P39,628,392 (P2,618,731) P199,894

The Parent Company expects to recover 100.00% of principal and interest totaling P70.9 billion and no impairment loss was recognized during the year.

Had these securities not been reclassified to HTM investments, derivative liabilities would have increased by P37.2 million, while AFS investments carrying 
value,and fair value would have increased by P37.2 million,and P40.4 billion, respectively, and the net unrealized loss would have decreased by P3.2 billion 
as of December 31, 2010.

On October 12, 2011, the Parent Company had identified a clear change of intent to exit or trade in the short term its HTM investments rather than hold 
until maturity.  The Parent Company disposed of a more than insignificant amount of its HTM investments.  This disposal necessitated the reclassification 
of the remaining HTM investments to AFS securities in accordance with PAS 39.  As of the date of reclassification, the amortized cost of HTM investments 
reclassified to AFS investments amounted to P32.5 billion.  Reclassified AFS investments are initially measured at its fair value amounting to P35.7 billion.  
Any difference between the amortized cost of HTM investments and its fair value when reclassified is recognized in the statement of other comprehensive 
income.

As of December 31, 2011, the carrying value of the securities reclassified out of HTM investments to AFS investments amounted to P9.8 billion.

For the period ended December 31, 2011, the net unrealized gain reclassified from equity to profit or loss due to sale of AFS investments amounted to 
P2.5 billion.
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Property and Equipment11.	

The composition of and movements in furniture, fixtures and equipment and leasehold improvements follow:

Consolidated
2011

Furniture,
Fixtures and

Equipment
Leasehold

Improvements Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P2,926,974 P306,727 P3,233,701
Additions 270,277 83,656 353,933
Disposals/others (154,701) (36,318) (191,019)
Balance at end of year 3,042,550 354,065 3,396,615
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 2,233,057 185,147 2,418,204
Depreciation and amortization 243,842 26,498 270,340
Disposals/others (146,197) (11,745) (157,942)
Balance at end of year 2,330,702 199,900 2,530,602
Net Book Value at End of Year P711,848 P154,165 P866,013

Consolidated
2010

Furniture,
Fixtures and
Equipment

Leasehold
Improvements Total

Cost
Balance at beginning of year P2,886,423 P264,199 P3,150,622
Additions 237,842 78,641 316,483
Disposals/others (197,291) (36,113) (233,404)
Balance at end of year 2,926,974 306,727 3,233,701
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 2,266,926 155,244 2,422,170
Depreciation and amortization 235,071 34,906 269,977
Disposals/others (268,940) (5,003) (273,943)
Balance at end of year 2,233,057 185,147 2,418,204
Net Book Value at End of Year P693,917 P121,580 P815,497

Parent Company
2011

Furniture,
Fixtures and

Equipment
Leasehold

Improvements Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P2,585,182 P188,508 P2,773,690
Additions 182,249 73,087 255,336
Disposals/others (129,173) (10,352) (139,525)
Balance at end of year 2,638,258 251,243 2,889,501
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 2,020,323 94,502 2,114,825
Depreciation and amortization 194,040 36,986 231,026
Disposals/others (124,821) (7,934) (132,755)
Balance at end of year 2,089,542 123,554 2,213,096
Net Book Value at End of Year P548,716 P127,689 P676,405
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Parent Company
2010

Furniture,
Fixtures and
Equipment

Leasehold
Improvements Total

Cost
Balance at beginning of year P2,593,112 P148,893 P2,742,005
Additions 120,928 45,629 166,557
Disposals/others (128,858) (6,014) (134,872)
Balance at end of year 2,585,182 188,508 2,773,690
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 2,062,720 68,494 2,131,214
Depreciation and amortization 189,749 26,353 216,102
Disposals/others (232,146) (345) (232,491)
Balance at end of year 2,020,323 94,502 2,114,825
Net Book Value at End of Year P564,859 P94,006 P658,865

The composition of and movements in land and buildings of the Group and the Parent Company carried at appraised value follow:

2011
Land Buildings Total

Appraised Value
Balance at beginning of year P11,345,823 P6,751,681 P18,097,504
Additions – 158,115 158,115
Disposals/others (50,354) (38,818) (89,172)
Balance at end of year 11,295,469 6,870,978 18,166,447
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year – 2,071,919 2,071,919
Depreciation – 158,790 158,790
Disposals/others – (400) (400)
Balance at end of year – 2,230,309 2,230,309
Allowance for Impairment Losses (Note 15) 191,450 46,174 237,624
Net Book Value at End of Year P11,104,019 P4,594,495 P15,698,514

2010
Land Buildings Total

Appraised Value
Balance at beginning of year P11,201,158 P6,725,039 P17,926,197
Appraisal increase (decrease) 147,149 (59,334) 87,815
Additions – 145,479 145,479
Disposals/others (2,484) (59,503) (61,987)
Balance at end of year 11,345,823 6,751,681 18,097,504
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year – 1,910,825 1,910,825
Depreciation – 171,669 171,669
Disposals/others – (10,575) (10,575)
Balance at end of year – 2,071,919 2,071,919
Allowance for Impairment Losses (Note 15) 163,023 46,119  209,142
Net Book Value at End of Year P11,182,800 P4,633,643 P15,816,443

The appraised value of land and building was determined by independent appraisers.

Depreciation on the revaluation increment of the buildings amounted to P74.80 million in 2011, P86.3 million in 2010 and P86.3 million in 2009 for the 
Group and the Parent Company.

Depreciation and amortization expense, inclusive of the depreciation on revaluation increment of the buildings, charged against operations of the 
Group amounted to P429.1 million in 2011, P441.6 million in 2010 and P441.5 million in 2009, and P389.8 million in 2011, P387.8 million in 2010 and 
P399.4 million in 2009 for the Parent Company.  Had the land and buildings been carried at cost, the net book value of the land and buildings would 
have been P4.6 billion and P4.3 billion as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, for the Group and the Parent Company.
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Depreciation and amortization consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Property and equipment P429,130 P441,646 P441,459 P389,816 P387,771 P399,366
Investment properties (Note 13) 200,820 381,236 818,030 198,765 379,181 816,097
Other foreclosed properties (Note 14) 26,454 14,722 2,552 5,359 14,539 2,499

P656,404 P837,604 P1,262,041 P593,940 P781,491 P1,217,962

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, property and equipment of the Parent Company with gross carrying amounts of P736.7 million and P727.0 million, 
respectively, is fully depreciated but is still being used.

Investments in Subsidiaries and an Associate12.	

The details of this account follow:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

	 Acquisition cost of:
		  Subsidiaries:
			   PNB IIC P– P– P2,028,202 P2,028,202
			   PNB Europe PLC – – 887,109 887,109
			   PNB GRF – – 753,061 753,061
			   PNB Holdings – – 377,876 377,876
			   PNB Capital – – 350,000 350,000
			   Japan - PNB Leasing – – 218,331 103,176
			   PNB Italy - SpA – – 176,520 176,520
			   PNB Securities – – 62,351 62,351
			   PNB Forex, Inc. – – 50,000 50,000
			   PNB Remittance Center, Ltd. – – 32,042 32,042
			   Omicron Asset Portfolio (SPV-AMC), Inc. – – 32,223 32,223
			   Tanzanite Investments (SPV-AMC), Inc. – – 32,223 32,223
			   Tau Portfolio Investments (SPV-AMC), Inc. – – 32,224 32,224
			   PNB Corporation - Guam – – 7,672 7,672
			   PNB GFRS – – – 57,726
			   PNB Austria – – – 6,721
			   PNB Venture Capital Corporation (60% owned) 5,061 5,061 5,061 5,061
		  Associate:
			   Allied Commercial Bank (ACB) (39.41% owned) 2,763,903 2,763,903 2,763,903 2,763,903

2,768,964 2,768,964 7,808,798 7,758,090
		  Accumulated equity in net earnings:
			   Balance at beginning of year 63,109 12,001 – –
			   Equity in net earnings for the year (Note 25) 68,955 45,065 – –
			   Equity in net unrealized gain on AFS investments of an associate 752 6,043 – –
			   Balance at end of year 132,816 63,109 – –
		  Less allowance for impairment losses (Note 15) – – 503,154 432,644

P2,901,780 P2,832,073 P7,305,644 P7,325,446

As part of the Group’s rehabilitation program in 2002, the SEC approved on November 7, 2002 the application of the accumulated translation adjustment 
of P1.6 billion to eliminate the Parent Company’s remaining deficit of P1.3 billion as of December 31, 2001, after applying the total reduction in par 
value amounting to P7.6 billion.  The SEC approval is subject to the following conditions: (a) remaining translation adjustment of P310.7 million as of 
December 31, 2001 (shown as part of Capital paid in excess of par value in the statement of financial position) will not be used to wipe out losses that may 
be incurred in the future without prior approval of SEC; and (b) for purposes of dividend declaration, any future surplus account of the Parent Company 
shall be restricted to the extent of the deficit wiped out by the translation adjustment.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the acquisition cost of the investments in the Parent Company’s separate financial statements includes the balance 
of P2.1 billion consisting of the translation adjustment and accumulated equity in net earnings, net of dividends subsequently received from the quasi-
reorganization date, that were closed to deficit on restructuring date and is not available for dividend declaration.
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In 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Parent Company’s subsidiaries declared cash dividends amounting to P231.6 million, P216.8 million and P20.3 million, 
respectively.  These are presented as part of ‘Miscellaneous income - other’ (see Note 25) in the parent company financial statements.

Effective January 31, 2011, the Group acquired an additional 30.00% interest in the voting shares of Japan PNB Leasing, increasing its ownership interest 
to 90.00%.  A cash consideration of P115.2 million was paid to the non-controlling interest shareholders.  The carrying value of the net assets of Japan 
PNB Leasing at the acquisition date was P384.0 million, and the carrying value of the additional interest acquired was P115.2 million.  The consideration 
approximates the carrying value of the interest acquired.

Investment in Allied Commercial Bank
In August 2009, the Parent Company acquired 39.41% ownership in ACB in Xiamen China for a total consideration of CNY394.1 million or  
USD 57.7 million (equivalent to P2.8 billion).

The following table illustrates the summarized financial information of ACB (in thousands):

2011 2010
Total assets P10,552,082 P8,087,046
Total liabilities 4,034,827 1,758,061
Total revenues 375,071 267,718
Net income 174,873 114,518

Investment Properties13.	

The composition of and movements in this account follow:

Consolidated
2011

	 Land
	 Building and
	 Improvements 	 Total

Cost
Balance at beginning of year P19,903,712 P6,403,309 P26,307,021
Additions 423,815 306,694 730,509
Disposals/others (3,007,652) (1,280,666) (4,288,318)
Balance at end of year 17,319,875 5,429,337 22,749,212
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year – 3,059,018 3,059,018
Depreciation (Note 11) – 200,820 200,820
Disposals/others – (614,094) (614,094)
Balance at end of year – 2,645,744 2,645,744
Accumulated Impairment Losses (Note 15)
Balance at beginning of year 4,059,708 1,275,096 5,334,804
Provision for  (recovery from) impairment losses (378,341) 161,542 (216,799)
Disposals/others (882,932) (231,718) (1,114,650)
Balance at end of year 2,798,435 1,204,920 4,003,355
Net Book Value at End of Year P14,521,440 P1,578,673 P16,100,113

Consolidated
2010

	 Land
	 Building and
	 Improvements 	 Total

Cost
Balance at beginning of year P21,880,268 P7,065,553 P28,945,821
Additions 1,747,023 197,638 1,944,661
Disposals/others (3,723,579) (859,882) (4,583,461)
Balance at end of year 19,903,712 6,403,309 26,307,021
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year – 3,074,556 3,074,556
Depreciation (Note 11) – 381,236 381,236
Disposals/others – (396,774) (396,774)
Balance at end of year – 3,059,018 3,059,018
Accumulated Impairment Losses (Note 15)
Balance at beginning of year 3,678,562 1,032,077 4,710,639
Provision for  impairment losses 1,244,537 84,170 1,328,707
Disposals/others (863,391) 158,850 (704,541)
Balance at end of year 4,059,708 1,275,097 5,334,805
Net Book Value at End of Year P15,844,004 P2,069,194 P17,913,198
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Parent Company
2011

	 Land
	 Building and
	 Improvements 	 Total

Cost
Balance at beginning of year P19,903,712 P6,301,383 P26,205,095
Additions 423,815 306,695 730,510
Disposals/others (3,007,652) (1,280,666) (4,288,318)
Balance at end of year 17,319,875 5,327,412 22,647,287
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 	 – 3,029,058 3,029,058
Depreciation (Note 11) 	 – 198,765 198,765
Disposals/others 	 – (614,094) (614,094)
Balance at end of year 	 – 2,613,729 2,613,729
Accumulated Impairment Losses (Note 15)
Balance at beginning of year 4,059,708 1,275,096 5,334,804
Provision for (recovery from) impairment losses (378,341) 161,542 (216,799)
Disposals/others (882,932) (231,718) (1,114,650)
Balance at end of year 2,798,435 1,204,920 4,003,355
Net Book Value at End of Year P14,521,440 P1,508,763 P16,030,203

Parent Company
2010

	 Land
	 Building and
	 Improvements 	 Total

Cost
Balance at beginning of year P21,880,268 P6,963,627 P28,843,895
Additions 1,747,023 197,638 1,944,661
Disposals/others (3,723,579) (859,882) (4,583,461)
Balance at end of year 19,903,712 6,301,383 26,205,095
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 	 – 3,046,651 3,046,651
Depreciation (Note 11) 	 – 379,181 379,181
Disposals/others 	 – (396,774) (396,774)
Balance at end of year 	 – 3,029,058 3,029,058
Accumulated Impairment Losses (Note 15)
Balance at beginning of year 3,678,562 1,032,077 4,710,639
Provision for  impairment losses 1,244,537 84,170 1,328,707
Disposals/others (863,391) 158,850 (704,541)
Balance at end of year 4,059,708 1,275,097 5,334,805
Net Book Value at End of Year P15,844,004 P1,997,228 P17,841,232

Investment properties include real properties foreclosed or acquired in settlement of loans.  The fair value of the investment properties of the Group as 
of December 31, 2011 and 2010, as determined by independent and/or in-house appraisers amounted to P24.1 billion and P29.4 billion, respectively, of 
which P24.0 billion and P29.3 billion, respectively, pertains to the Parent Company.  Valuations were derived on the basis of recent sales of similar properties 
in the same area as the investment properties and taking into account the economic conditions prevailing at the time the valuations were made.  The Group 
and the Parent Company are exerting continuing efforts to dispose these properties.

As discussed in Note 32, investment properties with an aggregate fair value of P300.0 million are mortgaged in favor of BSP.

Foreclosed investment properties of the Parent Company still subject to redemption period by the borrowers amounted to P308.6 million and 
P227.6 million, as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

For the Group, direct operating expenses on investment properties that generated rental income during the year (other than depreciation and amortization), 
included under ‘Miscellaneous expenses - Foreclosure and other ROPA - related expenses’ in Note 25, amounted to P27.7 million, P20.4 million and 
P65.0 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.  While direct operating expenses on investment properties that did not generate rental income 
included under ‘Miscellaneous expenses - Foreclosure and other ROPA - related expenses’ in Note 25, amounted to P292.0 million, P532.0 million, and 
P239.5 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

For the Parent Company, direct operating expenses on investment properties that generated rental income during the year (other than depreciation 
and amortization), included under ‘Miscellaneous expenses - Foreclosure and other ROPA-related expenses’ in Note 25, amounted to P27.7 million, 
P20.4 million, and P65.0 million, for 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.  While direct operating expenses on investment properties that did not generate 
rental income during the year, included under ‘Miscellaneous expenses - Foreclosure and other ROPA-related expenses’ in Note 25, amounted to 
P291.8 million, P532.0 million, and P239.5 million for 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
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Other Assets14.	

This account consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Deferred charges P4,813,686 P5,745,721 P4,784,581 P5,661,832

Real estate under JV agreements 2,419,610 2,358,301 2,419,610 2,358,301
Software costs 409,390 502,435 403,055 495,167
Deferred reinsurance premiums 230,685 194,276 	 – 	 –
Prepaid expenses 113,874 78,158 90,361 62,703
Sundry debits 86,445 68,685 86,327 68,685
Miscellaneous COCI 5,220 1,970 5,220 1,970
Miscellaneous (Note 26) 582,353 597,510 438,686 445,865

8,661,263 9,547,056 8,227,840 9,094,523
Less allowance for impairment losses (Note 15) 546,228 591,426 518,566 587,400

P8,115,035 P8,955,630 P7,709,274 P8,507,123

Deferred Charges
Deferred charges mainly represent the losses on sale of NPAs to SPV being amortized over 10 years as allowed by RA No. 9182 (see Notes 8 and 9) based 
on the following schedule:

End of Year From Date of Transaction Cumulative Write-down of Deferred Charges
Year 1 5%
Year 2 10%
Year 3 15%
Year 4 25%
Year 5 35%
Year 6 45%
Year 7 55%
Year 8 70%
Year 9 85%
Year 10 100%

Had the losses been charged against operations in the year the NPAs were sold as required by Philppine GAAP for banks, deferred charges and equity would 
have been decreased by P4.7 billion and P5.6 billion as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

In 2011, the Parent Company changed its accounting policy on the amortization of deferred charges and restated its 2010 and 2009 financial statements 
to comply with RAP.  Under RAP, the amortization of deferred charges is charged against current operations.  Prior to the restatement, the amortization 
was charged against ‘Surplus, beginning’.

Amortization of deferred charges charged to current operations amounted to P860.4 million, P844.1 million and P698.1 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, 
respectively.  Had the amortization of deferred charges been charged to Surplus, beginning, as required by Philippine GAAP for banks, net income of the 
Group and the Parent Company would have been increased by P860.4 million, P844.1 million and P698.1 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

For the purpose of computing the Parent Company’s RCIT, the loss is treated as an ordinary loss and will be carried over as a deduction from the Parent 
Company’s taxable income for five consecutive taxable years immediately following the year of sale.
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BSP Reporting on Deferred Charges:
Additional information on the NPAs sold to SPVs and the related deferred charges follow:

Parent Company Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2011

PARTICULARS

Qualified for 
Derecognition 

Under PFRS/PAS

Not Qualified for 
Derecognition 

Under PRFS/PAS Total

I.	Balance as of Date Sale
	 A.	NPAs sold, gross P10,365,575 P17,699,783 P28,065,358
				   Allowance for Credit Losses (Specific) on NPAs sold 7,048,505 11,047,597 18,096,102
				   Net Carrying Amount 3,317,070 6,652,186 9,969,256
	 B.	Allowance for Credit Losses (Specific) on NPAs Sold Applied to:
				   (1)	Unbooked allowance for probable losses:
					    (a) Specific – – –
					    (b) General – – –
				   (2)	Additional allowance for probable losses:
					    (a) Specific 7,048,505 – 7,048,505
					    (b) General – – –
	 C.	Cash Received/Others 592,147 1,900,000 2,492,147
	 D. Financial Instruments Received 4,031,584 1,361,074 5,392,658
	 E.	Deferred Charges 5,358,831 3,245,149 8,603,980
II.	Outstanding Balance as of Reporting Date
	 A. Financial Instruments Received, Gross as of 12/31/11 3,927,466 833,848 4,761,314
				   Less: Allowance for Credit Losses (specific) 3,741,442 833,848 4,575,290
				   Carrying Amount of Financial Instruments Received 186,024 – 186,024
				   Less: Unbooked Allowance for Credit Losses (specific) – – –
			   Adjusted Carrying Amount of Financial Instruments Received 186,024 – 186,024
	 B. Deferred Charges, Gross 5,358,831 3,245,149 8,603,980
				   Less: Deferred Charges Written Down 2,769,103 1,103,231 3,872,334
				   Carrying Amount of Deferred Charges, 12/31/11 P2,589,728 P2,141,918 P4,731,646

Parent Company Income Statement
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Net income after income tax (without regulatory relief) P3,909,834
Less: Net Carrying Amount of Deferred Charges P2,589,728 P2,141,918 4,731,646
	 Unbooked Allowance for Credit Losses (specific) on 
		  Financial Instruments Received
		  Total Deduction 2,589,728 2,141,918 4,731,646
		  Less: Deferred Tax Liability, if applicable – – –
		  Total Deduction 2,589,728 2,141,918 4,731,646
		  Net Deduction – – –
Net Loss After Tax (Without Regulatory Relief) (P821,812)
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Parent Company Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2010

PARTICULARS

Qualified for 
Derecognition 

Under PFRS/PAS

Not Qualified for 
Derecognition 

Under 
PRFS/PAS Total

I.	Balance as of Date Sale
	 A.	NPAs sold, gross P10,365,575 P17,699,783 P28,065,358
			   Allowance for Credit Losses (Specific) on NPAs sold 7,048,505 11,047,597 18,096,102
			   Net Carrying Amount 3,317,070 6,652,186 9,969,256
	 B.	Allowance for Credit Losses (Specific) on NPAs Sold Applied to:
			   (1)	Unbooked allowance for probable losses:
				    (a) Specific – – –
			   (b)	General – – –
			   (2)	Additional allowance for probable losses:
				    (a)	Specific 7,048,505 – 7,048,505
				    (b)	General – – –
	 C.	Cash Received/Others 592,147 1,900,000 2,492,147
	 D.	Financial Instruments Received 4,031,584 1,361,074 5,392,658
	 E.	Deferred Charges 5,358,831 3,245,149 8,603,980
II.	Outstanding Balance as of Reporting Date
	 A.	Financial Instruments Received, Gross as of 12/31/10 3,927,466 1,361,074 5,288,540
			   Less: Allowance for Credit Losses (specific) 3,359,259 736,624 4,095,883

			   Carrying Amount of Financial Instruments Received 568,207 624,450 1,192,657

			   Less: Unbooked Allowance for Credit Losses (specific) – – –
			   Adjusted Carrying Amount of Financial Instruments Received 568,207 624,450 1,192,657
	 B.	Deferred Charges, Gross 5,358,831 3,245,149 8,603,980
			   Less: Deferred Charges Written Down 2,233,220 778,716 3,011,936
			   Carrying Amount of Deferred Charges, 12/31/10 P3,125,611 P2,466,433 P5,592,044

Parent Company Income Statement
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Net income after income tax (without regulatory relief) P2,764,942
Less: Net Carrying Amount of Deferred Charges P3,125,611 P2,466,433 5,592,044
			   Unbooked Allowance for Credit Losses (specific) on 
			   Financial Instruments Received – – –
			   Total Deduction 3,125,611 2,466,433 5,592,044
			   Less: Deferred Tax Liability, if applicable – – –
			   Total Deduction 3,125,611 2,466,433 5,592,044
			   Net Deduction – – –
Net Loss After Tax (Without Regulatory Relief) (P2,827,102)

Real Estate under JV Agreements 
On April 30, 2009, the Parent Company signed a JVA with Eton Properties Philippines, Inc. (EPPI).  Refer to Note 31 for the terms of the JVA.

On April 13, 2010, the Parent Company and Avida Land Corp. executed a Memorandum of Agreeement where both parties agreed to enter into a joint 
development of a real estate property owned by the Parent Company into a residential condominium project.  

As of December 31, 2010 and 2011, the net realizable value of real estate under JV amounted to P1.9 billion and P1.8 billion, respectively.
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Miscellaneous
Miscellaneous assets of the Group include retirement asset, chattel properties acquired in foreclosure (net of accumulated depreciation and allowance for 
impairment) and exchange trading rights.  Under the PSE rules, all exchange trading rights are pledged at its full value to the PSE to secure the payment of 
all debts due to other members of the PSE arising out of or in connection with the present or future members’ contracts.  As of December 31, 2011 and 
2010, the latest transacted price of the exchange trading right (as provided by the PSE) amounted to P8.5 million and P7.5 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, chattel properties acquired in foreclosure - net amounted to P15.0 million and P23.1 million, respectively, for the 
Group and P8.1 million and P15.2 million, respectively, for the Parent Company.

Software Costs
Movements in Software costs are as follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Balance at beginning of year P502,435 P529,580 P495,167 P524,000
Additions 69,122 129,563 66,416 124,941
Amortization (Note 25) (162,167) (156,708) (158,528) (153,774)
Balance at end of year P409,390 P502,435 P403,055 P495,167

Allowance for Impairment and Credit Losses15.	

	 Movements in the allowance for impairment losses on non-financial assets follow:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Balance at beginning of year:
	 Property and equipment (Note 11) P209,142 P234,314 P209,142 P234,314
	 Investment properties  (Note 13) 5,334,805 4,569,375 5,334,805 4,569,375
	 Other assets (Note 14) 591,426 312,666 587,400 310,805
	 Investments in subsidiaries and an associate (Note 12) – – 432,644 432,644

6,135,373 5,116,355 6,563,991 5,547,138
Provisions (reversals) during the year (264,909) 2,160,339 (268,376) 2,136,361
Disposals, transfers and others (1,083,257) (1,141,321) (1,032,915) (1,119,508)
Balance at end of year:
	 Property and equipment (Note 11) 237,624 209,142 237,624 209,142
	 Investment properties  (Note 13) 4,003,355 5,334,805 4,003,355 5,334,805
	 Other assets (Note 14) 546,228 591,426 518,566 587,400
	 Investments in subsidiaries and an associate (Note 12) – – 503,155 432,644

P4,787,207 P6,135,373 P5,262,700 P6,563,991

Movements in the allowance for impairment and  credit losses on financial assets follow:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Balance at beginning of year:
	 Loans and receivables P13,046,309 P13,097,095 P12,710,967 P12,728,730
	 Receivable from SPV 736,624 800,981 736,624 800,981
	 AFS investments 697,052 681,462 677,619 643,273

14,479,985 14,579,538 14,125,210 14,172,984
Provisions during the year 1,125,306 239,433 1,084,050 272,457
Accretion, accounts charged off, transfers and others (302,615) (338,986) (373,333) (320,231)
Balance at end of year:
	 Loans and receivables (Note 8) 13,541,340 13,046,309 13,074,591 12,710,967
	 Receivable from SPV (Note 9) 833,848 736,624 833,848 736,624
	 AFS investments (Note 10) 927,488 697,052 927,488 677,619

P15,302,676 P14,479,985 P14,835,927 P14,125,210
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	 Below is the breakdown of provision for (reversal of) credit losses by type of loans and receivable for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively.

Consolidated
2011 2010

Individual
Impairment

Collective
Impairment Total

Individual
Impairment

Collective
Impairment Total

Receivable from customers P422,008 P77,899 P499,907 (P383,767) P53,867 (P329,900)
Unquoted debt securities 240,431 – 240,431 675,114 – 675,114
Other receivables 37,875 – 37,875 (41,424) – (41,424)

P700,314 P77,899 P778,213 P249,923 P53,867 P303,790

2009
Individual

Impairment
Collective

Impairment Total
Receivable from customers P530,673 P94,514 P625,187
Unquoted debt securities 1,305,218 – 1,305,218
Other receivables 4,137 – 4,137

P1,840,028 P94,514 P1,934,542

Parent Company
2011 2010

Individual
Impairment

Collective
Impairment Total

Individual
Impairment

Collective
Impairment Total

Receivable from customers P380,719 P77,899 P458,618 (P497,299) P53,867 (P443,432)
Unquoted debt securities 240,431 – 240,431 675,114 – 675,114
Other receivables 37,908 – 37,908 105,132 – 105,132

P659,058 P77,899 P736,957 P282,947 P53,867 P336,814

2009
Individual

Impairment
Collective

Impairment Total
Receivable from customers P535,021 P76,057 P611,078
Unquoted debt securities 1,305,218 – 1,305,218
Other receivables 1,619 – 1,619

P1,841,858 P76,057 P1,917,915

The movements in allowance for credit losses for loans and receivables by class follow:

Consolidated
2011

Business
Loans

GOCCs
and NGAs LGUs Consumers

Fringe
Benefits

Unquoted
Debt

Securities Others Total
Balance at beginning of year P4,624,834 P112,037 P71,759 P316,861 P23,960 P3,599,687 P4,297,171 P13,046,309
Provisions (reversals) during the 

year 232,563 (22,389) 18,846 278,638 (7,751) 240,431 37,875 778,213
Accretion on impaired loans (220,880) – (15,607) (67,896) (1,464) (67,486) – (373,333)
Accounts charged off, transfers and 

others 17,477 – – 58,726 113 – 13,835 90,151
Balance at end of year P4,653,994 P89,648 P74,998 P586,329 P14,858 P3,772,632 P4,348,881 P13,541,340

Consolidated
2010

Business
Loans

GOCCs
and NGAs LGUs Consumers

Fringe
Benefits

Unquoted
Debt

Securities Others Total
Balance at beginning of year P5,363,925 P98,178 P29,786 P201,907 P885 P3,063,819 P4,338,595 P13,097,095
Provisions (reversals) during the 

year (568,291) 29,692 52,503 131,014 25,182 675,114 (41,424) 303,790
Accretion on impaired loans (170,800) (15,833) (10,530) (16,060) (2,107) (139,246) – (354,576)
Balance at end of year P4,624,834 P112,037 P71,759 P316,861 P23,960 P3,599,687 P4,297,171 P13,046,309
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Parent Company
2011

Business
Loans

GOCCs
and NGAs LGUs Consumers

Fringe
Benefits

Unquoted
Debt

Securities Others Total
Balance at beginning of year P4,401,346 P112,037 P71,759 P316,861 P23,960 P3,599,687 P4,185,317 P12,710,967
Provisions (reversals) during the 

year 191,274 (22,389) 18,846 278,638 (7,751) 240,431 37,908 736,957
Accretion on impaired loans (220,880) – (15,607) (67,896) (1,464) (67,486) – (373,333)
Balance at end of year P4,371,740 P89,648 P74,998 P527,603 P14,745 P3,772,632 P4,223,225 P13,074,591

Parent Company
2010

Business
Loans

GOCCs
and NGAs LGUs Consumers

Fringe
Benefits

Unquoted
Debt

Securities Others Total
Balance at beginning of year P5,334,026 P98,178 P29,785 P121,851 P885 P3,063,819 P4,080,185 P12,728,729
Provisions (reversals) during the 

year (761,880) 29,692 52,504 211,070 25,182 675,114 105,132 336,814 
Accretion on impaired loans (170,800) (15,833) (10,530) (16,060) (2,107) (139,246) – (354,576)
Balance at end of year P4,401,346 P112,037 P71,759 P316,861 P23,960 P3,599,687 P4,185,317 P12,710,967

The movements in allowance for credit losses on AFS investments and receivable from SPV for the Group and the Parent Company follow:

Consolidated
2011 2010

AFS
Investments -

Equity
Securities

Receivable
from SPV

AFS
Investments -

Equity
Securities

Receivable
from SPV

Balance at beginning of year P697,052 P736,624 P681,462 P800,981
Provisions (reversals) during the year 249,869 97,224 – (64,357)
Disposals, transfers and others (19,433) – 15,590 –
Balance at end of year P927,488 P833,848 P697,052 P736,624

Parent Company
2011 2010

AFS
Investments -

Equity
Securities

Receivable
from SPV

AFS
Investments -

Equity
Securities

Receivable
from SPV

Balance at beginning of year P677,619 P736,624 P643,273 P800,981
Provisions (reversals) during the year 249,869 97,224 – (64,357)
Disposals, transfers and others – – 34,346 – 
Balance at end of year P927,488 P833,848 P677,619 P736,624

Deposit Liabilities16.	

Of the total deposit liabilities of the Parent Company, P11.1 billion and P10.9 billion are noninterest-bearing as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively.  Remaining deposit liabilities generally earned annual fixed interest rates ranging from 0.20% to 7.00% in 2011 and from 0.25% to 7.00% in 
2010 for foreign currency-denominated deposit liabilities, and from 0.50% to 10.00% in 2011 and from 0.50% to 9.25% in 2010 for peso-denominated 
deposit liabilities.

Under existing BSP regulations, non-FCDU deposit liabilities of the Parent Company are subject to liquidity reserves equivalent to 11.00% and statutory 
reserves equivalent to 10.00% and 8.00% as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  Available reserves follow:

2011 2010
Cash on hand P4,166,007 P4,045,540
Due from BSP 37,513,558 24,273,986
AFS investments 4,559,997 233,564
Time Loan Unquoted Securities 3,096,485 3,887,082
HTM investments – 12,562,966

P49,336,047 P45,003,138
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As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Parent Company was in compliance with such regulations.

5.18% P3.10 Billion Long-term Negotiable Certificates of Time Deposits (LTNCDs)
On November 18, 2011, the Parent Company issued P3.10 billion worth of  LTNCDs which will mature on February 17, 2017.

Among the significant terms and conditions of the LTNCDs are:

a.	 Issue price at 100% of the face value of each LTNCD.

b.	 The LTNCDs bear interest at the rate of 5.18% per annum from and including the issue date, up to and excluding the call option date or the 
maturity date. Interest will be payable quarterly in arrears on the 17th of February, May, August and November of each year, commencing on 
November 18, 2011.

c.	 The Parent Company may redeem the LTNCDs in whole but not in part at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount together with 
accrued and unpaid interest before maturity date on any interest payment date.  The LTNCDs may not be redeemed at the option of the holders.

d.	 The LTNCDs will constitute direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Bank.  The LTNCDs will at all times rank pari passu 
and without any preference among themselves, and at least pari passu with all other direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations 
of the Bank, except for any obligation enjoying a statutory  preference or priority established under Philippine laws.

e.	 Each Holder, by accepting a LTNCDs, irrevocably agrees and acknowledges that: (a) it may not exercise or claim any right of set-off in respect of 
any amount owed to it by the Parent Company arising under or in connection with the LTNCDs; and (b) it shall, to the fullest extent permitted by 
applicable law, waive and be deemed to have waived all such rights of set-off.  

6.50% P3.25 Billion Long-term Negotiable Certificates of Time Deposits (LTNCDs)
On March 25, 2009, the Parent Company issued P3.25 billion worth of  LTNCDs which will mature on March 31, 2014.

Among the significant terms and conditions of the LTNCDs are:

a.	 Issue price at 100% of the face value of each LTNCD.

b.	 The LTNCDs bear interest at the rate of 6.50% per annum from and including the issue date, up to and excluding the early redemption date or 
the maturity date. Interest will be payable quarterly in arrears on the 19th of March, June, September and December of each year, commencing 
on June 30, 2009.

c.	 The Parent Company may redeem the LTNCDs in whole but not in part at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount together with 
accrued and unpaid interest before maturity date on any interest payment date.  The LTNCDs may not be redeemed at the option of the holders.

d.	 The LTNCDs will constitute direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Bank.  The LTNCDs will at all times rank pari passu 
and without any preference among themselves, and at least pari passu with all other direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated Peso-
denominated obligations of the Parent Company, present and future, other than obligations mandatorily preferred by law. 

e.	 Each Holder, by accepting a LTNCDs, irrevocably agrees and acknowledges that: (a) it may not exercise or claim any right of set-off in respect of 
any amount owed to it by the Parent Company arising under or in connection with the LTNCDs; and (b) it shall, to the fullest extent permitted by 
applicable law, waive and be deemed to have waived all such rights of set-off.  

Interest expense on deposit liabilities consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Savings P3,255,308 P2,703,177 P2,889,915 P3,255,308 P2,703,177 P2,902,275
Time 369,254 343,656 314,148 368,640 355,703 315,492
LTNCDs 236,251 216,328 163,797 236,251 216,328 163,797
Demand 150,642 178,672 151,260 150,642 178,672 151,907

P4,011,455 P3,441,833 P3,519,120 P4,010,841 P3,453,880 P3,533,471

In 2011, 2010 and 2009, interest expense on LTNCDs include amortization of transaction costs amounting to P14.6 million, P5.1 million, and P3.6 million, 
respectively.
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Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss17.	

This account consists of:

2011 2010
Designated at FVPL P6,479,170 P6,516,744
Derivative liabilities (Note 22) 171,013 57,852

P6,650,183 P6,574,596

Financial liability designated at FVPL represents the subordinated debt issued in 2008.  On June 19, 2008, the Parent Company issued P6.0 billion 
subordinated notes due in 2018 (2008 Notes).  The subordinated debt is part of a group of financial instruments that together are managed on a fair value 
basis, in accordance with the Bank’s documented risk management and investment strategy.

Among the significant terms and conditions of the issuance of such 2008 Notes are:

Issue price at 100.00% of the principal amount;(a)	

The 2008 Notes bear interest at the rate of 8.50% per annum from and including June 19, 2008 to but excluding June 19, 2013.  Interest will be (b)	
payable quarterly in arrears on the 19th of March, June, September and December of each year, commencing on September 19, 2008. Unless the 
2008 Notes are previously redeemed, interest from and including June 19, 2013 to but excluding June 19, 2018 will be reset at the equivalent of 
the higher of (i) five-year  PDST-F Fixed Rate Treasury Notes (FXTN) as of reset date multiplied by 80.00%, plus a step-up spread of 2.0123% per 
annum or (ii) difference of interest rate and five-year PDST-F FXTN as of issue date multiplied by 150% plus five-year PDST-F FXTN as of reset date, 
and such step-up interest rate shall be payable quarterly in arrears on 19th of March, June, September and December of each year, commencing on 
September 19, 2013.  The 2008 Notes will mature on June 19, 2018, if not redeemed earlier;

The 2008 Notes constitute direct, unconditional, unsecured and subordinated obligations of the Parent Company and at all times rank pari passu (c)	
without preference among themselves and at least equally with all other present and future unsecured and subordinated obligations of the Parent 
Company;

The Parent Company may redeem the 2008 Notes in whole but not in part at a redemption price equal to 100.00% of the principal amount together (d)	
with accrued and unpaid interest on the day following the last day of the twentieth (20th) interest period from issue date, subject to the prior consent 
of the BSP and the compliance by the Parent Company with the prevailing requirements for the granting by the BSP of its consent thereof.  The 2008 
Notes may not be redeemed at the option of the noteholders; and

Each noteholder, by accepting the 2008 Notes, irrevocably agrees and acknowledges that: (i) it may not exercise or claim any right of set-off in respect (e)	
of any amount owed by the Parent Company arising under or in connection with the 2008 Notes; and (ii) it shall, to the fullest extent permitted by 
applicable law, waive and be deemed to have waived all such rights of set-off.

As of December 31, 2010, the carrying value of financial liability designated at FVPL is more than the contractual payment at maturity of P6.5 billion, for 
the Group and for the Parent Company.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, change in the fair value of the designated subordinated debt at FVPL that is attributable to changes in credit risk is 
not significant.

Bills and Acceptances Payable18.	

This account consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Bills payable to:
	 BSP and local banks P4,413,379 P2,542,970 P2,902,338 P1,861,937
	 Foreign banks 1,110,136 9,440,466 881,110 9,569,923
	 Others 2,800,450 3,541 3,400,450 1,407,640

8,323,965 11,986,977 7,183,898 12,839,500
Acceptances outstanding 134,460 17,161 134,460 17,161

P8,458,425 P12,004,138 P7,318,358 P12,856,661
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As of December 31, 2011, 17.86% of the bills payable of the Group are subject to periodic interest repricing.  The annual interest rates range from 0.06% 
to 1.75% for foreign currency-denominated borrowings, and from 1.87% to 12.00% for peso-denominated borrowings of the Group and of the Parent 
Company.  As of December 31, 2010, 8.05% of the Group are subject to periodic interest repricing.  The annual interest rates range from 0.12% to 1.13% 
for foreign currency-denominated borrowings, and from 1.88% to 12.00% for peso-denominated borrowings of the Group and of the Parent Company.

The Parent Company’s bills payable to BSP includes the transferred liabilities from Maybank amounting to P1.8 billion as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 
(see Note 8).

Bills payable - others also includes funding from the Development Bank of the Philippines, Land Bank of the Philippines and the Social Security System 
under which the Parent Company acts as a conduit for certain financing programs of these institutions.  Lending to such programs is shown under ‘Loans 
and receivables’ (see Note 8).

As of December 31, 2011, bills payable with a carrying value of P3.3 billion is secured by a pledge of certain AFS investments with face value of P3.0 billion.  
As of December 31, 2010, bills payable with a carrying value of P8.5 billion is secured by a pledge of certain AFS investments with face value of P6.8 billion 
and HTM investments with face value of P3.4 billion.  Refer to Note 10 for further details.

Following are the significant terms and conditions of the agreements entered into by the Parent Company:
Each party represents and warrants to the other that it is duly authorized to execute and deliver the Agreement, and to perform its obligations and (a)	
has taken all the necessary action to authorize such execution, delivery and performance;
The term or life of this borrowing is up to one year;(b)	
Some borrowings bear a fixed interest rate while others have floating interest rate;(c)	
The Parent Company has pledged its AFS investments, in form of US Treasury Notes and ROP Global bonds, in order to fulfill its collateral (d)	
requirement;
Haircut from market value ranges from 20.00% to 30.00% depending on the tenor of the bond;(e)	
Substitution of pledged securities is allowed if one party requested and the other one so agrees.(f)	

Interest expense on bills payable and other borrowings consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Subordinated debt* P1,102,495 P1,083,585 P1,139,404 P1,102,495 P1,083,585 P1,139,404
Bills payable 149,104 235,277 417,681 107,999 189,329 358,355
Others 5,650 10,881 14,724 4,634 7,867 11,096

P1,257,249 P1,329,743 P1,571,809 P1,215,128 P1,280,781 P1,508,855
*  Consist of interest on subordinated debt at amortized cost and designated at FVPL

Accrued Taxes, Interest and Other Expenses19.	

This account consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Interest P2,005,487 P2,170,952 P2,003,056 P2,170,326
Employee benefits 428,158 472,407 428,158 472,407
Income taxes 242,169 218,120 220,803 182,527
PDIC 239,384 256,413 239,384 256,413
Other taxes and licenses 55,359 143,524 52,181 88,779
Other expenses 1,885,611 1,773,719 1,714,302 1,647,950

P4,856,168 P5,035,135 P4,657,884 P4,818,402

‘Other expenses’ includes accrued rental, information technology, and other operating expenses.

Subordinated Debt20.	

6.75% P6.5 Billion Subordinated Notes
On May 15, 2011 , the Parent Company’s BOD approved the issuance of unsecured subordinated notes of P6.5 billion that qualify as Lower Tier 2 
capital.  

The Parent Company issued P6.5 billion, 6.75% subordinated notes (the 2011 Notes) due in 2021, pursuant to the authority granted by the BSP to the 
Bank on May 27, 2011.  EIR on this note is 6.94%.
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Among the significant terms and conditions of the issuance of such 2011 Notes are:

Issue price at 100.00% of the principal amount;(a)	

The 2011 Notes bear interest at the rate of 6.75% per annum from and including June 15, 2011 to but excluding June 15, 2021.  Interest will be (b)	
payable quarterly in arrears on the 15th of September, December, March and June of each year, commencing on June 15, 2011. Unless the 2011 
Notes are previously redeemed, at their principal amount on Maturity date or June 15, 2021.  The stepped-up interest will be payable quarterly in 
arrears on 15th of September, December, March and June of each year, commencing on June 15, 2011;

The 2011 Notes constitute direct, unconditional, unsecured and subordinated obligations of the Parent Company and at all times rank pari passu (c)	
without preference among themselves and at least equally with all other present and future unsecured and subordinated obligations of the Parent 
Company;

The Parent Company may redeem the 2011 Notes in whole but not in part at a redemption price equal to 100.00% of the principal amount together (d)	
with accrued and unpaid interest on the day following the last day of the fiftieth (15th) interest period from issue date, subject to the prior consent 
of the BSP and the compliance by the Bank with the prevailing requirements for the granting by the BSP of its consent thereof.  The 2011 Notes may 
not be redeemed at the option of the noteholders; and

Each noteholder, by accepting the 2011 Notes, irrevocably agrees and acknowledges that it may not exercise or claim any right of set-off in respect (e)	
of any amount owed by the Parent Company arising under or in connection with the 2011 Notes.

10.00% P5.5 Billion Subordinated Notes
On May 26, 2006 and August 3, 2006, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the issuance of unsecured subordinated notes of P5.5 billion that qualify as 
Lower Tier 2 capital.  The MB, in its Resolution Nos. 979 dated August 3, 2006 and 874 dated July 6, 2006, approved this issuance subject to the Parent 
Company’s compliance with certain conditions.

Relative to this, on August 10, 2006, the Parent Company issued P5.5 billion, 10.00% subordinated notes (the 2006 Notes) due in 2016.  EIR on this note 
is 10.40%.

Among the significant terms and conditions of the issuance of such 2006 Notes are:

Issue price at 100.00% of the principal amount;(a)	

The 2006 Notes bear interest at the rate of 10.00% per annum from and including August 10, 2006 to but excluding August 10, 2011.  Interest will (b)	
be payable quarterly in arrears on the 10th of February, May, August and November of each year, commencing on August 10, 2006. Unless the 2006 
Notes are previously redeemed, interest from and including August 10, 2011 to but excluding August 10, 2016 will be reset at the equivalent of the 
five-year Money Market Association of the Philippines 1 Fixed Rate Treasury Notes (MART1 FXTN) as of reset date multiplied by 80.00%, plus a spread 
of 4.4935% per annum.  The stepped-up interest will be payable quarterly in arrears on 10th of February, May, August and November of each year, 
commencing on November 10, 2011;

The 2006 Notes constitute direct, unconditional, unsecured and subordinated obligations of the Parent Company and at all times rank pari passu (c)	
without preference among themselves and at least equally with all other present and future unsecured and subordinated obligations of the Parent 
Company;

The Parent Company may redeem the 2006 Notes in whole but not in part at a redemption price equal to 100.00% of the principal amount together (d)	
with accrued and unpaid interest on the day following the last day of the twentieth (20th) interest period from issue date, subject to the prior consent 
of the BSP and the compliance by the Bank with the prevailing requirements for the granting by the BSP of its consent thereof.  The 2006 Notes may 
not be redeemed at the option of the noteholders; and

Each noteholder, by accepting the 2006 Notes, irrevocably agrees and acknowledges that: (i) it may not exercise or claim any right of set-off in respect (e)	
of any amount owed by the Parent Company arising under or in connection with the 2006 Notes; and (ii) it shall, to the fullest extent permitted by 
applicable law, waive and be deemed to have waived all such rights of set-off.

On August 10, 2011, the 2006 Notes were redeemed by the Parent Company at par/face value.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, subordinated debt is net of unamortized transaction cost of P47.5 million and P13.3 million, respectively.

In 2011, 2010 and 2009 amortization of transaction costs amounting to P18.0 million, P19.4 million, and P17.6 million, respectively, were charged to 
‘Interest expense - bills payable and other borrowings’ in the statements of income.
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Other Liabilities21.	

This account consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Accounts payable P4,184,550 P3,917,375 P4,044,557 P3,705,782
Bills purchased - contra (Note 8) 2,296,039 2,132,659            2,296,039 2,132,659
Insurance contract liabilities 1,484,193 1,800,984 – –
Retirement liability (Note 26) 1,365,690 1,264,251 1,357,949 1,234,265
Interoffice float items 575,155 – 575,155 –
Manager’s checks and demand drafts outstanding 475,041 963,332 475,041 963,332
Deferred reinsurance premiums 444,252 353,940 – –
Deposits on lease contracts 356,597 309,314 – –
Other dormant credits 275,030 287,562 275,030 287,562
Due to Treasurer of the Philippines (TOP) 220,053 253,619 220,053 253,619
Margin deposits and cash letters of credit 212,390 59,094 212,390 59,094
Deferred credits 207,484 328,530 200,663 233,309
Payment order payable 152,810 166,986 152,810 166,986
Withholding tax payable 137,215 136,301 130,224 130,204
Due to BSP 102,965 104,844 102,965 104,844
Due to other banks 98,671 567,831 346,159 319,253
Miscellaneous (Note 28) 523,238 478,714 207,634 225,722

P13,111,373 P13,125,336 P10,596,669 P9,816,631

Derivative Financial Instruments22.	

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments entered into by the Parent Company, recorded as derivative assets or derivative 
liabilities, together with the notional amounts.  The notional amount is the amount of a derivative’s underlying asset, reference rate or index and is 
the basis upon which changes in the value of derivatives are measured.  The notional amounts indicate the volume of transactions outstanding as of 
December 31, 2011 and 2010 and are not indicative of either market risk or credit risk (amounts in thousands, except average forward rate).

2011

Assets Liabilities
Average

Forward Rate
Notional  

Amount*
Freestanding derivatives:
Currency forwards
	 BUY:
		  JPY P70 P– 0.56 300,000
		  USD 60,170 18,779 43.33 217,804
		  CHF – 58 46.94 200
		  EUR – 77 57.41 150
		  GBP 25 33 67.97 371
	 SELL:
		  USD 34,784 47,236 43.79 481,140
		  EUR 1,595 79 56.88 3,400
		  SGD 11 – 33.76 100
		  AUD 45 177 43.75 400
		  JPY 137 192 0.56 330,000
		  CHF 320 – 46.83 1,100
		  GBP 148 47 68.30 871
		  NZD 11 – 33.74 50
		  CAD – 224 42.47 500
Cross currency swaps – 39,802 86,000
Interest rate swaps (Php) 223,234 64,309 6,319,000
Warrants 91,719 – 262
Embedded derivatives:
Credit default swaps (USD) 41,782 – 87,500

P454,051 P171,013
*	 The notional amounts pertain to the original currency except for the Embedded derivatives, which represent the equivalent USD amounts.
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2010

Assets Liabilities
Average

Forward Rate
Notional  

Amount*
Freestanding derivatives:
Currency forwards
	 BUY:
		  JPY P4,419 P– 0.53 300,000
		  SGD 535 – 33.90 2,596
		  USD – 9,301 44.08 39,316
	 SELL:
		  USD 34,675 11,602 44.04 172,578
		  EUR 582 1,431 58.13 11,000
		  SGD – 536 33.90 2,596
		  AUD – 792 43.68 600
		  JPY 56 461 0.53 134,000
		  CHF 61 – 46.37 282
		  GBP 8 38 68.00 550
Cross currency swaps 53,397 15,971 185,000
Interest rate swaps (Php) 572,051 – 6,181,625
Interest rate swaps (USD) – 17,720 23,000
Warrants 120,381 – 262
Embedded derivatives:
Credit default swaps 26,679 – 20,000

P812,844 P57,852
*	 The notional amounts pertain to the original currency except for the Embedded derivatives, which represent the equivalent USD amounts.

In May and June of 2008, the Parent Company entered into cross currency swap agreements with various counterparty banks in which the proceeds 
from the 2008 Notes were swapped for USD.  The aggregate notional amount of the cross currency swaps is US$185.0 million or P8.1 billion while 
its net positive fair value amounted to P37.4 million as of December 31, 2010.  The Parent Company renewed some of these agreements with various 
counterparty banks in May and June of 2011.  The aggregate notional amount of these cross currency swaps is US$79.0 million or P3.4 billion while its 
negative fair value amounted to P32.3 million as of December 31, 2011.

In 2008, the Group has pledged a part of its AFS investments in order to fulfill collateral requirements of various cross currency swap transactions, which 
expired in 2011.  Net proceeds from this transaction amounted to P81.4 million.  Refer to Note 10 for further details.

On June 21, 2011, the Parent Company entered into a cross currency swap agreement with a notional amount of US$7.0 million or P299.0 million.  
Proceeds of the 2011 Notes were swapped for USD.  As of December 31, 2011, its negative fair value amounted to P7.5 million.  In order to fulfill collateral 
requirements, the Parent Company has pledged its cash amounting to US$2.0 million or P85.4 million.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Parent Company holds 261,515 shares of ROP Warrants Series B1 at their fair value of US$2.09 million and 
US$2.75 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, embedded derivatives that have been bifurcated are credit derivatives in structured notes with a notional reference of 
USD87.5 million and a positive fair value of P41.8 million as of December 31, 2011 and a notional reference of USD20.0 million with a positive fair value 
of P26.7 million as of December 31, 2010.
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Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities23.	

The following table shows an analysis of assets and liabilities of the Group and Parent Company analyzed according to whether they are expected to be 
recovered or settled within one year and beyond one year from reporting date:

Consolidated
2011 2010

Less than
Twelve 

Months

Over
Twelve 

Months Total
Less than

Twelve Months
Over

Twelve Months Total
Financial Assets
COCI P5,404,110 P– P5,404,110 P5,457,186 P– P5,457,186
Due from BSP 38,152,795 – 38,152,795 24,285,986 – 24,285,986
Due from other banks 6,423,981 – 6,423,981 5,141,549 – 5,141,549
Interbank loans receivable 17,097,648 – 17,097,648 12,691,967 – 12,691,967
Securities held under agreements to resell 18,300,000 – 18,300,000 6,800,000 – 6,800,000
Financial assets at FVPL 2,824,994 4,050,671 6,875,665 10,611,932 5,271,027 15,882,959
Loans receivables - gross (Note 8) 40,972,474 74,577,334 115,549,808 41,533,614 53,533,032 95,066,646
Unquoted debt securities classified as loans (Note 8) 4,362,294 3,998,835 8,361,129 2,432,733 8,792,745 11,225,478
Other receivables - gross (Note 8) 13,422,821 3,366,297 16,789,118 12,606,241 5,058,821 17,665,062
Receivable from SPV - net (Note 9) – – – – 624,450 624,450
AFS investments - gross (Note 10) 1,727,769 51,523,527 53,251,296 1,455,663 33,772,645 35,228,308
HTM investments (Note 10) – – – 3,529,989 34,710,269 38,240,258
Miscellaneous COCI (Note 14) 5,220 – 5,220 1,970 – 1,970

148,694,106 137,516,664 286,210,770 126,548,830 141,762,989 268,311,819
Nonfinancial Assets
Property and equipment - net
	 At cost – 866,013 866,013 – 815,497 815,497
	 At appraised value – 15,698,514 15,698,514 – 15,816,443 15,816,443
Investments in subsidiaries and an associate - net – 2,901,780 2,901,780 – 2,832,073 2,832,073
Investment properties - net – 16,100,113 16,100,113 – 17,913,198 17,913,198
Deferred tax assets – 1,775,789 1,775,789 – 1,829,430 1,829,430
Other assets - gross (Note 14)* 1,618,817 7,037,226 8,656,043 1,835,928 7,709,158 9,545,086

1,618,817 44,379,435 45,998,252 1,835,928 46,915,799 48,751,727
Less:	 Allowance for impairment and credit losses 

(Note 15) – 15,015,056 15,015,056 – 14,334,787 14,334,787
		  Unearned and other deferred income (Note 8) – 909,680 909,680 – 595,399 595,399

– 15,924,736 15,924,736 – 14,930,186 14,930,186
P150,312,923 P165,971,363 P316,284,286 P128,384,758 P173,748,602 P302,133,360

Financial Liabilities
Deposit liabilities P219,183,534 P18,350,404 P237,533,938 P213,502,650 P12,933,234 P226,435,884
Financial liabilities at FVPL 171,013 6,479,170 6,650,183 57,852 6,516,744 6,574,596
Bills and acceptances payable 7,129,369 1,329,056 8,458,425 10,352,330 1,651,808 12,004,138
Subordinated debt – 6,452,473 6,452,473 – 5,486,735 5,486,735
Accrued interest payable (Note 19) 450,070 1,555,417 2,005,487 615,534 1,555,418 2,170,952
Other liabilities (Note 21):

Accounts payable 4,184,550 – 4,184,550 3,917,375 – 3,917,375
Bills purchased - contra 2,296,039 – 2,296,039 2,132,659 – 2,132,659
Insurance contract liabilities 1,484,193 – 1,484,193 1,800,984 – 1,800,984
Due to other banks 98,671 – 98,671 567,831 – 567,831
Managers’ checks and demand drafts outstanding 475,041 – 475,041 963,332 – 963,332
Payment order payable 152,810 – 152,810 166,986 – 166,986
Deposit on lease contracts – 356,597 356,597 – 309,314 309,314
Due to TOP – 220,053 220,053 – 253,619 253,619
Margin deposits and cash letters of credit 212,390 – 212,390 59,094 – 59,094
Due to BSP 102,965 – 102,965 104,844 – 104,844

	 Other liabilities 54,888 – 54,888 287,562 – 287,562
235,995,533 34,743,170 270,738,703 234,529,003 28,706,872 263,235,905

Nonfinancial Liabilities
Accrued taxes and other expenses 1,001,776 1,848,905 2,850,681 1,167,054 1,697,129 2,864,183
Other liabilities** 1,342,976 2,130,200 3,473,176 912,286 1,649,450 2,561,736

2,344,752 3,979,105 6,323,857 2,079,340 3,346,579 5,425,919
P238,340,285 P38,722,275 P277,062,560 P236,608,373 P32,053,451 P268,661,824

*Includes deferred charges, prepaid expense and intangibles (software and exchange trading right)

**Includes income tax payable, withholding taxes payable, and other tax payable
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Parent Company
2011 2010

Less than
Twelve 

Months

Over
Twelve 

Months Total
Less than

Twelve Months
Over

Twelve Months Total
Financial Assets
COCI P5,303,112 P– P5,303,112 P5,309,611 P– P5,309,611
Due from BSP 37,492,594 – 37,492,594 24,273,986 – 24,273,986
Due from other banks 4,906,698 – 4,906,698 3,945,632 – 3,945,632
Interbank loans receivable 17,097,648 – 17,097,648 12,245,259 – 12,245,259
Securities held under agreements to resell 18,300,000 – 18,300,000 6,800,000 – 6,800,000
Financial assets at FVPL 2,822,537 4,050,671 6,873,208 10,598,420 5,270,790 15,869,211
Loans receivables - gross (Note 8) 39,636,745 73,568,191 113,204,936 40,973,150 51,992,551 92,965,702
Unquoted debt securities classified as loans (Note 8) 4,362,294 3,998,835 8,361,129 2,432,733 8,792,745 11,225,478
Other receivables - gross (Note 8) 11,587,897 3,278,805 14,866,702 10,438,529 5,038,865 15,477,394
Receivable from SPV - net – – – – 624,450 624,450
AFS investments - gross (Note 10) 1,690,359 49,666,106 51,356,465 1,377,671 32,239,289 33,616,960
HTM investments – – – 3,529,989 34,622,166 38,152,155
Miscellaneous COCI (Note 14) 5,220 – 5,220 1,970 – 1,970

143,205,104 134,562,608 277,767,712 121,926,950 138,580,856 260,507,806
Nonfinancial Assets
Property and equipment - net
	 At cost P– P676,405 P676,405 P– P658,865 P658,865
	 At appraised value – 15,698,514 15,698,514 – 15,816,443 15,816,443
Investments in subsidiaries and an associate - net 

(Note 12) – 7,305,644 7,305,644 – 7,325,446 7,325,446
Investment properties - net – 16,030,203 16,030,203 – 17,841,232 17,841,232
Deferred tax assets – 1,696,698 1,696,698 – 1,738,583 1,738,583
Other assets - gross (Note 14)* 1,357,467 6,865,153 8,222,620 1,590,772 7,501,781 9,092,553

1,357,467 48,272,617 49,630,084 1,590,772 50,882,350 52,473,122
Less:	 Allowance for impairment and credit losses 

(Note 15) – 14,520,645 14,520,645 – 13,975,986 13,975,986
		  Unearned and other deferred income (Note 8) – 705,225 705,225 – 415,871 415,871

– 15,225,870 15,225,870 – 14,391,857 14,391,857
P144,562,571 P167,609,355 P312,171,926 P123,517,722 P175,071,349 P298,589,071

Financial Liabilities
Deposit liabilities P220,129,913 P18,331,774 P238,461,687 P213,954,498 P12,933,234 P226,887,732
Financial liabilities at FVPL 171,013 6,479,170 6,650,183 57,852 6,516,744 6,574,596
Bills and acceptances payable 5,599,598 1,718,760 7,318,358 11,449,021 1,407,640 12,856,661
Subordinated debt – 6,452,473 6,452,473 – 5,486,735 5,486,735
Accrued interest payable (Note 20) 447,639 1,555,417 2,003,056 614,908 1,555,418 2,170,326
Other liabilities (Note 21):

Accounts payable 4,044,557 – 4,044,557 3,705,782 – 3,705,782
Bills purchased - contra 2,296,039 – 2,296,039 2,132,659 – 2,132,659
Due to other banks 346,159 – 346,159 319,253 – 319,253
Managers’ checks and demand drafts outstanding 475,041 – 475,041 963,332 – 963,332
Payment order payable 152,810 – 152,810  166,986 – 166,986
Due to TOP – 220,053 220,053 – 253,619 253,619
Margin deposits and cash letters of credit 212,390 – 212,390 59,094 – 59,094
Due to BSP 102,965 – 102,965 104,844 – 104,844

	 Other liabilities 54,888 – 54,888 287,563 – 287,563
234,033,012 34,757,647 268,790,659 233,815,792 28,153,390 261,969,182

Nonfinancial Liabilities
Accrued taxes and other expenses 815,232 1,839,595 2,654,827 953,906 1,694,170 2,648,076
Other liabilities** 1,033,138 1,658,630 2,691,768 589,235 1,234,265 1,823,500

1,848,370 3,498,225 5,346,595 1,543,141 2,928,434 4,471,576
P235,881,382 P38,255,872 P274,137,254 P235,358,933 P31,081,825 P266,440,758

*Includes deferred charges, prepaid expense and intangibles (software and exchange trading right)

**Includes income tax payable, withholding taxes payable, and other tax payable
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Equity24.	

Capital stock consists of (amounts in thousands, except for par value and number of shares):

Shares Amount
Preferred - P40 par value
	 Authorized 195,175,444
Common - P40 par value
	 Authorized 1,054,824,557
	 Issued and outstanding (Note 29) 662,245,916 P26,489,837

The Parent Company shares are listed in the PSE.

	 The preferred shares have the following features:

Non-voting, non-cumulative, fully participating in dividends with the common shares;(a)	
Convertible, at any time at the option of the holder who is qualified to own and hold common shares;(b)	
With mandatory and automatic conversion into common shares upon the sale of such preferred shares to any person other than the NG or any (c)	
GOCC’s; and
With rights to subscribe to additional new preferred shares with all of the features described above.(d)	

	 As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Group has 200,112 treasury shares.

Pursuant to the 1986 Revised Charter of the Parent Company, the Parent Company’s authorized capital stock was P10 Billion divided into 100,000,000 
common shares with a par value of P100.00 per share.  Its principal stockholder was the National Government (NG) which owned 25,000,000 common 
shares.  On the other hand, private stockholders owned 8,977 common shares.

To foster a financial intermediations system that is both competitive and efficient, the partial privatization of the Parent Company was carried out through 
the following public offerings:

Date of Offering Type of Offering
No. of Shares 

Offered Par Value Offer Price
Authorized 

Number of Shares

Issued and 
Outstanding 

Shares
June 1989 Initial Public 

Offering
10,800,000 

common shares
P100.00 P100.00 250,000,000 

common shares
36,011,569 

common shares
April 1992 Second Public 

Offering
8,033,140 

common shares
P100.00 P265.00 250,000,000 

common shares
80,333,350 

common shares
December 1995 Third Public 

Offering
7,200,000 

common shares 
and 2,400,000 

covered warrants

P100.00 P260.00 250,000,000 
common shares

99,985,579 
common shares

 
After the three (3) public offerings, the NG sold a total of 54.41% of its shareholdings to both the Philippine public and international investors. 

On May 27, 1996, the privatization of the Parent Company was completed when the Parent Company’s new Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws were 
approved by the SEC under SEC Registration No. ASO96-005555.  As of May 27, 1996, the NG owned 45.59% of the outstanding shares of the Parent 
Company.  The Parent Company’s authorized capital stock was increased to P25 billion pesos divided into 250,000,000 common shares with a par value 
of P100.00 per share. 

As part of the Parent Company’s capital build-up program, the Parent Company also completed the following right offerings:

Date of Offering Type of Offering
No. of Shares 

Offered
Basis of 

Subscription Par Value Offer Price
Authorized 

Number of Shares

Issued and 
Outstanding 

Shares
September 1999 Stock Rights 

Offering
68,740,086 

common shares
One (1) Right 

Share for every 
two common 

shares

P100.00 P137.80 250,000,000 
common shares

206,220,257 
common shares

September 2000 Pre-emptive 
Rights Offering

71,850,215 
common shares 

with 170,850,215 
warrants

Five (5) Right 
Shares for every 
Six (6) common 

shares

P100.00 P60.00 833,333,334 
common shares

206,220,257 
common shares
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On August 18, 2000, the SEC approved the decrease of the capital stock of the Parent Company from P25 billion divided into 250,000,000 common shares 
with a par value of P100.00 per share to P15 billion divided into 250,000,000 common shares with a par value of P60.00 per share.  

Subsequently on November 7, 2000, the SEC approved the increase of the capital stock of the Parent Company from P15 Billion divided into 250,000,000 
common shares with a par value of P60.00 per share to P50,000,000,040 divided into 833,333,334 shares with a par value of P60.00 per share.

On July 23, 2002, the SEC approved the decrease of the capital stock of the Parent Company from P50,000,000,040.00 divided into 833,333,334 shares 
with a par value of P60.00 per share to P33,333,333,360.00 divided into 833,333,334 shares with a par value of P40.00 per share.  On the same day, 
the SEC also approved the increase of the capital stock of the Parent Company from P33,333,333,360.00 divided into 833,333,334 shares with a par 
value of P40.00 per share to P50,000,000,040.00 divided into 1,054,824,557 common shares and 195,175,444 preferred shares both with a par value 
of P40.00 each. 

In July 2007, the Parent Company made a primary and secondary offering of up to 160,811,091 common shares. The Offer consisted of: (i) primary offer by 
the Parent Company of up to 89,000,000 new shares from the Parent Company’s authorized but unissued common share capital, and (ii) secondary offer 
of up to an aggregate of 71,811,091 existing shares, comprising (a) 17,453,340 shares offered by the NG, and (b) 54,357,751 shares which were owned 
by the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation (PDIC) in the form of convertible preferred shares. The Primary Offer Shares and Secondary Offer Shares 
were offered at the Offer Price of P59.00 per share. 

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Parent Company had 31,301 and 31,732 stockholders, respectively.

Surplus and Capital Paid in Excess of Par Value of the Parent Company amounting to P9.4 billion and P0.3 billion, respectively, as of December 31, 2011 and 
2010 which represents the balances of accumulated translation adjustment, accumulated equity in net earnings and revaluation increment from land that 
have been applied to eliminate the Parent Company’s deficit through a quasi-reorganization in 2002 and 2000, are not available for dividend declaration 
without prior approval from the Philippine SEC and the BSP. 

Capital Management
The primary objectives of the Parent Company’s capital management are to ensure that it complies with externally imposed capital requirements and it 
maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximize shareholders’ value.

The Parent Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of 
its activities.  In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Parent Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return 
capital structure, or issue capital securities.  No changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes from the previous periods.

Regulatory Qualifying Capital
Under existing BSP regulations, the determination of the Parent Company’s compliance with regulatory requirements and ratios is based on the amount 
of the Parent Company’s “unimpaired capital” (regulatory net worth) reported to the BSP, which is determined on the basis of regulatory policies, which 
differ from PFRS in some respects.

In addition, the risk-based capital ratio of a bank, expressed as a percentage of qualifying capital to risk-weighted assets, should not be less than 10.00% 
for both solo basis (head office and branches) and consolidated basis (parent bank and subsidiaries engaged in financial allied undertakings but excluding 
insurance companies). Qualifying capital and risk-weighted assets are computed based on BSP regulations.  Risk-weighted assets consist of total assets less 
cash on hand, due from BSP, loans covered by hold-out on or assignment of deposits, loans or acceptances under letters of credit to the extent covered by 
margin deposits and other non-risk items determined by the Monetary Board (MB) of the BSP.

The BSP approved the booking of additional appraisal increment of P431.8 million in 2002 on properties and recognition of the same in determining the 
capital adequacy ratio, and booking of translation adjustment of P1.6 billion in 2002 representing the increase in peso value of the investment in foreign 
subsidiaries for purposes of the quasi-reorganization and rehabilitation of the Parent Company, provided that the same shall be excluded for dividend 
purposes.

The CAR of the Group, which is based on consolidated CAR combined credit, market and operational risks (BSP Circular No. 538), as of December 31, 2011 
and 2010 as reported to the BSP are shown in the table below (amounts in millions).

2011 2010
Consolidated Actual Required Actual Required
Tier 1 capital P30,500.9 P27,242.3
Tier 2 capital 15,065.8 14,226.1
Gross qualifying capital 45,566.7 41,468.4
Less required deductions 159.5 0.4
Total qualifying capital P45,407.2 P20,969.1 P41,468.0 P21,365.7
Risk weighted assets P209,691.0 P213,656.5
Tier 1 capital ratio 14.51% 12.75%
Total capital ratio 21.65% 19.41%
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2011 2010
Parent Company Actual Required Actual Required
Tier 1 capital P31,196.7 P27,978.0
Tier 2 capital 14,993.0 14,158.4
Gross qualifying capital 46,189.7 42,136.4
Less required deductions 6,511.3 6,426.0
Total qualifying capital P39,678.4 P20,013.3 P35.710.4 P20,347.5
Risk weighted assets P200,132.9 P203,474.7
Tier 1 capital ratio 13.96% 12.17%
Total capital ratio 19.83% 17.55%

The Group and its individually regulated subsidiaries/operations have complied with all externally imposed capital requirement throughout the year.

Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) Implementation
In compliance with BSP Circular 639, the Bank has adopted its live ICAAP Document for 2011 to 2013.  However, the BOD and the Management 
recognized that ICAAP is beyond compliance, i.e. it is about how to effectively run the Bank’s operations by ensuring that the Bank maintains at all times 
an appropriate level and quality of capital to meet its business objective and commensurate to its risk profile.  In line with its ICAAP principles, the Bank 
shall maintain a capital level that will not only meet the BSP CAR requirement but will also cover all material risks that it may encounter in the course of its 
business.  The ICAAP process highlights close integration of capital planning/strategic management with risk management.  The Bank has in place a risk 
management framework that involves a collaborative process for assessing and managing identified Pillar 1 and Pillar 2 risks.  The Bank complies with the 
required annual submission of updated ICAAP.

Financial Performance
The following basic ratios measure the financial performance for the periods ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 of the Group and the Parent 
Company (amounts in millions):

Consolidated Parent Company

2011

2010
(As restated- 

Note 14)

2009
(As restated- 

Note 14) 2011

2010
(As restated- 

Note 14)

2009
(As restated- 

Note 14)
Return on average equity (a/b) 10.66% 8.35% 4.98% 11.14% 8.98% 4.91%
a.) Net income P3,873 P2,692 P1,502 P3,910 P2,765 P1,405
b.) Average total equity 36,347 32,230 30,148 35,091 30,780 28,614

Return on average assets (c/d) 1.25% 0.92% 0.54% 1.28% 0.96% 0.51%
c.) Net income P3,873 P2,692 P1,502 P3,910 P2,765 P1,405
d.) Average total assets 309,209 292,717 279,361 305,380 288,530 274,820

Net interest margin on average earning assets (e/f) 2.95% 3.49% 3.81% 2.94% 3.43% 3.77%
e.) Net interest income P7,219 P7,802 P7,879 P7,020 P7,442 P7,515
f.) Average interest earning assets 244,526 223,308 206,775 238,659 217,007 199,568

Note: Average balances were the sum of beginning and ending balances of the respective statement of financial position accounts as of the end of the year divided by two (2).

Had the amortization of deferred charges been charged directly to equity, return on average equity and return on average assets would have been as 
follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Return on average equity 13.02% 11.00% 7.30% 13.59% 11.78% 7.35%
Return on average assets 1.53% 1.20% 0.79% 1.56% 1.25% 0.77%

Income and Expenses25.	

Service fees and commission income consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Remittance P936,610 P987,097 P1,065,358 P442,721 P433,695 P493,161
Deposit-related 920,967 951,368 941,098 920,967 951,368 941,098
Credit-related 267,245 324,194 221,455 144,803 198,843 122,294
Trust fees (Note 30) 136,848 125,311 85,399 136,848 125,311 85,399
Miscellaneous 82,320 60,000 165,333 37,463 45,244 31,590

P2,343,990 P2,447,970 P2,478,643 P1,682,802 P1,754,461 P1,673,542
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Miscellaneous income consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Rental (Notes 27 and 31) P172,463 P204,712 P297,609 P179,691 P180,291 P177,857
Share in net income 68,955 45,065 12,001 – – –
Others 906,687 403,408 266,550 612,269 430,086 178,442

P1,148,105 P653,185 P576,160 P791,960 P610,377 P356,299

Net gains on sale or exchange of assets include net gains from sale of investment properties in 2011, 2010, and 2009 amounting to P886.4 million, 
P876.9 million, and P742.0 million, respectively, for the Group and the Parent Company.

Miscellaneous expenses consist of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Security, clerical, messengerial P526,720 P555,960 P588,160 P512,754 P496,527 P513,246
Insurance 512,070 541,529 460,278 496,522 526,525 443,464
Foreclosure and other ROPA related 

expenses (Note 13) 319,749 552,410 304,495 319,515 552,410 304,495
Promotional 291,470 423,963 459,552 291,470 386,908 429,815
Transportation and travel 231,705 227,663 187,839 217,925 208,960 165,936
Management and professional fees 204,801 203,730 240,171 150,740 144,800 172,129
Information technology 197,706 269,485 290,811 124,050 136,627 153,095
Amortization of software costs 
	 (Note 14) 162,167 156,708 109,824 158,528 153,774 108,332
Stationery and supplies used 147,876 142,936 132,626 126,517 117,738 102,006
Postage, telephone and telegram 132,216 112,186 128,086 87,650 58,979 78,871
EARE (Note 28) 130,395 130,800 108,480 116,917 109,256 91,643
Others 595,909 293,811 534,687 374,167 242,760 468,535

P3,452,784 P3,611,181 P3,545,009 P2,976,755 P3,135,264 P3,031,567

Miscellaneous - others include repairs and maintenances, membership dues, utilities and litigation expenses.

Retirement Plan26.	

The Parent Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group, have separate funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plans covering substantially 
all its officers and regular employees.  Under these retirement plans, all covered officers and employees are entitled to cash benefits after satisfying certain 
age and service requirements.

The Parent Company’s annual contribution to the retirement plan consists of a payment covering the current service cost, amortization of the unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability and interest on such unfunded actuarial liability.  The retirement plan provides a retirement benefit equal to one hundred and 
twelve percent (112.00%) of plan salary per month for every year of credited service.

The following table shows the actuarial assumptions as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 used in determining the retirement benefit obligation of the 
Parent Company:

2011 2010
Expected rate of return on plan assets 9% 12%
Discount rate 6% 8%
Salary rate increase 8% 5%
Estimated working lives 14 years 15 years

As of December 31, 2011, the discount rate used in determining the retirement obligation is 6.4%.

The overall expected rate of return on plan assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date applicable to the period over which 
the obligation is to be settled.

The latest actuarial valuation was made as of December 31, 2011.
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The amount of liability recognized in the Parent Company’s statements of financial position (included under ‘Other liabilities’) follows:

2011 2010
Present value of defined benefit obligation P2,828,807 P1,827,591
Fair value of plan assets 797,884 973,864

2,030,923 853,727
Unrecognized amortizations:
	 Past service cost (53,614) (58,488)
	 Actuarial gain (loss) (619,360) 439,026
Retirement liability P1,357,949 P1,234,265

The amounts included in ‘Compensation and fringe benefits’ in the Parent Company’s statements of income are as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Current service cost P160,225 P218,827 P124,050
Interest cost 143,754 218,128 176,753
Expected return on plan assets (116,864) (42,005) (32,685)
Amortization of non-vested past service cost 4,874 4,873 4,874
Vested past service cost – – 415
Net actuarial loss (gain) recognized during the year (18,305) 26,860 –

P173,684 P426,683 P273,407

The movements in the retirement liability recognized under ‘Other liabilities’ in the Parent Company’s statement of financial position follow:

2011 2010
Balance at beginning of year P1,234,265 P807,582
Retirement expense 173,684 426,683
Actual contributions (50,000) –
Balance at end of year P1,357,949 P1,234,265

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation of the Parent Company are as follows:

2011 2010
Balance at beginning of year P1,827,591 P2,218,999
Actuarial (gain) loss 889,188 (797,689)
Current service cost 160,225 218,827
Interest cost 143,754 218,128
Benefits paid (191,951) (30,674)
Balance at end of year P2,828,807 P1,827,591

Changes in the fair value of the plan assets of the Parent Company are as follows:

2011 2010
Balance at beginning of year P973,864 P750,100
Expected return 116,864 42,005
Contributions 50,000 –
Benefits paid/additional contribution (191,951) (30,674)
Actuarial gain (loss) (150,893) 212,433
Balance at end of year P797,884 P973,864

The fair value of the plan assets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 includes the fair value of the investments in the Parent Company shares of stock 
amounting to P441.8 million and P497.5 million, respectively.

The actual return on plan assets of the Parent Company amounted to gains/(loss) of (P34.0 million), P254.4 million and P103.5 million in 2011, 2010 and 
2009, respectively.

The Parent Company believes that the plan has enough funds to pay any retiring employee.  Accordingly, it does not expect to contribute to the plan in 
2012.

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets follow:

2011 2010
Parent Company’s own common shares 55% 51%
Government securities 20% 25%
Debt securities and others 25% 24%

100% 100%
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Information on the Parent Company’s retirement plan are as follows:

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Present value of the defined benefit obligation P2,828,807 P1,827,591 P2,218,999 P1,218,986 P1,648,256
Fair value of plan assets 797,884 973,864 750,100 421,196 958,856
Deficit on plan assets 2,030,923 853,727 1,468,899 797,790 689,400
Experience adjustments arising on plan liabilities (66,200) (273,035) (24,385) (92,518) 86,992
Experience adjustments arising on plan assets (150,894) 212,432 70,857 151,035 32,204

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the retirement liability (asset) included in ‘Other liabilities’ (See Note 21) and ‘Other assets’ (See Note 14), respectively, 
of certain subsidiaries of the Group follows:

PNB Europe PNB Capital PNB Securities PNB Italy Japan-PNB PNB Gen
2011 P39,970 (P1,609) P115 P7,741 P1,277 P2,473
2010 27,284 (1,866) 242 6,428 2,460 (5,797)

Retirement expense of the Group charged against operations, included in ‘Compensation and fringe benefits’ in the statements of income amounted to 
P185.7 million, P443.5 million, and P276.4 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Leases27.	

	 The Parent Company leases the premises occupied by majority of its branches (about 41.59% of the branch sites are Parent Company-owned).  Some of 
its subsidiaries also lease the premises occupied by their Head Offices and most of their branches.  The lease contracts are for periods ranging from 1 to 
25 years and are renewable at the Group’s option under certain terms and conditions.  Various lease contracts include escalation clauses, most of which 
bear an annual rent increase of 10%.

Rent expense charged against current operations (included in ‘Occupancy and equipment-related costs’ in the statements of income) amounted to 
P388.7 million in 2011, P357.7 million in 2010, and P356.4 million in 2009 for the Group, of which P253.3 million in 2011, P222.6 million in 2010, and 
P219.0 million in 2009 pertain to the Parent Company.

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancelable operating leases follow:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Within one year P97,972 P180,784 P57,635 P84,356
Beyond one year but not more than five years 126,199 232,479 74,444 125,332
More than five years 8,272 28,009 7,761 11,797

P232,443 P441,272 P139,840 P221,485

The Parent Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment properties. These non-cancelable leases have lease terms of one to 
five years.  Some leases include escalation clauses (such as 5% per year).  In 2011, 2010 and 2009, total rent income (included under ‘Miscellaneous 
income’) amounted to P172.5 million, P204.7 million and P297.6 million, respectively, for the Group and P179.7 million, P180.3 million and P177.9 million, 
respectively, for the Parent Company (see Note 25).

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancelable operating leases follow:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Within one year P6,880 P35,636 P2,272 P27,777
Beyond one year but not more than five years 14,632 40,408 2,241 40,408

P21,512 P76,044 P4,513 P68,185

Leases where the Group substantially transfers to the lessee all risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased asset are classified as finance 
leases and are presented as receivable at an amount equal to the Group’s net investment in the lease.  Finance income is recognized based on the pattern 
reflecting  a constant periodic rate of return on the bank’s net investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease (EIR method).  Lease payments relating 
to the period are applied against the gross investment in the lease to reduce both the principal and the unearned finance income
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Future minimum rentals lease payments under finance leases are as follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Within one year P1,205,291 P968,997 P1,800 P1,400
Beyond one year but not more than five years 585,691 738,352 19,850 13,000
More than five years 84,700 71,800 84,700 71,800
Total minimum lease payments (Note 8) 1,875,682 1,779,149 106,350 86,200
Less amounts representing finance charges 267,181 230,424 62,911 51,081
Present value of minimum lease payments P1,608,501 P1,548,725 P43,439 P35,119

Income and Other Taxes28.	

Under Philippine tax laws, the Parent Company and certain subsidiaries are subject to percentage and other taxes (presented as Taxes and Licenses in the 
statements of income) as well as income taxes.  Percentage and other taxes paid consist principally of gross receipts tax and documentary stamp tax.

Income taxes include the corporate income tax, discussed below, and final taxes paid which represents final withholding tax on gross interest income from 
government securities and other deposit substitutes and income from the FCDU transactions.  These income taxes, as well as the deferred tax benefits and 
provisions, are presented as ‘Provision for income tax’ in the statements of income.

Effective November 1, 2005, Republic Act (RA) No. 9337, an act amending the National Internal Revenue Code (NIRC of 1997), provides that the RCIT rate 
shall be 30.0% and interest allowed as a deductible expenses shall be reduced by 33.0% of interest income subjected to final tax.

A minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) of 2% on modified gross income is computed and compared with the RCIT.  Any excess of MCIT over the RCIT 
is deferred and can be used as a tax credit against future income tax liability for the next three years.  In addition, net operating loss carry over (NOLCO) is 
allowed as a deduction from taxable income in the next three years from the period of incurrence for the Parent Company and certain subsidiaries.

FCDU offshore income (income from non-residents) is tax-exempt while gross onshore income (income from residents) is generally subject to 10% income 
tax.  In addition, interest income on deposit placement with other FCDUs and offshore banking units (OBUs) is taxed at 7.50%.  RA No. 9294 provides 
that the income derived by the FCDU from foreign currency transactions with non-residents, OBUs, local commercial banks including branches of foreign 
banks is tax-exempt while interest income on foreign currency loans from residents other than OBUs or other depository banks under the expanded system 
is subject to 10.00% income tax.

Provision for income tax consists of:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Current
	 Regular P173,695 P167,759 P175,720 P124,591 P89,796 P133,741
Final 671,140 611,308 597,265 656,960 605,808 568,907

844,835 779,067 772,985 781,551 695,604 702,648
Deferred 1,491 (12,465) 7,009 26,837 (3,334) (1,491)

P846,326 P766,602 P779,994 P808,388 P692,270 P701,157

Net deferred tax asset/liability of the Group is included in the following accounts in the consolidated statements of financial position:

2011 2010
Deferred tax assets P1,775,789 P1,829,430
Other liabilities 24,885 54,818

P1,750,904 P1,774,612

The components of net deferred tax assets follow:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Deferred tax asset on:
	 Allowance for impairment and credit losses P4,446,842 P4,615,370 P4,414,337 P4,587,544 
	 Accumulated depreciation on investment properties 784,797 909,338 784,119 908,717
	 Others 67,500 126,010 	 – 	 –

5,299,139 5,650,718 5,198,456 5,496,261
Deferred tax liability on: 
	 Fair value adjustment on investment properties 2,184,845 2,368,304 2,184,845 2,368,304
	 Revaluation increment on land and buildings 909,138 922,795 909,138 922,795
	 Unrealized trading gains on derivatives 106,777 194,384 106,777 206,424
	 Unrealized gain on AFS investments 34,637 12,420 20,862 5,814
	 Others 312,838 378,203 280,136 254,341

3,548,235 3,876,106 3,501,758 3,757,678
P1,750,904 P1,774,612 P1,696,698 P1,738,583
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Provision for deferred tax charged directly to OCI during the year follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Unrealized gain on AFS investments P22,217 P– P15,048 P–
Revaluation increment on land and buildings – – – –

P22,217 P– P15,048 P–

Based on the five-year financial forecast prepared by management and duly approved by the Executive Committee of the BOD, the Parent Company’s net 
deferred tax assets of P1.7 billion as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 is expected to be realized from its taxable profits within the next three to five years.  
The Parent Company and certain subsidiaries did not recognize deferred tax assets on the following unused tax credit and losses and temporary differences 
since they believe that the related tax benefits will not be realized in the future:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

NOLCO P3,400,843 P13,648,376 P3,394,739 P13,600,995
Allowance for impairment and credit losses 858,985 871,880 858,985 826,927
MCIT 284,775 216,660 273,512 209,819
Others 725,396 805,135 717,359 804,377

P5,269,999 P15,542,051 P5,244,595 P15,442,118

Details of the Group’s NOLCO follow:

Year Incurred Amount Used/Expired Balance Expiry Year
2006 P11,473,748 P11,473,748 P– 2009 to 2011
2007 8,618,816 6,796,705 1,822,111 2010 to 2012
2008 612,358 612,358 – 2011
2009 1,577,682 – 1,577,682 2012
2010 704 – 704 2013
2011 346 – 346 2014

P22,283,654 P18,882,811 P3,400,843

The Group’s NOLCO of P8.6 billion in 2007 and P11.5 billion in 2006 includes the Parent Company’s loss on sale of NPAs to SPV companies amounting 
to P6.8 billion in 2007 and P9.6 billion in 2006, which can be claimed as deductions from taxable income for a period of five consecutive taxable years 
immediately following the year of sale.

Details of the Group’s MCIT follow:

Year Incurred Amount Used/Expired Balance Expiry Year
2008 P60,898 P60,898 P– 2011
2009 60,325 – 60,325 2012
2010 95,437 – 95,437 2013
2011 129,013 – 129,013 2014

P345,673 P60,898 P284,775

Details of the Parent Company’s NOLCO follow:

Year Incurred Amount Used/Expired Balance Expiry Year
2006 P11,432,125 P11,432,125 P– 2009 to 2011
2007 8,618,816 6,796,705 1,822,111 2010 to 2012
2008 612,358 612,358 – 2011
2009 1,572,628 – 1,572,628 2012

P22,235,927 P18,841,188 P3,394,739

Details of the Parent Company’s MCIT follow: 

Year Incurred Amount Used/Expired Balance Expiry Year
2008 P60,898 P60,898 P– 2011
2009 59,125 – 59,125 2012
2010 89,796 – 89,796 2013
2011 124,591 – 124,591 2014

P334,410 P60,898 P273,512
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The reconciliation between the statutory income tax rate to effective income tax rate follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Statutory income tax rate 30.00% 30.00% 30.00% 30.00% 30.00% 30.00%
Tax effects of:
	 FCDU income before tax (19.83) (21.22) (20.99) (19.83) (21.23) (20.90)
	 Non-deductible expenses 13.41 18.62 32.88 13.41 14.96 31.97
	 Tax-exempt income (5.61) (11.59) (51.39) (5.60) (10.70) (48.71)
	 Tax-paid income (4.51) (7.28) (5.89) (4.09) (6.33) (6.19)
	 Net unrecognized deferred tax assets 4.47 13.64 49.55 3.24 13.32 47.12
Effective income tax rate 17.93% 22.18% 34.17% 17.14% 20.02% 33.29%

Current tax regulations define expenses to be classified as entertainment, amusement and recreation expenses (EARE) and set a limit for the amount that 
is deductible for tax purposes.  EARE are limited to 1.00% of net revenues for sellers of services.  EARE charged against current operations (included in 
‘Miscellaneous expense’ in the statements of income) amounted to P130.4 million in 2011, P130.8 million in 2010, and P108.5 million in 2009 for the 
Group, and P116.9 million in 2011, P109.3 million in 2010, and P91.6 million in 2009 for the Parent Company (see Note 25).

Earnings Per Share29.	

The earnings per share of the Group, attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company, are calculated as follows:

2011
2010

(As restated- Note 14)
2009

(As restated- Note 14)
a)	 Net income attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company P3,864,099 P2,671,339 P1,487,575
	 Less income attributable to convertible preferred stocks classified 

as equity (in thousand pesos) – – –
b)	 Net income attributable to common shareholders P3,864,099 P2,671,339 P1,487,575
c)	 Weighted average number of common shares for basic earnings 

per share (Note 24) 662,245,916 662,245,916 662,245,916
d)	 Effect of dilution:
	 Convertible preferred shares – – –
e)	 Adjusted weighted average number of common shares for diluted 

earnings per share 662,245,916 662,245,916 662,245,916
f)	 Basic earnings per share (b/c) P5.83 P4.03 P2.25
g)	 Diluted earnings per share (a/e) 5.83 4.03 2.25

Had the amortization of deferred charges been charged directly to equity, earnings per share and diluted earning per share in 2011, 2010 and 2009 would 
have amounted to P7.13, P5.31 and P3.30, respectively.

Trust Operations30.	  
 
Securities and other properties held by the Parent Company in fiduciary or agency capacities for  its customers are not included in the accompanying 
statements of financial position since these are not assets of the Parent Company.  Such assets held in trust were carried at a value of P55.6 billion and 
P30.4 billion as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 32).  In connection with the trust functions of the Parent Company, government 
securities amounting to P553.3 million and P327.2 million (included under ‘AFS investments’ and ‘HTM investments’) as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively, are deposited with the BSP in compliance with trust regulations.

In compliance with existing banking regulations, the Parent Company transferred from surplus to surplus reserves P8.3 million, P5.1 million, and  
P7.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, corresponding to the 10.00% of the net income realized in the preceding 
years from its trust, investment management and other fiduciary business until such related surplus reserve constitutes 20.00% of its regulatory capital.

Related Party Transactions31.	

In the ordinary course of business, the Parent Company has loans and other transactions with its subsidiaries and affiliates, and with certain Directors, 
Officers, Stockholders and Related Interests (DOSRI).  Under the Parent Company’s policy, these loans and other transactions are made substantially on the 
same terms as with other individuals and businesses of comparable risks.  The amount of direct credit accommodations to each of the Parent Company’s 
DOSRI, 70.00% of which must be secured, should not exceed the amount of their respective deposits and book value of their respective investments in 
the Parent Company.

In the aggregate, DOSRI loans generally should not exceed the Parent Company’s equity or 15% of the Parent Company’s total loan portfolio, whichever 
is lower.  As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Parent Company was in compliance with such regulations.
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The information relating to the DOSRI loans of the Group follows:

2011 2010
Total outstanding DOSRI loans P4,916,441 P4,091,787
Percent of DOSRI loans to total loans 4.26% 5.02%
Percent of unsecured DOSRI loans to total DOSRI loans 14.60% 12.82%
Percent of past due DOSRI loans to total DOSRI loans 0.06% 0.44%

In accordance with existing BSP regulations, the reported DOSRI performing loans exclude loans extended to certain borrowers before these borrowers 
became DOSRI.

On January 31, 2007, BSP Circular No. 560 was issued providing the rules and regulations that govern loans, other credit accommodations and guarantees 
granted to subsidiaries and affiliates of banks and quasi-banks.  Under the said Circular, total outstanding exposures to each of the bank’s subsidiaries 
and affiliates shall not exceed 10% of a bank’s net worth, the unsecured portion of which shall not exceed 5% of such net worth.  Further, the total 
outstanding exposures to subsidiaries and affiliates shall not exceed 20% of the net worth of the lending bank.  BSP Circular No. 560 is effective on 
February 15, 2007.

Other significant related party transactions of the Group and the Parent Company follow (transactions with subsidiaries have been eliminated in the 
consolidated financial statements):

Transactions with Subsidiariesa.	

Loans and receivables from subsidiaries amounted to P600.0 million and P496.0 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, with related 
interest income of P18.4 million, P17.9 million and P17.0 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Deposit liabilities to subsidiaries amounted to P946.4 million and P971.1 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, with related interest 
expense of P18.6 million, P13.6 million and P17.1 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 

Bills Payable to subsidiaries amounted to nil and P1.7 billion as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 with related interest expense of nil, P1.9 million and 
P13.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Due from/(Due to) (settlement/working fund) accounts of subsidiaries maintained with the Parent Company amounted to (P26.8 million) and P9.6 million 
as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Interest accrued on loans and receivables from subsidiaries amounted to P1.3 million and P0.9 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Interest accrued on deposit liabilities to subsidiaries amounted to P0.5 million and P2.1 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Accounts receivable from subsidiaries amounted to P28.4 million and P29.0 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Accounts payable to subsidiaries amounted to P0.2 million and P0.3 million as of December 31,2011 and 2010, respectively.

The Parent Company has lease agreements with some of its subsidiaries.  The lease agreements include the share of the subsidiaries in the maintenance of 
the building in lieu of rental payments.  The income related to these agreements amounting to P7.2 million, P12.8 million and P22.2 million in 2011, 2010, 
and 2009, respectively, is included in ‘Miscellaneous income’ in the Parent Company statements of income.

Transactions with Other Related Partiesb.	

The balances with respect to related parties included in the financial statements follow:

2011 2010 2009

Related Party
Loans 

Receivable
Interest 
Income

Loans 
Receivable

Interest 
Income

Interest 
Income

Philippine Airlines (PAL) P4,373,040 P97,797 P1,698,800 P59,667 P74,313
Officers 408,485 21,120 492,513 1,900 37,074
Philip Morris Fortune Tobacco Corporation (PMFTC) – – – 92,348 172,868

P4,781,525 P118,917 P2,191,313 P153,915 P284,255
PMFTC and PAL are companies associated with LTG.

Deposit liabilities to other related parties amounted to P8.3 million and P2.7 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The interest expense 
related to these deposit liabilities amounted to P10,030, and P3,271 in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Commission expenses paid to other related parties pertaining to marketing of certain joint venture projects of the Parent Company amounted to  
P11.9 million, P11.9 million and P4.8 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009.
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The compensation of the key management personnel follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Short-term employee benefits P152,623 P161,808 P198,029 P88,996 P86,809 P93,766
Post-employment benefits 14,683 24,908 20,111 12,109 21,227 16,425

P167,306 P186,716 P218,140 P101,105 P108,036 P110,191

The Parent Company and EPPI signed two JVA for the development of two properties under ‘Real estate under joint ventrure (JV) agreement’ by the Group 
and Parent Company with book values of P1.2 billion.  EPPI is also owned by LTG.  These two projects are among the Bank’s strategies in reducing its non-
performing assets.

The nature of the transactions is purely joint venture undertaking where the risks and benefits are shared by both parties based on the agreed parameters.  
Exit mechanisms and warranties were provided in the JVA to protect the interests of both parties.

The Parent Company contributed the aforementioned properties into the JV as approved by BSP.  EPPI, on the other hand, contributed its resources and 
technical expertise for the completion of the said JV.  The Parent Company is prohibited to contribute funds for the development of the JV.  Hence, there 
are no receivables from each party with respect to the JV.

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities32.	

In the normal course of business, the Group makes various commitments and incurs certain contingent liabilities that are not presented in the financial 
statements including several suits and claims which remain unsettled.  No specific disclosures on such unsettled assets and claims are made because 
any such specific disclosures would prejudice the Group’s position with the other parties with whom it is in dispute.  Such exemption from disclosures is 
allowed under PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.  The Group and its legal counsel believe that any losses arising from these 
contingencies which are not specifically provided for will not have a material adverse effect on the financial statements.

In November 1994, the BSP, Maybank and the Parent Company executed a Memorandum of Agreement (MA) providing for the settlement of Maybank’s 
P3.0 billion liabilities to the BSP.  Under this MA, the Parent Company is jointly and severally liable with Maybank for the full compliance and satisfaction of 
the terms and conditions therein.  The MA provides for the creation of an escrow fund to be administered by the BSP where all collections from conveyed 
assets and certain annual guaranteed payments required under the MA are to be deposited.

Relative to the sale of the Parent Company’s 60% interest in Maybank, the Parent Company has requested the BSP to consider the revision of the terms of 
the MA to, among others, (a) delete the provision on the annual guaranteed payments in consideration of an immediate payment by the Parent Company 
of an agreed amount, and (b) exclude Maybank as a party to the MA.  On May 7, 1997, the BSP approved the Parent Company’s request to amend the 
terms of the MA, subject to the following conditions among others:

a)	 The Parent Company shall remit P150.0 million to the escrow account out of the proceeds from sale;
b)	 The Parent Company shall remit to the escrow account an amount equivalent to 50% of any profit that may be realized by the Parent Company on 

account of the sale; and
c)	 If the amount in the escrow account has not reached the total of P3.0 billion by June 30, 2013, the difference shall be paid by the Parent Company 

by way of a debit to its regular account with the BSP.

On November 28, 1997, the Parent Company remitted P150.0 million in compliance with item (a).  The Parent Company anticipates that the payment of 
P150.0 million to the BSP together with the existing balance of the funds in escrow as of that date will allow the escrow account to reach the required 
P3.0 billion earlier than programmed.  This has effectively released the Parent Company from any further payments under the MA.

The Parent Company’s remaining investment in Maybank was sold on June 29, 2000.  The sale was approved by the BSP on August 16, 2000.

On August 17, 2007, the Parent Company and the BSP amended certain provisions of the MA as follows:

The Parent Company will no longer act as the collecting agent for the BSP on the conveyed assets (Asset Pool 1);1.	
The Parent Company will no longer remit the amount collected from the Asset Pool 1 to the escrow account;2.	
BSP will revert to the Parent Company all the Asset Pool 1 accounts categorized as sugar and sugar-related accounts; and3.	
The Parent Company will submit to BSP acceptable collaterals with an appraised value of at least 4.	 P300.0 million as substitute for the sugar-related 
loans under Asset Pool 1.

On the same date, the Parent Company executed a real estate mortgage over certain investment properties with an aggregate fair value of P300.0 million 
in favor of the BSP (see Note 14).

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the total trust assets of the escrow account maintained with the BSP amounted to P2.7 billion and P2.5 billion, 
respectively.  Average yield during the year was 7.3%.  Management expects that the value of the escrow account and the collection from the Asset  
Pool 1 by 2013 will be more than adequate to cover the P3.0 billion liabilities due the BSP.
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BSP Reporting
The following is a summary of various commitments, contingent assets and contingent liabilities at their equivalent peso contractual amounts:

Consolidated Parent Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

Trust department accounts (Note 30) P55,565,213 P30,427,482 P55,565,213 P30,427,482
Deficiency claims receivable 6,334,950 7,516,669 6,334,950 7,516,669
Inward bills for collection 1,542,449 2,621,934 1,542,449 2,621,934
Outstanding guarantees issued 728,343 938,361 271,980 480,877
Outward bills for collection 123,224 76,911 123,082 76,911
Unused commercial letters of credit 85,260 11,414 85,260 11,414
Other contingent accounts 41,265 41,316 41,259 41,316
Confirmed export letters of credit 5,261 14,603 5,261 14,603
Items held as collateral 259 262 250 252

Notes to Statements of Cash Flows33.	

The amounts of due from BSP which have original maturities of more than three months are as follows:

2011 2010
Due from BSP P20,200,000 P9,800,000

Other Matters34.	

On October 26, 2011, the Parent Company (as successor to Allied Banking Corporation (ABC) upon merger) signed a Voting Trust Agreement with Oceanic 
Holding (BVI) Limited (Oceanic BVI) and another party (a trustee) for the sale of Oceanic BVIs’ investment in Oceanic Bank Holding that owns 100% of 
Oceanic Bank in the United States of America.  ABC owns 27.78% of Oceanic BVIs’ common stock.

On October 28, 2011, the U.S. Federal Reserve Board approved the Voting Trust Agreement in order to facilitate the merger of ABC into the Parent 
Company in a manner that addresses U.S regulatory concerns.  With the approval of the U.S. Federal Reserve board of the Voting Trust Agreement, the 
Parent Company and ABC can now proceed with the implementation of merger.

Subsequent Events35.	

On March 6, 2012, the Parent Company held Special Stockholders’ Meeting approving the amended terms of the Plan of Merger of the Parent Company 
with Allied Banking Corporation (ABC).  The original plan of the merger was approved in 2008.  The merger is targeted to take effect in the second quarter 
of 2012 after securing all necessary approvals from the regulators.

The merger will be effected via a share-for-share exchange.  Under the approved terms, the Parent Company will be the surviving entity.  lt will issue to ABC 
shareholders 130 Parent Company shares for every ABC common share and 22.763 Parent Company shares for every ABC preferred share.  The Parent 
Company shares will be issued at Php 70.00 per share.

Approval of the Release of the Financial Statements36.	

The accompanying financial statements of the Parent Company and its Subsidiaries (the Group) and of the Parent Company were authorized for issue by 
the Parent Company’s BOD on 
March 6, 2012.

 Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 19-2011 and 15-201037.	

In addition to the required supplementary information under RR No. 15-2010, on December 9, 2011, the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) issued 
RR No. 19-2011 which prescribes the new annual income tax forms that will be used for filing effective taxable year 2011.  Specifically, companies are 
required to disclose certain tax information in their respective notes to financial statements.  For the taxable year December 31, 2011, the Parent Company 
reported the following revenues and expenses for income tax purposes (in absolute amounts):
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Revenues

Services/operations P7,142,886,569
Non-operating and taxable other income:
	 Service charges, fees and commissions 2,317,287,869
	 Trading and securities gain 1,658,941,754
	 Others 1,611,830,298

5,588,059,921
P12,730,946,490

Expenses

Cost of services:
	 Compensation and fringe benefits P999,989,873
	 Others 5,481,684,311

6,481,674,184

Itemized deductions:
	 Compensation and fringe benefits 1,530,278,567
	 Taxes and licenses 1,206,181,279
	 Security, messengerial and janitorial 306,792,068
	 Depreciation and amortization 269,760,656
	 Transportation and travel 168,369,404
	 Rent 151,886,861
	 Communication, light and water 142,074,930
	 Repairs and Maintenance 137,076,428
	 EAR 99,186,095
	 Management and professional fees 75,073,766
	 Bad debts 146,349
	 Others 14,147,375,535

18,234,201,938
P24,715,876,122

On November 25, 2010, the Bureau of Internal Revenue issued Revenue Regulations (RR) 15-2010 to amend certain provisions of RR 21-2002.  The 
Regulations provide that starting 2010 the notes to financial statements shall include information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during 
the taxable year. 

The Parent Company remitted the following types of taxes for the tax period January to December 2011 (in absolute amounts).

Taxes and licenses1.	

Amount
Gross receipts tax P638,545,088
Documentary stamp taxes 768,687,350
Real estate tax 119,318,575
Local taxes 35,034,996
Others 14,251,791

P1,575,837,800

2.	 Withholdings taxes

Amount
Final income taxes withheld on interest on deposits and yield on deposit substitutes P538,195,155
Expanded withholding taxes 337,374,752
Withholding taxes on compensation and benefits 82,623,117
VAT withholding taxes 6,201,995
Other final taxes 36,111,679

P1,000,506,698

Tax Cases and Assessments
As of December 31, 2011, the Parent Company has outstanding cases filed in courts for various claims for tax refund.  Management is of the opinion that 
the ultimate outcome of these cases will not have a material impact on the financial statements of the Parent Company.
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CONSUMER FINANCE GROUP
2/F, PNB Financial Center

Senior Vice President
Elfren Antonio S. Sarte

Vice President
Mary Rose U. Mendez

Senior Assistant Vice President
Modette Ines V. Carino
Ralph Benedict B. Centeno

Assistant Vice President
Leila Q. Amante
Maria Arlene V. David
Rhodora E. Del Mundo
Maria Cecilia V. Fabella
Michael Antonio S. Garcia
Josephine D. Santillana
Edward Eli B. Tan
Pacifico M. Velasco

CORPORATE PLANNING & 
RESEARCH DIVISION
9/F, PNB Financial Center

Senior Vice President
Emeline C. Centeno

Senior Assistant Vice President
Remedios D. Nisce

CORPORATE SECRETARY’S 
OFFICE
9/F, PNB Financial Center

Senior Manager
Doris S. Te

Senior Assistant Vice President
Ma. Cristina M. Advincula
Ma. Socorro Antoniette G. 
Marquez

FACILITIES ADMINISTRATIVE 
GROUP
2/F, PNB Financial Center

First Vice President
Augusto B. Dimayuga

Vice President
Leonor A. Aquino

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT & 
CONTROLLERSHIP GROUP
7/F & 10/F, PNB Financial Center

Executive Vice President
Carmen G. Huang

First Senior Vice President
Ramon L. Lim

Senior Vice President
Ligaya R. Gagolinan
Maria Paz D. Lim
Marlyn M. Pabrua

First Vice President
Marilyn A. Asuncion
Ma. Evangeline A. Buhay
Udela C. Salvo

Vice President
Renato S. Del Mundo
Ginina C. Trazo

Senior Assistant Vice President
Limwel M. Caparros
Virgilio C. Fabularum
Marilou V. Ruiz
Julian B. Soriano

Assistant Vice President
Ma. Teresa T. Ledesma
Edwin M. Pagal
Judah Ben-Hur C. Relativo

GLOBAL COMPLIANCE GROUP
11/F, PNB Financial Center 

Senior Vice President
Alice Z.Cordero

First Vice President
Lino S. Carandang

Assistant Vice President
Rosario S. Dela Rosa
Eril P. Recalde

GLOBAL FILIPINO BANKING 
GROUP
3/F, PNB Financial Center

Senior Vice President
Cesar A. Santos Jr.

First Vice President
Romulo Rodel C. Bicol 
Arceli S. Manaloto

Senior Assistant Vice President
Nestor P. Pascual 
Elise Rue A. Ramos

Assistant Vice President
Vic E. Cobarrubias
Maria Corazon Yay Z. Jeremillo
Michille G. Lopez
Elmer D. Querol

GLOBAL OPERATIONS GROUP
3/F, PNB Financial Center

Senior Vice President
John Howard D. Medina

First Vice President
Maria Carmen R. Benitez
Teresita S. Cruz
David Stephen T. Cu
Ma. Cirila B. Panganiban
Daniel M. Yu

Vice President
Marilyn Prescilla O. Aguas

Senior Assistant Vice President
Ma. Agnes T. Almosora
Proserfina A. Cruz
Cynthia A. Molina
Lilia M. Lichauco
Arnel A. Mariano
Alma O. Marifosque 

Assistant Vice President
Victoria V. Aquino
Sandra Michelle N. Berrei-Galvez
Ma. Luisa E. Cruz
Loreta B. Eguia
Editha M. Jose
Fernando L. Mallari
Hector Y. Manawis
Ma. Edene M. Recio
Adrian Alexander Romualdez
Virgilio T. Sanchez
Rachel V. Sinson
Cristina G. Sullano
Bayani U. Ubana

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
GROUP
2/F, PNB Financial Center

First Senior Vice President
Ramon Eduardo E. Abasolo

Senior Vice President
Betty L. Haw
Roland V. Oscuro

Vice President
Ma. Cecilia D. Regalario

Senior Assistant Vice President
Edgardo D. Del Castillo III
Cristina O. Villena
Elizabeth  S. Salindo

Assistant Vice President
Vanessa Maria Dolores C. Bueno
Rowena N. Cacdac
Winny U. Canete 
Pat Pio F. Fondevilla
Joel  H. Maling
Eduardo S. Martinez

HUMAN RESOURCE GROUP
7/F, PNB Financial Center

First Senior Vice President
Edgardo T. Nallas

Senior Vice President
Schubert Caesar C. Austero

Senior Assistant Vice President
Roderick R. Soriano

INSTITUTIONAL BANKING 
GROUP
3/F & 7/F, PNB Financial Center

Executive Vice President
Ma. Elena B. Piccio

First Senior Vice President
Cenon  C. Audencial Jr.

Senior Vice President
Elisa M. Cua
Victorio D. Sison
Alfonso C. Tanseco

First Vice President
Allan L. Ang
Cynthia B. Lanot
Carmen Jazmin  F. Lao
Erwin Rommel S. Nonato
Maria Rita S. Pueyo
Marie Fe Liza S Jayme
Humildad M. Santelices

Vice President
Aaron L. Astor
Maria Isabel S. Gonzales
Martin Roberto G. Tirol

Senior Assistant Vice President
Ferdinand G. Austria
Victor G. Calma
Ma. Rowena S. Conda
Gretchen N. Coronel
Bernice U. Gaspar
Angeline Grace T. Go
Marie Grace Nina P. Marcelo
Nilo R. Padua
Albert J. Guangco
Ma. Arlene Mae G. Lazaro
Melchor G. Sapaula

Assistant Vice President
Cesar C. Bala
Sharon Marie Margarita  A. 
Gonzalez
Luzviminda V. Magsino
Donald E. Quintana
Henry M. Montalvo
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INTERNAL AUDIT GROUP
11/F, PNB Financial Center

Vice President
Vicente S. Pagdatoon II

Senior Assistant Vice President
Ardy D. Gomez
Miguel P. Reyes

Assistant Vice President
Leo C. Castillo

LEGAL GROUP
9/F, PNB Financial Center

First Senior Vice President
Alvin C. Go

First Vice President
Manuel C. Bahena Jr.

Vice President
Ismael C. Billena Jr.
Antonio M. Elicano
Eligio P. Petilla

Senior Assistant Vice President
Edgardo V. Satur

Assistant Vice President
Janette Q. Adamos
Airene Petronila D. Estrella
Loreta G. Marasigan

MARKETING GROUP
11/F, PNB Financial Center

Senior Vice President
Emmanuel A. Tuazon

Senior Assistant Vice President
Elmer B. Rombaoa

Assistant Vice President
Stephen Edward John L. Crisologo
Allen Joseph A. De Leon

OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT
10/F, PNB Financial Center

President 
Carlos A. Pedrosa

Vice President
Lucita C. Briones

REMEDIAL/ CREDIT 
MANAGEMENT GROUP
7/F, PNB Financial Center

Senior Vice President
Miguel Angel G. Gonzalez
Aida M. Padilla
Nanette O. Vergara

First Vice President
Clodoveo P. Atienza
Ana Rose T. Kwan
Rowena E. Magpayo
Orlando B. Montecillo

Vice President
Julian M. Martinez
Janette C. Gonzalvo

Senior Assistant Vice President
Mario Luis P. Cruel
Carmencita Karla R. Alvarez 
Lorna S. Gamboa
Lorna G. Santos
Mariza L. Tiburcio
Ted Edward R. Tolentino

Assistant Vice President
Minna P. Ambas
Neil B. Campos 
Ricardo B. Casacop
Rosario C. De Leon
Glenn H. Francisco
Erwin Rommel A. Pobeda
Rowena D. Rosuelo
Jan John Dennis N. Villacorte

RETAIL BANKING GROUP
9/F, PNB Financial Center

Executive Vice President
Jovencio D. Hernandez

Senior Vice President
Mary Ann A. Santos
Maria Luisa S. Toribio

First Vice President
Narciso S. Capito Jr.
Jane K. Gocuan
Ma. Patricia N. Tan

Vice President
Roger P. Colobong
Cesar G. Evasco
Reynaldo A. Intal
Dwight Lawrence T. Leyco
Vicente A. Longno
Juanito D. Pineda
Carina L. Salonga 
Teresita U. Sebastian

Senior Assistant Vice President
Ernesto E. Catacutan 
Susan H. Ching
Myrna P. Chua
Nicolas S. Diaz
Geronimo S. Gallego
Arnel D. Lopez
Mariano M. Magbanua Jr.
Zedric J. Matubis
Leopoldo F. Moragas
Shirley S. Pelayo
Julius T. Rifareal

Assistant Vice President
Jocelyn R. Broniola
Carlo Lucas M. Buan
Susan R. Cervantes
Dennis M. Concejero
Manuel Antonio S. Garcia
Mary Rose D. Gonzales
Alvin I. Kong
Carlos Oliver L. Leytte
Edson L. Lim
Alvin A. Lista
Laudico D. Nicdao
Raymond F. Ordona
Mariquita P. Ortega
Rosario A. Rodil
Ma. Luisa B. Tapang
Shella Marie B. Villacorta 

RISK MANAGEMENT GROUP
11/F, PNB Financial Center

Senior Vice President
Carmela A. Pama

Vice President
Jeslyn C. Bonifacio

Senior Assistant Vice President
Leandra E. Abainza

Assistant Vice President
Ma. Aurora R. Bocato

SPECIAL ASSETS 
MANAGEMENT GROUP
9/F, PNB Financial Center

Senior Vice President
Christian Jerome O. Dobles
Emmanuel German V. Plan II

First Vice President
Florencio C. Lat
Nixon S. Ngo

Vice President
Ma. Consolacion E. Pingol

Senior Assistant Vice President
Janette Y. Abad Santos
Ponciano D. Quinio

Assistant Vice President
Nestor D. Del Carmen Jr. 
Antonio L. Mangasep
Eranio Q. Pascual

TREASURY GROUP
3/F, PNB Financial Center

Executive Vice President
Horacio E. Cebrero III

Senior Vice President
Ponciano C. Bautista Jr.
Esther F. Capule
Ma. Lourdes S. Liwag 

First Vice President
Maria Victoria P. Manimbo

Senior Assistant Vice President
Lariza V. Llanes

Assistant Vice President
Jeneline V. De Guzman
Victoria L. Guevara

TRUST BANKING GROUP
3/F, PNB Financial Center

First Senior Vice President
Rafael G. Ayuste  Jr.

First Vice President
Arsenia L. Matriano

Vice President
Josephine E. Jolejole
Joy Jasmin R. Santos 
Maria Teresa D. Tolentino
Immaculada E. Villanos

Senior Assistant Vice President
Dennis Anthony D. Elayda
Roy O. Sapanghila

Assistant Vice President
Anna Liza S. Calayan
Juliet S. Dytoc 
Ma. Socorro C. Unas

BANK SECURITY OFFICE
Basement, PNB Financial Center

Senior Assistant Vice President
Ruben A. Zacarias
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Directory of Branches and Offices

DomeStic
Metro Manila 
Branches
ALABANG BRANCH 
G/F Page 1 Building 1215 Acacia 
Avenue Madrigal Business Park 
Ayala Alabang, Muntinlupa City  
Tel. Nos.	 842-3550.,807-6065 	
Telefax No.	 842-3610 
E-mail Add.	 alabang@pnb.com.ph 
 
ALI MALL BRANCH  
Ali Mall II Bldg., Gen. Romulo Ave.  
cor. P. Tuazon Blvd., Cubao 
Quezon City 1109  
Tel. Nos.	 912-1655, 912-6655  
Telefax No.	 912-6654 
E-mail Add.	 alimall@pnb.com.ph 
 
ALMANZA BRANCH  
Hernz Arcade Alabang-Zapote Road 
Almanza, Las Piñas City 1750  
Tel. No. 	 806-6905 
Telefax No.	 800-0597 
E-mail Add.	 almanza@pnb.com.ph 

ANTIPOLO BRANCH  
89 P. Oliveros St., Kapitolyo Arcade, 
San Roque, Antipolo City 1870 
Tel. Nos. 	 697-2015, 630-3080 
Fax No. 	 692-2018 
E-mail Add. 	antipolo@pnb.com.ph 
 
ARANETA AVENUE BRANCH 
128 G. Araneta Avenue Brgy. Doña 
Imelda, Quezon City 
Tel. Nos. 	 714-1146, 715-6861 
Fax No. 	 715-6861 
E-mail Add. 	araneta@pnb.com.ph 
 
AYALA BRANCH  
G/F, VGP Building 6772 Ayala 
Avenue, Makati City  
Tel. Nos. 	 894-1432, 817-6119
	 894-1427 
Telefax No. 	 817-9936 
E-mail Add. 	ayala@pnb.com.ph 
 
BANGKAL BRANCH  
G/F E.P. Hernandez Building., 
1646 Evangelista St.,Bangkal, 
Makati City 
Tel. Nos. 	 889-0395, 889-0396  
Telefax No. 	 889-0389 
E-mail Add. 	bangkal@pnb.com.ph 
 

BATASANG PAMBANSA BRANCH 
Main Gate Area. (Main Entrance) 
Batasang Pambansa Complex 
Constitutional Hills, Quezon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 951-7590 to 91
	 931-5001 loc. 7647 
Telefax No. 	 931-6682 
E-mail Add. 	batasan@pnb.com.ph 
 
BEL-AIR MAKATI BRANCH 
(Formerly DPWH Branch) 
52 Jupiter St.Bel-Air, 
Makati City 1209 
Tel. Nos. 	 (02) 519-8042
	 (02) 519-8276 
E-mail Add. 	belairmakati
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
BENAVIDEZ BRANCH  
Unit G-1D, G/F BSA Mansion 
108 Benavidez St., Legaspi Village 
Makati City 
Tel. Nos. 	 840-3040, 840-3039 
Telefax No. 	 840-3038 
E-mail Add. 	benavidez@pnb.com.ph 
 
BICUTAN BRANCH  
VCD Building, 89 Doña Soledad 
Avenue Better Living Subdivision 
Bicutan, Parañaque City  
Tel. Nos. 	 824-4953/55 
Telefax No. 	 824-4954 
E-mail Add. 	bicutan@pnb.com.ph 
 
BINONDO BRANCH  
452 San Fernando St. cor. Elcano 
St., Binondo, Manila  
Tel. Nos. 	 244-8950, 242-8450 
	 242-8449 
E-mail Add. 	binondo@pnb.com.ph 
 
BLUMENTRITT BRANCH 
PNB Kassco Bldg., Cor. Lico 
and Cavite Sts., Sta. Cruz,
Manila 
Tel. Nos. 	 732-7150, 732-7156 
Fax No. 	 731-7150 
E-mail Add. 	blumentritt
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
BONIFACIO GLOBAL CITY
(Formerly Bulan Branch)  
Shop 2, The Luxe Residences  
28th St.cor 4th Avenue  
Bonifacio Global City, 
Tel. Nos. 	 808-1454, 808-0721 
E-mail Add: 	bonifacio@pnb.com.ph 
 

BSP SERVICE UNIT 
(Formerly CBSU Branch) 
G/F Cafetorium Building Bangko 
Sentral ng Pilipinas Complex  
A. Mabini cor. P. Ocampo Sts. 
Malate, Manila  
Tel. Nos. 	 708-7680, 708-7682 
E-mail Add. 	cbsu@pnb.com.ph
 
BSP SUB-SERVICE UNIT 
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas Security 
Complex, East Ave., Diliman, 
Quezon City 
Tel. No. 	 926-4881
 
CAINTA BRANCH 
RRCG Transport BuildingKm. 18 
Ortigas Avenue Extension
Brgy. San Isidro, Cainta, Rizal 
Tel. Nos. 	 (02) 470-8642
	 (02) 997-8103 
E-mail Add. 	cainta@pnb.com.ph 
 
CALOOCAN BRANCH  
Gen. San Miguel St.,Brgy 4 
Zone 1.,Sangandaan,Dist II, 
Caloocan City 
Tel. Nos. 	 288-2450, 288-2446  
Telefax No. 	 288-2450 
E-mail Add. 	caloocan@pnb.com.ph 
 
CALOOCAN - A. MABINI BRANCH
(Formerly Maypajo Branch) 
451 A. Mabini cor. J. Rodriguez St. 
Caloocan City 
Tel. Nos. 	 288-6486, 288-6729  
Telefax No. 	 288-6729 
E-mail Add. 	caloocana
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
CARTIMAR-TAFT BRANCH  
G/F SATA Corp. Bldg. 2217 Taft 
Avenue, Pasay City  
Tel. No. 	 834-0765  
Telefax No. 	 833-2268 
E-mail Add. 	cartimar-taft
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
C.M. RECTO BRANCH 
(formerly Legarda Branch} 
Units 6 & 7, PSPCA Bldg. 2026-
2028 C.M. Recto Avenue 
Quiapo, Manila  
Tel. No. 	 734-0799 
 	 734-0899 
E-mail Add. 	cmrecto@pnb.com.ph 
 
COA BRANCH  
Commission on Audit Building  
Commonwealth Ave., Quezon City 
Tel. Nos. 	 932-9026; 
	 932-9027	  
Fax No. 	 951-8092 
E-mail Add. 	coa@pnb.com.ph 
 

COMMONWEALTH BRANCH  
G/F, LC Square Building  
529 Commonwealth Ave.
Quezon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 932-1891, 932-8431
	 951-4893 
Telefax No. 	 932-1891 
E-mail Add. 	commonwealth
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
CUBAO BRANCH  
Cor. Gen. Araneta St. and Aurora 
Blvd.,Cubao, Quezon City 1109  
Tel. Nos. 	 911-2916, 912-1938
	 912-1942, 911-2919
	 911-2920  
Fax No. 	 912-1931 
E-mail Add. 	cubao@pnb.com.ph 
 
DAPITAN-GELINOS BRANCH 
(Formerly Laon-Laan Branch) 
G/F North Forbes Place 1221 
Gelinos Street Sampaloc, Manila 
Tel. No. 	 732-96-17 
Telefax No. 	 749-00-38 
E-mail Add. 	dapitangelinos
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
DASMA-MAKATI BRANCH 
(Formerly Olympia Branch) 
2284 Allegro Center,Chino Roces 
Ave. Extension Makati City 
Tel. Nos. 	 846-5144,846-9330 
E-mail Add. 	dasma_makati
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
DELTA BRANCH  
101-N dela Merced Bldg. West 
Avenue corner Quezon Ave. 
Quezon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 372-1539 to 41  
Telefax No. 	 372-1542 
E-mail Add. 	delta@pnb.com.ph 
 
DIVISORIA BRANCH  
869 Sto. Cristo St., Binondo, Manila  
Tel. Nos. 	 242-8135, 247-4470
	 242-6319  
E-mail Add. 	divisoria@pnb.com.ph 
 
EASTWOOD CITY BRANCH 
(Formerly Malacañang Branch) 
MDC 100 Building, Mezzanine Level 
Unit M3, E. Rodriguez Jr. Ave. 
corner Eastweed Ave.
Brgy. Bagumbayan, Libis
Q,C 1110 
Tel. No.	  961-0514 
E-mail Add. 	eastwoodcity
	 @pnb.com.ph
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EDISON-BUENDIA BRANCH  
G/F, Visard Building19 Sen. 
Gil Puyat Ave., Makati City  
Tel. Nos. 	 844-9958, 843-5889  
Telefax No. 	 844-9956  
E-mail Add. 	edisonbuendia
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
EDSA-ROOSEVELT BRANCH 
1024 Global Trade Center Bldg.  
Edsa, Quezon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 332-3067, 332-4446
	 372-3014 
E-mail Add. 	roosevelt@pnb.com.ph 
 
ERMITA BRANCH 
1343 A. Mabini Street 
Ermita, Manila  
Tel. Nos. 	 526-0028, 526-6586 
	 526-0853, 521-7166 
Fax No. 	 526-1350 , 254-7630 
E-mail Add. 	ermita@pnb.com.ph 
 
E. RODRIGUEZ SR. – BANAUE 
BRANCH 
(formerly Banaue Branch) 
97 ECCOI Bldg.E. Rodriguez Sr. Ave. 
Brgy. Tatalon, Quezon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 740-7875 to 76 
Telefax No. 	 740-7875 
E-mail Add. 	banaue@pnb.com.ph 
 
ESCOLTA BRANCH  
G/F, Regina Bldg., 324 Escolta St.  
Sta. Cruz, Manila  
Tel. Nos. 	 241-4279,241-4239 	
	 242-8358	
Telefax No. 	 241-4444 
E-mail Add. 	escolta@pnb.com.ph 
 
ESPAÑA BRANCH  
Doña Anacleta Bldg., España Blvd., 
cor Galicia St.Sampaloc, Manila  
Tel. Nos. 	 735-6593 
. 	 735-6592 
E-mail Add. 	espana@pnb.com.ph 
 
ETON-CORINTHIAN BRANCH 
(Formerly Avenida Branch) 
Unit 78, E-Life@Eton Cyberpod 
Corinthian EDSA corner Ortigas 
Avenue Brgy. Ugong Norte, 
Quezon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 470-6156, 470-6646 
Fax No. 	 470-6156 
E-mail Add. 	etoncorinthian
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 

EVER-GOTESCO BRANCH  
Lower Ground Floor, Stall No. 20  
Ever-Gotesco Commonwealth 
Commonwealth Ave., Quezon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 932-6633, 951-7342  
Telefax No. 	 932-3789 
E-mail Add. 	evergotesco
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
FAIRVIEW BRANCH  
No. 41 Regalado Ave.,West 
Fairview, Quezon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 939-8003, 938-7429
	 491-2955  
E-mail Add. 	fairview@pnb.com.ph
 
FELIX AVENUE BRANCH  
F.P. Felix Avenue, Brgy. San Isidro
Cainta, Rizal 1900 
Tel. Nos.	 645-7361, 645-7341
	 645-6026 
E-mail Add.	 felixave@pnb.com.ph
 
FORT BONIFACIO-INFINITY 
BRANCH  
G/F Unit 101, The Infinity Tower 
26th Street, Fort Bonifacio
Taguig City  
Tel. Nos. 	 553-9711, 553-9709 
E-mail Add. 	fortbonifacio-infinity
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
FORT BONIFACIO-MCKINLEY HILL 
BRANCH  
G/F Unit B, McKinley Hill-810 
Building Upper McKinley Road 
McKinley Town Center 
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City 
Tel. Nos. 	 555-0651, 552-1515 	
	 552-5555 
E-mail Add. 	fortbonifacio-		
	 mckinley@pnb.com.ph 
 
FRISCO BRANCH  
Unit E/F MCY Building,
136 Roosevelt Avenue
San Francisco del Monte
Brgy. Paraiso, Quezon City 
Tel. Nos. 	 373-6604 to 05 
Telefax No. 	 373-6603 
E-mail Add. 	frisco@pnb.com.ph 
 
FTI BRANCH 
Lot 52 G/F New Admin Bldg., FTI 
Complex, Taguig City 
Tel. Nos.	 822-2012, 838-5041
Telefax No. 	 837-0492, 837-1892 
E-mail Add. 	fti@pnb.com.ph

GALAS BRANCH  
20 A. Bayani Street, cor. 
Bustamente,Galas, Quezon City  
Tel. No. 	 781-9477 
Telefax No. 	 781-9476 
E-mail Add. 	galas@pnb.com.ph 
 
GILMORE BRANCH  
(Formerly Aurora Blvd. Branch)  
G/F Gilmore IT CenterNo. 8 Gilmore 
Ave., Cor. 1st St. New Manila, 
Quezon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 722-2479, 721-2787
	 722-2324  
Telefax No. 	 722-2479 
E-mail Add. 	gilmore@pnb.com.ph 
 
GRACE PARK BRANCH  
354 A-C M. Asistio St.Formerly 10th 
Ave., Grace Park Caloocan City  
Tel. Nos. 	 365-8578, 365-6173 
E-mail Add. 	gracepark
	 @pnb.com.ph  
 
GREENHILLS BRANCH  
G/F One Kennedy Place Club Filipino 
Drive,Greenhills, San Juan 
Tel. Nos. 	 725-4341, 725-5929 
Fax No. 	 725-5084 
E-mail Add. 	greenhills@pnb.com.ph 
 
GSIS BRANCH 
(Formerly PICC Branch)  
Level 1 GSIS Bldg., Financial Center  
Roxas Blvd., Pasay City  
Tel. Nos. 	 514-6943 
Telefax No. 	 891-6345 
E-mail Add. 	gsis@pnb.com.ph 
 
GUADALUPE BRANCH  
PACMAC Bldg. 23 EDSA 
Guadalupe, Makati City  
Tel. Nos. 	 882-1904, 882-4636 
E-mail Add. 	guadalupe
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
HARRISON PLAZA BRANCH 
Rizal Memorial Sports Complex 
Bldg., A. Adriatico St., 
Malate, Manila  
Tel. Nos. 	 524-9851, 525-2489 
Telefax No. 	 525-2489 
E-mail Add. 	harrison@pnb.com.ph 
 
INTRAMUROS BRANCH  
G/F MTFI Bldg., Cor. A. Soriano Ave. 
and Arzobispo Sts., Intramuros, 
Manila  
Tel. No. 	 527-1255 
Telefax No. 	 527-7385 
E-mail Add. 	intramuros
	 @pnb.com.ph
 

JUAN LUNA BRANCH  
451 Juan Luna St., Binondo, Manila 
Tel. Nos. 	 242-8451, 242-8452 
E-mail Add. 	juanluna@pnb.com.ph 
 
KAPASIGAN BRANCH  
Emiliano A. Santos Bldg.A. Mabini 
St. cor. Dr. Sixto Antonio Ave.,
Pasig City  
Tel. No. 	 643-6225 
Fax No.	 641-0623 
E-mail Add. 	kapasigan@pnb.com.ph 
 
KATIPUNAN BRANCH  
335 AGCOR Bldg. Katipunan 
Avenue Loyola Heights, 
Quezon City  
Tel. Nos.	 433-2021, 929-8814 
Telefax No. 	 433-2022 
E-mail Add. 	katipunan@pnb.com.ph 
 
LAGRO BRANCH  
JTM Bldg., Regalado Avenue  
Neopolitan Subd., North Fairview  
Quezon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 930-3105 to 06 
Fax No. 	 936-7303 
E-mail Add. 	lagro@pnb.com.ph 
 
LAS PIÑAS BRANCH
(Formerly Navotas Branch) 
#19 Alabang Zapote Road 
Pamplona II, Las Piñas City 
Tel. Nos. 	 871-1745; 871-3149 
	 871-2351 (Metro 7 	
	 Area Office) 
E-mail Add. 	laspinas@pnb.com.ph 
 
LEGASPI VILLAGE BRANCH 
G/F, First Life Center 174 Salcedo 
St., Legaspi Village Makati City  
Tel. Nos. 	 893-6783/7841  
Fax No. 	 892-7856 
E-mail Add. 	legaspivil@pnb.com.ph 
 
LEON GUINTO BRANCH 
(Formerly Paco Branch) 
G/F Marlow Bldg. 
2120 Leon Guinto St.
Malate, Manila  
Tel. Nos. 	 559-8955, 567-4548 	
	 559-8956 
E-mail Add. 	leonguinto
	 @pnb.com.ph

LUNETA BRANCH  
National Historical Institute 
Compound T. M. Kalaw St., 
Ermita, Manila  
Tel. Nos. 	 524-8926, 524-2879 
Telefax No. 	 524-2879 
E-mail Add. 	luneta@pnb.com.ph
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MABUHAY ROTONDA BRANCH 
G/F EU State Tower 30 Quezon 
Avenue, Quezon City 
Tel Nos. 	 740-5259, 743-0819 
Telefax No. 	 743-0819 
E-mail Add. 	mabuhay@pnb.com.ph
 
MAIN BRANCH  
Ground Floor, Main Lobby 
PNB Financial Center 
Diosdado Macapagal Boulevard 
Pasay City 
Tel. Nos. 	 526-3247
	 891-6040 to 70  
	 locals 2045, 2317
	 4869, 4693, 4639 		
	 4691, 4681, 4680 		
	 2226, 526-3131 
Telefax No. 	 551-5816 
E-mail Add. 	mainbranch
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
MAKATI POBLACION BRANCH 
1204 J.P. Rizal St. cor. Angono & 
Cardona Sts.,Makati City  
Tel. Nos. 	 899-1430, 896-4592  
Fax No. 	 897-9932 
E-mail Add. 	makatipob
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
MALABON BRANCH  
F. Sevilla Blvd.,Tañong,
Malabon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 281-3154, 281-4727 
E-mail Add. 	malabon@pnb.com.ph 
 
MANDALUYONG BRANCH  
471 Shaw Blvd., Mandaluyong City  
Tel. Nos. 	 534-8020, 533-4243  
Fax No. 	 533-9233 
E-mail Add. 	mandaluyong@pnb.
com.ph 
 
MARIKINA BRANCH  
Shoe Avenue cor. W. Paz St. 
Sta. Elena, Marikina City 
Tel. Nos. 	 681-0701, 681-0699 
Telefax No. 	 681-0702 
E-mail Add. 	marikina@pnb.com.ph 
 
MARULAS BRANCH  
#8 AGS Bldg. McArthur Highway 
Marulas, Valenzuela City  
Tel. Nos. 	 444-6263, 291-2742 
Telefax No. 	 291-2742 
E-mail Add. 	marulas@pnb.com.ph
 
MASINAG BRANCH  
Silicon Valley Building 169 
Sumulong Highway, Mayamot  
Antipolo City, Rizal  
Tel. Nos.	 681-5846, 682-3012 
E-mail Add. 	masinag@pnb.com.ph
 

MONUMENTO BRANCH  
419 D & I Bldg., EDSA, 
Caloocan City 
Tel. Nos. 	 361-6448, 364-0906 
Fax No. 	 361-6448 
E-mail Add. 	monumento
	 @pnb.com.ph

MUNTINLUPA BRANCH 
G/F Arbar Building 
National Highway, Poblacion 
Muntinlupa City 
Tel No. 	 861-2990, 861-2988 
E-mail Add. 	muntinlupa
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
MWSS BRANCH  
MWSS Compound, Katipunan Road 
Balara, Quezon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 922-3765, 927-5443  
Telefax No. 	 922-3764 
E-mail Add. 	mwss@pnb.com.ph 
 
NAGA ROAD - LAS PIñAS 
BRANCH 
Lot 2A, Naga Road corner DBP 
Extension, Pulang Lupa Dos 
Las Piñas City 
Tel. Nos. 	 (02) 804-1021
	 (02) 804-1022 
E-mail Add. 	nagaroadlaspinas
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
NAIA BRANCH  
Arrival Area Lobby, NAIA Complex,
Pasay City  
Tel. No. 	 879-6040, 877-1109 
	 local 3717  
Telefax No. 	 831-2640 
E-mail Add. 	naia@pnb.com.ph 
 
NAIA 3 BRANCH 
(Formerly Isetann Cinerama 
Branch) 
Arrival Area Lobby, NAIA 3 Complex  
Pasay City 1300  
Tel. Nos. 	 804-0727 
E-mail Add. 	naia3@pnb.com.ph 
 
NFA BRANCH  
Sugar Regulatory Administration 
(SRA) Building, Brgy. Vastra, North 
Avenue, Quezon City 
Tel. No. 	  804-0727 
Telefax No. 	  928-3604 
E-mail Add. 	nfa@pnb.com.ph 

NIA BRANCH  
EDSA cor. NIA Road., Brgy. Piñahan,
Diliman, Quezon City  
Tel. No. 	 927-2987 
Telefax No. 	 928-6776 
E-mail Add. 	nia@pnb.com.ph 
 

NOVALICHES BRANCH  
513 Quirino Highway, Talipapa  
Novaliches, Quezon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 984-6505, 984-0024
	 984-5946 
E-mail Add. 	novaliches
	 @pnb.com.ph
 
NPC BRANCH  
Agham Road, East Triangle
Diliman, Quezon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 927-8829, 927-8842 
Fax No. 	 927-8790 
E-mail Add. 	npc@pnb.com.ph 
 
ORTIGAS BRANCH  
G/F JMT Bldg, ADB Avenue 
Ortigas Center, Pasig City  
Tel. Nos. 	 635-3719, 633-5696  
Fax No. 	 631-6250 
E-mail Add. 	ortigas@pnb.com.ph 
 
PANDACAN BRANCH  
Jesus St., Corner T. San Luis St. 
Pandacan, Manila  
Tel. Nos. 	 563-1031, 564-0217  
Telefax No.	 564-0870 
E-mail Add. 	pandacan@pnb.com.ph 
 
PASAY BRANCH 
2976 Mexico Avenue, Taft Ext. 
Pasay City  
Tel. Nos. 	 832-0394, 832-0391  
Telefax No. 	 831-5264 
E-mail Add. 	pasay@pnb.com.ph 
 
PASIG BRANCH  
G/F Westar Bldg. 611 Shaw Blvd., 
Pasig City  
Tel. Nos. 	 631-4001, 636-7465 
Telefax No. 	 631-3996 
E-mail Add. 	pasig@pnb.com.ph 
 
PASIG-SANTOLAN BRANCH
(Formerly Kalentong Branch) 
Amang Rodriguez Avenue, 
Brgy. dela Paz, Santolan, 
Pasig City 1610 
Tel. Nos. 	 647-5552 
 	 682-7972 
E-mail Add. 	pasigsantolan
	 @pnb.com.ph 

PCSO BRANCH  
Philippine International Convention 
Center-CCP Complex, Roxas Blvd., 
Pasay City 
Tel. Nos. 	 846-7617, 789-4796  
E-mail Add. 	pcso@pnb.com.ph 
 

PETRON MEGA PLAZA BRANCH
(Formerly Makati Ave Branch) 
G/F, Petron Mega Plaza Building  
358 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue 
Makati City  
Tel. Nos. 	 886-3374 / 3377/ 		
	 3379/ 3383  
Fax No. 	 886-3372 
E-mail Add. 	petronmegaplaza
	 @pnb.com.ph
 
PGH BRANCH  
Philippine General Hospital 
Compound Taft Avenue, 
Ermita Manila  
Tel. Nos. 	 523-9110, 5243565 
Telefax No. 	 524-3565 
E-mail Add. 	pgh@pnb.com.ph
 
PIONEER BRANCH 
(Formerly Boni. Ave Branch) 
123 Pioneer St., Mandaluyong City  
Tel. Nos. 	 638-9565, 638-9310 	
	 734-0899 
Fax No. 	 633-6228  
E-mail Add. 	pioneer@pnb.com.ph

PLAZA STA. CRUZ BRANCH 
548 Florentino Torres St.  
Sta. Cruz, Manila  
Tel. Nos. 	 734-2462, 734-2464
	 734-0899 
Telefax No. 	 734-6682 
E-mail Add. 	plazastacruz
	 @pnb.com.ph
 
PORT AREA BRANCH  
G/F Bureau of Customs Compound  
Port Area, South Harbor, Manila  
Tel. Nos. 	 527-0259, 527-4433 
Telefax No. 	 527-4432 
E-mail Add. 	portarea@pnb.com.ph 
 
PRITIL (TONDO) BRANCH  
MTSC Bldg. Juan Luna cor. 
Capulong Ext., Tondo, Manila  
Tel. Nos. 	 252-9639, 252-9669 
Telefax No. 	 252-9639 
E-mail Add. 	pritil@pnb.com.ph 
 
PROJECT 8 BRANCH  
Mecca Trading Bldg.
Congressional Ave., Project 8 
Quezon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 426-2236, 924-2563 
Telefax No. 	 924-2563 
E-mail Add. 	project8@pnb.com.ph 
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QUEZON CITY CIRCLE BRANCH  
Elliptical Road cor. Kalayaan Avenue,
Diliman, Quezon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 924-2663, 922-0560, 
	 920-3353  
Fax No. 	 924-2662  
E-Mail Add. 	qccircle@pnb.com.ph 
 
RETIRO BRANCH  
422 N. S. Amoranto St., Edificio 
Enriqueta Bldg.,Sta. Mesa Heights, 
Quezon City 
Tel. Nos. 	 732-9067,  415-8020 
E-mail Add. 	retiro@pnb.com.ph
 
RIZAL AVENUE BRANCH  
Rizal Ave. cor. S. Herrera St. 
Sta. Cruz, Manila  
Tel. Nos. 	 254-2519, 254-2520 
E-mail Add. 	rizalavenue
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
ROSARIO (PASIG) BRANCH  
Unit 117-118 G/F Ever Gotesco Mall 
Ortigas Extension, Pasig City  
Tel. No. 	 656-1235  
Telefax No. 	 656-9126 
E-mail Add. 	rosario@pnb.com.ph 
 
ROXAS BOULEVARD BRANCH 
Suite 101, CTC Building 2232 
Roxas Boulevard, Pasay City  
Tel. Nos. 	 551-0238, 832-3901 
Telefax No. 	 832-3902 
E-mail Add. 	roxasblvd@pnb.com.ph 
 
SALCEDO VILLAGE BRANCH 
G/F LPL Mansions Condominium 
122 L.P. Leviste St., Salcedo Village
Makati City 1227 
Tel. Nos. 	 848-2593, 848-2574  
Telefax No. 	 848-2512 
E-mail Add. 	salcedo@pnb.com.ph 
 
SAN JUAN BRANCH 
213 F. Blumentritt St., cor. Lope K. 
Santos Sts.San Juan, Metro Manila  
Tel. No. 	 727-3643 
Telefax No. 	 724-6717 
E-mail Add. 	sanjuan@pnb.com.ph 
 
SAN LORENZO BRANCH  
G/F Jackson Bldg., 926 A. Arnaiz 
Ave.,Makati City  
Tel. Nos. 	 817-9439, 894-4165 
Telefax No. 	 817-9389 
E-mail Add. 	sanlorenzo
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 

SEN. GIL PUYAT BRANCH  
(Formerly Pasong Tamo Branch)  
G/F, Burgundy Corporate Tower  
252 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue
Makati City  
Tel. No. 	 844-5709 
Telefax No. 	 844-5706 
E-mail Add. 	gilpuyat@pnb.com.ph 
 
SHANGRI-LA PLAZA BRANCH 
Unit AX 116 P3 Carpark Bldg. 
Shangri-la Annex Plaza Mall, 
EDSA corner Shaw Blvd.,
Mandaluyong City  
Tel. Nos. 	 633-9224, 633-1907 
Telefax No. 	 633-9223 
E-mail Add. 	shangrila@pnb.com.ph 
 
SSS DILIMAN BRANCH  
G/F, SSS Building, East Avenue
Diliman, Quezon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 433-1710/1716
	 433-1688, 927-2804
	 927-3106, 920-6401 	
	 locals 2205-06 
Telefax No. 	 928-6460 
E-mail Add. 	sss@pnb.com.ph
 
STARMALL ALABANG BRANCH  
Upper Ground Level, Star Mall 
Alabang South Superhighway 
Alabang, Muntinlupa City 
Tel. Nos. 	 828-5023, 555-0668 
E-mail Add. 	pnbstarmallalabang
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
SUCAT BRANCH  
G/F Kingsland Bldg.
Dr. A. Santos Avenue 
Sucat, Parañaque City  
Tel. Nos. 	 826-1921, 826-1931
	 825-9058, 825-2328  
Telefax No. 	 825-2446 
E-mail Add. 	sucat@pnb.com.ph 
 
TAFT AVENUE BRANCH
(Formerly Malate Branch)  
PNB Taft Avenue Branch Marc1 
Building, 1973 Taft Avenue 
Malate,Manila 1004 
Tel. Nos. 	 354-0710, 354-4447 
E-mail Add. 	taftavenue
	 @pnb.com.ph
 
TANAY BRANCH  
New Tanay Public Market Road,  
Brgy. Plaza Aldea, Tanay, Rizal 1380  
Tel. Nos. 	 693-1191, 654-0211 
E-mail Add. 	tanay@pnb.com.ph
 

TANDANG SORA BRANCH  
102 cor. San Miguel Village, Pasong 
Tamo, Tandang Sora, Quezon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 935-9481, 939-5094
	 454-4773  
E-mail Add. 	tandangsora
	 @pnb.com.ph 

TAYTAY BRANCH  
2 Kadalagahan St., Brgy. Dolores 
Taytay, Rizal 1920  
Tel. Nos.	 658-2325, 660-4620 
Telefax No. 	 660-4621 
E-mail Add. 	taytay@pnb.com.ph
 
TIMOG BRANCH  
G/F Newgrange Bldg. 32 Timog 
Avenue,Brgy. Laging Handa, 
Quezon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 373-9041 to 44 
Fax No. 	 373-9041 
E-mail Add. 	timog@pnb.com.ph 
 
TUTUBAN - ABAD SANTOS 
BRANCH  
(formerly Tutuban Branch) 
1450-1452 Coyuco Bldg.Jose Abad 
Santos, Tondo, Manila 
Tel. Nos. 	 256-9893, 256-8905 
E-mail Add. 	tutuban@pnb.com.ph 
 
U.N. AVENUE BRANCH
(Formely San Marcelino Branch) 
G/F UMC Building, 900 U.N. Avenue
Ermita, Manila 
Tel. Nos. 	 521-4826, 524-6723 
Fax No. 	 521-7637 
E-mail Add. 	unavenue@pnb.com.ph 
 
U.P. CAMPUS BRANCH  
3 Apacible Street, U.P. Campus  
Diliman, Quezon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 927-4713, 927-0452 
Fax No. 	 921-8272 
E-mail Add. 	upcampus
	 @pnb.com.ph
 
VALENZUELA BRANCH  
313 McArthur H-way cor.
San Vicente St., Karuhatan 
Valenzuela City  
Tel. Nos. 	 292-9131, 291-2826
	 291-2827 
E-mail Add. 	valenzuela
	 @pnb.com.ph
 
VILLAMOR AIR BASE BRANCH 
G/F Airmens Mall Bldg., cor. 
Andrews and Sales Sts., 
Villamor Airbase, Pasay City  
Tel. Nos. 	 854-1675, 854-0055
	 853-5360  
E-mail Add. 	villamor@pnb.com.ph 
 

WEST AVENUE BRANCH  
92 West Avenue, Quezon City  
Tel. Nos. 	 921-1915, 929-3185
	 929-8683  
Fax No. 	 740-7875 
E-mail Add. 	westavenue
	 @pnb.com.ph

Luzon Branches

ABANAO BRANCH
(Formerly BCEPZ Branch) 
90 NRC Bldg.,  Abanao St., 
Baguio City  
Tel. Nos. 	 (074) 447-3509
	 (074) 447-3360  
E-mail Add. 	abanao@pnb.cm.ph
 
AGOO BRANCH  
National Highway cor. Verceles St.  
Consolacion, Agoo, La Union 2504  
Tel. Nos. 	 (072) 521-0052
	 (072) 710-0057  
E-mail Add. 	agoo@pnb.com.ph 

ALAMINOS BRANCH  
Quezon Avenue, Poblacion, 
Alaminos City, Pangasinan 2404  
Tel. No. 	 (075) 551-2196  
Telefax No. 	 (075) 552-7028 
E-mail Add. 	alaminos@pnb.com.ph 
 
ALBAY CAPITOL BRANCH
(Formely Daraga Branch) 
ANST Bldg. II, Rizal St., Brgy 14,
Albay District, Legazpi City 
Tel Nos. 	 (052) 820-1434
	 (052) 480-3797 
Fax No. 	 (052) 480-3497 
E-mail Add. 	albaycapitol
	 @pnb.com.ph
 
ANGELES BRANCH  
730 Sto. Rosario St. Angeles City, 
Pampanga 2009 
Tel. No. 	 (045) 888-8811  
Telefax No. 	 (045) 888-8800 
E-mail Add. 	angeles@pnb.com.ph
 
APALIT BRANCH  
McArthur Highway
Brgy. San Vicente, Apalit
Pampanga 2016  
Tel. Nos. 	 (045) 652-0049
	 (045) 305-5955 
Telefax No. 	 (045) 302-5955 
E-mail Add. 	apalit@pnb.com.ph 
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APARRI BRANCH  
J.P. Rizal St., Centro 8
Aparri Cagayan 3515  
Tel. Nos. 	 (078) 822-8512
	 (078) 888-2124/2115  
Telefax No. 	 (078) 822-8512 
E-mail Add. aparri@pnb.com.ph 
 
ATIMONAN BRANCH 
Our Lady of the Angels Parish 
Compound,Quezon St., 
Atimonan, Quezon 
Tel. Nos. 	 (042) 511-1051
	 (042) 316-5329 
Telefax No. 	 (042) 511-1051 
E-mail Add. 	atimonan@pnb.com.ph 
 
BACOOR BRANCH  
Km. 17, Aguinaldo Highway  
Bacoor, Cavite  
Tel. No. 	 (046) 471-2678 
Telefax No. 	 (046) 471-1150 
E-mail Add. 	bacoor@pnb.com.ph 

BAGUIO BRANCH  
51 Session Road cor. Mabini St.  
Baguio City 2600  
Tel. Nos. 	 (074) 442-2010
	 (074) 442-2444 
Fax No. 	 (074) 442-2210 
E-mail Add. 	baguio@pnb.com.ph 
 
BALAGTAS BRANCH  
G/F D & A Building McArthur 
Highway San Juan, Balagtas, 
Bulacan 3016  
Tel. No. 	 (044) 693-1680
	 (044) 918-1398  
Telefax No. 	 (044) 693-3277 
E-mail Add. 	balagtas@pnb.com.ph
 
BALANGA BRANCH  
Zulueta St., Pob., Balanga
Bataan 2100  
Tel. Nos. 	 (047) 791-1204
	 (047) 237-2218 
E-mail Add. 	balanga@pnb.com.ph
 
BALAYAN BRANCH  
147 Plaza Mabini, Balayan 
Batangas  
Tel. Nos.	 (043) 211-4331 / 32
	 (043) 407-0230 
Telefax No. 	 (043) 921-2851 
E-mail Add. 	balayan@pnb.com.ph
 
BALIUAG BRANCH  
15 J. Rizal St., San Jose, Baliuag  
Bulacan 3006  
Tel. Nos.	 (044) 766-2505
	 (044) 673-1950  
Telefax No. 	 (044) 766-2454 
E-mail Add. 	baliuag@pnb.com.ph 

 

BANGUED BRANCH  
McKinley cor.  Penarrubia Sts. 
Zone 4 Bangued, Abra 2800  
Tel. Nos.	 (074) 752-8441
	 (074) 752-8440  
E-mail Add. 	bangued@pnb.com.ph 
 
BASCO BRANCH  
NHA Bldg., Caspo Fiesta Road 
Kaychanarianan, Basco, Batanes 
Tel. No. 	 0917 882-3696 
E-mail Add. 	basco@pnb.com.ph 
 
BATAC BRANCH  
Cor. San Marcelino & 
Concepcion Sts., Brgy. Valdez
Batac, Ilocos Norte 2906  
Tel. Nos. 	 (077)792-3437
	 (077) 617-1309 
Telefax No. 	 (077) 792-3437 
E-mail Add. 	batac@pnb.com.ph 

BATANGAS BRANCH  
P. Burgos St., cor. C. Tirona St., 
Batangas City  
Tel. Nos. 	 (043) 723-7037
	 (043) 723-0226 
Telefax No. 	 (043) 723-0227 
E-mail Add. 	batangas@pnb.com.ph 
 
BAYOMBONG BRANCH  
J.P. Rizal St., District IV, Bayombong  
Nueva Vizcaya 3700  
Tel. No.	 (078) 321-2454 
Telefax No.	 (078) 321-2278 
E-mail Add. 	bayombong
	 @pnb.com.ph
 
BATAAN EXPORT PROCESSING 
ZONE BRANCH (BEPZ)  
Luzon Avenue, Bataan Economic 
Zone Mariveles, Bataan 2106  
Tel. No. 	 (047) 935-4071 
Telefax No.	 (047) 935-4070 
E-mail Add. 	bepz@pnb.com.ph 
 
BAUAN BRANCH 
G/F ADD Building, J.P. Rizal St. 
Poblacion, Bauan, Batangas 
Tel. Nos. 	 (043) 728-0026
	 (043) 728-0027 
E-mail Add. 	bauan@pnb.com.ph 
 
BIÑAN BRANCH  
202 J. Gonzales St., Poblacion
Biñan, Laguna  
Tel. Nos. 	 (049) 411-3785
	 (049) 429-4813 
Telefax No.	 (02) 699-5673 
E-mail Add. 	binan@pnb.com.ph
 

BOAC BRANCH  
Gov. Damian Reyes St., Murallon  
Boac, Marinduque  
Tel. Nos.	 (042) 332-1365
	 (042) 311-1426 
Telefax No. 	 (042) 332-1496 
E-mail Add. 	boac@pnb.com.ph 
 
BONTOC BRANCH  
G/F Mt. Province Commercial 
Center,Poblacion Bontoc, 
Mountain Province 
Tel. No. 	 (074) 462-4008  
Telefax No. 	 (074) 462-4008 
E-mail Add. 	bontoc@pnb.com.ph 
 
CABANATUAN BRANCH  
Cor. Paco Roman & Del Pilar Sts. 
Cabanatuan City, Nueva Ecija 3100  
Tel. Nos. 	 (044) 463-2048
	 (044) 600-4832
	 (044) 463-0640 
Telefax No.	 (044) 463-2048 
E-mail Add. 	cabanatuan
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
CALAMBA BRANCH 
P. Burgos St.Calamba City, Laguna  
Tel. Nos. 	 (049) 545-1864 to 65
	 (049) 545-2305 
Telefax No.	 (049) 545-2191 
E-mail Add. 	calamba@pnb.com.ph 
 
CALAMBA-BUCAL BRANCH
(Formerly Grove Branch) 
G/F Prime Unit 103 Carolina Center 
Bldg.cor. Ipil-Ipil Street Brgy. Bucal, 
Calamba City, Laguna 
Tel. Nos.	 (049) 502-6189 
	 (049) 502-6188 
E-mail Add.	 calambabucal
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
CALAMBA-CROSSING BRANCH  
G/F UNIT Building J. Alcasid 
Business Center Crossing, 
Calamba City, Laguna 
Tel. Nos.	 (049) 508-0986
	 (049) 834-2409 
E-mail Add.	 calambacrossing
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
CALAPAN BRANCH  
J.P. Rizal St., Camilmil, Calapan City 
Oriental Mindoro  
Tel. Nos.	 (043) 441-0081
	 (043) 288-4055 
E-mail Add.	 calapan@pnb.com.ph 
 

CAMILING BRANCH  
Poblacion G.Camiling, 
Tarlac 2306  
Tel. No.	 (045) 934-1485  
E-mail Add.	 camiling@pnb.com.ph
 
CANDON BRANCH  
National Highway cor. Dario St. 
San Antonio, Candon City 
Ilocos Sur 2710  
Tel. Nos. 	 (077) 742-6433
	 (077) 742-6576  
E-mail Add. 	candon@pnb.com.ph 
 
CAUAYAN BRANCH  
Maharlika Highway cor. Cabatuan 
Road Cauayan City, Isabela 3305  
Tel. No. 	 (078) 662-1315  
Telefax No.	 (078) 652-2125 
E-mail Add.	 cauayan@pnb.com.ph 
 
CAVITE BRANCH  
Lt Building, P. Burgos Avenue 
Caridad, Cavite City  
Tel. No.	 (046) 431-0136 
Telefax No.	 (046) 431-2026 
E-mail Add. 	cavite@pnb.com.ph 

CAVITE-DASMARIÑAS BRANCH
(Formerly Labo Branch)  
G/F LCVM Bldg., Aguinaldo 
Highway Zone IV, Dasmariñas City, 
Cavite 
Tel. Nos.	 (046) 416-7046
	 (046) 402-2016 
E-mail Add.	 cavite_dasmarinas
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
CAVITE EXPORT PROCESSING 
ZONE BRANCH 
General Trias Drive 
Rosario, Cavite  
Tel. Nos. 	 (046) 437-6072
 	 (046) 438-1260 
	 (046) 437-6607
 	 (046) 437-2382 
Telefax No. 	 (046) 437-6606 
E-mail Add. 	cepz@pnb.com.ph 
 
CENTRO ILAGAN BRANCH  
Zara’s Building Rizal St., Centro, 
Ilagan City, Isabela 3300 
Tel. No.	 (078) 624-2235 
Telefax No.	 (078) 622-2568 
E-mail Add. 	centroilagan
	 @pnb.com.ph
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CLARKFIELD BRANCH  
Clark Center III, Retail 4 & 5,
Berthaphil III, Jose Abas Santos Ave.,
Clarkfield Pampanga 
Tel. Nos.	 (045) 599-2228
	 (045) 599-3043 
E-mail Add.	 clark@pnb.com.ph 
 
CONCEPCION BRANCH  
A. Dizon St., Brgy. San Nicolas
Concepcion, Tarlac 2316 
Tel. Nos.	 (045) 923-0153
	 (045) 923-0690 
E-mail Add.	 concepcion
	 @pnb.com.ph
 
DAET BRANCH  
Carlos II St. Brgy. 3 Daet, 
Camarines Norte  
Tel. No.	 (054) 440-3390  
Telefax No.	 (054) 721-2480 
E-mail Add. 	daet@pnb.com.ph 
 
DAGUPAN BRANCH  
AB Fernandez Avenue 
Dagupan City, Pangasinan 2400 
Tel. Nos.	 (075) 522-2371
	 (075) 515-5242
	 (075) 515-7587 
E-mail Add. dagupan@pnb.com.ph 
 
DAU BRANCH  
McArthur Highway, Dau 
Mabalacat, Pampanga 2010 
Tel. Nos.	 (045) 624-0490
	 (045) 892-2538  
E-mail Add.	 dau@pnb.com.ph 

DINALUPIHAN BRANCH  
BDA Bldg., San Ramon High-way,
Dinalupihan, Bataan 2110  
Tel. No. 	 (047) 481-1361 
Telefax No.	 (047) 481-3906 
E-mail Add. 	dinalupihan
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
DOLORES BRANCH  
Units 4 & 5, G/F Peninsula Plaza 
Bldg.,McArthur Highway,
Dolores, City of San Fernando, 
Pampanga 2000  
Tel. Nos.	 (045) 961-1505
	 (045) 860-1145  
Fax No.	 (044) 860-1145 
E-mail Add.	 dolores@pnb.com.ph 
 

EAST GATE CITY WALK BRANCH
(Formerly Sto. Tomas Branch) 
East Gate City Walk Commercial 
Building, Olongapo Gapan Road 
San Jose, San Fernando City 
Pampanga 
Tel. Nos.	 (045) 966-3436
	 (045) 877-5189 
Telefax No.	 (045) 966-3436 
E-mail add.	 eastgatecitywalk
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
GAPAN BRANCH  
Tinio St., San Vicente, Gapan City 
Nueva Ecija 3105  
Tel. No.	 (044) 486-1063 
Telefax No.	 (044) 486-0281 
E-mail Add.	 gapan@pnb.com.ph
 
GOA BRANCH  
Cor. Rizal and Bautista Sts., 
Brgy. San Juan Bautista, Goa, 
Camarines Sur  
Tel. No.	 (054) 453-1150 
Telefax No.	 (054) 453-1150 
E-mail Add.	 goa@pnb.com.ph 
 
GUAGUA BRANCH  
Sto. Cristo, Guagua
Pampanga 2003  
Tel. Nos.	 (045) 901-0140
	 (045) 900-0149  
E-mail Add.	 guagua@pnb.com.ph 
 
GUIMBA BRANCH  
Cor. Danzalan St. cor.  Juliano St.,
Sta. Veronica, Guimba, 
Nueva Ecija 3115  
Tel. Nos.	 (044) 611-1309 
	 (044) 943-0048 
E-mail Add. 	guimba@pnb.com.ph 

IBA BRANCH  
1032 R. Magsaysay Avenue 
Cor. M. Evangelista St., Zone 1
Iba, Zambales 2201  
Tel. No.	 (047) 811-2721  
Telefax No.	 (047) 811-1586 
E-mail Add.	 iba@pnb.com.ph 
 
ILAGAN BRANCH  
Old Capitol Site, Calamagui 2 
Ilagan City, Isabela 3300  
Tel. Nos.	 (078) 622-2527
	 (078) 624-2136 
Telefax No.	 (078) 622-2527 
E-mail Add.	 ilagan@pnb.com.ph 
 

IMUS, CAVITE BRANCH  
Ground Floor, J. Antonio Bldg. 
1167 Gen. Aguinaldo Highway 
Bayan Luma 7, Imus Cavite 4103 
Tel. Nos.	 (046) 471-4088
	 (046) 471-1009 
Telefax No.	 (046) 970-7567 
E-mail Add.	 imus@pnb.com.ph
 
IRIGA BRANCH  
Highway I, San Roque 
Iriga City, Camarines Sur 
Tel. Nos.	 (054) 299-2341
	 (054) 299-2408 
Telefax No.	 (054) 456-1622 
E-mail Add.	 iriga@pnb.com.ph 
 
LA TRINIDAD BRANCH  
KM 5, Balili, BSU Compound 
La Trinidad Benguet 2601 
Tel. Nos.	  (074) 422-1135
	  (074) 422-2407
	  (074) 309-1453 
E-mail Add.	 latrinidad@pnb.com.ph 
 
LA UNION BRANCH 
Quezon Avenue, San Fernando City 
La Union 2500  
Tel. Nos.	 (072) 242-1446
	 (072) 242-0908 
Telefax No.	 (072) 888-2585 
E-mail Add.	 launion@pnb.com.ph 
 
LAGAWE BRANCH  
JDT Bldg., Inguiling Drive, Poblacion 
East Lagawe, Ifugao 3600  
Tel. No.	 (074) 382-2007 
Telefax No.	 (074) 382-2007 
E-mail Add.	 lagawe@pnb.com.ph 
 
LAOAG BRANCH  
J.P. Rizal cor. Tres Martires Sts.
Barangay 10, San Jose Laoag City, 
Ilocos Norte 2900  
Tel. Nos.	 (077) 771-4027
	 (077) 772-0144/0145 
E-mail Add.	 laoag@pnb.com.ph 

LEGAZPI BRANCH  
Cor. Rizal & Gov. Forbes Sts. Brgy. 
Baybay Legazpi City, Albay  
Tel. No.	 (052) 480-7898  
Fax Nos.	 (052) 480-7371
	 (052) 480-7898 
E-mail Add.	 legaspi@pnb.com.ph 
 
LEMERY BRANCH  
Humarang Building, Ilustre Ave. 
cor. P de Joya St., Lemery, Batangas 
Tel. Nos.	 (043) 411-1762
	 (043) 214-2273 
	 (043) 711-1078 
E-mail Add.	 lemery@pnb.com.ph 
 

LIGAO BRANCH  
Quililan’s Bldg., San Jose St. 
Dunao, Ligao City  
Tel. No.	 (052) 485-2974 
Telefax No.	 (052) 485-2974 
E-mail Add.	 ligao@pnb.com.ph
 
LINGAYEN BRANCH  
Avenida Rizal East cor. Maramba 
Blvd., Lingayen Pangasinan 2401  
Tel. Nos.	 (075) 542-6020
	 (075) 662-0238 
E-mail Add.	 lingayen@pnb.com.ph 
 
LIPA BRANCH  
B. Morada Avenue Lipa City, 
Batangas  
Tel. Nos.	 (043) 756-1116/1119 
E-mail Add.	 lipa@pnb.com.ph 
 
LOPEZ BRANCH  
San Francisco St. Brgy. Talolong, 
Lopez, Quezon 4316 
Tel. No.	 (042) 302-5919 
Telefax No.	 (042) 841-1180 
E-mail Add.	 lopez@pnb.com.ph
 
LUCENA BRANCH  
Quezon Avenue Brgy IX 
Lucena City, Quezon  
Tel. Nos.	 (042) 710-3703
	 (042) 710-3972
	 (042) 710-2938  
Telefax No.	 (042) 710-3305 
E-mail Add. 	lucena@pnb.com.ph 
 
MACABEBE BRANCH  
Y N CEE Commercial Bldg. 
Poblacion, San Gabriel 
Macabebe, Pampanga 
Tel. No.	 (045) 921-1304 
Telefax No.	 (045) 921-1346 
E-mail Add.	 macabebe
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
MAGSAYSAY AVENUE BRANCH  
Unit 102, Lyman Ogilby Centrum  
358 Magsaysay Avenue 
Baguio City 2600 
Tel. No.	 (074) 300-3163 
Telefax No.	 (074) 445-2248 
E-mail Add. 	magsaysayave@pnb.
com.ph 
 
MAHARLIKA BRANCH  
G/F Kadiwa Bldg., Brgy. Maharlika, 
Sta. Cruz, Marinduque 4902 
Tel. No. 	 (042) 321-1380  
Telefax No. 	 (042) 321-1364 
E-mail Add. 	maharlika@pnb.com.ph 
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MALLIG PLAINS BRANCH  
Cor. Don Mariano Ave. & Bernabe 
Sts., Vira Roxas, Isabela 3320  
Tel. No.	 (078) 642-8009 
Telefax No.	 (078) 642-8008 
E-mail Add.	 malligplains
	 @pnb.com.ph
 
MALOLOS BRANCH  
Sto. Niño Malolos City, 
Bulacan 3000  
Tel. Nos.	 (044) 662-4974
	 (044) 791-0494  
Telefax No.	 (044) 791-0494 
E-mail Add. 	malolos@pnb.com.ph 
 
MAMBURAO BRANCH  
National Road Brgy. Payompon, 
Mamburao Occidental Mindoro, 
5106 
Tel. No.	 (043) 711-1078 
E-mail Add.	 mamburao
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
MANGARIN BRANCH  
Quirino cor. M.H. del Pilar Sts.
Brgy 6 San Jose, 
Occidental Mindoro  
Tel. No.	 (043) 491-1834 
E-mail Add.	 mangarin@pnb.com.ph
 
MASBATE BRANCH  
Quezon St., Masbate City,  
Tel. Nos.	 (056) 333-4507
	 (056) 333-2238 
Telefax No.	 (056) 333-2238 
E-mail Add. 	masbate@pnb.com.ph 
 
MEYCAUAYAN BRANCH  
McArthur Highway, Saluysoy 
Meycauayan City, Bulacan 3020  
Tel. Nos. 	 (044) 840-7389
	 (044) 228-3411
	 (044) 840-0393 
Telefax No.	 (044) 228-3411 
E-mail Add. 	meycauayan
	 @pnb.com.ph 

MUÑOZ BRANCH  
D. Delos Santos St., cor. Tobias Sts.  
Science City of Muñoz, Nueva Ecija  
Tel. Nos.	 (044) 456-0283
	 (044) 456-0142 
E-mail Add.	 munoz@pnb.com.ph 
 
NAGA BRANCH  
General Luna Street, Brgy Abella 
Naga City 
Tel. No.	 (054) 811-1744 
Telefax No.	 (054) 473-9072 
E-mail Add.	 naga@pnb.com.ph 
 

NAIC BRANCH  
P. Poblete St., Ibayo Silangan 
Naic, Cavite 
Tel. Nos.	 (046) 856-1398
	 (046) 412-0018 
E-mail Add.	 naic@pnb.com.ph
 
NARVACAN BRANCH  
Annex Building, Narvacan 
Municipal Hall, Sta. Lucia, 
Narvacan, Ilocos Sur 2704  
Tel. Nos.	 (077) 732-5760
	 (077) 732-0246
	 (077) 723-0281 
E-mail Add.	 narvacan@pnb.com.ph 
 
NORTH ZAMBALES BRANCH  
Barangay Hall, Poblacion South  
Sta. Cruz, Zambales 2213  
Tel. No.	 (047) 831-2468 
Telefax No.	 (047) 831-1063 
E-mail Add.	 northzambales
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
ODIONGAN BRANCH  
15 J.P. Laurel St. cor. 
M. Formilliza St.,Ligaya, 
Odiongan, Romblon  
Tel. No.	 (042) 567-5220 
E-mail Add. 	odiongan@pnb.com.ph
 
OLONGAPO BRANCH  
2440 Rizal Avenue, East Bajac-Bajac 
Olongapo City, Zambales 2200  
Tel. Nos. .	 (047) 222-8340		
	 (047) 222-8343
	 (047) 223-4989 
E-mail Add.	 olongapo@pnb.com.ph 
 
ORANI BRANCH  
Yñeco Building, McArthur Highway 
Centro Uno, Orani, Bataan 2112  
Tel. Nos.	 (047) 431-3445
	 (047) 431-1378 
E-mail Add. orani@pnb.com.ph 
 
PANIQUI BRANCH  
M.H. del Pilar St., cor. McArthur Hi-
way Paniqui, Tarlac 2307  
Tel. Nos.	 (045) 931-0383
	 (045) 931-0656 
E-mail Add.	 paniqui@pnb.com.ph 

PASEO DE STA. ROSA BRANCH  
Blk 5 Lot 3B Sta. Rosa Estate 
2-A Balibago-Tagaytay Road
Bo. Sto. Domingo Sta. Rosa City 
4026, Laguna 
Tel. Nos.	 (049) 508-1065 
	 (049) 508-1067 
E-mail Add.	 paseodestarosa
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 

PASUQUIN BRANCH  
Farmers Trading Center, Maharlika 
Highway, Poblacion I, Pasuquin, 
Ilocos Norte 2917  
Tel. No. 	 (077) 775-0119 
E-mail Add.	 pasuquin@pnb.com.ph
 
PILI BRANCH  
CU Bldg., Old San Roque 
Pili, Camarines Sur  
Tel. No.	 (054) 361-1769 
	 (054) 361-1765 
Telefax No. 	 (054) 477-7179 
E-mail Add. 	pili@pnb.com.ph 
 
PINAMALAYAN BRANCH  
G/F San Agustin Bldg., A. Mabini 
St.,Zone IV, Poblacion, 
Pinamalayan, Oriental Mindoro  
Tel. No. 	 (043) 284-3254 
	 local 6392 
Telefax No. 	 (043) 443-2085 
E-mail Add.	 pinamalayan
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
POLANGUI BRANCH  
National Road, Brgy. Ubaliw 
Polangui, Albay  
Tel. No. 	 (052) 835-0121  
Telefax No. 	 (052) 486-2114 
E-mail Add. 	polangui@pnb.com.ph

PUERTO PRINCESA BRANCH 
Valencia St. cor. Rizal Ave., Brgy. 
Tagumpay Puerto Princesa City, 
Palawan  
Tel. Nos. 	 (048) 434-3742 / 2105
	 (048) 433-2321 / 2521 
Telefax No.	 (048) 433-2421 
E-mail Add. 	puertoprincesa
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
ROBINSONS PULILAN BRANCH  
(Formerly San Vicente Branch)
Robinsons Mall Pulilan, Maharlika
Highway, Cutcut, Pulilan, Bulacan   
Tel. No. 	 (045) 815-4234  
E-mail Add. 	robinsonspulilan
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
ROMBLON BRANCH  
Republika St., Brgy. 1, 
Romblon, Romblon 
Tel. No.	 0917-8737668 
E-mail Add. 	romblon@pnb.com.ph 
 
ROSALES BRANCH  
MacArthur Highway, Carmen East 
Rosales, Pangasinan 
Tel. No.	 (075) 564-4341 
E-mail Add. 	rosales@pnb.com.ph 
 

SAN FERNANDO BRANCH  
A. Consunji St., Sto. Rosario, 
City of San Fernando 
Pampanga 2000  
Tel. Nos.	 (045) 961-2419
	 (045) 860-0485
	 (045) 860-0486 
Telefax No. 	 (045) 961-2419 
E-mail Add. 	sanfernando
	 @pnb.com.ph
 
SAN JOSE DEL MONTE BRANCH 
Dalisay Bldg., Quirino Highway, 
Tungkong Mangga City of San Jose 
Del Monte, Bulacan 3023  
Tel. No. 	 (044) 8150174  
E-mail Add. 	sjdelmonte
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
SAN JOSE NUEVA ECIJA BRANCH 
Maharlika Highway cor. 
Cardenas St.San Jose City 
Nueva Ecija 3121  
Tel. Nos. 	 (044) 940-4131
	 (044) 511-1301 
E-mail Add. 	sanjose@pnb.com.ph 
 
SAN PABLO BRANCH  
Marcos Paulino St.  
San Pablo City, Laguna  
Tel. Nos. 	 (049) 562-4522 / 1973  
Telefax No. 	 (049) 526-0608 
E-mail Add. 	sanpablo@pnb.com.ph 

SAN PEDRO BRANCH  
Km. 30, National Highway  
San Pedro, Laguna  
Tel. Nos. 	 868-9968, 
	 808-5387  
Telefax No. 	 847-8829 
E-mail Add. 	sanpedro@pnb.com.ph 
 
SANCHEZ MIRA BRANCH  
C-2 Maharlika Highway Sanchez 
Mira,Cagayan 3518 
Tel No. 	 (078) 822-7518 
Telefax No. 	 (078) 822-9221 
E-mail Add. 	sanchezmira
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
SANGITAN BRANCH  
R. Macapagal Bldg., Maharlika 
Highway,Brgy. Dicarma,
Cabanatuan City 
Tel. Nos. 	 (044) 600-4885
	 (044) 463-8095 
E-mail Add. 	sangitan@pnb.com.ph 

SANTIAGO BRANCH  
Marcos Highway cor. Camacam St., 
Centro East Santiago City, 
Isabela 3311 
Tel. Nos. 	 (078) 682-8196
	 (078) 662-1892 
Telefax No. 	 (078) 682-8364 
E-mail Add. 	santiago@pnb.com.ph 
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SILANG BRANCH  
166 J.P. Rizal St. Silang,
Cavite  
Tel. No. 	 (046) 414-0661 
Telefax No.	 (046) 414-0660 
E-mail Add. 	silang@pnb.com.ph
 
SINILOAN BRANCH  
G. Redor St. Siniloan,
Laguna  
Tel. Nos.	 (049) 341-1282
	 (049) 501-3601 
Telefax No. 	 (049) 813-0019 
E-mail Add. 	siniloan@pnb.com.ph 
 
SOLANO BRANCH  
National Highway Poblacion South,
Solano, Nueva Vizcaya  
Tel. Nos. 	 (078) 326-5363
	 (078) 326-5282 
E-mail Add. 	solano@pnb.com.ph 
 
SORSOGON BRANCH  
Rizal Street Sorsogon City, 
Sorsogon 
Tel. Nos. 	 (056) 421-5207
	 (056) 211-1649 
Telefax No. 	 (056) 421-5207 
E-mail Add. 	sorsogon@pnb.com.ph 
 
STA. CRUZ BRANCH  
Pedro Guevarra Ave., Brgy. Uno, 
Sta. Cruz, Laguna  
Tel. No. 	 (049) 501-0551 
Fax No. 	 (049) 501-1945 
E-mail Add. 	stacruz@pnb.com.ph
 
STA. MARIA BRANCH 
Jose Corazon De Jesus St.,Poblacion 
Sta Maria, Bulacan 3022  
Tel. Nos. 	 (044) 893-0589 
 	 (044) 641-1555 
E-mail Add. 	stamaria@pnb.com.ph
 
STA. ROSA BRANCH 
National Highway, Balibago City 
of Sta. Rosa, Laguna (approx. 137 
meters away from the old site) 
Tel. Nos. 	 (02) 520-8160
	 (049) 837-2602 
Telefax No. 	 (049) 534-2893 
E-mail Add. 	starosa@pnb.com.ph 
 
SUBIC BAY BRANCH  
Lot 5, Retail 2, Times Square Mall  
Sta. Rita Road, Subic Bay Freeport 
Zone, Olongapo City
Zambales 2220  
Tel. No. 	 (047) 252-7963 
Telefax No. 	 (047) 252-7964 
E-mail Add. 	subic@pnb.com.ph 
 

TABACO BRANCH  
Ziga Ave., cor. Bonifacio St.
Tayhi, Tabaco City, Albay 
Tel. Nos.	 (052) 487-5053
	 (052) 830-0125 
Telefax No.	 (052)487-5053 
E-mail Add. 	tabaco@pnb.com.ph 
 
TABUK BRANCH  
Lua Bldg., Mayangao St., 
Tabuk, Kalinga 3800  
Tel. No. 	 0917-575-1722 
E-mail Add. 	tabuk@pnb.com.ph 
 
TAGAYTAY BRANCH  
Vistamart Bldg., Gen. E. Aguinaldo 
Highway,Mendez Crossing West, 
Tagaytay City  
Tel. Nos. 	 (046) 413-2499
	 (046) 413-0384 
E-mail Add. 	tagaytay@pnb.com.ph 
 
TANAUAN BRANCH  
G/F V. Luansing Bldg. J.P. Laurel 
HighwayTanauan, Batangas 
Tel. Nos. 	 (043) 784-8668
	 (043) 784-8680 
E-mail Add. 	tanauan@pnb.com.ph
 
TARLAC BRANCH  
Cor F. Tanedo & Panganiban Sts.  
San Nicolas, Tarlac City, Tarlac 2300  
Tel. Nos. 	 (045) 982-1315
	 (045) 982-2805 
E-mail Add. 	tarlac@pnb.com.ph 
 
 
TAYUG BRANCH  
J. Zaragosa St., Pobalcion, 
Tayug, Pangasinan 2445  
Tel. No. 	 (075) 572-4428
	 (075) 572-3710 
E-mail Add. 	tayug@pnb.com.ph 
 
TUAO BRANCH  
G/F Municipal building,Tuao, 
Cagayan 3528 
Telefax No.	 (078) 826-2025 
E-mail Add. 	tuao@pnb.com.ph 
 
TUGUEGARAO BRANCH  
137 Bonifacio St., Tuguegarao City  
Cagayan 3500  
Tel. Nos. 	 (078) 846-4203
	 (078) 844-1832
	 (078) 847-0012  
Telefax No.	 (078) 846-1968 
E-mail Add. 	tuguegarao
	 @pnb.com.ph
 

U.P. LOS BAÑOS BRANCH  
Lanzones St., U.P. Los Baños College  
Los Baños, Laguna  
Tel. Nos. 	 (049) 536-2880
	 (049) 536-4287 
Telefax No.	 (049) 526-2733 
E-mail Add. 	losbanos@pnb.com.ph 
 
URDANETA BRANCH  
McArthur Highway, Nancayasan 
Urdaneta City, Pangasinan 2428  
Tel. Nos.	 (075) 568-2451
	 (075) 656-2613 
E-mail Add. 	urdaneta@pnb.com.ph 
 
VIGAN BRANCH  
Leona Florentino St., Vigan  
Ilocos Sur 2700  
Tel. Nos. 	 (077) 722-2515 / 2517  
Telefax No. 	 (077) 722-2516 
E-mail Add. 	vigan@pnb.com.ph 
 
VIRAC BRANCH  
055 Quezon Ave., Brgy. Salvacion, 
Virac, Catanduanes  
Tel. No. 	 (052) 811-1297  
Telefax No. 	 (052) 811-1207 
E-mail Add. 	virac@pnb.com.ph

Visayas Branches

AMELIA AVENUE BRANCH  
Cor. Amelia & Margarita Sts. 
Libertad Bacolod City
Negros Occidental 6100  
Tel. Nos. 	 (034) 433-0931
	 (034) 433-0398 
Telefax No. 	 (034) 435-3280 
E-mail Add. 	amelia@pnb.com.ph
 
ANTIQUE BRANCH  
T. Fornier St., San Jose De 
Buenavista,Antique 5700 
Tel. Nos. 	 (036) 540-8469
	 (036) 540-9587 
Fax No.	 (036) 540-9588  
Email add. 	 antique@pnb.com.ph
 
BACOLOD BRANCH  
10th Lacson St., Bacolod City  
Negros Occidental 6100  
Tel. Nos. 	 (034) 434-8007
	 (034) 432-0604 / 0605  
Telefax No. 	 (034) 433-9462 
E-mail Add. 	bacolod@pnb.com.ph 
 
BAIS BRANCH  
Rosa Dy Teves Bldg., 828 Quezon 
St. Bais City Negros Oriental 6206  
Tel. Nos. 	 (035) 402-8214
	 (035) 402-9343 
Telefax No. 	 (035) 541-5355 
E-mail Add. 	bais@pnb.com.ph
 

BANILAD BRANCH  
Gov. M. Cuenco Ave.cor Paseo 
Saturnino St.Banilad, Cebu City 
Tel. Nos. 	 (032) 345-5200
	 (032) 345-4828 
	 (032) 416-0988 
Telefax No. 	 (032) 346-7305 
E-mail Add. 	banilad@pnb.com.ph 
 
BAYAWAN BRANCH  
National Highway cor. Mabini St.  
Brgy. Suba, Bayawan  
Negros Oriental 6221  
Tel. Nos. 	 (035) 531-0282 / 83 
Telefax No. 	 (035) 430-0351 
E-mail Add. 	bayawan@pnb.com.ph 
 
BAYBAY BRANCH  
Magsaysay Avenue,
Baybay City, Leyte 6521  
Tel. Nos. 	 (053) 563-9936
	 (053) 563-9330 
Telefax No. 	 (053) 335-2455 
E-mail Add. 	baybay@pnb.com.ph
 
BINALBAGAN BRANCH  
Magallanes St., Binalbagan 
Negros Occidental 6107  
Tel. Nos. 	 (034) 388-8271
	 (034) 388-8261 
Telefax No. 	 (034) 388-8279 
E-mail Add. 	binalbagan
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
BOGO BRANCH  
Cor. R. Fernan & San Vicente Sts. 
Bogo City, Cebu  
Tel. Nos. 	 (032) 251-2122
	 (032) 434-8721
	 (032) 434-7240 
Telefax No. 	 (032) 251-2124 
E-mail Add. 	bogo@pnb.com.ph 

BORONGAN BRANCH  
Real St., Brgy. Songco Borongan, 
Eastern Samar 6800  
Tel. Nos. 	 (055) 560-9041 
	 (055) 261-2013  
Telefax No. 	 (055) 560-9041 
E-mail Add. 	borongan
	 @pnb.com.ph
 
CADIZ BRANCH  
Cor. Luna & Cabahug Sts.  
Cadiz City, Negros Occidental 6121  
Tel. Nos. 	 (034) 493-0363
	 (034) 720-7846 
Telefax No. 	 (034) 493-1217 
E-mail Add. 	cadiz@pnb.com.ph 
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CALBAYOG BRANCH  
Maharlika Highway, Brgy. Obrero 
Calbayog City  
Tel. Nos. 	 (055) 209-1250
	 (055) 209-1305 
Telefax No. 	 (055) 533-9011 
E-mail Add. 	calbayog@pnb.com.ph 
 
CATARMAN BRANCH  
Cor. Jacinto & Garcia Sts., 
Brgy. Narra Catarman, 
Northern Samar 6400  
Tel. Nos. 	 (055) 500-9033
	 (055) 251-8453 
Telefax No. 	 (055) 500-9003 
E-mail Add. 	catarman@pnb.com.ph 
 
CATBALOGAN BRANCH  
Imelda Park, Catbalogan City, 
Western Samar 6700  
Tel. No. 	 (053) 543-8399  
Telefax No. 	 (053) 251-2034 
E-mail Add. 	catbalogan
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
CEBU BRANCH  
Cor. M.C. Briones and Jakosalem 
Sts., Cebu City 6000  
Tel. Nos. 	 (032) 253-8537
	 (032) 255-1699
	 (032) 422-2804  
Fax No. 	 (032) 253-0065 
E-mail Add. 	cebu@pnb.com.ph
 
CENTRO MANDAUE BRANCH 
G/F M2, Gaisano Grand Mall 
Mandaue Centro, A. del Rosario St. 
Mandaue City Cebu 6014  
Tel. Nos. 	 (032) 346-7612
	 (032) 422-8122 
Telefax No. 	 (032) 346-7613 
E-mail Add. 	centromandaue
	 @pnb.com.ph 

DE LEON BRANCH 
Ground Floor, ATM Bldg.
Corner Ledesma Jalandoni Sts. 
Iloilo City, Iloilo 5000  
Tel. Nos. 	 (033) 338-1189
	 (033) 337-2416 ,
	  (033) 508-6339 
Telefax No. 	 (033) 337-4978 
E-mail Add. 	deleon@pnb.com.ph 
 
DOWNTOWN TACLOBAN 
BRANCH 
Washington Bldg., Rizal Ave., 
Tacloban City Leyte 6500  
Tel. Nos. 	 (053) 325-8123
	 (053) 523-7895 
E-mail Add. 	downtowntacloban
	 @pnb.com.ph

DUMAGUETE BRANCH 
Silliman Avenue cor. Real St.  
Dumaguete City 
Negros Oriental 6200  
Tel. Nos. 	 (035) 422-9176
	 (035) 225-4423
	 (035) 422-9658 
Telefax No. 	 (035) 225-4740 
E-mail Add. 	dumaguete
	 @pnb.com.ph
 
FUENTE OSMEÑA BRANCH  
BF Paray Bldg., Osmena Blvd., 
Cebu City, Cebu 6000  
Tel. Nos. 	 (032) 253-0349
	 (032) 412-4963
	 (032) 253-4467  
Telefax No. 	 (032) 255-4569 
E-mail Add. 	fuenteosmena@pnb.
com.ph 
 
GUIHULNGAN BRANCH  
G/F New Guihulngan Public Market  
S. Villegas St., Guihulngan  
Negros Oriental 6214  
Tel. Nos. 	 (035) 336-1038
	 (035) 410-4171 
Telefax No. 	 (035) 231-3060 
E-mail Add. 	guihulngan
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
GUIUAN BRANCH  
San Nicolas St., Guiuan,
Eastern Samar 6809  
Tel. Nos. 	 (055) 271-2165
	 (055) 582-0288 
E-mail Add. 	guiuan@pnb.com.ph

ILOILO BRANCH  
Cor. Gen. Luna & Valeria Streets  
Iloilo City, Iloilo 5000 
Tel. Nos. 	 (033)337-2476
	 (033) 337-1614
	 (033) 337-1705
Fax No. 	 (033) 335-0473 
Email add. 	 iloilo@pnb.com.ph 
 
ISLAND CITY MALL - 
TAGBILARAN BRANCH  
Upper Ground Flr. 33-34 
Island City Mall, Dampa District 
Tagbilaran City 
Tel. Nos. 	 (038) 411-0155
	 (038) 411-0156
	 (038) 501-0056  
Email add. 	 pnbicmtagbilaran
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
JARO BRANCH  
# 8 Lopez Jaena Street Jaro 
Iloilo City, Iloilo 5000  
Tel. Nos. 	 (033) 320-1100
	 (033) 329-0750  
	 (033) 508-7235 
Telefax No. 	 (033) 320-6984  
Email Add. 	 jaro@pnb.com.ph 
 

KABANKALAN BRANCH  
NOAC National Highway  
Cor. Guanzon St., Kabankalan City  
Negros Occidental 6111  
Tel. Nos. 	 (034) 471-2193
	 (034) 471-2429
	 (034) 746-7028 
Telefax No. 	 (034) 471-2491 
E-mail Add. 	kabankalan
	 @pnb.com.ph
 
KALIBO BRANCH  
0508 G. Pastrana St., 
Kalibo, Aklan 5600  
Tel. Nos. 	 (036) 262-4811
	 (036) 268-5262
	 (036) 268-7471 
Telefax No.	 (036) 262-1769 
E-mail Add. 	kalibo@pnb.com.ph 
 
LA CARLOTA BRANCH  
Cor. La Paz & Rizal Sts. 
La Carlota City 
Negros Occidental 6130  
Tel. Nos. 	 (034) 460-2222 / 3330
	 (034) 735-1260 
Telefax No. 	 (034) 460-2585 
E-mail Add. 	lacarlota@pnb.com.ph 
  
LAPAZ BRANCH  
G/F Inayan Building, Rizal Street 
La Paz, Iloilo City 
Tel. Nos. 	 (033) 320-1505
	 (033) 320-2256 
	 (033) 501-9950 
Telefax No. 	 (033) 320-1506 
E-mail Add. 	lapaz@pnb.com.ph 
 
LAHUG BRANCH  
G/F Juanita Bldg.,  Escario St. cor. 
Gorordo Ave. Brgy. Camputhaw, 
Lahug, Cebu City 
Tel. Nos. 	 (032) 233-8252
	 (032) 232-2786
	 (032) 412-2573 
Telefax No. 	 (032) 233-8899 
E-mail Add. 	lahug@pnb.com.ph 
 
LAPU-LAPU BRANCH  
Manuel L. Quezon National 
Highway Pajo, Lapu-Lapu City, 
Cebu 6015  
Tel. Nos. 	 (032) 340-2299
	 (032) 340-8347
	 (032) 340-8351
	 (032) 340-8352 
Telefax No. 	 (032) 340-5571 
E-mail Add. 	lapulapu@pnb.com.ph 
 

LUZURIAGA BRANCH  
Cor. Luzuriaga & Araneta Sts.  
Bacolod City 
Negros Occidental 6100  
Tel. Nos. 	 (034) 434-7706
	 (034) 435-1682 
	 (034) 435-0316 
Telefax No. 	 (034) 433-2476 
E-mail Add. 	luzuriaga@pnb.com.ph 
 
MAASIN BRANCH  
Cor. Allen & Juan Luna St., 
Brgy. Tunga-Tunga., 
Maasin, City 
Tel. No. 	 (053) 570-9625 
Telefax No. 	 (053) 570-9625 
E-mail Add.	 maasin@pnb.com.ph
 
MACTAN EXPORT PROCESSING 
ZONE (MEPZ) BRANCH  
1st Avenue., Mactan Eco Zone, 
Ibo,  Lapu-Lapu City, Cebu  
Tel. Nos. 	 (032) 340-5189
	 (032) 340-0072
	 (032) 495-5288  
Telefax No. 	 (032) 340-0560  
Email add. 	 mepz@pnb.com.ph 
 
MACTAN INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT EXTENSION OFFICE 
(MIAEO)  
Lower G/F, Waterfront Mactan 
Casino Hotel Bldg., Airport Road, 
Pusok, Lapu-Lapu City, Cebu 6015 
Tel. No. 	 (032) 340-0029 
 
MANDAUE BRANCH  
JD Bldg., Lopez Jaena St., Tipolo 
Mandaue City, Cebu 6014  
Tel. Nos. 	 (032) 346-7473
	 (032) 422-6455 
Telefax No. 	 (032) 346-2827 
E-mail Add. 	mandaue@pnb.com.ph
 
MIAG-AO BRANCH  
G/F One TGN Bldg. Cor. 
Noble & Sto. Tomas St  
Miag-ao, 5023 Iloilo  
Tel. Nos. 	 (033) 315-8201
	 (033) 315-9921 
Telefax No. 	 (033) 315-8201 
E-mail Add. 	miagao@pnb.com.ph 
 
M.J. CUENCO BRANCH  
Ground Floor Benedicto Building 
MJ Cuenco Ave., Cebu City  
Tel. Nos. 	 (032) 232-9557
	 (032) 415-5155 
Telefax No. 	 (032) 232-9912 
E-mail Add. 	mjcuenco@pnb.com.ph 
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NAVAL BRANCH  
Ballesteros Sts., Naval 
Biliran Province 6543  
Tel. Nos. 	 (053) 500-9024 / 25 
Telefax No. 	 (053) 500-9025 
E-mail Add. 	naval@pnb.com.ph 
 
ORMOC BRANCH  
Cor. Bonifacio & Cata-ag Sts.  
Ormoc City, Leyte 6541  
Tel. Nos.	 (053) 255-4304
	 (053) 561-2526 
Telefax No. 	 (053) 561-9757 
E-mail Add. 	ormoc@pnb.com.ph
 
PALOMPON BRANCH  
G/F Municipal Bldg., Rizal St., 
Palompon, Palompon 
Leyte 6538  
Tel. No. 	 (053) 555-9041
Telefax No.	 (053) 338-2104  
E-mail Add. 	palompon@pnb.com.ph 
 
PASSI BRANCH  
F. Palmares St. Passi City 
Iloilo 5037 
Tel. Nos.	 (033) 367-1291
	 (033) 311-5466 
	 (033) 536-8220 
Telefax No. 	 (033) 311-5044 
E-mail Add. 	passi@pnb.com.ph 
 
PLAZA LIBERTAD BRANCH  
J. M. Basa Street Iloilo City,
Iloilo 5000  
Tel. Nos. 	 (033) 338-0819 
	 (033) 336-9144 
Telefax No. 	 (033) 338-0818 
Email add. 	 plazalibertad
	 @pnb.com.ph 

ROXAS BRANCH  
Cor C.M. Recto & G. Del Pilar Sts.,
Brgy. III, Roxas City, Capiz, 5800  
Tel. Nos.	 (036) 621-0415
	 (036) 621-0789 
	 (036) 522-9330 
Telefax No.	 (036) 621-2484 
E-mail Add. 	roxas@pnb.com.ph
 
SAN CARLOS BRANCH  
V. Gustilo St., San Carlos City 
Negros Occidental 6127  
Tel. Nos. 	 (034) 729-8000 
	 (034) 729-9411
	 (034) 312-5250/51 
Telefax No. 	 (034) 312-5248 
E-mail Add. 	sancarlos@pnb.com.ph 
 

SILAY BRANCH  
Rizal St., Silay City
Negros Occidental 6116  
Tel. Nos. 	 (034) 495-2050 / 
	 4984 / 4298 , 
	 (034) 795-2050 
Telefax No. 	 (034) 495-2051 
E-mail Add. 	silay@pnb.com.ph 
 
TABUNOK BRANCH  
Paul Sy Bldg., National Highway, 
Tabunok, Talisay City, Cebu 6045  
Tel. Nos. 	 (032) 272-6434
	 (032) 491-7077 
Telefax No. 	 (032) 272-6435 
E-mail Add. 	tabunok@pnb.com.ph
 
TACLOBAN BRANCH  
Cor. Sto. Niño & Justice Romualdez 
Sts.Tacloban City, Leyte 6500  
Tel. Nos. 	 (053) 523-3611
	 (053) 321-2053 
Telefax No. 	 (053) 325-5180 
E-mail Add. 	tacloban@pnb.com.ph 
 
TAGBILARAN BRANCH  
J.A. Clarin St. cor. CPG Ave., 
Tagbilaran City, Bohol 6300  
Tel. Nos. 	 (038) 411-4196
	 (038) 411-3108
	 (038) 501-9540 
	 (038) 412-3542 
Telefax No. 	 (038) 411-3541 
E-mail Add. 	tagbilaran@pnb.com.ph 
 
TOLEDO BRANCH  
Rafols St., Poblacion 
Toledo City, Cebu 6038  
Tel. Nos. 	 (032) 322-5759
	 (032) 467-8194 
Fax No. 	 (032) 322-5613 
E-mail Add. 	toledo@pnb.com.ph 
 
TUBIGON BRANCH  
Cor. Cabangbang Ave. &  Jesus 
Vaño St.Centro, Tubigon,  
Bohol 6329  
Tel. Nos. 	 (038) 508-8027
	 (038) 237-2242 
Telefax No.	 (038) 508-8228 
E-mail Add. 	tubigon@pnb.com.ph 
 
UPTOWN CEBU BRANCH  
G/F Jethouse Bldg., 36 Osmeña 
Blvd. Cebu City 6000  
Tel. Nos. 	 (032) 253-1662 / 1773
	 (032) 415-5711  
Telefax Nos. 	(032) 255-6161
	 (032) 253-1663 
E-mail Add. 	uptown_cebu
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 

VICTORIAS BRANCH  
Corner Montinola & 
Yap Quina Streets, Victorias City 
Negros Occidental 6119  
Tel. No. 	 (034) 717-6041 
Telefax No. 	 (034) 399-2907 
E-mail Add. 	victorias@pnb.com.ph

Mindanao Branches

AGDAO BRANCH  
LA Bldg., Doors 5 & 6, Lapu-Lapu 
St. Davao City, Davao del Sur 8000  
Tel. Nos. 	 (082) 221-7918
	 (082) 221-7912 
Telefax No.	 (082) 221-7918 
E-mail Add. 	agdao@pnb.com.ph

AGUSAN DEL SUR BRANCH 
Roxas St. Brgy. 4, San Francisco  
Agusan del Sur 8501  
Tel. Nos. 	 (085) 343-8019
	 (085) 343-8634 
	 (085) 839-0156
	 (085) 242-3007 
Telefax No. 	 (085) 343-9522 
E-mail Add. 	agusan@pnb.com.ph 
 
BAJADA BRANCH  
G/F Quibod Bldg., J.P. Laurel cor.
A.Loyola St., Davao City, Davao del 
Sur 8000  
Tel. Nos. 	 (082) 224-2474
	 (082) 224-2479
	 (082) 300-8950 
Telefax No. 	 (082) 222-2474 
E-mail Add. 	bajada@pnb.com.ph 
 
BANGOY BRANCH  
G/F Amigleo Building Cor. Bonifacio 
& C. Bangoy Sts. Davao City,
Davao del Sur 8000  
Tel. Nos.	 (082) 221-9538
	 (082) 221-9539 
	 (082) 221-8046,
	 (082) 221-9540 
Telefax No.	 (082) 221-9540 
E-mail Add. 	bangoy@pnb.com.ph 
 
BANKEROHAN BRANCH  
Units 101-102, JLF Parkway Building  
Cor. Magallanes & E. Quirino Sts.  
Davao City, Davao del Sur 8000  
Tel. Nos. 	 (082) 221-8047
	 (082) 221-8024
	 (082) 300-5155 
	 (082) 221-8046 
Telefax No. 	 (082) 221-8047 
E-mail Add. 	bankerohan
	 @pnb.com.ph
 

BASILAN BRANCH  
Strong Blvd., Isabela City  
Basilan Province 7300  
Tel. Nos. 	 (062) 200-3350
	 (062) 200-3352 
Telefax No. 	 (062) 200-3351 
E-mail Add. 	basilan@pnb.com.ph 
 
BISLIG BRANCH  
Cor. Abarca & Espiritu Streets 
Mangagoy, Bislig City 
Surigao del Sur 8311 
Tel. Nos. 	 (086) 853-4149
	 (086) 853-2244
	 (086) 628-2333 
E-mail Add. 	bislig@pnb.com.ph
 
BUTUAN BRANCH  
Montilla Blvd., Brgy. Dagohoy 
Butuan City, Agusan del Norte 8600  
Tel. Nos. 	 (085) 342-5800
	 (085) 342-8239 
	 (085) 225-4490
	 (086) 346-0169  
Telefax No. 	 (085) 342-5800 
E-mail Add. 	butuan@pnb.com.ph 
 
CAGAYAN DE ORO BRANCH 
Corrales Ave. cor. T. Chavez St., 
Cagayan de Oro City, Misamis 
Oriental 9000  
Tel. Nos. 	 (08822) 72-9500 		
	 (08822) 72-9723  
	 (088) 857-6061
	 (088) 857-5684 
Telefax No. 	 (08822) 72-6010 
E-mail Add. 	cagayandeoro
	 @pnb.com.ph
 
CARMEN BRANCH  
Premier Bldg., Elipe Park R. M. 
Pelaez St. cor. Agoho Drive 
Brgy. Carmen, Cagayan de Oro City, 
Misamis Oriental 9000  
Tel. Nos. 	 (08822) 72-7870
	 (088) 858-3158 
Telefax No. 	 (088) 858-4203 
E-mail Add. 	carmen@pnb.com.ph 
 
CLIMACO BRANCH  
JNB Bldg. Buenavista St. 
Zamboanga City
Zamboanga del Sur 7000  
Tel. No. 	 (062) 991-1643  
Telefax No. 	 (062) 993-1033 
E-mail Add. 	climaco@pnb.com.ph 
 
COTABATO BRANCH  
39 Makakua St. Cotabato City, 
Maguindanao 9600  
Tel. Nos. 	 (064) 421-8756
	 (064) 421-5272 
Telefax No. 	 (064) 421-2696 
E-mail Add. 	cotabato@pnb.com.ph 
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DADIANGAS BRANCH  
RD Realty Development Bldg., 
Santiago Blvd.Gen. Santos City, 
South Cotabato 
Tel. Nos. 	 (083) 553-5282
	 (083) 302-5283  
Telefax No. 	 (083) 553-5283 
E-mail Add. 	dadiangas@pnb.com.ph 
 
DAVAO BRANCH  
San Pedro St. cor. C. M. Recto St.,
Davao City, Davao del Sur 
Tel. Nos. 	 (082) 221-2534
	 (082) 221-7021
	 (082) 222-6839 
	 (082) 226-2541
	 (082) 227-2971  
Telefax No. 	 (082) 226-2541 
E-mail Add. 	davao@pnb.com.ph
 
DIGOS BRANCH  
Quezon Ave., Digos City  
Davao del Sur 8002  
Tel. Nos. 	 (082) 553-2543 
	 (082) 553-3889 
Telefax No. 	 (082) 553-2187 
E-mail Add. 	digos@pnb.com.ph 
 
DIPOLOG BRANCH  
General Luna St. cor. C.P. Garcia St., 
Dipolog City, Zamboanga 
del Norte 7100 
Tel. Nos. 	 (065) 212-4827
	 (065) 212-7212 
Telefax No. 	 (065) 212-2557 
E-mail Add. 	dipolog@pnb.com.ph
 
GENERAL SANTOS BRANCH  
City Hall Drive, Osmeña St.  
Gen. Santos City
South Cotabato 9500  
Tel. Nos. 	 (083) 552-3261 / 3262
	 (083) 552-2858  
Telefax No. 	 (083) 552-3254 
E-mail Add. 	generalsantos
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
GINGOOG BRANCH  
National Highway, Brgy. 23,
Gingoog City Misamis Oriental 9014  
Tel. Nos. 	 (08842) 7728
	 (088) 861-0210
	  (08842) 7455 
Telefax No. 	 (088) 861-0127 
E-mail Add. 	gingoog@pnb.com.ph 

ILIGAN BRANCH  
Cor. Gen. Aguinaldo & Labao Sts., 
Pobalcion, Iligan City, Lanao del 
Norte 9200 
Tel. Nos. 	 (063) 221-2801
	 (063) 221-2802
	 (063) 221-2803 
	 (063) 221-2804
	 (063) 223-8182 
Telefax No. 	 (063) 223-8182 
E-mail Add. 	iligan@pnb.com.ph
 
ISULAN BRANCH  
Aristoza Bldg., National Highway, 
Isulan, Sultan Kudarat 9805  
Tel. No. 	 (064) 201-3427 
Telefax No. 	 (064) 201-3428 
E-mail Add. 	isulan@pnb.com.ph
 
JOLO BRANCH  
Serantes St., Jolo, Sulu 7400  
Tel. Nos. 	 (085) 341-8911
	 loc. 2168 or 2591  
	 0917-873-8854 
	 (BM’s Cellphone)  
E-mail Add.	 jolo@pnb.com.ph 
 
KCC MALL-GEN. SANTOS CITY 
BRANCH 
(Formerly Marbel Branch) 
Unit 108 Lower G/F KCC Mall of 
Gensan, Jose Catolico Sr. Ave. 
General Santos City, 
South Cotobato 
Tel. Nos. 	 (083) 554-9092 
	 (083) 554-9093 
E-mail Add. 	kccmallgensantos
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
KIDAPAWAN BRANCH  
Quezon Blvd.,Kidapawan City 
North Cotabato 9400  
Tel. No. 	 (064) 288-1696 
Telefax No. 	 (064) 288-5118 
E-mail Add. 	kidapawan
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
KORONADAL BRANCH  
Albert Morrow St., Koronadal City 
South Cotabato 9506  
Tel. Nos. 	 (083) 228-3726 / 6059 
Telefax No. 	 (083) 228-3727 
E-mail Add. 	koronadal@pnb.com.ph 

LILOY BRANCH  
(Formerly Ipil Branch)
Alfred Chan Bldg., Baybay, Liloy 
Zamboanga del Norte  
Tel. Nos. 	 (065) 906-9095
	 0917-8737863
	 (065) 906-9952
	 0926-8512708 
E-mail Add.	 liloy@pnb.com.ph 
 

LIMKETKAI CENTER BRANCH  
Limketkai Center, Lapasan, 
Cagayan de Oro City, 
Misamis Oriental 9000  
Tel. Nos. 	 (08822) 72-2872
	 (088) 856-3696
	 (088) 856-3695 
Telefax No. 	 (088) 856-3696 
E-mail Add. 	limketkai@pnb.com.ph
 
LIMKETKAI MALL NORTH 
CONCOURSE BRANCH 
(Formerly Cogon Branch)
G/F North Concourse, Limketkai 
Mall,Limketkai Center, Lapasan, 
Cagayan de Oro City,
Misamis Oriental 
Tel. Nos. 	 (08822) 723471
	 (088) 857-4149
	 (088) 857-5682 
E-mail Add. 	limketkainorth
	 @pnb.com.ph
 
MALAYBALAY BRANCH  
Flores Bldg. Cor. Rizal and Tabios 
Sts., Brgy. 5, Malaybalay City, 
Bukidnon 8700   
Tel. No. 	 (088) 813-2459 
Telefax No. 	 (088) 813-2460 
E-mail Add. 	malaybalay
	 @pnb.com.ph 
 
MAMBAJAO BRANCH  
Cor. Gen. Aranas & Burgos Sts., 
Brgy.,Poblacion, Mambajao,
Camiguin 9100  
Tel. Nos. 	 (088) 387-1080
	 (088) 387-2034
Telefax No. 	 (088) 387-1081 
E-mail Add. 	mambajao
	 @pnb.com.ph
 
MARAWI BRANCH  
Perez St., Poblacion, Marawi City  
Lanao del Sur 9700  
Tel. No. 	 (063) 876-0014 
Telefax No.	 (063) 352-0257 
E-mail Add. 	marawi@pnb.com.ph 
 
MATI BRANCH  
Rizal Extension, Brgy. Central 
Mati, Davao Oriental 8200  
Tel. Nos. 	 (087) 388-3366
	 (087) 388-3799
	 (087) 388-3408 
Telefax No. 	 (087) 388-3799 
E-mail Add. 	mati@pnb.com.ph 
 

MATINA BRANCH  
BF Building, McArthur Highway Cor. 
Aries St.Matina, Davao City, Davao 
del Sur 8000  
Tel. No. 	 (082) 299-2852 
E-mail Add. 	matina@pnb.com.ph

MIDSAYAP BRANCH  
Quezon Avenue, Pob. 6
Midsayap, Cotabato 
Tel. Nos. 	 (064) 229-8459
	 (064) 229-8539 
Telefax No. 	 (064) 229-8004 
E-mail Add. 	midsayap@pnb.com.ph 
 
MONTEVERDE BRANCH  
G/F Mintrade Bldg. Cor. Monteverde 
& Gov. Sales Sts. Davao City, 
Davao del Sur 8000  
Tel. Nos. 	 (082) 222-0514
	 (082) 225-5895 
E-mail Add. monteverde
	 @pnb.com.ph
 
MSU-MARAWI EXTENSION 
OFFICE 
Right Wing, Dimaporo, Gymnasium, 
MSU-Main Campus,Brgy. Rapasun/ 
Sikap, Marawi City, Lanao del Sur 
Tel. No. 	 (063) 876-0024 
 
OROQUIETA BRANCH  
Sen. Jose Ozamis St.
Lower Lamac, Oroquieta City 
Misamis Occidental 7207 
Tel. Nos. 	 (088) 531-2055
	 (088) 531-1052 
Telefax No. 	 (088) 531-1053 
E-mail Add. 	oroquieta@pnb.com.ph 
 
OZAMIZ BRANCH  
Rizal Avenue,  Aguada
Brgy. Aguada, Ozamiz City 
Misamis Occidental 7200  
Tel. Nos. 	 (065) 521-1556
	 (065) 521-0010 
Telefax No. 	 (088) 521-0085 
E-mail Add. 	ozamiz@pnb.com.ph 
 
PAGADIAN BRANCH  
Rizal Avenue Balangasan 
District, Pagadian City 
Zamboanga del Sur 7016 
Tel. Nos. 	 (062) 214-1309
	 (062) 214-2493
	 (062) 215-1162 
Telefax No. 	 (062) 214-1309 
E-mail Add. 	pagadian@pnb.com.ph
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PALA-O BRANCH  
G/F Iligan Day Inn Bldg., Benito S. 
Ong St.,Pala-o, Iligan City, Lanao del 
Norte 9200  
Tel. Nos. 	 (063) 221-3206
	 (063) 223-8183
	 (063) 221-3892 
Telefax No. 	 (063) 221-3206 
E-mail Add. 	palao@pnb.com.ph 
 
PANABO BRANCH  
G/F Gaisano Grand Mall of Panabo, 
Quezon St.Brgy. Sto. Nino, Panabo 
City, Davao del Norte 8105 
Tel. Nos. 	 (084) 645-0027
	 (084) 645-0028 
E-mail Add. panabocity@pnb.com.ph 
 
SASA BRANCH 
Pavino Bldg., Km. 9, National 
Highway Davao City, Davao del Sur 
Tel. Nos. 	 (082) 233-0584
	 (082) 233-0585 
E-mail Add. 	sasa@pnb.com.ph 
 
SINDANGAN BRANCH  
Cor. Rizal & Bonifacio Sts. 
Poblacion, Sindangan 
Zamboanga del Norte 7112  
Tel. No. 	 (065) 224-2017 
Telefax No. 	 (065) 224-2018 
E-mail Add. 	sindangan
	 @pnb.com.ph
 
STA. ANA DAVAO BRANCH  
Bonifacio Tan Bldg., Rosemary cor. 
Bangoy Sts., Sta. Ana District., 
Davao City, Davao del Sur 8000  
Tel. Nos. 	  (082) 221- 1852 
Telefax No. 	 (082) 221-1851 
E-mail Add. 	staana@pnb.com.ph 
 
SURIGAO BRANCH 
45 Rizal St., Brgy. Washington,
Surigao City, Surigao del Norte 
Tel. Nos. 	 (086) 231-7104
	 (086) 826-4335 
Fax No. 	 (086) 231-7822 
E-mail Add. 	surigao@pnb.com.ph

TAGUM BRANCH  
Rizal St., Magugpo Poblacion  
Tagum City, Davao del Norte 8100  
Tel. Nos. 	 (084) 217-3624
	 (084) 217-3474  
	 (084) 400-2493 		
	 loc.6675  
Telefax No. 	 (084) 400-2493 
E-mail Add. 	tagum@pnb.com.ph 
 

TANDAG BRANCH  
Napo National Highway Tandag 
Surigao del Sur 8300  
Tel. No. 	 (086) 211-3695 
Telefax No.	 (086) 211-2558 
E-mail Add. 	tandag@pnb.com.ph 
 
TAWI-TAWI BRANCH  
Bagay St., Poblacion, 
Bongao, Tawi-Tawi 7500  
Tel. No. 	 (068) 268-1033  
Telefax No. 	 (068) 268-1200 
E-mail Add. 	tawitawi@pnb.com.ph
 
TETUAN BRANCH  
G/F  AL Gonzalez & Sons Bldg., 
Veterans Ave.,  Zamboanga City 
7000  
Tel. No. 	 (062) 955-1318 
Telefax No. 	 (062) 993-0353 
E-mail Add. 	tetuan@pnb.com.ph 
 
TORIL BRANCH  
Anecita G. Uy Building
Saavedra St., Toril Davao City, 
Davao del Sur 8000  
Tel. Nos. 	 (082) 291-0028
	 (082) 291-0030 
Telefax No. 	 (082) 291-0028 
E-mail Add. 	toril@pnb.com.ph 
 
VALENCIA BRANCH  
Tamay Lang Building G. Lavina St., 
Poblacion Valencia City, 
Bukidnon 8709 
Tel. Nos. 	 (088) 222-2148
	 (088) 828-2311 
Telefax No. 	 (088) 828-2318 
E-mail Add. 	valencia@pnb.com.ph
 
YLLANA BAY EXTENSION OFFICE 
(Pagadian Branch) 
Gaisano Capital Pagadian, Rizal 
Ave., San Pedro District 
Pagadian City 7016 
Tel. Nos. 	 (062)215-2760
	 (062) 214-4949 
	 (062) 214-2493 
E-mail Add. 	pagadian@pnb.com.ph 
 
ZAMBOANGA BRANCH  
J. S. Alano Street Zamboanga City, 
Zamboanga del Sur 7000  
Tel. Nos. 	 (062) 992-4813
	 (062) 991-6098 
Telefax No. 	 (062) 991-5031 
E-mail Add. 	zamboanga
	 @pnb.com.ph

		

REGIONAL 
HEADS	 		
	
North Metro Manila	
Carina L. Salonga			 

South Metro Manila		
May Ann A. Santos			 

Northern Luzon			 
Roger P. Colobong			 

Southern Luzon			 
Reynaldo A. Intal			 

Visayas			 
Jane K. Gocuan			 

Mindanao			 
Teresita U. Sebastian			
			 

AREA HEADS	 	
			 
North Metro Manila		
			 
Metro 1			 
Juanito D. Pineda			 

Metro 2
Blesilda S. Reyes			 

Metro 3			 
Cesar G. Evasco			 

Metro 4			 
Zedric J. Matubis
			 
Metro 5			 
Dwight Lawrence T. Leyco		
	
SOUTH MERTRO MANILA	 	
				  
Metro 6			 
Shirley S. Pelayo
			 
Metro 7			 
Julius T. Rafael			 

Metro 8			 
Myrna P. Chua			 

Metro 9			 
Narciso S. Capito, Jr.			

Metro 10			
Anna Liza A. Arellano	

NORTHERN LUZON			
			 
NOL 1			 
Mariquita P. Ortega			 

NOL 2			 
Christine Marie M. Rillera		

NOL 3			 
Nicolas S. Diaz			 

NOL 4			 
Benedicto B. Vasquez		

NOL 5			 
Minerva C. Duran (OIC)		

NOL 6			 
Ernesto E. Catacutan			
		
SOUTHERN LUZON			
			 
SOL 1			 
Alvin A. Lista			 

SOL 2			 
Vicente A. Longno			 

SOL 3			 
Ruth A. Carrasco (OIC)		

SOL 4			 
Carlito L. Lacanlale			 
			 
VISAYAS				 
		
Cebu/Bohol			 
Florencio H. Ruedas (OIC)		

Samar/Leyte			 
Gaudioso Y. Ypanto			 

Negros			 
Mariano M. Magbanua, Jr.		

Panay			 
Mariano M. Magbanua, Jr.		
				  
MINDANAO			 
			 
Northern Mindanao		
Mitzi T. Cagarungan			 

Southern Mindanao		
Leonila F. Coquilla			 

Western Mindanao		
Alvin I. Kong			 

Southwestern Mindanao		
Maria Jessica N. Reyes		
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COMMERCIAL 
BANKING 
CENTERS
METRO MANILA
MANILA
7th floor PNB Financial Center
Pres. Diosdado Macapagal Blvd. 
Pasay City
Tel. No: 	 (02) 551-2859

SAVP Bernice L. Uy-Gaspar
Head

QUEZON CITY
Mezzanine floor PNB Cubao Branch
Building Aurora Blvd.cor Gen. 
Araneta St., Cubao, Quezon City
Tel. No. 	 (02) 912-1947

SAVP Angeline Grace T. Go

Head

MAKATI
Mezzanine floor PNB Ayala Branch,
6772 Ayala Ave. Makati City
Tel. No.	 (02) 894-1430

SAVP Ferdinand G. Austria
Head

ORTIGAS
PNB Ortigas Br. – G/F JMT Building 
ADB Ave., Ortigas Business 
Complex, Pasig City
Tel. No.  	 (02) 634-2573

FVP Humildad M. Santelices
Head

LUZON
NORTHERN LUZON
7th floor PNB Financial Center
Pres. Diosdado Macapagal Blvd. 
Pasay City
Tel. No.	 (02) 526-3384

FVP Maria Rita S. Pueyo
Head

CENTRAL & EASTERN LUZON
3rd floor, PNB Angeles Branch
730 Sto. Rosario St., Angeles City 
Pampanga
Tel. Nos.:	 (045) 625-9771
	 (045) 888-9664

M2 Susan L. Principe
Head

Cagayan Valley
PNB Cauayan Br. – 
Maharlika Highway 
cor. Cabatuan Rd.
Cauayan City, Isabela
Tel. Nos.	 (078) 652-1408 
                	 (078) 897-1458

AVP Henry M. Montalvo
Head

Santiago Sub-Business 
Center
PNB Cauayan Br. –
Maharlika Highway 
cor.Cabatuan Rd. 
Cauayan City, Isabela
Tel. Nos.  	 (078) 652-1408 
	 (078) 897-1458

AVP Henry M. Montalvo
Head

Tuguegarao Sub-Business 
Center
PNB Tuguegarao Br. -  
Bonifacio St., Tuguegarao City, 
Cagayan
Tel. Nos.	 (078) 846-4203 
                 	 (078) 846-1968

AVP Henry M. Montalvo
Head

ILOCOS
PNB Dagupan Br.-AB Fernandez 
Ave., Dagupan City,Pangasinan
Tel. Nos.  	 (075) 522-0898
	 (075) 575-2269

M2 Glyn C. Arenos
Head

Baguio Sub-Business Center
PNB Baguio Br.- Session Rd. 
Baguio City
Tel. No.	 (074) 442-3833

M2 Glyn C. Arenos
Head

Southern Luzon
PNB Naga Br. - Gen. Luna St.
Naga city
Tel. No.	 (054) 472-7622

SAVP Nilo R. Padua
Head

Southern Luzon A
PNB Batangas Br. - P. Burgos St. 
Batangas City
Tel. Nos.	 (043) 723-1409 
	 (043) 723-0225

AM1 & OIC Hazel C. Lita
Head

Southern Luzon B
PNB San Pablo Branch 
M. Paulino St. San Pablo City, 
Laguna
Tel. Nos.	 (049) 800-1558
	 (049) 503-2580 

SM Ariston E. Flores
Head

BICOL
PNB Naga Br. - Gen. Luna St.
Naga city
Tel. No.	 (054) 473-0393

M1 Cristine P. Arejola
Head

VISAYAS
VISAYAS
2/F, PNB Cebu Main Br. Bldg. 
M.C.Briones-D. Jakosalem Sts. 
Cebu City 6000
Tel. No.	 (032) 256-3365

SAVP Albert J. Guangco
Head

NEGROS
G/F PNB Bacolod Br. Bldg.
Lacson St., Bacolod City
Tel. Nos.	 (034) 433-3449
                	 (034) 433-2730

M1 Yelin L. Olis
Head

Cebu
2/F, PNB Cebu Main Br. Bldg.
M.C.Briones-D. Jakosalem Sts. 
Cebu City 6000
Tel. Nos.	 (032) 255-1702 
                	 (032) 415-9868

SAVP Albert J. Guangco
Head

Dumaguete Sub-Business 

Center
PNB Dumaguete Branch Bldg. 
Siliman Ave. cor Real St.
Dumaguete City, Negros Oriental
Tel. No.	 (035) 422-9175

SAVP  Albert J. Guangco

Tagbilaran Sub-Business 

Center
PNB Tagbilaran Branch.
Cor. JA Clarin & CPG. Ave. 
Tagbilaran City, Bohol
Tel. No.	 (038) 411-2238

SAVP  Albert J. Guangco
Head

Tacloban Sub-Business 

Center
PNB Tacloban Branch Bldg. 
J. Romualdez St., Tacloban City 
Leyte
Tel. No.	 (053) 523-4126

SAVP  Albert J. Guangco
Head

Ormoc Sub-Business Center
PNB Ormoc Branch Bldg.
Cor. Bonifacio & Catag Sts.
Ormoc City, Leyte
Tel. No.	 (053) 561-2526

SAVP  Albert J. Guangco
Head

PANAY
PNB Iloilo Branch. Cor. 
Gen. Luna & Valeria Sts.,
Iloilo City
Tel. No.	 (033) 337-1613

M1 & OIC Yelin L. Olis
Head

MINDANAO
MINDANAO
2/F, PNB Cebu Main Br. Bldg. 
M.C.Briones-D. Jakosalem Sts. 
Cebu City 6000
Tel. No.	 (032) 255-1702

VP Aaron L. Astor
Head

NORTHERN MINDANAO
2/F PNB Cagayan de Oro Branch 
Building, Corrales Ave.
Cagayan de Oro City
Tel. No.	 (088) 856-3684

SM Marjorie P. Ballesteros
Head
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Ozamis Sub-Business Center
PNB Ozamis Branch, Rizal Ave. 
Brgy. Aguada Ozamis City
Misamis Occ.
Tel. No.	 (088) 521-0578

SM Marjorie P. Ballesteros
Head

Butuan Sub-Business Center
PNB Butuan Branch 
Montilla Blvd., Butuan City
Tel. No.	 (085) 342-5802

SM Marjorie P. Ballesteros
Head

SOUTHERN MINDANAO
PNB Davao Branch Bldg. 
CM Recto cor. San Pedro Sts. 
Davao City
Tel. No.	 (082) 224-2533
	 (082) 221-25-21

VP Aaron L. Astor
Head

South Central Mindanao
PNB Dadiangas B. - Santiago Blvd. 
Gen. Santos City
Tel. No.	 (083) 552-1254
                	
VP Aaron L. Astor
Head

 REGIONAL 
CONSUMER 
FINANCE 
CENTERS
LUZON
NORTH LUZON
AB Fernandez Ave. Dagupan City, 
Pangasinan 2400
Tel. No.	 (075) 515-2744

M1 Marilou B. Martinez
Head

CAGAYAN VALLEY
Maharlika Highway 
cor. Cabatuan Road
Cauayan Isabela
3305
Tel. No.	 (078) 662-1318
Fax.no.	 (078) 652-1416

M1 Novella A. Antonio
Head

CENTRAL LUZON I
Cor. Paco Roman & Del Pilar Sts.
2/F PNB,Cabanatuan 
Br.Bldg.,Cabanatuan City, 
Nueva Ecija
Tel. Fax.	 (044) 463-0639

M2 Geronima T. Mingala
Head

CENTRAL LUZON II
730 Sta. Rosario Sts.
Angeles City, Pampanga
2006
Tel. No.	 (045) 625-9381
Fax. no.	 (045) 887-4308

AVP Josephine DG. Santillana
Head

SOUTH LUZON I
M/F PNB Batangas Branch,
P Burgos St., Batangas City 
Tel.No.	 (043)723-0050
Fax.no.	 (043)723-0050

M1 Elaine O. Arcega
Head

SOUTH LUZON II
Marcos Paulino St. San Pablo City, 
Laguna
Tel.No.	 (049) 562-0756

M1 Elaine O. Arcega
Head

BICOL
Gen. Luna St., Naga City
Camarines Sur
Tel. No.	 (054) 473-1234	
Fax.No.	 (054) 473-1234

AM1 Melvin B. Montino
Head

VISAYAS

CEBU-BOHOL
Cor. Jakosalem & M.C Briones Sts. 
Cebu City 6000
Tel. Nos.	 (032) 412-1797
	 (032) 412-1884
Fax.No.	 (032) 412-1884

AVP Leila Q. Amante
Head

SAMAR LEYTE
Cor. Sto. Nino & 
Justice Romualdez Sts.
Tacloban City, Leyte 6500
Tel. Nos.	 (053) 325-4619
	 (053) 325-9255
Fax.No.	 (053) 325-4619

AM2 Ma. Consuelo M. Jamora
Head

NEGROS
Lacson St., Bacolod City 
PNB Bacolod Br
Negros Occidental 6100
Tel. No.	 (034) 434-5127/	
Fax.No.	 (034) 434-5127

AVP Arlene V.  David
Head

PANAY
2F PNB iloIlo Br.,Cor. Gen. Luna 
and Valeria Sts. 
Iloilo City iloilo 5000
Tel.No.	 (033) 337-5275
Fax.No.	 (033) 337-5275

AVP Arlene V. David
Head

MINDANAO

SOUTHERN MINDANAO
C.M. Recto St., 
Davao City 8000
Tel. No. 	 (082) 221-3534
Fax.No. 	 (082) 305-4438

M2 Aileen Masangya
Head
  

NORTHERN MINDANAO
2/F PNB Limketkai Branch, 
Lapasan., Cagayan de Oro 
Tel. No.	 (08822) 729801
Fax No. 	 (08822) 729801

Gervacio Gervie T. Go III (ICO)
Head

WESTERN MINDANAO

A Eusebio Quadrangle,
J.S Alano St., Zamboanga City
7000
Tel. No:	 (062) 991-0797

AM1 Ronald B. Dela Cruz
Head

OVERSEAS
ASIA & OCEANIA
GUAM
PNB Corporation, Guam
Suite 114 C, Micronesia Mall
1088 W. Marine Drive 
Dededo, Guam 96929
Tel. No.	 (671) 637-4982
Fax No.	 (671) 632-0736  
E-mail Add. 	pnb@teleguam.net
	 pnbguam@ite.net

Layna D. Munoz
Officer-In-Charge

HONGKONG
Hongkong Branch
Unit 02, 9th Floor, Tung Wai 
Commercial Building, 109-111 
Gloucester Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong  
Tel. No.	 (852) 2543-1066 
Trunkline. 	 (852) 2543-7171
Fax Nos.	 (852) 2525-3107 
	 (852) 2541-6645
E-mail Add:	 pnbhkgrp@pnb.com.ph              
	 bicolrc@pnb.com.ph

Rodel C. Bicol
General Manager

PNB Global Remittance & 
Financial Co. (HK) Ltd. - 
Head Office
Unit 01 , 9th Floor, Tung Wai 
Commercial Building, 109-111 
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, 
Hong Kong 
Tel. No.	 (852) 2230-2105
Fax Nos.	 (852) 2525-3107  
	 (852) 2541-6645
E-mail Add.	 evorara@pnb.com.ph

Raymond A. Evora
General Manager

Directory of Branches and Offices
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PNB Global North Point 
G/F Shop 27-28, Seven Seas 
Commercial Centre, 121 King’s 
Road, North Point, HongKong
Tel. No.	 (852) 2887-5967
Fax No.	 (852) 2807-0298
E-mail Add.	 yeunglf@pnb.com.ph

Lumen F. Yeung
Branch Manager

PNB Global Shatin
Shop 15E, Level 1 Shatin Lucky 
Plaza, 12-15 Wang Fok St. 
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel. No.	 (852) 2603-2802
Fax No.	 (852) 2609-3816
E-mail Add.	 delacruzmm
	 @pnb.com.ph

Maximo M. Dela Cruz           
Branch Manager

PNB Global Tai Po
Shop 10A, Ground Floor, Elegance 
Garden, No. 1-7 Nam Wan Road 
Taipo, New Territories.
Tel. No.	 (852) 2577-0553
Fax No.	 (852) 2577-0553
E-mail Add.	 ipfs@pnb.com.ph

Felicisima S. Ip
Branch Manager

PNB Global Tsuen Wan 
Shops 226-229, Lik San Plaza, 269 
Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New 
Territories, HongKong
Tel. No.	 (852) 2490-1397
Fax No.	 (852) 2490-3435
E-mail Add.	 lunafe@pnb.com.ph

Frank Luna
Branch Manager

PNB Global Worldwide 
House 101 
Shop 101, 1/F Worldwide House 
19 Des Voeux Road
Central, HongKong
Tel. No.	 (852) 2521-4603
Fax No.	 (852) 2521-4603
E-mail Add.	 lenchicoel@pnb.com.ph

Eduardo L. Lenchico
Branch Manager

PNB Global Worldwide 
House 122 
Shop 122, 1/F Worldwide House 
19 Des Voeux Road 
Central, HongKong
Tel. No.	 (852) 2869-8764
Fax No.	 (852) 2869-8599
E-mail Add.	 baldonsl@pnb.com.ph

Sofia L. Baldon
Branch Manager

PNB Global Yuen Long
Shop 9, 3/F Tung Yik Bldg.
No.8 Yu King Square, Yuen long  
New Territories, HongKong
Tel.No.	 (852) 2147-3471
Fax No.	 (852) 2147-3481
E-mail Add.	 rubioao@pnb.com.ph

Ariel O. Rubio
Branch Manager

JAPAN 
Tokyo Branch
5/F  Fukide Bldg. 4-1-13, 
Toranomon, Minato-ku, 
Tokyo 105-0001 Japan
Tel. Nos.	 (813)  5401-3300
	 (813) 5401-3376
Fax No.	 (813) 5401-3627 
	 (813)  5401-3634 
E-mail Add.	 kamiyama@pnbtokyo.co.jp
	 cruzjf@pnb.com.ph
	 tokyo@pnb.com.ph 
	 customercare
	 @pnbtokyo.co.jp

Toshiyuki Kamiyama
Managing Director

Nagoya Sub-Branch
7/F  JPR Nagoya Sakae Bldg.  
3-24-24 Nishiki, Naka-Ku  
Nagoya-shi, Aichi-ken 
460-0003 Japan 
Tel. No.	 (8152) 968-1800
Fax Nos.	 (8152) 968-1102/1900
E-mail Add.	 tambuyatpk
	 @pnb.com.ph
	 nagoya@pnb.com.ph
	 pnbnagoya
	 @pnbtokyo.co.jp

Patricia Kato-Tambuyat
Sub-Branch Manager

Singapore
Singapore Branch
304 Orchard Road #03-02/07 
Lucky Plaza Shopping Centre 
Singapore 238863
Tel. No.	 (65) 6737-4646
Fax No.	 (65) 6737-4224
E-mail Add.	 singapore@pnb.com.ph
           	 santoscc@pnb.com.ph
           	 rabangrp@pnb.com.ph

Cesar C. Santos, Jr. /     
Raquel P. Rabang
General Manager & GFBG Head /  
Deputy Gen. Mgr.

PNB Singapore Limited Purpose 
Branch 
#03-68  Lucky Plaza 
Shopping Center, 
Singapore 238863
Tel. No.	 (65) 6737-4106
Fax No.	 (65) 6737-4224
E-mail Add.	 mohdfs@pnb.com.ph

Farida Syed Mohd
Officer-In-Charge

MIDDLE EAST
KINGDOM OF SAUDI ARABIA 
(KSA)
2nd Industrial City Desk Office
Al Kharaba St., 2nd Industrial City 
Riyadh, KSA
Tel. No.	 (966) 1-402-9000 
	 ext. 4864
Fax No.	 (966) 1-276-9262
E-mail Add.	 pnbonaiza@pnb-sa.net; 
                  	 sandilinaes
	 @pnb.com.ph

Esmael S. Sandilina
Marketing Officer

Al-Khobar Desk Office
Al Khobar Telemoney Center
King Faisal St., 1st Crossing 
(Beside Glorietta Bldg.), P.O. Box 37 
Al Khobar 31952, KSA
Tel. No.	 (966) 3-894-2618
Fax No.	 (966) 3-894-1546
E-mail Add.	 pnbkhobar@pnb-sa.net 
	 deguzmanmf
	 @pnb.com.ph

Modesto F. De Guzman
Desk Officer

Aqaria Desk Office
Akaria Telemoney Center
Akaria Shopping Center
Olaya Road, Riyadh, KSA
Tel. No.	 (966) 1-402-9000
	 Ext. 4864
Fax No.	 (966) 1-460-1377
E-mail Add.	 pnbaqaria@pnb-sa.net 	
 	 albanajg@pnb.com.ph

Jose Francisco G. Albana
Marketing Officer

Buraidah Desk Office
Al Khabeeb St., Buraidah, KSA
Tel. Nos.	 (966) 6-325-5284 		
	 (966) 6-325-5297
Fax No.	 (966) 6-325-5279
E-mail Add.	 pnbhail@pnb-sa.net / 
	 elyannm@pnb.com.ph

Nasruden M. Elyan            
Marketing Officer

Hera’a Desk Office
Hera’a Telemoney Center
Madin Road, Hera’a Mall
Hera’a, Jeddah, KSA
Tel. Nos.	 (966) 2-655-0665 		
	 (966) 2-607-3461
Fax No.	 (966) 2-607-3468
E-mail Add.	 pnbhera@pnb-sa.net
	 razalanvg@pnb.com.ph

Victorino G. Razalan
Marketing Officer

Jeddah-Balad Desk Office
Balad-Jeddah Telemoney Center 
Aswaq Building, Corniche
Balad District, Jeddah, KSA
Tel. Nos.	 (966) 2-643-3415  	
	 (966) 2-642-2578 
Fax No.	 (966) 2-642-2578 
	 ext. 111
E-mail Add. 	pnbjed@pnb-sa.net / 
	 abong@pnb.com.ph

Nasser G. Abo
Desk Officer

Jubail Desk Office
Jubail Telemoney Center
Jeddah St., Across Riyad Bank
P.O. Box 351 Jubail 31941, KSA
Tel. No.	 (966) 3-362-0093
Fax No.	 (966) 3-362-0464
E-mail Add.	 pnbjubail@pnb-sa.net / 
	 lealdg@pnb.com.ph

Dennis G. Leal
Marketing Officer
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Khamis Mushayt Desk Office
King Fahd St., opposite Al Azizia 
Hotel, Khamis Mushayt, KSA
Tel. No.	 (966)7-2233578
Fax No.	 (966) 7-2203074
E-mail Add. 	pnbkhamis@pnb-sa.net  
	 maruhomas
	 @pnb.com.ph

Alioden S. Maruhom
Marketing Officer

Rawdah-Jed Desk Office
Prince Sultan St., Jeddah, KSA
Tel. No.	 (966) 2-6620050
Fax No.	 (966) 2-6392750
E-mail Add.	 pnbrawdah@pnb-sa.net 
	 yranongc@pnb.com.ph

Gaudencio C. Yranon Jr.
Marketing Officer

Riyadh Batha Desk Office
Riyadh-Batha Telemoney Center 
Riyadh Trading Center, Batha 
(Filipino Market), KSA
Tel. Nos.	 (966) 1-402-9000  
                    Ext. 5050/5051  
                    sub-ext 6213/6217
Fax No.	 (966) 1-2831-553
E-mail Add. pnbbatha@pnb-sa.net/   
	 abdulal@pnb.com.ph,   
	 pnbladyMO
	 @pnb-sa.net / 
	 franciscojd
	 @pnb.com.ph

Anwar L Abdul/       
Josephine D. Francisco
Desk Officer / Marketing Officer

Riyadh Desk Office
Arab National Bank  
Telemoney Department (P.N.B.)  
3/F, Beit 7 P.O. Box 56921
Riyadh 11564 KSA
Tel. Nos.	 (966) 1-402-9000  
 	 ext. 3371 & 3340
Fax No.	 (966) 1-402-9000 
	 Ext. 4890
E-mail Add. 	pnbruh@pnb-sa.net /  
	 navarroub@pnb.com.ph 
	 pnbruh1@pnb-sa.net /  
                 	 gasparcj@pnb.com.ph,
	 pnbrovingMO
	 @pnb-sa.net / 
                    buenaferg@pnb.com.ph

Mgr Usman B. Navarro / 
Carlito J. Gaspar    / 
Rolando G. Buenafe
Country Head-KSA & Region Head-
MENA
Marketing Officer /
Roving Marketing Officer 
 

Tabuk Desk Office
Shara Al Amn, near Gov. Basheer 
House, Tabuk, KSA
Tel. No.	 (966) 4-4212323
Fax No. 	 (966) 7-4230844
E-mail Add.	 pnbtabuk@pnb-sa.net / 
	 cuatonba@pnb.com.ph

Bartolome A. Cuaton, Jr.
Marketing Officer

Yanbu Desk Office
Khair Baladi Int’l. Market
Yanbu, KSA
Tel. No.	 (966) 4-8271269
Fax No.	 (966) 4-8271285
E-mail Add.	 pnbyanbu@pnb-sa.net 
	 macapantonan
	 @pnb.com.ph

Abdullah N. Macapanton
Marketing Officer

KUWAIT
Kuwait Marketing Office 
c/o Phil. Embassy State of Kuwait, 
Block 6 Villa No.153 Nouman 
Bin Basher St.corner Damascus 
Road,Faifa Area, PO Box 26288  
Safat  13123, State of Kuwait  
Tel. Nos.       (965)99869386
	 (mobile)
Fax No.	 (965) 5329319
E-mail Add.	 pnbkwt@gmail.com	
	
Lamberto G. Pantanilla
Marketing Officer

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES (UAE)
Dubai Representative Office
Room No. 108, 1/F,  Al Nakheel 
Building, Zaabeel Road, Karama, 
P.O. Box 52357, Dubai, UAE
Tel. No.	 (971) 4-3365-940
Fax No.	 (971) 4-3374-474
E-mail Add.	 pnbruh@pnb-sa.net 	
	 pnbdxb
	 @emirates.net.ae		
	 marketing@pnbdxb.ae; 	
	 operations@pnbdxb.ae 
                   
	
Usman  B. Navarro
Manager 

QATAR
Qatar 
PNB Qatar Marketing Office    ,    
c/o Alzaman Exchange W.L.L.                   
Mansoura Al Meera, Doha              
State of Qatar                                                          
Tel. Nos. 	 (974) 5 5970111		
	 (mobile)
.	 (974) 44357552
	 (Office)
Fax Nos.	 (974) 44154732
	 (974) 44357620
E-mail Add.	 enet970@yahoo.com 
	 cuetoba@pnb.com.ph

Bennette Cueto
Marketing Officer

EUROPE
FRANCE
PNB (Europe) Plc - Paris Branch
165 Avenue Victor Hugo
75016 Paris, France
Tel No.	 ‘+33145053393
Fax No.	 (0033) 14505 1951
E-mail Add.	 ramosre
	 @pnbglobal.com 

Roberto E Ramos
Head of Office

Paris Representative Office
165 Avenue Victor Hugo
75016 Paris, France
Tel No.	 ‘+33145053393
Fax No.	 (0033) 14505 1952
E-mail Add.	 ramosre
	 @pnbglobal.com 

Roberto E Ramos               
Head of Office

ITALY
PNB Italy SpA
Piazza Independenza 
8 00185 Rome, Italy
Tel. Nos.	 (3906) 482-7830   
	 (3906) 482-7841
Fax No.	 (3906) 482-7884
E-mail Add. 	vic.cobarrubias
	 @pnbitaly.com

Vic E. Cobarrubias
Managing Director

PNB Italy SpA - Florence Branch
Via Guelfa 29r 
50129 Florence, Italy
Tel No.	 (39055) 295-056
Fax No.	 (39055) 230-2137
E-mail Add.	 nenita.mendoza
	 @pnbitaly.com
	 florence@pnb.com.ph

Nenita C. Mendoza
Head of Office

PNB Italy SpA - Milan Branch
Via Dogana, 3, 20123 Milan, Italy
Tel. No.	 (3902) 7200-3917
Fax No.	 (3902) 7200-3957
E-mail Add. 	virgilio.banggao
	 @pnbitaly.com  
                    milan@pnb.com.ph

Virgilio A. Banggao
Head & Operations Officer

Rome Representative Office
Piazza Independenza 8 00185 
Rome, Italy
Tel. Nos.	 (3906) 482-7830                
 	 (3906) 482-7841
Fax No.:	 (3906) 482-7884
E-mail Add.	 vic.cobarrubias
	 @pnbitaly.com

Vic E. Cobarrubias
Bank Representative

UNITED KINGDOM
PNB (Europe) Plc
5-7 Hillgate Street, London W8 7SP, 
United Kingdom
Tel. Nos.	 (0044) 207 3132300 
		  2308 / 2305
Fax No.	 (0044) 207 976 6628
E-mail Add. 	ramosre		
	 @pnbglobal.com  
	 pascualnp
	 @pnbglobal.com  /
	 pnbeinfo
	 @pnbglobal.com

Roberto Ramos   
Nestor  Pascual
Head of Office  Operations Head

PNB (Europe) Plc - Earl’s Court 
Ext. Office
G/F 11 Kenway Road, Earl’s Court 
London, SW5 ORP, United Kingdom
Tel. Nos.	 (0044) 207 3132300
		  2315 / 2305
E-mail Add.	 pascualnp
	 @pnbglobal.com 
	
Nestor P. Pascual
Operations Head
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NORTH AMERICA
U.S.A.
Los Angeles Branch
316 W 2nd Street, 7th Floor, Los 
Angeles, California 90012, U.S.A.
Tel No.	 (213) 401-1800
Fax No.	 (213) 401-1803
E-mail Add.	 ramosrc@pnb.com.ph

Ricardo C. Ramos
General Manager

New York Branch
30 Broad Street, 36th Floor
New York, NY 10004
Tel. No.	 (212) 790-9600
Fax No.	 (212) 382-2238
E-mail Add.	 manalotoas
	 @pnb.com.ph 

Araceli S. Manaloto
General Manager

Queens (NY) Extension Office
#69 - 18 Roosevelt Avenue 
Woodside, NY 11377, U.S.A.
Tel No.	 (718) 898-6113
Fax No.	 (718) 898-7838
E-mail Add.	 agultofc@pnb.com.ph

Francisco C. Agulto
Asst. Manager

PNB International Investments 
Corp. (PNB IIC)
316 W 2nd Street, 7th Floor, Los 
Angeles, California 90012, U.S.A.
Tel No.	 (213) 401-1008
Fax No.	 (213) 401-1208
E-mail Add.	 dchoa@pnbrci.com

David G. Choa, Jr.
President & CEO

PNB RCI Holding Co. Ltd.
316 W 2nd Street, 7th Floor, Los 
Angeles, California 90012, U.S.A.
Tel No.	 (213) 401-1008
Fax No.	 (213) 401-1208
E-mail Add.	 dchoa@pnbrci.com

David G. Choa, Jr.
President & CEO

PNB Remittance Centers, Inc. 
(RCI) - Head Office
316 W 2nd Street, 7th Floor, 
Los Angeles, California 90012, 
U.S.A
Tel. No.	 (213) 401-1008
Fax No.	 (213) 401-1208		
E-mail Add. 	dchoa@pnbrci.com;	
	 corporate@pnbrci.com

David G. Choa, Jr.
President & CEO / concurrent - 
North America Region Head

PNB RCI Anaheim 
825-C N. Euclid St.
Anaheim, CA 92801, U.S.A.
Tel No.	 (714) 563-1646
Fax No.	 (714) 563-2062
E-mail Add.	 anaheim@pnbrci.com

Maryjane Montemayor
Branch Operations Supervisor

PNB RCI Artesia Office
11618 South Street, Suite 213 
Artesia CA 90701, U.S.A.
Tel. No.	 (562) 924-8979/80
Fax No.	 (562) 865-5158
E-mail Add.	 artesia@pnbrci.com

Ramon Padernal
Branch Supervisor

PNB RCI Carson 
131-F W. Carson St.
Carson, CA 90745, U.S.A.
Tel. No.	 (310) 549-8795
Fax No.	 (310) 549-8797
E-mail Add.	 carson@pnbrci.com

AM Wilmyn Armas
Branch Manager

PNB RCI Eagle Rock 
2700 Colorado Blvd.100, 
Los Angeles, CA 90041, U.S.A.
Tel. No.	 (323) 254-3507 
Fax No.	 (323) 254-3259
E-mail Add.	 eaglerock@pnbrci.com

Jhoanna M. Cunanan
Branch Operations Supervisor

PNB RCI Long Beach 
1358 W. Willow St., Long Beach, 
CA 90810, U.S.A.
Tel. Nos.	 (562) 492-5909
	 (562) 989-1562
Fax No.	 (562) 492-5939
E-mail Add.	 longbeach@pnbrci.com

Mary Jane Domingo
Branch Operations Supervisor

PNB RCI Los Angeles 
3343 Wilshire Blvd., Los Angeles 
CA 90010, U.S.A.
Tel. No.	 (213) 401-1808
Fax No.	 (213) 401-1809
E-mail Add.	 losangeles@pnbrci.com

Arlene Lee 
Branch Operations Supervisor

PNB RCI Los Angeles Extension 
Office - Bahay Kubo
2330 W. Temple Street
Los Angeles, CA 90026, U.S.A.
Tel. No.	 (213) 484-3842
Fax No.	 (213) 484-1936
E-mail Add.	 bahaykubo
	 @pnbrci.com

Arlene Lee 
Branch Operations Supervisor

PNB RCI Mira Mesa 
9007 Mira Mesa Blvd., San Diego 
CA 92126, U.S.A.
Tel. No.	 (858) 549-1253
Fax No.	 (858) 549-1346
E-mail Add.	 miramesa@pnbrci.com

Avp Menchu Bolanos
Branch Manager

PNB RCI National City 
2220 E. Plaza Blvd., Suite E
National City, CA 91950, U.S.A.
Tel. No.	 (619) 472-5270
Fax No.	 (619) 472-5790
E-mail Add.	 nationalcity
	 @pnbrci.com

AM Stephen Faustino Garcia 
Branch Manager

PNB RCI Oxnard 
3622 S. Saviers Road Oxnard, 
CA 93033, U.S.A.
Tel. Nos.	 (805) 486-9759 / 1479
Fax No.	 (805) 486-1592
E-mail Add.	 oxnard@pnbrci.com

AM Merly Sta Maria
Branch Manager

PNB RCI Panorama City 
14417 Roscoe Blvd. Unit D 
Panorama City, CA 91402, U.S.A.
Tel Nos.	 (818) 891-2928 / 2946
Fax No.	 (818) 891-0838
E-mail Add.	 panoramacity
	 @pnbrci.com

Marilyn Alviar
Branch Supervisor

PNB RCI Panorama City 
Extension Office - North Hills 
Seafood City
16130 Nordhoff St. North Hills, 
CA 91343, U.S.A.
Tel No.	 (818) 830-9100
Fax No.	 (818) 830-9119
E-mail Add.	 northhills@pnbrci.com

Marilyn Alviar
Branch Supervisor

PNB RCI Rancho Cucamonga
9589 Foothill Blvd. Ste. C1-B, 
Rancho Cucamonga 
CA 91730, U.S.A.
Tel Nos.	 (909) 476-9494/ 9279
Fax No.	 (909) 476-9459
E-mail Add.	 ranchocucamonga
	 @pnbrci.com

Yazmin Wyeth Haines
Person-In-Charge

PNB RCI Riverside
11160 Magnolia Ave. Riverside, 
CA 92505, U.S.A.
Tel No.	 (951) 977-9505
Fax No.	 (951) 977-9506
E-mail Add.	 riverside@pnbrci.com

Ma. Cristina Pagotan / 
Elpie Aguilera
Person-In-Charge / Region Head

PNB RCI West Covina 
1559-K E. Amar Road 
West Covina, CA 91792, U.S.A.
Tel No.	 (626) 854-2044 / 45
Fax No.	 (626) 854-2046
E-mail Add.	 westcovina
	 @pnbrci.com

Mary Jane Sotelo
Person-In-Charge

PNB RCI Daly City 
6730 Mission Blvd.Unit A, 
Daly City, CA 94014, U.S.A.
Tel Nos.	 (650) 756-1268 / 1492
Fax No.	 (650) 756-1409
E-mail Add.	 dalycity@pnbrci.com

Fe De Lara
Branch Supervisor
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PNB RCI Sacramento  - 
Seafood City Supermarket
6051 Mack Rd., Sacramento
CA 95823, U.S.A.
Tel. Nos.	 (916) 392-2468 / 2497
Fax No.	 (916) 392-5823
E-mail Add.	 sacramento
	 @pnbrci.com

AM Aida De Vega / 
Socrates Cruzada
Branch Manager / Region Head

PNB RCI San Francisco
564 Market Street Suite 303 
San Francisco, CA 94104
Tel Nos.	 (415) 392-0502 
	 (415) 392-3107
Fax No.	 (415) 693-9263
E-mail Add.	 sanfrancisco
	 @pnbrci.com

Nelson Caro 
Socrates Cruzada
Branch Manager  
Region Head

PNB RCI San Jose 
1983 Quimby Road San Jose, 
CA 95122, U.S.A.
Tel No.	 (408) 929-0964 / 65
Fax No.	 (408) 929-0966
E-mail Add.	 sanjose@pnbrci.com

AM Aileen Layante
Branch Manager

PNB RCI Union City 
32128 Alvarado Blvd. Union City, 
CA 94587, U.S.A.
Tel Nos.	 (510) 487-6272 / 73
Fax No.	 (510) 487-6330
E-mail Add. unioncity@pnbrci.com

Cornell Alma Gutierrez
Branch Supervisor

PNB RCI Vallejo 
36 Springtowne Center Vallejo, 
CA 94591, U.S.A.
Tel Nos.	 (707) 558-9575
	 (707) 644-6329
Fax No.	 (707) 558-9577
E-mail Add.	 vallejo@pnbrci.com

AM Carmenchu Lim
Branch Manager

PNB RCI Vallejo - Sub-branch 
Concord
2030 Diamond Blvd. 
Ste. P Concord, CA 94520
Tel No.	 (925) 798-1020
Fax No.	 (925) 798-1069
E-mail Add.	 concord@pnbrci.com

AM Carmenchu Lim / 
Socrates Cruzada
Branch Manager / Region Head

PNB RCI Chicago 
5918 N. Clark St. Chicago, 
IL 60660, U.S.A.
Tel Nos.	 (773) 784-2951 / 53
Fax  No.	 (773) 784-2952
E-mail Add.	 chicago@pnbrci.com

AM Christopher Ortiz
Branch Manager

PNB RCI Hoffman Estates 
1019 W. Golf Road, Hoffman 
Estates, IL 60169, U.S.A.
Tel. Nos.	 (847) 885-7405 / 7407
Fax No.	 (847) 885-7412
E-mail Add.	 hoffman@pnbrci.com

Edna Burgos
Branch Supervisor

PNB RCI Niles 
7144 Dempster Avenue, Ste. 350 
Morton Grove,IL 60053, U.S.A.
Tel Nos.	 (847) 583-0352
	 (847) 663-9360
Fax No.	 (847) 583-0353
E-mail Add.	 niles@pnbrci.com

Angeles Recto / Arsenio Odullo
Branch Supervisor / Region Head

PNB RCI Woodridge 
7406 Janes Avenue Woodridge, 
IL 60517, U.S.A.
Tel No.	 (630) 968-3790
Fax No.	 (630) 968-3796
E-mail Add.	 woodridge@pnbrci.com

Rosario Brady
Person-In-Charge

PNB RCN Las Vegas 
3890 S. Maryland Parkway Ste. G, 
Las Vegas, NV 89119, U.S.A.
Tel Nos.	 (702) 474-9008 / 9062
Fax No.	 (702) 474-9068
E-mail Add.	 lasvegas@pnbrci.com

Theresa Olan
Branch Manager
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PNB RCN Las Vegas Sahara
Sahara Towne Square 2600-A S. 
Maryland Parkway Las Vegas 
NV 89109, U.S.A.
Tel Nos.	 (702) 650-5263 / 6429
Fax No.	 (702) 650-6448
E-mail Add.	 sahara@pnbrci.com

Ma. Socorro Santiago
Branch Supervisor

PNB RCI Houston 
Beltway Plaza Shopping Center 
8388 West Sam Houston Parkway 
Suite 194, Houston
TX 77072, U.S.A.
Tel Nos.	 (281) 988-7575 / 7001
Fax No.	 (281) 988-7555
E-mail Add.	 houston@pnbrci.com

Teodelyn Martinez
Branch Supervisor

PNB RCI Dallas
940 East Belt Line Ste. 130, 
Richardson, TX 75081, U.S.A.
Tel. Nos.	 (972) 470-9910 / 12
Fax No.	 (972) 470-9915
E-mail Add.	 dallas@pnbrci.com

Emilio Evangelista, Jr.
Person-In-Charge

PNB RCI Dallas Extension Office - 
Grand Prairie 
2615 W. Pioneer Parkway #139, 
Grand Prairie, TX 75051, U.S.A.
Tel Nos.	 (214) 788-2835 / 36
Fax No.	 972-522-5841
E-mail Add.	 grandprairie
	 @pnbrci.com

Emilio Evangelista, Jr.
Person-In-Charge

PNB RCI Northwest Houston
13480 Veterans Memorial Dr., Suite 
K-1, Houston, TX 77014, U.S.A.
Tel. Nos.	 (281) 880-7560 / 67
Fax No.	 (281) 880-7007
E-mail Add.	 nwhouston
	 @pnbrci.com

Vicente Alcera, Jr. /  
Shirley Ann Camacho
Person-In-Charge  / 
Region Head

PNB RCI Seattle
1368 Southcenter Mall, Suite 110 
Tukwila, WA 98188
Tel Nos.	 (206) 722-2890 / 2945
Fax No.	 (206) 722-2958
E-mail Add.	 seattle@pnbrci.com

AM Cecilia Teresita V.  Flores
Branch Manager

PNB RCI Honolulu
33 South King Street Suit 109, 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813, USA
Tel No.	 (808) 521-1493
Fax No.	 (808) 533-2842
E-mail Add.	 honolulu@pnbrci.com 

David Dahilig
Branch Supervisor

PNB RCI Waipahu
94-226 Leoku Street Waipahu, 
Hawaii 96797, U.S.A.
Tel No.	 (808) 678-3360
Fax No.	 (808) 678-3302
E-mail Add.	 waipahu@pnbrci.com

Arceli Sagaoinit
Branch Supervisor

PNB RCI Jersey City 
535 Newark Avenue, Jersey City, 
NJ 07306, U.S.A.
Tel Nos.	 (201) 656-3270 / 3953
Fax No.	 (201) 656-7164
E-mail Add.	 jerseycity@pnbrci.com

AM Carmen Hermosisima
Branch Manager

PNB RCI Bergenfield 
107 N. Washington Avenue 
Bergenfield, New Jersey 
07621 U.S.A.
Tel No.	 (201) 387-0077
Fax No.	 (201) 387-1112
E-mail Add.	 bergenfield
	 @pnbrci.com

AM Carmen Hermosisima
Branch Manager

PNB RCI Maryland 
9213 Oxon Hill Road Fort 
Washington, Maryland 
20744 U.S.A.
Tel Nos.	 (301) 567-8244 / 45
Fax No.	 (301) 567-8246
E-mail Add.	 maryland@pnbrci.com

Melchor Reyes, Jr.
AVP & Regional Head

PNB RCI Virginia Beach 
5350 Kemps River Drive
Suite 116, Virginia Beach
VA 23464, U.S.A.
Tel No.	 (757) 424-1592
Fax No.	 (757) 424-1595
E-mail Add.	 virginiabeach
	 @pnbrci.com

Rosalie Bermudez
Person-In-Charge

150 TODAY, WE START ON YOUR TOMORROW



PNB RCI Jacksonville 
10916 Atlantic Blvd., Unit 5 
Jacksonville, FL 32225, U.S.A.
Tel Nos.	 (904) 564-2555 / 01
Fax No.	 (904) 564-2530
E-mail Add.	 jacksonville
	 @pnbrci.com

Andrew Santiago 
Person-In-Charge

PNB RCI Tampa
8502 N. Armenia Avenue, Suite 4B, 
Tampa, FL 33604, U.S.A.
Tel Nos.	 (813) 933-5335 / 36
Fax No.	 (813) 933-5330
E-mail Add.	 tampa@pnbrci.com

Meiji Hope Kho 
Person-In-Charge

PNB Remittance Company, 
Nevada  - Main  Office
316 W 2nd Street, 7th Floor, Los 
Angeles, California 90012, U.S.A.
Tel No.	 (213) 401-1008
Fax No.	 (213) 401-1208
E-mail Add.	 dchoa@pnbrci.com

David G. Choa, Jr.
President & CEO

CANADA

PNB Remittance Company 
(Canada) - Main Office
95 Dundas Street West Unit 6, 
3rd Floor Mississauga Ontario 
Canada  L5B 1H7
Tel Nos.	 (905) 897-9600
	 (905) 896-9743
Fax No.	 (905) 897-9601
E-mail Add.	 info@pnbrcc.com 
                    pnb.global.remit
	 @pnbrcc.com 
                     lyap@pnbrcc.com

Lawrence Yap
President & CEO

PNB RCC Mississauga Branch
3-95 Dundas St. West Mississauga, 
Unit 4A, 2nd Floor, Ontario 
Canada  L5B 1H7
Tel Nos.	 (905) 896-8010/ 
	 (905) 268-0580
Fax No.	 (905) 896-9338
E-mail Add.	 mississauga
	 @pnbrcc.com

Grace Barlaan
Branch Supervisor

PNB RCC Scarborough Branch
3430 Sheppard Ave.
East, Scarborough
Ontario M1T 3K4, Canada
Tel Nos.		  (416) 293-5438/ 

	 (416) 293-8758
Fax No.	 (416) 293-7376
E-mail Add.  scarborough
	 @pnbrcc.com

Mercy Grace Letrondo
Branch Supervisor

PNB RCC Sherbourne Branch
3-545 Sherbourne St., Toronto M4X 
1W5, Ontario, Canada
Tel No.	 (416) 960-9231
Fax No.	 (416) 960-8688
E-mail Add.	 sherbourne
	 @pnbrcc.com

Daisy Pataueg 
Personnel-in-Charge

PNB RCC Surrey Branch
13521  102nd Avenue
Surrey BC  V3T 4X8
Tel No.	 (604) 581-6762
Fax No.	 (604) 581-6299
E-mail Add.	 surrey@pnbrcc.com

Alfredo Asuncion
Branch Supervisor

PNB RCC Vancouver Branch
101-1245 West Broadway  
Vancouver, BC,V6H 1G7 
Tel No.	 (604) 737-4944  
Fax No.	 (604) 737-4948
E-mail Add.	 vancouver@pnbrcc.com

Lucille Ardinazo
Branch Supervisor
                           
PNB RCC Wilson Branch
101-333 Wilson Ave.Toronto, 
Ontario, M3H 1T2
Tel. No.	 (416) 630-1400
Fax No.	 (416) 630-1406
E-mail Add.	 pnbremittance
	 @bellnet.ca

Maria Marivic Funtanilla
Branch Supervisor

PNB RCC Winnipeg Branch 
(Marketing Office)
737 Keewatin Street Unit 7, 
Winnipeg, Manitoba 
Canada R3K 2G7
Tel No.	 (204) 697-8860
Fax No.	 (204) 697-8865
E-mail Add.	 winnipeg@pnbrcc.com

Jo Ann Palabon
Personnel-in-Charge
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PNB Capital and Investment 
Corporation
9/F PNB Financial Ctr, 
Pres. Diosdado Macapagal Blvd 

Pasay City 1300
Tel Nos.	 526-3698 
	 551-5811
Fax No.	 526-3270
E-mail Add.	 pnbcapital
	 @pnb.com.ph

Carlos A. Pedrosa 
Chairman

 
SVP Gerry B. Valenciano

Officer-In-Charge

PNB Securities, Incorporated 
3/F PNB Financial Ctr., 
Pres. Diosdado Macapagal Blvd. 

Pasay City 1300
Tel Nos.	 526-3678
	 526-3478
Fax No.	 526-3477
E-mail Add.	 pnbsitrade
	 @pnb.com.ph

Domingo T. Chua 
Chairman
 
Ramon L. Lim 

President & CEO

PNB Holdings Corporation 
2/F PNB Financial Ctr, 
Pres. Diosdado Macapagal Blvd 

Pasay City 1300
Tel Nos.	 573-4315

Domingo T. Chua 
Chairman

Cielo M. Salgado 

President

Subsidiaries and Affiliates

PNB General Insurers Co., Inc. 
2/F PNB Financial Ctr, 
Pres. Diosdado Macapagal Blvd 

Pasay City 1300
Tel Nos.	 526-3268 to 69 
	 526-3635 37 to 38
Fax No.	 526-3643
E-mail Add.	 pnbgeninsurers
	 @pnb.com.ph 

Cielo M. Salgado 
Chairman
 
Reynaldo P. Mañalac 

President & CEO

Japan-PNB Leasing and Finance 

Corporation 
7/F, Salustiana Ty Tower 104 Paseo 
de Roxas cor.Perea St. Legaspi 

Village, Makati City
Tel Nos.	 892-5555
Fax No.	 893-0032
E-mail Add.	 info@jpnbleasing.com

Carlos A. Pedrosa 
Chairman
 
Alfonso C. Tanseco 

Acting President

PNB Forex, Incorporated 
3/F PNB Financial Ctr, 
Pres. Diosdado Macapagal Blvd 

Pasay City 1300
Tel Nos.	 573-4348
Fax No.	 526-3270

Omar Byron T. Mier 
Chairman
 
SM Ma. Gemma G. Subiate 

Officer-In-Charge

152 TODAY, WE START ON YOUR TOMORROW








